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SECTION | - GENERAL
DEFINITIONS AND ABBREVIATIONS

This Draft Prospectus uses certain definitions and abbreviations which, unless the context otherwise indicates or implies,
shall have the meaning ascribed to such definitions and abbreviations set forth herein. References to any legislation, act,
regulation, rules, guidelines, clarifications or policies shall be to such legislation, act, regulation, rules, guidelines,
clarifications or policies as amended, supplemented or re-enacted from time to time until the date of this Draft
Prospectus, and any reference to a statutory provision shall include any subordinate legislation notified from time to
time pursuant to such provision.

The words and expressions used in this Draft Prospectus but not defined herein shall have, to the extent applicable, the
same meaning ascribed to such words and expressions under the SEBI NCS Regulations, the Companies Act, 2013, the
SCRA, the Depositories Act and the rules and regulations notified thereunder.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the terms defined as part of “General Information”, “Risk Factors” “Industry
Overview”, “Regulations and Policies”, “Statement of Possible Tax Benefits”, “Summary of Key Provisions of Articles
of Association”, “Financial Information” and “Other Regulatory and Statutory Disclosures” on pages 49, 18, 98, 188,
76, 313, 198 and 231, respectively shall have the meaning ascribed to them as part of the aforementioned sections. Terms
not defined as part of the sections “Our Business”, “Risk Factors”, “Industry Overview” and “Regulations and
Policies”, on pages 142, 18, 98 and 188, respectively, shall have the meaning ascribed to them hereunder.

General Terms

Term Description

the Issuer, our Company, the |Satin Creditcare Network Limited, an NBFC-MFI incorporated under the Companies Act,

Company or Satin Creditcare|1956, as amended and replaced from time to time, having its CIN

Network Limited L65991DL1990PLC041796 and having its registered office at 5" Floor, Kundan Bhawan,
Azadpur Commercial Complex, Azadpur, North West, Delhi-110033.

we/ us/ our Unless the context otherwise indicates or implies, refers to our Company together with our
Subsidiaries, on a consolidated basis

Promoters Harvinder Pal Singh and Satvinder Singh

Subsidiaries Satin Housing Finance Limited and Satin Finserv Limited

Company Related Terms

Term Description

Acrticles or Articles of Acrticles of Association of our Company
Assaciation or AOA

Asset Liability Management | Asset Liability Management Committee of our Company, constituted in accordance with

Committee or ALCO applicable laws and as reconstituted from time to time by Board of Directors of the
Company

Audit Committee Audit committee of the Board of Directors of our Company, constituted in accordance with
applicable laws and as reconstituted from time to time by Board of Directors of the
Company

Audited Financial Collectively, Audited Consolidated Financial Statements and Audited Standalone Financial

Statements Statements.

Audited Consolidated The audited consolidated financial statements of the Company and its Subsidiaries

Financial Statements comprising the consolidated balance sheet as at March 31, 2023, March 31, 2022 and March

31, 2021, and the consolidated statement of profit and loss, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for each of the years ended
and notes to the consolidated financial statements including a summary of the significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information, prepared in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in India, including Ind AS notified under Section
133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015, as amended from time to time, and the auditor’s report on audited consolidated
financial statements (a) for Fiscal 2022 and 2023 dated May 4, 2022 and April 29, 2023,
respectively issued thereon by S S Kothari Mehta & Co., Chartered Accountants, Statutory
Auditors of the Company and (b) for Fiscal 2021 dated June 14, 2021 issued thereon by
Walker Chandiok & Co LLP, Chartered Accountants, our Previous Statutory Auditor.
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Term

Description

Audited Standalone
Financial Statements

The audited standalone financial statements of the Company comprising the standalone
balance sheet as at March 31, 2021, March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2023, and the standalone
statement of profit and loss, the standalone statement of changes in equity and the
standalone statement of cash flows for each of the years then ended and notes to the
standalone financial statements including a summary of the significant accounting policies
and other explanatory information, prepared in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in India, including Ind AS notified under Section 133 of the Companies
Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended
from time to time, and the auditor’s report on audited standalone financial statements (a)
for Fiscal 2022 and 2023 dated May 4, 2022 and April 29, 2023, respectively, issued thereon
by S S Kothari Mehta & Co., Chartered Accountants, Statutory Auditors of the Company
and (b) for Fiscal 2021 dated June 14, 2021 issued thereon by Walker Chandiok & Co LLP,
Chartered Accountants, our Previous Statutory Auditor.

Auditors or Statutory
Auditors

The current statutory auditor of our Company, S. S. Kothari Mehta & Co.

Board or Board of Directors
or our Board or our Board
of Directors

Board of Directors of our Company or any duly constituted committee thereof

Committee

A committee constituted by the Board, and as reconstituted from time to time.

Corporate Social
Responsibility Committee

Corporate social responsibility committee of our Company last re-constituted by our Board
of Directors by board resolution dated November 14, 2018, constituted in accordance with
applicable laws and as may be further re-constituted from time to time by Board of Directors
of the Company

Corporate Office

Plot No. 492, Udyog Vihar, Phase-111, Gurugram-122016, Haryana, India

Directors Directors of our Company

Equity Shares Equity shares of the Company of face value of 210 each

ESOP(s) Employee stock options

Gross Stage 3 book Also referred to as Gross NPA

Gross Stage 3 (%) Also referred to as Gross NPAs to Gross Advances %

Group Company(ies) Such companies as identified in accordance with Regulation 2(1)(r) of SEBI NCS
Regulations, as under:
(i) Satin Neo Dimensions Private Limited; and (ii) Niryas Food Products Private Limited

ICRA ICRA Limited

Independent Director(s)

The independent director(s) on our Board, in terms of Section 2(47) and Section 149(6) of
the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 16(1)(b) of the SEBI Listing Regulations

ISIN

International Securities Identification Number

JLG

Joint Liability Group

KMP / Key Managerial
Personnel

Key managerial personnel of our Company as disclosed in this Draft Prospectus and
appointed in accordance with Section 203, as defined under Section 2(51) of the Companies
Act, 2013

Loan Book

Loan book containing loans and advances to the borrowers

MoA or Memorandum or
Memorandum of

Memorandum of Association of our Company

Association
Net Stage 3 (%) Referred to as Net NPAs to Net Advances %
Net Stage 3 Referred to as Net NPA

Nomination and
Remuneration Committee

Nomination and Remuneration Committee of our Company last re-constituted by the Board
of Directors by board resolution dated October 29, 2021, in accordance with applicable laws
and as may be further re-constituted from time to time by Board of Directors of the
Company

Net worth

As defined in Section 2(57) of the Companies Act, 2013, as follows:

“Net worth means the aggregate value of the paid-up share capital and all reserves created
out of the profits, securities premium account and debit or credit balance of profit and loss
account, after deducting the aggregate value of the accumulated losses, deferred
expenditure and miscellaneous expenditure not written off, as per the audited balance sheet
but does not include reserves created out of revaluation of assets, write back of depreciation
and amalgamation.”




Term

Description

Previous Statutory Auditor

The previous statutory auditor of our Company, Walker Chandiok & Co. LLP, Chartered
Accountants

Promoter Group

Includes such persons and entities constituting the promoter group of our Company
pursuant to Regulation 2(1)(pp) of the SEBI ICDR Regulations.

Registered Office

Registered Office of our Company presently situated at 5" Floor, Kundan Bhawan, Azadpur
Commercial Complex, Azadpur, North West, Delhi-110033, India

Risk Management
Committee

Risk Management Committee of our Company last re-constituted by the Board of Directors
by board resolution dated November 13, 2020, in accordance with applicable laws and as
may be further re-constituted from time to time by Board of Directors of the Company.

RoC or Registrar of
Companies

Registrar of Companies, Delhi and Haryana

Shareholders

The holders of the Equity Shares of the Company from time to time

Senior Management
Personnel or SMP

Senior Management Personnel of our Company in accordance with definition of Senior
Management in Regulation 2(1)(iia) of the SEBI NCS Regulations, as described in “Our
Management” on page 166.

Stakeholders’ Relationship
Committee

Stakeholders’ relationship committee of our Company last reconstituted by the Board of
Directors by board resolution dated November 14, 2018, in accordance with applicable laws
and as may be further re-constituted time to time by Board of Directors of the Company.

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries shall mean the subsidiaries of the Company, namely, Satin Finserv Limited
and Satin Housing Finance Limited

Total Borrowing(s)/ Total
Debt

Debt securities plus borrowings other than debt securities

Unaudited Interim
Condensed Consolidated
Financial Statements

Unaudited Interim Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements as of and for the six
months ended September 30, 2023, read along with the notes thereto prepared in accordance
with Indian Accounting Standard 34 “Interim Financial Reporting”, prescribed under
Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, and other accounting principles generally
accepted in India and the report issued thereto

Unaudited Interim
Condensed Standalone
Financial Statements

Unaudited Interim Condensed Standalone Financial Statements as of and for the six months
ended September 30, 2023, read along with the notes thereto prepared in accordance with
Indian Accounting Standard 34 “Interim Financial Reporting”, prescribed under Section
133 of the Companies Act, 2013, and other accounting principles generally accepted in
India and the report issued thereto

Unaudited Interim
Condensed Financial
Statements

Collectively, Unaudited Interim Condensed Standalone Financial Statements and

Unaudited Interim Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements

Issue Related Terms

Term

Description

Abridged Prospectus

A memorandum containing the salient features of the Prospectus

Acknowledgement Slip/
Transaction Registration
Slip/ TRS

The slip or document accompanying the Application Form issued by the Designated
Intermediary to an Applicant as proof of registration of the Application Form

Allotment Advice

The communication sent to the Allottees conveying the details of NCDs allotted to the
Allottees in accordance with the Basis of Allotment

Allotment, Allot or Allotted

Unless the context otherwise requires, the issue and allotment of NCDs to the successful
Applicants pursuant to the Issue

Allottee(s)

The successful Applicant to whom the NCDs are Allotted either in full or part, pursuant to
the Issue

Applicant or Investor or
ASBA Applicant

Any person who applies for issuance and Allotment of NCDs through ASBA process or
through UP1 Mechanism pursuant to the terms of this Draft Prospectus, the Prospectus, the
Abridged Prospectus and the Application Form.

Application or ASBA
Application or ASBA or
Application supported by
Blocked Amount

An application (whether physical or electronic) to subscribe to the NCDs offered pursuant
to the Issue by submission of a valid Application Form and authorising an SCSB to block
the Application Amount in the ASBA Account or to block the Application Amount using
the UPI Mechanism, where the bid amount will be blocked upon acceptance of UPI
Mandate Request by retail investors for an Application Amount of upto the UPI Application
Limit which will be considered as the application for Allotment in terms of the Prospectus.




Term

Description

Application Amount

The aggregate value of the NCDs applied for, as indicated in the Application Form for the
Issue

Application Form or ASBA
Form

Form in terms of which an Applicant shall make an offer to subscribe to NCDs through the
ASBA process or through the UPI Mechanism and which will be considered as the
Application for Allotment of NCDs in terms of Prospectus.

ASBA Account

A bank account maintained by an ASBA bidder with an SCSB, as specified in the ASBA
Form submitted by ASBA Applicants for blocking the Bid Amount mentioned in the ASBA
Form, and will include a bank account of a retail individual investor linked with UPI, for
retail individual investors submitting application value up to UPI Application Limit.

ASBA Applicant

Any Applicant who applies for NCDs through the ASBA process

Banker(s) to the Issue

Collectively, Public Issue Account Bank, Refund Bank and Sponsor Bank

Base Issue Size

210,000 lakh

Basis of Allotment

The basis on which NCDs will be allotted to applicants as described in “Issue Procedure —
Basis of Allotment” on page 310.

Bidding Centres

Centres at which the Designated Intermediaries shall accept the Application Forms, i.e.,
Designated Branches of SCSB, Specified Locations for Members of the Syndicate, Broker
Centres for Registered Brokers, Designated RTA Locations for RTAs and Designhated CDP
Locations for CDPs

Broker Centres

Broker centres notified by the Stock Exchange where Applicants can submit the ASBA
Forms (including ASBA Forms under UPI in case of UPI Investors) to a Registered Broker.
The details of such Broker Centres, along with the names and contact details of the Trading
Members are available on the website of the Stock Exchange at www.bseindia.com.

BSE

BSE Limited.

Category |
(Institutional Investors)

e Public financial institutions, scheduled commercial banks, Indian multilateral and
bilateral development financial institutions which are authorised to invest in the NCDs;

e Provident funds and pension funds each with a minimum corpus of %2,500 lakh,
superannuation funds and gratuity funds, which are authorised to invest in the NCDs;

¢ Alternative Investment Funds, subject to investment conditions applicable to them under

the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Alternative Investment Funds) Regulations,

2012;

Resident Venture Capital Funds registered with SEBI;

Insurance companies registered with the IRDAI,

State industrial development corporations;

Insurance funds set up and managed by the army, navy, or air force of the Union of

India;

Insurance funds set up and managed by the Department of Posts, the Union of India;

o Systemically Important Non-Banking Financial Company registered with the RBI or
Non-Banking Financial Company registered with the RBI having total assets of more
than ¥ 50,000 lakh as per the last audited financial statements;

e National Investment Fund set up by resolution no. F.No. 2/3/2005-DDII dated
November 23, 2005 of the Government of India published in the Gazette of India; and

e Mutual funds registered with SEBI.

Category Il
(Non-Institutional Investors)

e Companies within the meaning of Section 2(20) of the Companies Act, 2013;

e Statutory bodies/ corporations and societies registered under the applicable laws in India
and authorised to invest in the NCDs;

e Co-operative banks and regional rural banks;

e Trusts including public/private charitable/religious trusts which are authorised to invest
in the NCDs;

o Scientific and/or industrial research organisations, which are authorised to invest in the
NCDs;

e Partnership firms in the name of the partners;

o Limited liability partnerships formed and registered under the provisions of the Limited
Liability Partnership Act, 2008 (No. 6 of 2009).

¢ Association of Persons; and

e Any other incorporated and/ or unincorporated body of persons

Category 111 (High Net
Worth Individual Investors)

Resident Indian individuals or Hindu Undivided Families through the Karta applying for an
amount aggregating to above X 10,00,000 across all options of NCDs in the Issue




Term

Description

Category IV
(Retail Individual Investors)

Resident Indian individuals or Hindu Undivided Families through the Karta applying for an
amount aggregating up to and including X 10,00,000 across all options of NCDs in the Issue
and shall include Retail Individual Investors, who have submitted bid for an amount not
more than UPI Application Limit in any of the bidding options in the Issue (including HUFs
applying through their Karta and does not include NRIs) through UP1 Mechanism.

CIBIL

TransUnion CIBIL Limited

Client ID

Client identification number maintained with one of the Depositories in relation to the
demat account

Collecting Depository
Participant or CDP

A depository participant as defined under the Depositories Act, 1996, registered with SEBI
and who is eligible to procure Applications in the Issue, at the Designated CDP Locations
in terms of the SEBI Master Circular

Collecting Registrar and
Share Transfer Agents or
CRTAs

Registrar and share transfer agents registered with SEBI and eligible to procure
Applications, at the Designated RTA Locations

Consortium Agreement

Consortium Agreement to be entered into amongst the Company, Lead Manager and
Consortium Member as specified in the Prospectus.

Consortium Member(s)

As specified in the Prospectus

Consortium or Members of
the Consortium or Members
of Syndicate (each
individually, a Member of
the Consortium)

The Lead Manager and the Consortium Member.

Coupon or Interest Rate

The coupon rate as disclosed in the “Issue Structure — Specific terms for NCDs” on page
260.

Credit Rating Agency

ICRA Limited

Debenture Holder(s) /NCD
Holder(s)

The holders of the NCDs pursuant to the Issue whose name appears in the database of the
relevant Depository and/or the register of NCD Holders (if any) maintained by our
Company if required under applicable law.

Debenture Trustee
Agreement

Agreement dated January 19, 2024 entered into between the Debenture Trustee and the
Company wherein the appointment of the Debenture Trustee to the Issue, is agreed between
our Company and the Debenture Trustee

Debenture Trust Deed

The trust deed to be entered between the Debenture Trustee and our Company which shall
be executed in relation to the NCDs within the time limit prescribed by applicable statutory
and/or regulatory requirements, including creation of appropriate security, in favour of the
Debenture Trustee for the NCD Holders on the assets adequate to ensure atleast 1.10 times
security cover for the NCDs for the principal amount outstanding under the NCDs and the
interest due and payable thereon in respect of the NCDs maintained at all times as security
until the Maturity Date, issued pursuant to the Issue.

Debenture Trustee or
Trustee

Trustee for the NCD holders in this case being Catalyst Trusteeship Limited

Deemed Date of Allotment

The date on which the NCD Public Issuance Committee approves the Allotment of the
NCDs for the Issue or such date as may be determined by the Board of Directors/ or the
NCD Public Issuance Committee thereof and notified to the Designated Stock Exchange.
The actual Allotment of NCDs may take place on a date other than the Deemed Date of
Allotment. All benefits relating to the NCDs including interest on NCDs shall be available
to the Debenture Holders from the Deemed Date of Allotment.

Demographic Details

The demographic details of the Applicants such as their respective addresses, email, PAN,
investor status, MICR Code and bank account detail

Depository(ies)

National Securities Depository Limited and /or Central Depository Services (India) Limited

Designated Branches

Such branches of the SCSBs which shall collect the Application Forms, a list of which is
available on the website of the SEBI at
https://www.sebi.gov.in/sebiweb/other/OtherAction.do?doRecognised=yes or at such other
weblink as may be prescribed by SEBI from time to time

Designated CDP Locations

Such locations of the CDPs where Applicants can submit the ASBA Forms, a list of which,
along with names and contact details of the Collecting Depository Participants eligible to
accept ASBA Forms are available on the website of the Stock Exchange at
www.bseindia.com

Designated Date

The date on which the Registrar to the Issue issues instructions to SCSBs for transfer of
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Term

Description

funds blocked from the ASBA Account to the Public Issue Account(s) or to the Refund
Account, as appropriate, after finalisation of the Basis of Allotment, in terms of the
Prospectus and the Public Issue Account and Sponsor Bank Agreement.

Designated Intermediaries

Collectively, members of the Consortium, Sub-Consortium/agents, Trading Members,
SCSBs, Registered Brokers, CDPs and RTAs, who are authorised to collect Application
Forms from the Applicants in the Issue.

In relation to ASBA applicants authorising an SCSB to block the amount in the ASBA
Account, Designated Intermediaries shall mean SCSBs.

In relation to ASBA applicants submitted by Retail Individual Investors where the amount
was blocked upon acceptance of UPI Mandate Request using the UPI Mechanism,
Designated Intermediaries shall mean the CDPs, RTAs, Lead Manager, Members of the
Consortium, Trading Members and Stock Exchange where applications have been
submitted through the app/web interface as provided in the SEBI Master Circular.

Designated RTA Locations

Such centres of the RTAs where Applicants can submit the Application Forms. The details
of such Designated RTA Locations, along with the names and contact details of the RTAs
eligible to accept ASBA Forms and Application Forms submitted using the UPI Mechanism
as a payment option (for a maximum amount of UPI Application Limit) are available on
the website of the Stock Exchange at www.bseindia.com, as updated from time to time

Designated Stock Exchange

The designated stock exchange for the Issue, being the BSE Limited

Direct Online Application

An online interface enabling direct applications through UPI by an app based/web interface,
by investors to a public issue of debt securities with an online payment facility

Draft Prospectus

This Draft Prospectus dated January 24, 2024 filed with the Stock Exchange for receiving
public comments and with SEBI in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act,
2013 and the SEBI NCS Regulations.

Interest Payment Date or
Coupon Payment Date

As specified in the Prospectus

Issue

Public Issue by the Company of up to 20,00,000 secured, rated, listed, redeemable, non-
convertible debentures of face value of 2 1,000 Each (“NCDs” or “Debentures”), for an
amount up to X 10,000 lakh (“Base Issue Size”) with an option to retain oversubscription
up to X 10,000 lakh (“Green Shoe Option™), aggregating up to X 20,000 lakh (“Issue” /
“Issue Size”).

Issue Agreement

The Issue Agreement dated January 24, 2024 entered between the Company and JM
Financial Limited the Lead Manager to the Issue.

Issue Closing Date

As specified in the Prospectus

Issue Documents or Offer
Document

This Draft Prospectus, the Prospectus, the Abridged Prospectus, the Application Form and
supplemental information, if any, read with any notices, corrigenda and addenda thereto.

Issue Opening Date

As specified in the Prospectus

Issue Period

The period between the Issue Opening Date and the Issue Closing Date inclusive of both
days, during which prospective Applicants can submit their Application Forms as provided
in the Prospectus.

Lead Manager

JM Financial Limited

Listing Agreement

The uniform listing agreement entered into between our Company and the Stock Exchange
in connection with the listing of debt securities of our Company

Market Lot

1 (One) NCD

Mobile App(s)

The mobile applications listed on the website of Stock Exchange as may be updated from
time to time, which may be used by RIBs to submit Bids using the UPI Mechanism

Maturity Date or
Redemption Date

The maturity/ redemption dates as disclosed in the section “Issue Structure” on page 256.

NCDs or Debentures

Secured, rated, listed, redeemable, non-convertible debentures of face value of T1,000 each,
for an amount up to 10,000 lakh (“Base Issue Size”) with an option to retain
oversubscription up to 10,000 lakh (“Green Shoe Option™), aggregating up to 320,000
lakh to be issued pursuant to this Issue.

NCD Holders or Debenture
Holder

Any debenture holder who holds the NCDs issued pursuant to this Issue and whose name
appears on the beneficial owners list provided by the Depositories.




Term

Description

NCD Public Issuance
Committee

The NCD Public Issuance committee of our Company as constituted by our Board of
Directors by a board resolution dated January 15, 2024 and as may be further reconstituted
from time to time, by the Board of Directors of our Company.

OCB or Overseas Corporate
Body

A company, partnership, society or other corporate body owned directly or indirectly to the
extent of at least 60% (sixty percent) by NRIs including overseas trusts, in which not less
than 60% (sixty percent) of beneficial interest is irrevocably held by NRIs directly or
indirectly and which was in existence on October 3, 2003 and immediately before such date
had taken benefits under the general permission granted to OCBs under the FEMA. OCBs
are not permitted to invest in this Issue

Prospectus

The Prospectus to be filed with the RoC and submitted with SEBI and BSE, in accordance
with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the SEBI NCS Regulations.

Public Issue Account

Account(s) to be opened with the Banker(s) to the Issue to receive monies for allotment of
NCDs from the ASBA Accounts maintained with the SCSBs (including under the UPI
mechanism) on the Designated Date.

Public Issue Account and
Sponsor Bank Agreement

Agreement to be entered into amongst our Company, the Registrar to the Issue, the Public
Issue Account Bank, the Refund Bank and Sponsor Bank, and the Lead Manager for the
appointment of the Public Issue Account Bank, Refund Bank and Sponsor Bank in
accordance with the SEBI Master Circular and for collection of the Application Amounts
from ASBA Accounts under the UPI mechanism from the Applicants on the terms and
conditions thereof and where applicable, refund of the amounts collected from the
applicants.

Public Issue Account Bank

Banks which are clearing members and registered with SEBI under the Securities and
Exchange Board of India (Bankers to an Issue) Regulations, 1994, with whom the Public
Issue Account will be opened and as specified in the Prospectus.

Record Date

The record date for payment of interest in connection with the NCDs or repayment of
principal in connection therewith shall be 15 (fifteen) days prior to the date on which interest
is due and payable, and/or the date of redemption or such other date under the Prospectus
as may be determined by the Company.

Provided that trading in the NCDs shall remain suspended between the aforementioned
Record Date in connection with redemption of NCDs and the date of redemption or as
prescribed by the Stock Exchange, as the case may be.

In case Record Date falls on a day when Stock Exchange are having a trading holiday, the
immediate subsequent trading day or a date notified by our Company to the Stock Exchange
will be deemed as the Record Date

Recovery Expense Fund

Our Company has created a recovery expense fund in the manner as specified by SEBI in
SEBI Debenture Trustee Master Circular as amended from time to time and Regulation 11
of SEBI NCS Regulations with the Designated Stock Exchange and have informed the
Debenture Trustee regarding the creation of such fund. The Recovery expense fund may be
utilized by Debenture Trustee, in the event of default by our Company under the terms of
the Debenture Trust Deed, and the Applicable Laws, for taking appropriate legal action to
enforce the security.

Redemption Amount

As specified in the Prospectus

Redemption Date

The date on which our Company is liable to redeem the NCDs in full as specified in the
Prospectus.

Refund Account

Account to be opened with the Refund Bank from which refunds, if any, of the whole or
any part of the Application Amount shall be made.

Refund Bank

The Banker(s) to the Issue with whom the Refund Account will be opened and as specified
in the Prospectus

Register of NCD holders

The register of NCD holders maintained by the Issuer/RTA in accordance with the
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and by the Depositories in case of NCDs held in
dematerialised form, and/or the register of NCD holders maintained by the Registrar

Registrar Agreement

Agreement dated January 19, 2024 entered into between the Issuer and the Registrar under
the terms of which the Registrar has agreed to act as the Registrar to the Issue

Registered Brokers

Stock brokers registered with SEBI under the Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Stock Brokers) Regulation, 1992 and the stock exchange having nationwide terminals,
other than the Members of the Syndicate and eligible to procure Applications from




Term

Description

Applicants

Registrar to the Issue or
Registrar or RTA

KFin Technologies Limited (formerly known as KFIN Technologies Private Limited)

Resident Individual

An individual who is a person resident in India as defined in the FEMA

Registrar and Share Transfer
Agents or RTAs

Registrar and share transfer agents registered with SEBI and eligible to procure Application
in the Issue

RTA Master Circular

Securities and Exchange Board of India Master Circular for Registrars to an Issue and Share
Transfer Agents’ dated May 17, 2023, bearing reference number SEBI/HO/MIRSD/POD-
1/P/CIR/2023/70.

Security

The principal amount of the NCDs to be issued in terms of this Draft Prospectus together
with all interest due and payable on the NCDs thereof, shall be secured by way of first
ranking exclusive and continuing charge to be created over certain identified receivables of
the Company in favour of the Debenture Trustee, as specifically set out in and fully
described in the Debenture Trust Deed, such that a security cover of at least 1.10 times of
the principal amounts and interest outstanding in respect of the NCDs is maintained at all
times until the Maturity Date.

Self-Certified Syndicate
Banks or SCSBs

The banks registered with SEBI, offering services in relation to ASBA, a list of which is
available on the website of SEBI at
https://www.sebi.gov.in/sebiweb/other/OtherAction.do?doRecognised=yes or at such
other websites as may be prescribed by SEBI from time to time.

Additionally, the banks registered with SEBI, enabled for UPI Mechanism, list of which is
available on
https://sebi.gov.in/sebiweb/other/OtherAction.do?doRecognisedFpi=yes&intmld=40 or at
such other web-link as may be prescribed by SEBI from time to time.

Series/Option

As specified in the Prospectus

Specified Cities or Specified
Locations or Syndicate
ASBA Application
Locations or Syndicate
Bidding Centres

Bidding centres where the Members of the Syndicate shall accept Application Forms from
Applicants, a list of which is available on the website of the SEBI at
https://www.sebi.gov.in/sebiweb/other/OtherAction.do?doRecognised=yes and updated
from time to time and at such other websites as may be prescribed by SEBI from time to
time.

Sponsor Bank

A Banker to the Issue, registered with SEBI, which is appointed by the Issuer to act as a
conduit between the Stock Exchanges and NPCI in order to push the mandate collect
requests and / or payment instructions of the retail individual investors into the UPI for retail
individual investors applying through the app/web interface of the Stock Exchange(s) with
a facility to block funds through UPI Mechanism for application value upto the UPI
Application Limit and carry out any other responsibilities in terms of the SEBI Master
Circular and as specified in the Prospectus.

Stock Exchange or Exchange

BSE

Syndicate ASBA

Applications through the Syndicate or the Designated Intermediaries

Syndicate ASBA or
Syndicate ASBA
Application

ASBA Applications through the Lead Manager, Consortium Member, the Trading
Members of the Stock Exchange or the Designated Intermediaries.

Syndicate SCSB Branches

In relation to ASBA Applications submitted to a Member of the Syndicate, such branches
of the SCSBs at the Syndicate ASBA Application Locations named by the SCSBs to receive
deposits of the Application Forms from the members of the Syndicate, and a list of which
is available on https://www.sebi.gov.in/sebiweb/other/OtherAction.do?doRecognised=yes
or at such other website as may be prescribed by SEBI from time to time.

Syndicate Bidding Centres

Syndicate Bidding Centres established for acceptance of Application Forms

Tenor

Tenor of NCDs as specified in the Prospectus

Trading Members

Intermediaries registered with a lead broker or a sub-broker under the SEBI (Stock Brokers)
Regulations, 1992 and/or with the Stock Exchange(s) under the applicable byelaws, rules,
regulations, guidelines, circulars issued by Stock Exchange(s) from time to time and duly
registered with the Stock Exchange for collection and electronic upload of Application
Forms on the electronic application platform provided by Stock Exchange(s).

Transaction Documents

Transaction documents shall mean this Draft Prospectus, the Prospectus read with any
notices, corrigenda, addenda thereto, Abridged Prospectus, Application Form, Issue
Agreement, Registrar Agreement, Debenture Trustee Agreement, Deed of Hypothecation,
Debenture Trust Deed, Consortium Agreement, Public Issue Account and Sponsor Bank




Term

Description

Agreement, Tripartite Agreements. For further details please see the section titled,
“Material Contracts and Documents for Inspection” on page 340.

Tripartite Agreements

Tripartite agreement dated April 2, 2012 among our Company, the Registrar and CDSL and
tripartite agreement dated March 22, 2011 among our Company, the Registrar and NSDL.

UPI or UPI Mechanism

Unified Payments Interface mechanism in accordance with SEBI Master Circular to block
funds for application value up to UPI Application Limit submitted through intermediaries,
namely the Registered Stock brokers, Consortium Member, Registrar and Transfer Agent
and Depository Participants.

UPI ID

Identification created on the UPI for single-window mobile payment system developed by
the National Payments Corporation of India.

UPI Application Limit

Maximum limit to utilize the UPI mechanism to block the funds for application value up to
% 500,000 for issues of debt securities pursuant to SEBI Master Circular or any other
investment limit, as applicable and prescribed by SEBI from time to time

UPI Mandate Request or
Mandate Request

A request initiated by the Sponsor Bank on the Retail Individual Investor to authorize
blocking of funds in the relevant ASBA Account through the UPI mobile app/web interface
(using UPI Mechanism) equivalent to the bid amount (not exceeding UPI Application
Limit) and subsequent debit of funds in case of allotment.

Wilful Defaulter(s)

Includes wilful defaulters as defined under Regulation 2(1)(Ill) of the Securities and
Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018
which includes a person or a company who or which is categorized as a wilful defaulter by
any bank or financial institution (as defined under the Companies Act, 2013) or consortium
thereof, in accordance with the guidelines on wilful defaulters issued by the Reserve Bank
of India and includes a company whose director or promoter is categorized as a wilful
defaulter.

Working Committee

The working committee of our Company last re-constituted by our Board of Directors by a
board resolution dated October 27, 2023 and as may be further reconstituted from time to
time, by the Board of Directors of our Company.

Working Day

Working day means all days on which commercial banks in Mumbai, are open for business.
In respect of announcement or bid/issue period, working day shall mean all days, excluding
Saturdays, Sundays and public holidays, on which commercial banks in Mumbai are open
for business. Further, in respect of the time period between the bid/ issue closing date and
the listing of the NCDs on the Stock Exchange, working day shall mean all trading days of
the Stock Exchange for NCD, excluding Saturdays, Sundays and bank holidays, as specified
by SEBI.

Conventional and General Terms or Abbreviations

Term/ Abbreviation

Description/Full Form

“T”, Rupees, INR or Indian
Rupees

The lawful currency of the Republic of India

US$, USD, and U.S. Dollars

The lawful currency of the United States of America

AGM

Annual General Meeting

ALM

Asset Liability Management

AMC

Asset Management Company

AS or Accounting Standards

Accounting standards as prescribed by Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with
Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 as amended from time to time

AlF An alternative investment fund as defined in and registered with SEBI under the Securities
and Exchange Board of India (Alternative Investment Funds) Regulations, 2012 as amended
from time to time

ASBA Application Supported by Blocked Amounts

AUM Assets Under Management

Bankruptcy Code The Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016

CAGR Compounded annual growth rate over a specified period of time of a given value (the year-
over-year growth rate)

CDSL Central Depository Services (India) Limited

CIN Corporate Identification Number

Companies Act/ Companies
Act, 2013

Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder




Term/ Abbreviation

Description/Full Form

CRAR

Capital to risk-weighted assets ratio means (Tier | Capital + Tier Il Capital)/ Total Risk
Weighted Assets *100

CrPC Code of Criminal Procedure, 1973
CSR Corporate Social Responsibility
CYy Calendar Year

Depositories Act Depositories Act, 1996
Depository(ies) NSDL and /or CDSL

DIN Director Identification Number

DP or Depository Participant

Depository Participant as defined under the Depositories Act, 1996

DRR Debenture Redemption Reserve

EGM Extraordinary General Meeting

FEMA Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999, as amended from time to time

Fll Foreign Institutional Investor(s)

FPI Foreign Portfolio Investor as defined and registered under the SEBI (Foreign Portfolio

Investors) Regulations, 2019, as amended from time to time.

Financial Year, Fiscal or FY

or for the year ended

Period of 12 months ended March 31 of that particular year

Government Government of India

G-Sec Government Securities

GST Goods and Services Tax

HNI High Net worth Individual

HFC Housing Finance Company

HUF Hindu Undivided Family

ICAI Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
ICRA ICRA Limited

IFRS International Financial Reporting Standards

Income Tax Actor IT Act

Income Tax Act, 1961

Ind AS

Indian Accounting Standards as prescribed by Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 and
notified by the Ind AS Rules

Ind AS Rules Indian Accounting standards as prescribed by Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read
with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2015 as amended from time to time

India Republic of India

IPC Indian Penal Code, 1860

IRDAI Insurance Regulatory and Development Authority of India

IT Information Technology

KYC Know Your Customer

LEI Legal Entity Identifier

LLP Limited Liability Partnership

MCA Ministry of Corporate Affairs, Government of India

MICR Magnetic Ink Character Recognition

MLD Market Linked Debentures

Mutual Funds A mutual fund registered with SEBI under the SEBI (Mutual Funds) Regulations, 1996

NACH National Automated Clearing House

NAV Net Asset Value

NBFC Non-Banking Financial Company, as defined under Section 45-1A of the RBI Act

NEFT National Electronic Fund Transfer

NRI Non-resident Indian

NSE National Stock Exchange of India Limited

NSDL National Securities Depository Limited

p.a. Per annum

PAN Permanent Account Number

PAT Profit After Tax

PP MLD Principal Protected Market Linked Debentures

RBI Reserve Bank of India

RBI Act Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934

RTGS Real Time Gross Settlement

SARFAESI Act

Securitisation and Reconstruction of Financial Assets and Enforcement of Securities
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Term/ Abbreviation

Description/Full Form

Interest Act, 2002

SBR Directions

Master Direction — Reserve Bank of India (Non-Banking Financial Company —Scale Based
Regulation) Directions, 2023 dated October 19, 2023, as updated from time to time.

SCRA Securities Contracts Regulation Act, 1956, as amended

SCRR Securities Contracts (Regulation) Rules, 1957, as amended
SEBI Securities and Exchange Board of India

SEBI Act Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992, as amended

SEBI AIF Regulations

Securities and Exchange Board of India (Alternative Investment Funds) Regulations, 2012,
as amended

SEBI Debenture Trustee
Master Circular

SEBI circular with reference number SEBI/HO/DDHS-PoD1/P/CIR/2023/109 dated 31
March 2023 as may be amended from time to time.

SEBI ICDR Regulations

Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2018, as amended from time to time

SEBI Listing Regulations/
SEBI LODR Regulations

Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015, as amended

SEBI Merchant Banker
Regulations

Securities and Exchange Board of India (Merchant Bankers) Regulations, 1992 as amended

SEBI NCS Regulations

Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible Securities)
Regulations, 2021, as amended and circulars issued thereunder

SEBI Master Circular

SEBI circular no. SEBI/HO/DDHS/PoD1/CIR/2023/119 dated August 10, 2021, as
amended

SFL Satin Finserv Limited
SHFL Sating Housing Finance Limited
TDS Tax Deducted at Source

Trademarks Act

Indian Trademarks Act, 1999

Technical and Industry Related Terms

Term/Abbreviation

Description/Full Form

CRISIL

CRISIL Limited

CRISIL MI&A

CRISIL Market Intelligence & Analytics

CRISIL Report

The report “Report on Microfinance Industry in India” dated November 2023 provided by
CRISIL

ECBs External Commercial Borrowing.

IFC Infrastructure Finance Company.

IRDA Insurance Regulatory and Development Authority.

ISO International Organization for Standardization.

Hybrid Debt A capital instrument, which possesses certain characteristics of equity as well as debt
LTV Ratio of loan to the collateral value

MFI Microfinance institutions

NPA Non-Performing Assets

NBFC-BL/ NBFC — Base
Layer

Non-deposit taking NBFCs below the asset size of X 1,00,000 lakh and (b) NBFCs
undertaking the following activities- (i) NBFC-Peer to Peer Lending Platform (NBFC-P2P),
(i) NBFC-Account Aggregator (NBFC-AA), (iii) Non-Operative Financial Holding
Company (NOFHC) and (iv) NBFCs not availing public funds and not having any customer
interface

NBFC-D NBFC registered as a deposit accepting NBFC

NBFC-MFI An NBFC-MFI is defined as a non-deposit taking NBFC which extends loans to Micro
Finance Sector

NBFC-ND NBFC registered as a non-deposit accepting NBFC

NBFC-ND-SI (NBFC-ML/
NBFC — Middle Layer)

(a) all deposit taking NBFCs (NBFC-Ds), irrespective of asset size, (b) non-deposit taking
NBFCs with asset size of %1,00,000 lakh and above and (c) NBFCs undertaking the
following activities (i) Standalone Primary Dealers (SPDs), (ii) Infrastructure Debt Fund —
Non-Banking Financial Companies (IDF-NBFCs), (iii) Core Investment Companies
(CICs), (iv) Housing Finance Companies (HFCs) and (v) Infrastructure Finance Companies
(NBFC-IFC)

NBFC- TL / NBFC- Top
Layer

NBFC-UL which in the opinion of RBI has substantial increase in the potential systemic
risk
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Term/Abbreviation

Description/Full Form

NBFC-UL / NBFC-Upper
Layer

NBFCs which are specifically identified by the RBI as warranting enhanced regulatory
requirement based on a set of parameters and scoring methodology as provided in SBR
Framework

Owned Funds

Paid-up equity capital, preference shares which are compulsorily convertible into equity,
free reserves, balance in share premium account; capital reserve representing surplus arising
out of sale proceeds of asset, excluding reserves created by revaluation of assets; less
accumulated loss balance, book value of intangible assets and deferred revenue expenditure,
if any

Prudential Norms

Prudential norms as provided under Master Direction — Reserve Bank of India (Non-
Banking Financial Company —Scale Based Regulation) Directions, 2023 dated October 19,
2023

MSME Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises

RBI Reserve Bank of India.

Tier | Capital Tier I capital means owned fund as reduced by investment in shares of other non-banking
financial companies and in shares, debentures, bonds, outstanding loans and advances
including hire purchase and lease finance made to and deposits with subsidiaries and
companies in the same group exceeding, in aggregate, ten per cent of the owned fund; and
perpetual debt instruments issued by a non-deposit taking nonbanking financial company
in each year to the extent it does not exceed 15% of the aggregate Tier | Capital of such
company as on March 31 of the previous accounting year

Tier Il Capital Tier Il capital includes the following:

a. preference shares other than those which are compulsorily convertible into equity;

b. revaluation reserves at discounted rate of fifty five percent;

¢. General Provisions (including that for Standard Assets) and loss reserves to the extent
these are not attributable to actual diminution in value or identifiable potential loss in
any specific asset and are available to meet unexpected losses, to the extent of one and
one fourth percent of risk weighted assets;

d. hybrid debt capital instruments;

e. subordinated debt;

perpetual debt instruments issued by a non-deposit taking non-banking financial company

which is in excess of what qualifies for Tier | Capital to the extent the aggregate does not

exceed Tier | Capital

UTI Unit Trust of India.

WCDL Working Capital Demand Loan.

XIRR Internal rate of return for irregular cash flows.

Yield Ratio of interest income to the daily average of interest earning assets.

12




CERTAIN CONVENTIONS, USE OF FINANCIAL, INDUSTRY AND MARKET DATA AND CURRENCY
OF PRESENTATION

Certain Conventions

In this Draft Prospectus, unless otherwise specified or the context otherwise indicates or implies the terms, all references
to “we”, “us”, “our” are to Satin Creditcare Network Limited and its subsidiaries, on a consolidated basis and references
to “you”, “offeree”, “purchaser”, “subscriber”, “recipient”, “investors” and “potential investor” are to the prospective
investors in this Issue. Unless stated otherwise, all references to page numbers in this Draft Prospectus are to the page

numbers of this Draft Prospectus.

All references in this Draft Prospectus to “India” are to the Republic of India and its territories and possessions. All
references to the “Government”, “Central Government” or “State Government” are to Government of India, Central or
State, as applicable.

Presentation of Financial Information

Unless stated otherwise or unless the context requires otherwise, the financial data as at and for the year ended March 31,
2023, March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021 used in this Draft Prospectus is derived from our Audited Financial Statements.
Additionally, unless stated otherwise or unless the context requires otherwise, the financial data as at and for the quarter
and half year ended September 30, 2023 and used in this Draft Prospectus, is derived from the Unaudited Interim
Condensed Financial Statements.

Our Company’s financial year commences on April 1 of the immediately preceding calendar year and ends on March 31
of that particular calendar year, so all references to a particular financial year / fiscal / FY/ fiscal year are to the 12-month
period commencing on April 1 of the immediately preceding calendar year and ending on March 31 of that particular
calendar year. Unless the context requires otherwise, all references to a year in this Draft Prospectus are to a calendar
year ended December 31.

For the purposes of disclosure in this Draft Prospectus, we have presented the following:

1. Audited Consolidated Financial Statements for Fiscal 2021 read along with the notes thereto prepared in accordance
with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS), prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, and other
accounting principles generally accepted in India and in compliance with the SEBI Listing Regulations and the report
issued thereon (“Fiscal 2021 Audited Consolidated Financial Statements™).

2. Audited Standalone Financial Statements for Fiscal 2021 read along with the notes thereto prepared in accordance
with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS), prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, and other
accounting principles generally accepted in India and in compliance with the SEBI Listing Regulations and the report
issued thereon (“Fiscal 2021 Audited Standalone Financial Statements™).

3. Audited Consolidated Financial Statements for Fiscal 2022 read along with the notes thereto prepared in accordance
with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS), prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, and other
accounting principles generally accepted in India and in compliance with the SEBI Listing Regulations and the report
issued thereon (“Fiscal 2022 Audited Consolidated Financial Statements”).

4. Audited Standalone Financial Statements for Fiscal 2022 read along with the notes thereto prepared in accordance
with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS), prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, and other
accounting principles generally accepted in India and in compliance with the SEBI Listing Regulations and the report
issued thereon (“Fiscal 2022 Audited Standalone Financial Statements™).

5. Audited Consolidated Financial Statements for Fiscal 2023 read along with the notes thereto prepared in accordance
with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS), prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, and other
accounting principles generally accepted in India and in compliance with the SEBI Listing Regulations and the report
issued thereon (“Fiscal 2023 Audited Consolidated Financial Statements”).

6. Audited Standalone Financial Statements for Fiscal 2023 read along with the notes thereto prepared in accordance
with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS), prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, and other
accounting principles generally accepted in India and in compliance with the SEBI Listing Regulations and the report
issued thereon (“Fiscal 2023 Audited Standalone Financial Statements™)
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7. Unaudited Interim Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements as of and for the six months ended September 30,
2023, read along with the notes thereto prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standard 34 “Interim
Financial Reporting”, prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, and other accounting principles
generally accepted in India and the report issued thereto (“Unaudited Interim Condensed Consolidated Financial
Statements™).

8. Unaudited Interim Condensed Standalone Financial Statements as of and for the six months ended September 30,
2023, read along with the notes thereto prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standard 34 “Interim
Financial Reporting”, prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, and other accounting principles
generally accepted in India and the report issued thereto (“Unaudited Interim Condensed Standalone Financial
Statements™).

For the purposes of disclosure in this Draft Prospectus, the Audited Consolidated Financial Statements and Audited
Standalone Financial Statements for Fiscal 2021 prepared in accordance with Ind AS, together with their respective audit
reports were issued by our Previous Statutory Auditor, M/s. Walker Chandiok & Co LLP, Chartered Accountants and
have been included in this Draft Prospectus.

Further, the Audited Consolidated Financial Statements and Audited Standalone Financial Statements, for Fiscals 2022
and 2023 prepared in accordance with Ind AS, along with the Unaudited Interim Condensed Consolidated Financial
Statements, the Unaudited Interim Condensed Standalone Financial Statements together with the reports issued by our
current Statutory Auditors, M/s S. S. Kothari Mehta & Co., Chartered Accountants, have been included in this Draft
Prospectus.

We have included the following Audited financials along with auditors report issued by the following auditors:

Particulars Auditors Report issued by
Unaudited Interim Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements
Unaudited Interim Condensed Standalone Financial Statements
Audited Standalone Financial Statements of the Company for Fiscal 2023 .
Audited Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company for Fiscal 2023 S S. Kothari Mehta & Co.
Audited Standalone Financial Statements of the Company for Fiscal 2022
Audited Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company for Fiscal 2022
Audited Standalone Financial Statements of the Company for Fiscal 2021 Walker Chandiok & Co. LLP,
Audited Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company for Fiscal 2021 Chartered Accountants

Currency and Unit of Presentation

In this Draft Prospectus, all references to ‘Rupees’/‘T’/‘INR’/ ‘Rs.” Are to Indian Rupees, the official currency of the
Republic of India. Except where stated otherwise in this Draft Prospectus, all figures have been expressed in ‘in lakh’.
All references to ‘million/millions/mn.” refer to one million, which is equivalent to ‘ten lakh’ or ‘ten lacs’, the word
‘lakh/lacs/lac’ means ‘one hundred thousand’ and ‘crore’ means ‘ten million’ and ‘billion/bn./billions’ means ‘one
hundred crore’.

Certain figures contained in this Draft Prospectus, including financial information, have been subject to rounding
adjustments. Unless set out otherwise, all figures in decimals, including percentage figures, have been rounded off to one
decimal point. In certain instances, (i) the sum or percentage change of such numbers may not conform exactly to the
total figure given; and (ii) the sum of the numbers in a column or row in certain tables may not conform exactly to the
total figure given for that column or row. Further, any figures sourced from third party industry sources may be rounded
off to other than one decimal point to conform to their respective sources.

Industry and Market Data

Any industry and market data used in this Draft Prospectus consists of estimates based on data reports compiled by
Government bodies, professional organizations and analysts, data from other external sources including the report
“Report on Microfinance Industry in India” dated November 2023 provided by CRISIL, available in the public domain
and knowledge of the markets in which we compete. These publications generally state that the information contained
therein has been obtained from publicly available documents from various sources believed to be reliable. The data used
in these sources may have been reclassified by us for purposes of presentation. Data from these sources may also not be
comparable. The extent to which the industry and market data presented in this Draft Prospectus is meaningful depends
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on the reader’s familiarity with and understanding of the methodologies used in compiling such data. There are no
standard data gathering methodologies in the industry in which we conduct our business and methodologies and
assumptions may vary widely among different market and industry sources.

Non-GAAP Financial Measures

In evaluating our business, we consider and use non-GAAP financial measures, which include, inter alia, Assets Under
Management, Net Worth, Return on Equity, Debt to Equity Ratio, net interest margin, to review and assess our operating
performance. These non-GAAP financial measures are not defined under Ind AS and are not presented in accordance
with Ind AS. These may not be computed on the basis of any standard methodology that is applicable across the industry
and therefore may not be comparable to financial measures and statistical information of similar nomenclature that may
be computed and presented by other companies and are not measures of operating performance or liquidity defined by
Ind AS and may not be comparable to similarly titled measures presented by other companies. The presentation of these
non-GAAP financial measures is not intended to be considered in isolation or as a substitute for the financial statements
included in this Draft Prospectus. Prospective investors should read this information in conjunction with the financial
statements included in “Annexure C — Financial Statements” on page 348.

General Risk

Investment in NCDs is risky, and investors should not invest any funds in NCDs unless they can afford to take the risk
attached to such investments. Investors are advised to take an informed decision and to read the risk factors carefully
before investing in this offering. For taking an investment decision, investors must rely on their examination of the issue
including the risks involved in it.

Specific attention of investors is invited to statement of risk factors contained under section “Risk Factors” on page 18.
These risks are not, and are not intended to be, a complete list of all risks and considerations relevant to the NCDs or
Investor’s decision to purchase such securities.

Exchange Rates

The exchange rates for Rupees (%) vis-a-vis of USD, as of December 31, 2023, September 30, 2023, March 31, 2023,
March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021, are provided below:

Currency December 31, 2023 |September 30, 2023 | March 31, 2023 | March 31, 2022 | March 31, 2021
1USD 83.12 83.06 82.22 75.81 73.50
Source: https://www.fbil.org.in/#/home and https://www.rbi.org.in/scripts/ReferenceRateArchive.aspx
Note: In case, any of the above dates is a public holiday, the immediately preceding working day has been considered.

The above exchange rates are for the purpose of information only and may not represent the rates used by the Company
for purpose of preparation or presentation of its financial statements. The rates presented are not a guarantee that any
person could have on the relevant date converted any amounts at such rates or at all.
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FORWARD LOOKING STATEMENTS

Certain statements contained in this Draft Prospectus that are not statements of historical fact constitute “forward-looking

EEINNT3

statements”. Investors can generally identify forward-looking statements by terminology such as “aim”, “anticipate”,
“believe”, “continue”, “could”, “estimate”, “expect”, “intend”, “may”, “objective”, “plan”, “potential”, “project”,
“pursue”, “shall”, “seek”, “should”, “will”, “would”, or other words or phrases of similar import. Similarly, statements
that describe our strategies, objectives, plans or goals are also forward-looking statements. All statements regarding our
expected financial conditions, results of operations, business plans and prospects are forward-looking statements. These
forward-looking statements include statements as to our business strategy, revenue and profitability, new business and
other matters discussed in this Draft Prospectus that are not historical facts. All forward-looking statements are subject
to risks, uncertainties and assumptions about us that could cause actual results to differ materially from those
contemplated by the relevant forward-looking statement. Important factors that could cause actual results to differ
materially from our expectations include, but are not limited to, the following:

1. We operate in a highly regulated industry and changes in the laws, rules and regulations applicable to us may
adversely affect our business, financial condition, results of operations and cash flows.

2. Non-payment or default owing to the profile of borrowers in the microfinance industry, whom we service, may
adversely affect our business, results of operations, cash flows and financial condition.

3. We are exposed to operational and credit risks which may result in NPAs, and we may be unable to control or
reduce the level of NPAs in our portfolio. If we are unable to manage the level of NPAs or provisioning requirement
as per regulatory requirements, our cash flows, financial position and results of operations may suffer.

4. Our business has substantial and continuous capital requirements and any disruption in accessing funds would
adversely impact our business, liquidity, financial conditions and results of operations.

5. We have geographic concentration in certain States and therefore are dependent on the general and regional
economic, geopolitical and natural conditions and activities in such states and regions.

6. We are subject to risks arising from interest rate fluctuations, which could adversely affect our business, results of
operations and financial condition.

7. Our operations involve handling cash in high volumes through a dispersed network of branches which makes us
susceptible to operational risks including, misappropriation, embezzlement or fraud by our employees, which may
adversely affect our business, operations and ability to recruit and retain employees.

8. We rely heavily on our information technology platform for our business operations. Any security breaches or
disruption to our systems and our inability to successfully develop or upgrade our technological systems could
materially and adversely affect our business.

9. We are dependent on our Board, members of our Senior Management, Key Managerial Personnel and our
employees, and the loss of, or our inability to hire, retain, train, and motivate qualified personnel could adversely
affect our business, results of operations, cash flows and financial condition.

10. Our growth may be materially and adversely affected by an inability to respond promptly and effectively to new
technological innovations.

For further discussion of factors that could cause our actual results to differ, see “Risk Factors” on page 18.

All forward-looking statements are subject to risks, uncertainties and assumptions about our Company that could cause
actual results and valuations to differ materially from those contemplated by the relevant statement. Additional factors
that could cause actual results, performance or achievements to differ materially include, but are not limited to, those
discussed under the sections titled “Industry Overview”, “Our Business” and “Legal and Other Information” on pages
98, 142 and 224. The forward-looking statements contained in this Draft Prospectus are based on the beliefs of
management, as well as the assumptions made by and information currently available to management. Although our
Company believes that the expectations reflected in such forward-looking statements are reasonable at this time, it cannot
assure investors that such expectations will prove to be correct or will hold good at all times. Given these uncertainties,
investors are cautioned not to place undue reliance on such forward-looking statements. If any of these risks and
uncertainties materialise, or if any of our Company’s underlying assumptions prove to be incorrect, our Company’s actual
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results of operations or financial condition could differ materially from that described herein as anticipated, believed,
estimated or expected. All subsequent forward-looking statements attributable to our Company are expressly qualified in
their entirety by reference to these cautionary statements.

Neither our Company, its Directors, its KMPs and officers, or the Lead Manager, nor any of their respective affiliates or
associates have any obligation to update or otherwise revise any statements reflecting circumstances arising after the date
hereof or to reflect the occurrence of underlying events, even if the underlying assumptions do not come to fruition. In
accordance with SEBI NCS Regulations, our Company and the Lead Manager will ensure that investors in India are
informed of material developments until the time of the grant of listing and trading permission by the Stock Exchange.
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SECTION Il - RISK FACTORS

An investment in NCDs involves a certain degree of risk. You should carefully consider all the information contained in
this Draft Prospectus, including the chapters “Our Business” and “Financial Information” on pages 142 and 198,
respectively, before making an investment decision. The risk factors set forth below do not purport to be complete or
comprehensive in terms of all the risk factors that may arise in connection with our business or any decision to purchase,
own or dispose of the NCDs. Additional risks and uncertainties, which are currently unknown or now deemed immaterial,
if materialises, may in the future have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of
operations and cash flows. The market prices of the NCDs could decline due to such risks and you may lose all or part
of your investment.

If any one of the following stated risks or other risks that are not currently known or are now deemed immaterial actually
occurs, the Company’s business, financial conditions and results of operations and cash flows could suffer and, therefore,
the trading price of the Company’s NCDs could decline and/or the Company’s ability to meet its obligations in respect
of the NCDs could be affected and you may lose all or part of your interest and/or redemption amounts. More than one
risk factor may have simultaneous affect with regard to the NCDs such that the effect of a particular risk factor may not
be predictable. In addition, more than one risk factor may have a compounding effect which may not be predictable. No
prediction can be made as to the effect that any combination of risk factors may have on the value of the NCDs and/or
the Company’s ability to meet its obligations in respect of the NCDs.

The financial and other related implications of the risks described in this section, have been disclosed to the extent
quantifiable as on the date of this Draft Prospectus. This Draft Prospectus also contains forward-looking statements that
involve risks and uncertainties. Our results could differ materially from those anticipated in these forward-looking
statements as a result of certain factors, including events described below and elsewhere in the Draft Prospectus.

Unless otherwise indicated, industry and market data used in this section has been derived from the report “Report on
Microfinance Industry in India” dated November 2023 (“CRISIL Report”) prepared and released by CRISIL Limited
and exclusively commissioned and paid for by us pursuant to the appointment of CRISIL vide request letter dated
November 3, 2023, in connection with the Issue.

We publish our financial statements in Indian Rupees. Our fiscal year commences on April 1 and ends on March 31 of
the subsequent year, and references to a particular Fiscal are for the 12 months ended March 31 of that year. Unless
otherwise indicated or the context otherwise requires, the financial information corresponding to (i) Fiscal 2021, Fiscal
2022 and Fiscal 2023 has been derived from the Audited Consolidated Financial Statements and (ii) the six months
period ending September 30, 2023 has been derived from Unaudited Interim Condensed Consolidated Financial
Statements. Financial information for the six months ended September 30, 2022, and September 30, 2023 is not
annualized and not indicative of full year results, and is not comparable with annual financial statements presented in
this Draft Prospectus. For further information, see “Financial Information” on page 198.

Unless otherwise indicated or the context otherwise requires, in this section, references to “we”, “us” and “our” are
to the Company together with its Subsidiaries, on a consolidated basis.

INTERNAL RISK FACTORS

RISKS RELATING TO OUR BUSINESS AND INDUSTRY

1. We operate in a highly regulated industry and changes in the laws, rules and regulations applicable to us may
adversely affect our business, financial condition, results of operations and cash flows.

We operate in a highly regulated industry and we have to adhere to various laws, rules and regulations. NBFCs,
particularly microfinance institutions, and housing finance companies (“HFCs”) in India are subject to strict
regulation and supervision by the RBI/NHB. We require various approvals, licenses, registrations and permissions
for operating our business, including registration with the RBI as a NBFC. Further, our wholly-owned subsidiary,
SHFL is a HFC which is regulated by the National Housing Bank, a subsidiary of the Reserve Bank of India. HFCs
are required to maintain prudential norms for income recognition, accounting standards, asset classification,
provision for bad and doubtful assets, capital adequacy and concentration of credit/investment to be observed.
Accordingly, legal and regulatory risks are inherent and substantial in our business.

As we operate under licenses or registrations obtained from the applicable regulators, we are subject to actions that
may be taken by such regulators in the event of any noncompliance of any applicable policies, guidelines, circulars,
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notifications and regulations issued by the relevant regulators, penalties, revocation of licenses and reputational
impact.

For instance, our Company’s registration to operate as a NBFC-MFI is subject to its compliance with the conditions
and directions issued by RBI, including the requirement to maintain a minimum net owned funds of ¥500 lakhs and
hold not less than 75% of its total assets, in the nature of ‘qualifying assets’, as per the recently introduced Master
Direction - Reserve Bank of India (Regulatory Framework for Microfinance Loans) Directions, 2022
(“Microfinance Loan Directions”). Under the earlier qualifying asset criteria, a NBFC-MFI is required to have a
minimum of 85% of its net assets as qualifying assets. The definition of qualifying assets has now been aligned with
the definition of microfinance loans. In order to be classified as a ‘qualifying asset’, a loan is required to satisfy the
prescribed criteria laid down for microfinance loans in the Microfinance Loan Directions. Our Company is not
currently in compliance with the qualifying asset criteria mentioned in the Microfinance Loan Directions and has
sought time from RBI till March 31, 2024, to achieve the prescribed norms, which was granted vide RBI letter dated
July 6, 2023. While our Company has currently obtained a waiver, there can be no assurance that it will be able to
fulfil the criteria by March 31, 2024, and that no action will be initiated by RBI against it in the future.

Further, due to the amalgamation of Taraashna Financial Services Limited into and with Satin Finserv Limited (SFL),
SFL, which is registered as a NBFC, was not fulfilling the principal business criteria laid down by RBI as of March
31, 2023. According to the principal business criteria, 50% of total assets of the NBFC should be financial assets and
at least 50% of the gross income should be from financial activities. However, the RBI vide letter dated July 22,2022,
granted SFL time till March 31, 2024, for fulfilling the said criteria and SFL was consequently able to fulfil the
requirement as of September 30, 2023 and is currently compliant with the principal business criteria laid down by
RBI.

While our Company and SFL were granted waivers by RBI for the time being, there can be no assurance that a similar
waiver will be obtained from RBI or any other regulator in case of any non-compliance of any applicable policies,
guidelines, circulars, notifications and regulations in the future. Non-compliance with any such regulatory
requirements may also trigger regulatory restrictions which in turn will adversely impact our operations, future
financial performance and credit rating.

Any changes in the laws, rules and regulations applicable to us may also adversely affect our business, financial
condition and results of operations. For instance, following the introduction of the guidelines on Income Recognition,
Asset Classification and Provisioning in 2020, we are required to classify loans as NPAs when days past due crosses
90 and maintain these as special mention accounts till the days past due become zero. If there are any technology
lapses relating to such classification, we may be subject to penalties.

The laws and regulations governing the banking and financial services industry in India have, therefore, become
increasingly complex and cover a wide variety of issues, such as interest rates, liquidity, investments, ethical issues,
money laundering and privacy. These laws and regulations can be amended, supplemented or changed at any time
such that we may be required to restructure our activities and incur additional expenses to comply with such laws
and regulations, which could adversely affect our business and our financial performance. Further, many of the
regulations applicable to our operations may be subject to varying interpretations. If the interpretation of the
regulators and authorities varies from our interpretation, we may be deemed to be in contravention of such laws and
may be subject to penalties and legal proceedings being initiated against us. Unfavourable changes in or
interpretations of existing laws, rules and regulations, could result in us being deemed to be in contravention of such
laws or may require us to apply for additional approvals. In addition, we are also subject to the corporate laws,
taxation laws and other laws in effect in India which require continued monitoring and compliance on our part. If we
fail to comply with these requirements, or a regulator alleges we have not complied with these requirements, we may
be subject to penalties and compounding proceedings.

Non-payment or default owing to the profile of borrowers in the microfinance industry, whom we service, may
adversely affect our business, results of operations, cash flows and financial condition.

Majority of our target clients for microfinance loans comprise low income generating women who are economically
active and have limited access to mainstream financial credit products. While we have developed an operations
methodology pursuant to which we follow specific client selection criteria and ensure adherence to our internally
developed risk policy framework, our clients generally have limited sources of income and credit histories, and may
not have tax returns, bank or credit card statements, statements of previous loan exposures, or other documents
through which we can accurately assess their credit worthiness. For information relating to our due diligence and
credit analysis procedures, see “Our Business — Business Operations” on page 156. We may not, therefore, in certain
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instances, receive information regarding any change in the financial condition of our customers or in certain cases
our customers may provide non-verifiable, inaccurate or incomplete information to us. The lack of availability of
information or incomplete or inaccurate information, in connection with our customers, may make it difficult for us
to take an informed decision with regards to providing financial facilities to such persons. As a result, such clients
may pose a higher risk of default than borrowers with greater financial resources and more established credit histories,
or those with better access to education, employment opportunities and social services.

Further, in our microfinance loan offering, we rely primarily on non-traditional peer guarantee mechanisms (which
are also not enforceable in the manner of a formal agreement) such as the joint liability group model, rather than any
tangible assets such as collateral. In a joint liability group model, borrowers form a centre/group, usually comprising
8-32 members, on an average, and provide joint and several undertakings/acknowledgments to pay back the loans
availed by each member of the group/centre. There can be no assurance that joint liability group arrangements will
ensure repayment by other members of a group in the event of default by any one of the members. These arrangements
are likely to fail- (a) if there is no meaningful personal relationship among members of such group, (b) if members
do not participate regularly in group meetings, (c) if inadequate risk management procedures have been employed to
verify the group members and their ability to repay such loans, or (d) as a result of adverse external factors. As a
result, our borrowers potentially present a higher risk of loss in cases of credit default compared to borrowers in other
asset-backed financing products.

For instance, in the past, our business has been adversely impacted by the COVID-19 pandemic, which increased our
level of NPAs and write-offs and temporarily reduced the demand for our products. Further, primarily because of
government imposed lockdowns and safe distancing measures which resulted in us not being able to have physical
meetings with our customers during certain periods, especially the Financial Year 2021, our collection efficiency, on
a standalone basis, for the Financial Year 2021 was lower than that for the Financial Years 2022 and 2023, as set
forth in the table below:

Particulars As of/ for the financial year ended March 31, As of/for the six-month
period ended September 30,
2021 2022 2023 2022 2023
Collection efficiency (%) 94.35% 95.91% 99.60% 98.78% 99.08%

Owing to the nature of borrowers in our microfinance loan portfolio, we may experience higher levels of NPAs and
write-offs in the future, which may adversely affect our business, results of operations and financial condition. For
further information, see “- We are exposed to operational and credit risks which may result in NPAs, and we may be
unable to control or reduce the level of NPAs in our portfolio. If we are unable to manage the level of NPAs or
provisioning requirement as per regulatory requirements, our cash flows, financial position and results of operations
may suffer” below.

We are exposed to operational and credit risks which may result in NPAs, and we may be unable to control or
reduce the level of NPAs in our portfolio. If we are unable to manage the level of NPAs or provisioning
requirement as per regulatory requirements, our cash flows, financial position and results of operations may
suffer.

Our ability to manage the credit quality of our portfolio is a key driver of our results of operations. We make
contingent provisions against standard assets and NPAs, which are recognized under impairment of financial
instruments in our financial statements, in accordance with guidelines issued by the RBI. We also create provisions
as prescribed under IND AS 109 following ECL (Expected Credit Loss). In addition to making provisions on loan
assets, the RBI requires us to classify and make provisions towards NPAs and standard assets. As of September 30,
2023, our Gross NPA was X 15,657.60 lakhs and our stage-3 Provision Coverage Ratio, i.e. provision coverage ratio
for loan assets that are due for more than 90 days, stood at 61.13%. If the number of our loans that become NPAs
increase, the credit quality of our loan portfolio will decrease, and the provisioning requirement will also increase.

Set forth below are details of our asset quality indicators, as well as provisions made, as of each of the corresponding
periods:

Asset Classification As at March 31, As at September 30
2021 | 2022 | 2023 2022 | 2023
(R in lakh, except %)
On-book Loan Portfolio-(Gross carrying amount)
Stage 1 (1) [5,17,705.13 |4,74,351.89 |5,58,989.93 | 4,81,372.96 | 6,54,804.13
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Asset Classification As at March 31, As at September 30
2021 2022 2023 2022 2023
Stage 2 (1) 12,973.14 5280.63 2018.35 6,918.15 2,815.92
Stage 3 (111) 49,755.90 | 44,579.96 | 19,297.93| 20,657.96 | 15,990.12
Total On-book Loan Portfolio (1V) 5,80,434.17 |5,24,212.48 |5,80,306.21 | 5,08,949.07 | 6,73,610.16
ECL Allowance- Loans
Stage 1 (V) 2,573.10 1,285.51 1,057.62 1,576.95 1,657.91
Stage 2 (V1) 5,743.51 4,216.90 740.91 2,707.86 1,190.90
Stage 3 (VII) 20,621.33 | 28,970.31 | 10,086.49 | 10,517.09 9,5671.54
Total ECL Allowance Loans (VIII) 28,937.94 | 34,472.72 | 11,885.02| 14,801.90| 12,420.35
Net Loan Portfolio
Stage 1(IX=1-V) 5,15,132.03 |4,73,066.38 |5,57,932.31 | 4,79,796.01 | 6,53,146.22
Stage 2 (X=11-VI) 7,229.63 1,063.73 1,277.44 4,210.29 1,625.02
Stage 3 (XI=I11-VII) 29,134.57 | 15,609.65 9,211.44 | 10,140.87 6,418.58
Total Net Loan Portfolio (X11=1VV-VIII) 5,51,496.23 [4,89,739.76 |5,68,421.19 | 4,94,147.17 | 6,61,189.82
Gross NPA 8.40% 8.01% 3.28% 3.92% 2.38%
Net NPA 3.28% 2.38% 1.50% 1.82% 0.92%
*As per new definition of RBI for NPA
Notes:

(@ Stage 1 (0-30 days) includes loan assets that have not had a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition or that
have low credit risk at the reporting date.

(2 Stage 2 (31-90 days) includes loan assets that have had a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition but that
do not have objective evidence of impairment.

3 Stage 3 (more than 90 days) includes loan assets that have objective evidence of impairment at the reporting date.

There can be no assurance that we will be able to maintain our NPA ratios in proportion with the credit performance
of our borrowers, or at which our credit and our underwriting analysis, servicing and collection systems and controls
will be adequate. Any incorrect estimation of risks may result in our provisions not being adequate to cover any
further increase in the amount of NPAs or any further deterioration in our NPA portfolio. Events such as the COVID-
19 pandemic may exacerbate the extent of NPAs in our portfolio, as demonstrated by the spike in our Gross NPA
Ratio to 8.01% as of March 31, 2022, compared to 3.28% as of March 31, 2023. Further, our peers may have better
asset quality, which may in turn lead to our peers having high profitability and low provisioning requirements. Any
incorrect estimation of risks, including those relating to collection efficiency, may result in our provisions not being
adequate to cover further increase in the amount of NPAs or deterioration in our NPA portfolio. Factors outside our
control may lead to increased NPAs, such as developments in the Indian and global economy, political factors,
changes in borrower behaviour and demographic patterns, natural calamities, diseases and changes in regulations,
including requirements on us to lend to stipulated sectors. In the event of any deterioration in our NPA portfolio, or
if our provisioning coverage is insufficient to cover our NPAs, our ability to raise additional capital and debt funds,
as well as our business prospects, financial condition, results of operations and cash flows could be adversely
affected.

Our business has substantial and continuous capital requirements and any disruption in accessing funds would
adversely impact our business, liquidity, financial conditions and results of operations.

The liquidity and profitability of our business depends, in large part, on our timely access to, and the costs associated
with, raising funds and getting loans and advances. Our funding requirements historically have been met from various
sources, including bank loans, non-convertible debentures and external commercial borrowings. Our ability to raise
debt funding and equity capital on acceptable terms and in a timely manner depends on various factors, including our
current and future results of operations, risk management policies, brand equity and our Promoter’s shareholding in
our Company, developments in the domestic markets and international markets affecting the Indian economy as well
as regulatory environment and policy initiatives in India. In addition, the cost and availability of our debt capital also
depends on our short-term and long-term credit ratings.

Any downgrade in our credit ratings could also increase borrowing costs and adversely affect our access to capital
and debt markets, as well as increase the probability that our lenders may impose additional terms and conditions to
any financing or refinancing arrangements we enter into in the future. Any downgrade in our credit ratings may also
adversely impact our current or future borrowings. For instance, there was delayed recovery and an increase in NPAs
and write-offs during the COVID-19 pandemic which led to the downgrading of our credit rating by CARE Ratings
Limited from “CARE A-; negative” to “CARE BBB+ stable” on August 26, 2022.
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Our ability to raise foreign funds through debt is also governed by RBI regulations and is subject to restrictions,
including raising loans only from recognized lenders and with minimum average maturity period of not less than
three years, except in specified cases. Any changes to the regulations on priority sector lending may also disrupt our
sources of funding. As of the date of this Draft Prospectus, the RBI mandates domestic scheduled commercial banks
(excluding regional rural banks and SFBs) and foreign banks operating in India, to maintain an aggregate 40.00% of
adjusted net bank credit or credit equivalent amount of off-balance sheet exposure, whichever is higher, as ‘priority
sector lending’. In the event that the laws relating to priority sector lending to banks undergo a change, or if any part
of our loan portfolio is no longer classified as priority sector lending by the RBI, or if we are no longer able to satisfy
the prescribed conditions to be eligible for such classification, our ability to raise resources based on priority sector
advances, and consequently our credit ratings, would be hindered.

Set forth below are details of our debt funding, including the average cost thereof:
(in % lakhs, unless otherwise specified)

Particulars As of and for the year ended March 31| As of and for the six-month
period ended September 30
2021 2022 2023 2022 2023
Total Borrowings® 6,18,112.98| 5,74,351.88| 5,91,124.74| 553,377.54| 7,28,286.94
Average Cost of Borrowings (%)@ 10.19% 10.87% 10.34% 5.44% 5.48%

Notes:

(@ Total Borrowings represents the aggregate of debt securities, borrowings (other than debt securities) and subordinated
liabilities as of the last day of the relevant period

@ Average Cost of Borrowings represents finance cost for the relevant period as a percentage of average borrowings (including
interest accrued) in such period

Our margins are affected by our ability to continue to secure low-cost funding at rates lower than the interest rates at
which we lend to our borrowers. For further details, see “-We are subject to risks arising from interest rate
fluctuations, which could adversely affect our business, results of operations and financial condition” below. If we
are unable to obtain adequate financing in a timely manner or on acceptable terms, our business, results of operations,
cash flows and financial condition may be adversely affected.

We have geographic concentration in certain States and therefore are dependent on the general and regional
economic, geopolitical and natural conditions and activities in such states and regions.

We derive a significant portion of our revenues from certain states, where a majority of our branches are located, and
a majority of our AUM originates from. Set forth below are details of our AUM distribution as of September 30,
2023, in our top five States:

(% in crores, except in percentage)

Sr. No. | Particulars AUM as of September 30, 2023 % of total AUM
1. Uttar Pradesh 2,682.19 26.56%
2. Bihar 1,398.42 13.84%
3. West Bengal 754.98 7.48%
4. Punjab 652.75 6.46%
5. Madhya Pradesh 649.64 6.43%

For further information on a state-wise breakdown of our AUM, see “Our Business” on page 142. Our concentration
in certain States indicated above where our operations are focussed, exposes us to adverse geological, ecological,
economic and/or political circumstances in those respective regions. If there is a sustained downturn in the economy
of those regions or a sustained change in financial patterns, adverse political developments or regional calamities,
our business, financial position and results of operations may be adversely affected.

We are subject to risks arising from interest rate fluctuations, which could adversely affect our business, results
of operations and financial condition

We borrow funds in the domestic and international markets from various banks and financial institutions to meet the
long-term and short-term funding requirements for our operations and funding our growth initiatives. The financing
products we currently offer to our clients are at a fixed rate of interest, however, our funding arrangements include
both fixed and floating rate borrowings.

Interest rates on our borrowings could be affected by a variety of factors, including access to capital based on our
business performance, the volume of loans we make to our customers, competition and regulatory requirements, as
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well as those beyond our control, including the monetary policies of the RBI, deregulation of the financial sector in
India, domestic and international economic and political conditions and other factors, which have historically resulted
in changes in interest rates in India. Such interest rates may also be affected by a change over time in the mix of the
types of loans we provide to our customers, the mix of new and renewal loans and a shift among our channels of
customer acquisition.

In the event the interest rate on our borrowings increase and we are unable to increase the interest rate charged by us
on our future loan disbursements, simultaneously and in the same proportion, or, in a declining interest rate
environment, if our cost of funds does not decline simultaneously or to the same extent as the yield on our interest-
earning assets, our Net Interest Income and Net Interest Margin would be adversely impacted. For instance, there
was delayed recovery and an increase in NPAs and write-offs during the COVID-19 pandemic which led to the
downgrading of our credit rating by CARE Ratings Limited from “CARE A-; negative” to “CARE BBB+ stable”
and a consequent increase in our overall cost of borrowings. Set forth below are details of our Net Interest Income,
and Net Interest Margin, for each of the corresponding periods:

(in X lakhs, unless otherwise specified)

Particulars As of and for the financial year ended As of and for the six-month
March 31 period ended September 30
2021 2022 2023 2022 2023
Net Interest Income 74,230.97 75,017.87 94,229.23 40,225.40 59,519.34
Net Interest Margin (%) 8.97% 9.38% 11.26% 5.30% 6.20%

Notes:

(MNet Interest Income represents the total income reduced by the finance costs in such period

@Net Interest Margin represents the difference between the Gross Yield and the Financial Cost Ratio. Gross Yield represents the
ratio of total income in the relevant period to the Average AUM. Financial Cost Ratio represents the ratio of financial cost in the
relevant period to the Average AUM (average of opening and closing AUM of the relevant period).

Increasing interest rates may also result in additional risks, including increases in the rates of interest charged by us
resulting in higher monthly instalments due from borrowers which could, in turn, result in higher rates of default and
delayed repayments and limited access to low-cost funds or deposits as compared to some of our competitors. Our
inability to manage our interest rate effectively may have an adverse effect on our Net Interest Margin, thereby
adversely affecting our business and future financial performance.

Our operations involve handling cash in high volumes through a dispersed network of branches which makes us
susceptible to operational risks including, misappropriation, embezzlement or fraud by our employees, which may
adversely affect our business, operations and ability to recruit and retain employees.

Our operations, including lending and collection, involve handling significant amounts of cash, thereby exposing us
to the risks of loss, fraud, misappropriation, or unauthorized transactions by our employees responsible for dealing
with such cash collections. The following table sets forth the fraud detected and reported for the periods indicated:

Particulars For the year ended March 31 For the six-month period ended
September 30
2021 2022 2023 2022 2023
Number| Aggregate Number| Aggregate |Numbe| Aggregate | Number |Aggregate| Number | Aggregat
of cases| amount |of cases| amount rof | amount | ofcases | amount | of cases |e amount
(inX (inX cases (inX (inX (inX
lakhs) lakhs) lakhs) lakhs) lakhs)
Frauds detected 295 482.72 278 194.48| 235 516.44 24 112.17 109 13.83
and reported

Our Company has also filed an F.I.R. dated October 19, 2004 under sections 408, 420, 467, 468 and 471 read with
section 120-B of the Indian Penal Code, 1860 against certain of its employees on the grounds of criminal breach of
trust, forgery and fraud submitting that the erstwhile employees had prepared false loan documents (with false
addresses and signatures) and false verification reports with the purpose of defrauding money from our Company,
leading to an aggregate loss of X 8.00 lakhs. The matter is currently pending. For further details, see “Outstanding
Litigations- Litigation involving our Company- Litigation by our Company- Criminal Litigation by our Company”
on page 225.

We are actively engaged in migrating to a cashless environment to mitigate the risk of cash handling. We have
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enabled contactless repayments via popular apps and introduced a payment link on our Company’s website along
with a QR code on the loan application cards to facilitate efficient repayment and minimize fraud. However, the
majority of our current operations are still carried out in cash. While we have and intend to continue to invest in our
technology-enabled operating procedures to improve our operational and risk management efficiencies, given the
high volume of transactions involving cash handling by us currently, there may be future instances of fraud and
misconduct by our representatives or employees, some of which may go unnoticed before actions are taken by us.
Further, we prefer hiring our field staff locally and any regulatory or other proceedings initiated against us in
connection with any such unauthorized transaction, fraud or misappropriation by our employees, could adversely
affect our goodwill, business prospects, future financial performance and our ability to recruit or retain employees.

We rely heavily on our information technology platform for our business operations. Any security breaches or
disruption to our systems and our inability to successfully develop or upgrade our technological systems could
materially and adversely affect our business.

We rely on our information technology platform for operational aspects of our business as well as for the scalability
and growth of our business. Our operations are dependent on the secure processing, storage, and transmission of
confidential and other information in our computer systems and networks. Though no breach of customer data has
been observed in the past, our computer systems, software and networks are vulnerable to unauthorized access,
computer viruses or other malicious code and other events that could compromise data integrity and security. For
instance, an attempt to hack the mail server of our Company through a Cylance ransomware attack was detected on
July 18, 2023, which was duly reported to RBI and the Stock Exchanges. Our Company took prompt corrective action
and isolated the infected servers, as a result of which there was no loss of customer data or other business related
sensitive information. However, we cannot assure you that a similar attack, that could compromise data integrity and
security, will not take place in the future.

In addition, we are dependent on third-party vendors and independent contractors for certain elements of our
operations, such as digital collection through UPI and KYC verification. We are exposed to several risks, including
but not limited to, (i) external vendors or service providers being unable to fulfil their contractual obligations to us
(or being subject to the risk of operational errors by their respective employees); (ii) the vendors or their employees
being involved in any fraud or wilful default and (iii) the risk that our (or our vendors’) business continuity and data
security systems prove to be inadequate. For instance, our erstwhile subsidiary, Taraashna Financial Services Limited
(now merged with SFL) recently terminated the services of one of its vendors, a fintech company, on account of
certain fraudulent transactions by the vendor and its employees. While there has been no further material failure by
third parties to perform their obligations under agreements, in the three preceding Fiscals and the six month period
ended September 30, 2023, and there are currently no material pending disputes regarding such services, there can
be no assurance that such failure to perform will not take place in future. If there is a disruption in the third-party
services, or if the third-party service providers discontinue their service agreements with us, our business, financial
condition, cash flows and results of operations will be adversely affected. In case of any dispute, we cannot assure
you that the terms of such agreements will not be breached, and this may result in litigation or other costs.
Additionally, certain of our agreements require us to indemnify our counterparties for certain losses, and limit
contractual or other liabilities of our counterparties to fees or other amounts received by them from us for a certain
period of time. If such indemnities are invoked, or if our counterparties limit their liabilities to an extent that our
losses are not fully recovered, we may incur additional costs. Such additional costs may adversely affect our business,
financial condition and results of operations.

Further, if we fail to adapt to technological advances such as artificial intelligence (Al), business analytics, digital
lending solutions, mobile banking and access to lender aggregators quickly and effectively, it could affect the
performance and features of our product offerings and services and reduce our attractiveness to existing and potential
borrowers, thereby adversely affecting our business, financial condition, results of operations, and cash flow.

We are dependent on our Board, members of our Senior Management, Key Managerial Personnel and our
employees, and the loss of, or our inability to hire, retain, train, and motivate qualified personnel could adversely
affect our business, results of operations, cash flows and financial condition.

As of September 30, 2023, we have 10,727 employees. We are dependent on our Board, Key Managerial Personnel
and members of our Senior Management and employees for our operations. The RBI also mandates NBFCs to have
in place supervisory standards to ensure that directors have appropriate qualifications, technical expertise and a
soundtrack record, and such requirements may make it more difficult for us to identify suitable replacement for our
directors. Further, the non-maintenance of key man insurance makes it difficult for us to find suitable replacements
for our key managerial personnel. We also face a continuing challenge to hire, assimilate, train, and retain skilled
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10.

personnel. Competition for management and other skilled personnel is intense, and we may not be able to attract and
retain the managerial and other personnel we need in the future.

Set forth below are the attrition rates of our Company’s employees and senior management for the financial years
ended March 31, 2021, March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2023 and for the six month period ended September 30, 2022
and September 30,2023, on a standalone basis:

Particulars For the year ended March 31 For the six-month period
ended September 30
2021 2022 2023 2022 2023
Attrition rate of our employees (%) 46.19% 43.51% 51.13% 28.61% 28.86%
Attrition rate of our Senior Management (%) 20.22% 44.44% 27.69% 30.00% 4.71%

Large scale attrition, especially at the senior management level, can make it difficult for us to manage and grow our
business. The loss of key managerial personnel or our inability to replace key managerial personnel may restrict our
ability to grow, to execute our strategy, to raise the profile of our brand, to raise funding, to make strategic decisions
and to manage the overall running of our operations, which would have an adverse effect on our results of operations
and financial position. Moreover, labour disputes, protracted wage negotiations, work stoppages and strike actions
may impair our ability to carry on our day-to-day operations, which could adversely affect our results of operations.
We have not faced any such material labour disputes, protracted wage negotiations, work stoppages or strike actions
in the past.

Our growth may be materially and adversely affected by an inability to respond promptly and effectively to new
technological innovations.

Our ability to respond to technological advances on a cost-effective and timely basis may have an impact on our
growth. Technological innovation such as digital wallets, mobile operator banking, advancements in blockchain
technology could disrupt the financial services industry and increase competition as a whole. If we fail to adapt to
such technological advances quickly and effectively it could affect the performance and features of our products and
services and reduce our attractiveness to existing and potential customers hereby adversely affecting our business,
financial condition, results of operations, and cash flows. For instance, automated lending has revolutionized the way
lenders manage risk, providing them with more effective tools and strategies to mitigate potential losses. Automated
lending platforms integrate with various data sources, including credit bureaus and financial institutions, to access
real-time information about borrowers. This enables lenders to assess the risk associated with a loan application
promptly and disburse loans instantly. If we fail to adopt the automated lending platform before our competition,
it could significantly impact our operations.

Our competitors may also make more significant and effective investments in innovation, growth of their businesses
and enhancing their customer reach and engagement and may outcompete us in any of these areas. Increased
investments made or innovative services offered by our competitors may require us to divert significant managerial,
financial and human resources in order to remain competitive, and ultimately may reduce our market share and
negatively impact the revenues growth and profitability of our business.

LEGAL AND REGULATORY RISKS

11.

Our Company’s non-convertible debentures are listed on BSE and we are subject to rules and regulations with
respect to such listed non-convertible debentures. Further, there were instances of alleged non-compliance in the
past in relation to such listed non-convertible debentures. Any such non-compliance or any failure to comply with
such rules and regulations in the future, may result in certain penal actions being initiated against us, which may
have an adverse effect on our business, reputation, results of operations, cash flows and financial condition

Our Company has issued non-convertible debentures (“NCDs”) of different series, which are listed on the debt
segment of BSE. We are required to comply with various applicable rules and regulations in terms of our listed
NCDs, including the SEBI Listing Regulations, which requires us to inter alia disclose our quarterly financial results,
subject to a limited review, within a stipulated period from the end of the quarter.

Set forth are the details of communications received from BSE, imposing fines on the Company due to certain

instances of non-compliance in the last three fiscals, and the consequent action taken by the Company. Our Company
has, in the past three fiscals, paid a total of X 51,000 (excluding tax) in penalties to BSE for various non-compliances.

25



Date of relevant| Particulars of the non- Relevant Fine Action taken
communication compliance regulation of the | imposed
SEBI Listing (in 3)*
Regulations
July 10,2020 | Delay in furnishing prior| 29(2) and 29(3) 10,000 | The Company obtained a waiver since the board
intimation about the meeting had to be held on short notice due to
meeting of the board of certain exigent circumstances and it had already
directors for raising of duly submitted an intimation to the stock
funds exchanges on the raise of funds and this specific
intimation was in the nature of an incremental
additional intimation.
September Non-submission/ delay 57(2) 47,27,000 | The Company communicated to BSE that it had
28, 2022 of information related to submitted the requisite information as per the
payment obligations on prescribed timelines. It also attached the
certain prescribed dates requisite acknowledgment slips as proof.
Pursuant to the representation made by the
Company, the fine was consequently withdrawn.
September 28, | Delay in providing notice 60(2) 50,000 | The Company requested for waiver submitting
2022 of record date regarding that the delay had happened on account of the
certain NCDs during the COVID-19 pandemic.
months of March 2021,
January 9, September 2021, October This was a follow-up communication from BSE
2023 2021 and November pursuant to its email dated September 28, 2022.
2021 While the Company had initially submitted a
request for waiver, it paid the requisite fine and
closed the matter.
September Delay in furnishing prior 50(1) 3,000 | The Company communicated to BSE that it had
28, 2022 intimation with respect to submitted the requisite information as per the
date of payment of statutory timelines. Post scrutiny, it was found
interest / redemption that there had been a delay on the Company’s
amount or intimation part in submitting the requisite information in
regarding board meeting the month of January, 2021. Accordingly, the
effecting the rights or Company paid a fine of 31,000 plus taxes. The
interest of holders of fine imposed for the month of July was
NCDs/NCRPS in the withdrawn.
months of January and
July 2021.
January 9, Non-disclosure of 57(1) 47,80,000 | This was a follow-up communication from BSE
2023 information related to pursuant to its email dated September 28, 2022.
payment obligations The Company communicated to BSE that it had
submitted the requisite information as per the
prescribed  timelines. Pursuant to the
representation made by the Company, the fine
was consequently withdrawn.
January 30, Non-disclosure/delay in 57(2) 36,000 | The Company has submitted that it does not
2023 providing certain have any listed commercial paper. Further, it has
information related to also communicated to BSE that it has submitted
payment obligations of compliances within timelines as prescribed
listed NCDs and under regulation 57(1) of SEBI (Listing
commercial papers for Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
the month ended Regulations, 2015 (SEBI Regulations) with
December 2022 respect to payment of Non-convertible

Debentures for month ended December, 2022.
Pursuant to the representation made by the
Company, the fine was consequently withdrawn.

*Basic fine excluding GST at the rate of 18 percent per annum

In relation to the communications issued in the last three fiscals, BSE did not take any further action against our
Company, other than imposition of fines, and our Company was able to successfully obtain waiver for certain non-
compliances as well as ensure withdrawal of fines imposed under Regulations 50(1) and 57(1) of the SEBI Listing
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12.

13.

Regulations. However, there can be no assurance that our Company will be able to receive such waivers/withdrawal
of fines for any non-compliance in future. Any such non-compliance or any failure to comply with such rules and
regulations in the future, may also result in certain penal actions being initiated against us, which may have an adverse
effect on our business, reputation, results of operations, cash flows and financial condition.

We are subject to periodic inspections by the RBI. Non-compliance with observations made by the RBI during
these inspections could expose our Company and our Subsidiaries to penalties and restrictions, which may have
an adverse effect on our business, results of operations, cash flows and financial condition.

Our Company is subject to periodic inspections by RBI as NBFCs. RBI as a part of its supervisory processes,
conducts periodic inspections pursuant to which it issues observations, directions and monitorable action plans, on
issues related to, amongst other things, our operations, risk management systems, internal controls, regulatory
compliance and credit monitoring systems. During the course of finalizing inspections, the RBI inspection team
shares its findings and recommendations with us and provides us with an opportunity to provide clarifications,
additional information and, where necessary, justification for a different position, if any, than that observed by the
RBI. The RBI incorporates such findings in its final inspection report and, upon final determination by the RBI of
the inspection results, we are required to take actions specified in the inspection report issued by the RBI to its
satisfaction, including, without limitation, requiring us to make provisions, implement credit rating and scoring
models for loans, and tighten controls and compliance measures. Any significant deficiencies identified by the RBI
that we are unable to rectify to the RBI’s satisfaction could lead to sanctions and penalties imposed by the RBI against
us and our management, as well as expose us to increased risks.

In Fiscals 2021 and 2022, RBI conducted an offsite inspection of our Company’s operations over virtual conferencing
due to the ongoing COVID-19 pandemic. There were no material adverse observations and no subsequent letter was
issued to our Company by RBI formally recording its observations pursuant to the inspection.

While we have taken steps, or are in the process of taking steps, to address the identified issues, there can be no
assurance that RBI will not make other observations in the future. In the event we are unable to resolve such
deficiencies and other matters to RBI’s satisfaction, we may be restricted in our ability to conduct our business as we
currently do. Further, while we attempt to comply with all regulatory provisions, directions or observations applicable
to us, including in connection with RBI’s inspection reports described immediately above, we could be subject to
penalties and restrictions which may be imposed by the RBI. Imposition of any penalty or adverse findings by the
RBI during the ongoing or any future inspections may have an adverse impact on our reputation, business prospects,
financial condition, cash flows and results of operations. In the event that we fail to comply with the RBI observations
as committed, or in case we seek waivers or extensions for complying with the observations, the RBI may take
adverse action against us, including placing stringent restrictions on our operations or even revoking our registration/
licence.

Certain statutory and regulatory licenses and approvals are required for conducting our business and any failure
or omission to obtain, maintain or renew these licenses and approvals in a timely manner, or at all, could adversely
affect our business, cash flows and results of operations.

We require several approvals, licenses, registrations and permissions to operate our business, including a registration
for our Company with the RBI as an NBFC-MFI as well as various other corporate actions, such as certificates of
incorporation and registrations under the various tax and labour legislations. In the future, we will be required to
maintain such permits and approvals and obtain new permits and approvals for any proposed expansion strategy or
diversification into additional business lines or new financial products. We cannot assure you that the relevant
authorities will issue any such permits or approvals in a timely manner, or at all, or on favourable terms and
conditions. Our failure to comply with the terms and conditions of such permits or approvals or to maintain or obtain
the required permits or approvals may result in an interruption of our business operations and may have an adverse
effect on our operations.

In addition, we require several registrations to operate our branches in the ordinary course of business. These
registrations include those required to be obtained or maintained under applicable legislations governing shops and
establishments, professional tax and GST registrations of the particular state in which we operate, and expire from
time to time. Accordingly, we have either made an application to the appropriate authorities for renewal of certain
branch-specific approvals or are in the process of making such applications. For instance, we are in the process of
obtaining the renewed shops and establishment registration for our branches included those located in Mogra,
Karanga, Mangaldoi, Lanka, Shillong and Mysore.
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14.

15.

Any failure to renew the approvals that have expired, or to apply for and obtain the required approvals, licenses,
registrations or consents, or any suspension or revocation of any of the approvals, licenses, registrations or consents
that have been or may be issued to us, may materially and adversely affect our business or results of operations.

Our Company, Promoter, Directors, Subsidiaries and Group Companies are involved in certain legal and other
proceedings and there can be no assurance that our Company and/or Subsidiaries and/or Group Companies will
be successful in any of these legal actions. In the event our Company and/or Subsidiaries and/or Group Companies
are unsuccessful in any of the disputes, our business and results of operations may be adversely affected.

There are outstanding legal and regulatory proceedings involving our Company, Directors, Promoter, Subsidiaries
and Group Companies which are pending at different levels of adjudication before various courts, tribunals and other
authorities. Such proceedings could divert the management’s time and attention and consume financial resources in
their defense or prosecution. The amounts claimed in these proceedings have been disclosed to the extent that such
amounts are ascertainable and quantifiable and include amounts claimed jointly and severally, as applicable. Any
unfavorable decision in connection with such proceedings, individually or in the aggregate, could adversely affect
our reputation, business, financial conditions, and results of operations. The summary of such outstanding legal and
regulatory proceedings as on the date of this Draft Prospectus is set out below:

Name of entity Criminal Tax Statutory or Material civil |Aggregate amount
proceedings |proceedings|regulatory proceedings| litigations involved
(R in lakhs)™

Company

By the Company 1* Nil Nil Nil 8*
Against the Company 4** 3 Nil Nil 227.65**
Directors

By our Directors Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Against the Directors Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

Promoter

By promoter Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Against promoter Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Subsidiaries

By Subsidiaries 1*** Nil Nil Nil 559.00***
Against Subsidiaries Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Group Companies

By Group Companies Nil Nil Nil 1 120.00
Against Group Companies Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

~To the extent ascertainable

* Excluding 320 complaints filed by the Company under section 138 of the Negotiable Instruments Act, 1881 aggregating to an
amount of ¥ 25,45,77,361.

**Including 4 criminal miscellaneous applications filed against our Company involving an aggregate amount of 3 1.66 lakhs.

*** Excluding 65 complaints filed by SHFL under the Securitisation and Reconstruction of Financial Assets and Enforcement of

Securities Interest Act, 2002 aggregating to an amount of T 486.21 lakhs, 19 complaints filed by SHFL under section 138 of the

Negotiable Instruments Act, 1881 aggregating to an amount of ¥ 101.91 lakhs and 148 complaints filed by SFL under section 138

of the Negotiable Instruments Act, 1881 aggregating to an amount of T 1,208.60 lakhs.

We cannot assure you that any of these on-going matters will be settled in favour of our Company or Subsidiaries,
or that no additional liability will arise out of these proceedings. Further, we cannot assure you that there will be no
new legal and regulatory proceedings involving our Company, our Subsidiaries or our Promoter or Directors in the
future. For further information, see “Outstanding Litigations” on page 224. An adverse outcome in any such
proceedings may have an adverse effect on our business, financial position, prospects, results of operations and our
reputation.

Regulatory or legislative developments regarding privacy and data security matters could adversely affect our
ability to conduct our business.

Numerous domestic and international laws and regulations address privacy and the collection, storing, sharing, use,
disclosure, and protection of certain types of data. These laws, rules, and regulations evolve frequently and their
scope may continually change, through new legislation, amendments to existing legislation, and changes in
enforcement. Additionally, many laws and regulations relating to privacy and the collection, storing, sharing, use,
disclosure, and protection of certain types of data are subject to varying degrees of enforcement and new and changing
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interpretations by courts or regulators. Changes in laws or regulations relating to privacy, data protection, and
information security, particularly any new or modified laws or regulations, or changes to the interpretation or
enforcement of such laws or regulations, that require enhanced protection of certain types of data or new obligations
with regard to data retention, transfer, or disclosure, could require changes to our operations, or even prevent us from
providing our platforms in the future.

As part of our operations, we are required to comply with the Information Technology Act, 2000 (“Information
Technology Act”) and the rules thereof, each as amended which provides for civil and criminal liability including
compensation to persons affected, penalties and imprisonment for various cyber related offenses, including
unauthorized disclosure of confidential information and failure to protect sensitive personal data. India has already
implemented certain privacy laws, including the Information Technology (Reasonable security practices and
procedures or information) Rules, 2011, which impose limitations and restrictions on the collection, use, disclosure
and transfer of personal information.

Additionally, the Digital Personal Data Protection Act, 2023 (“DPDP Act”) was notified in August 2023 and is yet
to come into effect. It replaces the existing data protection provisions, as contained in Section 43A of the Information
Technology Act. The DPDP Act seeks to balance the rights of individuals to protect their personal data with the need
to process personal data for lawful and other incidental purposes. The DPDP Act focuses on personal data protection
for implementing organizational and technical measures in processing digital personal data and lays down norms for
cross-border transfer of personal data including ensuring the accountability of entities processing personal data. The
DPDP Act requires companies that collect and deal with high volumes of personal data to fulfil certain additional
obligations such as appointment of a data protection officer for grievance redressal and a data auditor to evaluate
compliance with the DPDP Act. The DPDP Act further provides that personal data may be processed only in
accordance with the DPDP Act, and for a lawful purpose after obtaining the consent of the individual or for certain
legitimate uses. We may incur increased costs and other burdens relating to compliance with such new requirements,
which may also require significant management time and other resources, and any failure to comply may adversely
affect our business, results of operations and prospects.

FINANCIAL RISKS

16. Our failure to comply with financial and other negative covenants under our loan agreements may materially and
adversely affect our financial condition, results of operations, cash flows and business prospects

Our ability to meet our debt service obligations and repay our outstanding borrowings will depend primarily on the
cash generated by our business, which depends on the timely repayment by our borrowers. Our financing agreements
contain certain restrictive covenants that limit our ability to undertake certain types of transactions, any of which
could adversely affect our business and financial condition. Any failure, in the future, to comply with the restrictive
negative conditions and covenants in our financing agreements that is not waived off or consented to by our lenders
could lead to an event of default and the consequent termination of our credit facilities could adversely affect our
business, results of operations, financial condition, and cash flows.

Under these agreements, certain lenders also require us to maintain certain financial ratios such as CRAR, RoA,
Portfolio Quality/NPA and debt to equity ratio. We have had certain instances of breach of such covenants in our
financing agreements during the three preceding Fiscals and the six month period ended September 30, 2023, which
include, inter-alia, the following:

a) Maintaining our Company’s NNPA at a ratio which is less than 2.50% of its AUM, on a standalone basis, during
the financial year ended March 31, 2024.

b) Maintaining the loan loss reserve ratio at a certain prescribed requirement, for the fiscal quarters ended December
31, 2022, March 31 2023, June 30, 2023 and September 30, 2023.

€) Maintaining our Company’s portfolio quality at a specified threshold, with the cumulative sum of the PAR30
ratio, refinancing/restructured assets and previous 12 month write-off on GLP being less than or equal to 4%.

Maintaining our Company’s portfolio quality at a maximum permissible ratio of the sum of PAR30 and trailing 12
month write-off on GLP being less than 5%.

While our Company has intimated the lenders of the instances of breach of such covenants under the respective
financial agreements and has requested for a waiver for the non-compliances, and the lenders have not taken any
adverse action such as acceleration of repayment, levy of penal interest etc., as on date, there can be no assurance
that we will be able to receive such waivers for any breach in future, or that action will not be initiated by the lenders
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17.

18.

against us.

A failure to observe the financial and restrictive negative covenants under our financing arrangements or to obtain
necessary waivers may lead to the termination of our credit facilities, acceleration of amounts due under such facilities
and the enforcement of any security provided. Pursuant to clauses in certain financing agreements, any defaults under
such facilities may also trigger cross default or cross acceleration provisions under our other financing agreements.
If the obligations under any of our financing documents are accelerated or any security created under such agreements
enforced, we may have to dedicate a substantial portion of our cash flows towards payments under such financing
documents, thereby reducing the amounts available for working capital, capital expenditure and general corporate
purposes. Additionally, during any period in which we are in default, we may be unable to raise, or may face
difficulties raising, further financing. In addition, we cannot assure you that our business will generate sufficient cash
to enable us to service our debt or to fund our other liquidity needs. We may also need to refinance all or a portion
of our debt on or before maturity. We cannot assure you that we will be able to refinance any of our debt on
commercially reasonable terms or at all.

We have incurred net loss in the financial year ended March 31, 2021 and the six-month period ended September
30, 2022, and we may not be able to achieve or maintain profitability in the future, thereby restricting our cash
flows and ability to raise capital and expand our business.

We reported net loss of X 1,398.22 lakhs for the financial year ended March 31, 2021, primarily owing to the impact
of COVID-19 on our operations. Further, we reported a net loss of X 15,250.04 lakhs on account of elimination of
gain on fair valuation of investment in subsidiaries in the six months period ended September 30, 2022. The
following table sets forth certain information with respect to our results of operations in the years/period indicated:

(in % lakhs, unless otherwise specified)

Particulars For the year ended For the six month period ended
March 31, March 31, March 31, September 30, September 30,
2021 2022 2023 2022 2023
Total Revenue from Operations 1,37,569.57 1,37,679.98 1,55,729.04 70,443.99 99,510.59
Total Income 1,38,017.68 | 1,38,089.38 | 1,55,902.33 70,596.89 99,736.17
Profit/(loss) before Tax (975.39) 3,417.86 524.07 (20,523.99) 26,062.94
Profit/(loss) after tax (1,398.22) 2,069.89 481.31 (15,250.04) 19,464.96

On account of severe pandemics /other black swan events, we may incur losses in the future. Our new branches
require a gestation period and demonstrate increasing productivity as they mature, which may create a period in
which we are not able to see returns on our expenditures. We may not generate sufficient revenue for various reasons,
including increasing competition, challenging macro-economic environment, the ramifications of events such as
pandemics, as well as other risks discussed elsewhere in this Draft Prospectus. Further, our failure to achieve or
maintain profitability may restrict our cash flows, affect our ability to pay interest and dividends and impair our
ability to raise capital and expand our business.

We have experienced negative cash flows in the past. Negative cash flows in the future could adversely affect
our cash flow requirements, our ability to operate our business and implement our growth plans, thereby
affecting our financial performance.

We have in the past, and may in the future, experience negative operating cash flows. The following table sets forth
certain information relating to our cash flows on a consolidated basis for the periods/ years indicated under Ind AS:
(R in lakhs, unless otherwise specified)

Particulars For the year ended For the six-month period ended
March 31, March 31, March 31, September 30, September 30,
2021 2022 2023 2022 2023
Net cash flow generated from / (94,489.81) 33,616.57 (95,634.09) (17,238.04) (105,982.72)
(used) in operating activities
Net cash flow generated / (used) in 21,977.31 21,830.88 22,484.18 9,107.46 22,276.14
operating  activities  excluding
‘change in working capital’

As demonstrated above, we experienced negative cash flows due to the higher requirement of working capital. The
increase in working capital was on account of increase in the volume of disbursements in line with our business
requirements. In Fiscal 2021, our profit before tax was low, reflecting to an extent the impact of the COVID-19
pandemic, which led to lower collections. At the same time, the volume of disbursements led to negative operating
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cash flows. Negative cash flows over extended periods, or significant negative cash flows in the short term, could
materially impact our ability to operate our business and implement our growth plans. We may face a shortfall of
capital in future as a result of negative cash flows and there can be no assurance that we will be able to raise adequate
capital in future. As a result, our cash flows, business, future financial performance and results of operations could
be materially and adversely affected.

19. We have contingent liabilities and commitments as on September 30, 2023, and our financial condition could be
adversely affected if any of these contingent liabilities and/ or commitments materialize.

The following table sets forth our Company’s contingent liabilities and commitments as per Ind AS 37 as of
September 30, 2023:
(< in lakhs)

Particulars Amount
Income tax order for assessment year 2018-19 in respect of which our Company has gone on appeal 64.96
Income tax notice for assessment year 2020-21 with respect to which our Company has filed an appeal 67.35
Income tax order, issued for the assessment year 2021-22, with respect to which our Company has filed an 93.68
appeal.
Undrawn exposure towards borrowers 3,200.17
Total 3,426.16

We cannot assure you that we will not incur similar or increased levels of contingent liabilities/commitments in the
future. If any of these contingent liabilities materialise, our financial condition and results of operation may be
adversely affected.

20. We face asset-liability mismatches which could affect our liquidity and consequently may adversely affect our
operations, profitability and/ or cash flows.

We face potential liquidity risks because our assets and liabilities mature over different periods. While we believe
that our cash flow from operations, available cash and borrowings will be adequate to meet our future liquidity needs,
we cannot assure you that our businesses will generate sufficient cash flow from operations such that our anticipated
revenue growth will be realized or that future borrowings will be available to us under credit facilities in amounts
sufficient to enable us to repay our existing indebtedness, fund our expansion efforts or fund our other liquidity needs.
Asset and liability mismatch, which represents a situation when the financial terms of an institution’s assets and
liabilities do not match, is a key financial parameter for us. We carefully monitor the contractual maturity periods of
our assets and liabilities and categorize them on the basis of the number of years in which they mature.

Asset liability mismatches create liquidity surplus or liquidity crunch situations and depending upon the interest rate
movement, such situations may adversely affect net interest margin. The Reserve Bank of India has thereby, vide the
Master Direction - Non-Banking Financial Company - Systemically Important Non-Deposit taking Company and
Deposit taking Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016, stipulated that the net cumulative negative mismatches
in in the maturity buckets 1-7 days, 8-14 days, and 15-30 days should not exceed 10%, 10% and 20% of the
cumulative cash outflows in the respective time buckets. While our Company has not breached the prescribed
requirement for the negative asset liability mismatch in the past, our inability to obtain and/ or maintain additional
credit facilities or renew our existing credit facilities, in a timely and cost-effective manner or at all, may lead to
mismatches between our assets and liabilities, which in turn may adversely affect our operations and financial
performance.

The following table describes the ALM of our Company as on December 31, 2023:
(in lakh, except percentages)

0 day to 7| 8 days to {15 days to| Over one | Over two | Over 3 Over 6 [Over 1year| Over 3 Over Total
days 14 days | 1 month | month months | month and [months and| and upto 3 years 5 years

and up to upto6 |uptolyear| years and upto 5

3 months months years
A. OUTFLOWS
Capital 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 | 11,004.31 11,004.31
Reserves & Surplus 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 | 242,857.68 | 242,857.68
Gifts, Grants, 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Donations &
Benefactions
Bonds & Notes 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Deposits 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Borrowings 8,486.18 | 8,481.55 |20,595.97 |36,405.44 |39,579.26 | 106,370.03 | 174,859.45 | 328,488.56 | 18,576.27 1,020.99 | 742,863.70
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(in lakh, except percentages)

0 day to 7| 8 days to |15 days to| Over one | Over two | Over 3 Over 6 [Over 1year| Over3 Over Total
days 14 days | 1 month | month | months [ month and|months and|and upto 3 years 5 years
and up to upto6 |uptolyear| years and upto 5
3 months months years
7. |Current Liabilities | 1,697.42 | 1,697.42 | 2,527.42 | 1,202.10 | 1,819.48 860.60 293.95 0.00 0.00 793.60 10,891.99
& Provisions
8. |Statutory Dues 244.40 244.40 488.81 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 7,659.00 8,636.61
9. |Unclaimed 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Deposits
10. | Any Other 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Unclaimed Amount
11. | Debt Service 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Realisation
Account
12. | Other Outflows 391.46 391.46 782.92 0.00 0.00 0.00 44.30 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,610.14
13. | Outflows On 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Account of Off
Balance Sheet
(OBS) Exposure
A. Total Outflows | 10,819.46| 10,814.83| 24,395.12| 37,607.54| 41,398.74 107,230.63| 175,197.70, 328,488.56| 18,576.27| 263,335.58| 1,017,864.43
A
B. Cumulative 10,819.46| 21,634.29 46,029.41] 83,636.95 125,035.6| 232,266.32| 407,464.02| 735,952.58| 754,528.85| 1,017,864.4| 1,017,864.43
Outflows
C.INFLOWS
1. |Cash (In 1 to 30/31 3,558.73 0.00 0.00 0.00, 0.00 0.00, 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 3,558.73
day time-bucket)
2. |Remittance in 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00, 0.00 0.00, 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00;
Transit
3. |Balances With 102,568.20 53.81 184.91 617.40f 5,201.23] 22,766.40] 18,690.72| 25,997.76 2,038.30 0.00, 178,118.73
Banks
4. |Investments 0.00] 0.00, 493.59 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00, 5,229.51 0.00] 74,516.03 80,239.13
5. | Advances 8,796.69 10,112.27| 19,853.78 39,890.99| 36,231.23] 119,390.40| 210,252.24| 263,921.27 4,961.81 1,528.49] 714,939.17
(Performing)
6. |Gross Non- 0.00] 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 159.35 18,781.67 18,941.02
Performing Loans
(GNPA)
7. |Inflows From 0.00 0.00, 0.00 0.00, 0.00 0.00, 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00;
Assets On Lease
8. |Fixed Assets 0.00] 0.00 0.00 0.00, 0.00 0.00, 0.00 0.00 0.00 9,212.06 9,212.06
(Excluding Assets
On Lease)
9. |Other Assets 457.95 457.95] 915.90 53.44 11.72] 18.80 1,978.53 464.47 46.68 8,450.15 12,855.59
10. | Security Finance 0.00 0.00, 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00, 0.00 0.00, 0.00
Transactions
11. | Inflows On 0.00 0.00, 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00, 0.00 0.00, 0.00
Account of Off
Balance Sheet
(OBS)
Exposure
C. TOTAL 115,381.57| 10,624.03| 21,448.18| 40,561.83| 41,444.18| 142,175.60| 230,921.49 295,613.01 7,206.14| 112,488.40| 1,017,864.43
INFLOWS (B)
C. Mismatch (B- |104,562.11f -190.80] -2,946.94| 2,954.29 45441 34,94497| 55,723.79| -32,875.55| -11,370.13| -150,847.18 0.00
A)
D. Cumulative 104,562.11| 104,371.3] 101,424.3] 104,378.6] 104,424.1f 139,369.07| 195,092.86| 162,217.31| 150,847.18, 0.00, 0.00
Mismatch
E. Mismatch as % | 966.43%| -1.76%)| -12.08% 7.86% 0.11% 32.59% 31.81%)| -10.01%| -61.21%| -57.28% 0.00%
of Total Outflows
F. Cumulative 966.43%| 482.43%)| 220.35%| 124.80%)| 83.52% 60.00% 47.88% 22.04% 19.99% 0.00%| 0.00%

Mismatch as % of
Cumulative Total
Outflows

21. We are exposed to foreign currency exchange rate fluctuations, which may adversely affect our results of

operations and cause our quarterly results to fluctuate significantly.

We face foreign exchange risk to the extent that our assets or liabilities are denominated in a currency other than the
Indian Rupee. Although our functional currency is, and we report our consolidated accounts, in Indian Rupees, we
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22.

incur some amount of non-Rupee indebtedness in the form of external commercial borrowings, which creates foreign
currency exposure in respect of our cash flows and ability to service such debt. As of September 30, 2023, our total
non-Rupee indebtedness (excluding interest accrued) was I 66,965.37 lakhs as compared to our total Rupee
indebtedness (excluding debt securities, subordinated liabilities and interest accrued) of X 5,49,412.71 lakhs.

We may be affected by fluctuations in the exchange rates between the Indian rupee and other currencies. In the recent
past, the Rupee has depreciated significantly when compared to the U.S. dollar. If such depreciation continues in the
future, it will increase our Rupee cost of servicing and repaying foreign currency borrowings and costs. We cannot
predict the effects of exchange rate fluctuations upon our future operating results because of the variability of
currency exposure and the potential volatility of currency exchange rates. Therefore, changes in the exchange rate
between the Rupee and the U.S. dollar and other non-Rupee currencies may have an adverse effect on our income
which in turn may adversely affect our business, results of operations and financial condition.

Further, while we seek to partly hedge our foreign currency risk by monitoring the non-rupee cash flows and entering
into cross currency swaps, derivative and forward exchange contracts, any steps undertaken to hedge the risks on
account of fluctuations in currencies may not adequately hedge against any losses we incur due to such fluctuations.
Set forth are the details of our net foreign exchange (gain)/loss in the corresponding periods.

(R in lakhs, unless otherwise specified)

Particulars For the year ended For the six month period ended
March 31, | March 31, | March 31, | September 30, | September 30,
2021 2022 2023 2022 2023
Exchange fluctuation (381.17) 367.92 519.90 498.49 434.73
(gain)/loss (unrealized)

We cannot guarantee that we will not experience losses, on account of fluctuations in currencies going forward,
and such losses may have an adverse effect on our business, results of operations and financial condition.

Our auditors have referred to certain emphasis of matters in their reports on the Audited Financial Statements.

Our Previous Statutory Auditors and our Statutory Auditors have referred to certain emphasis of matters in their
report on the Audited Consolidated Statements and Audited Standalone Statements for Fiscals 2021, 2022 and 2023
respectively:

Fiscal 2021

“We draw attention to Note 54 to the accompanying consolidated financial statements, which describes significant
uncertainties due to the outbreak of COVID-19 pandemic. The impact of the pandemic on the operations of the
Company and its financial position as at 31 March 2021 including the measurement of expected credit losses on
the loan assets are significantly dependent on uncertain future economic conditions. Our opinion is not modified
in respect of this matter.”

Fiscal 2022

“We draw attention to Note 53 to the accompanying consolidated financial statements, which describes significant
uncertainties due to the outbreak of COVID-19 pandemic. The impact of the pandemic on the operations of the
Company and its financial position as at March 31, 2022 including the measurement of expected credit losses on
the loan assets are significantly dependent on uncertain future economic conditions. Our opinion is not modified
in respect of this matter.”

Fiscal 2023
“Matter related to subsidiary Company — Satin Finserv Limited (SFL)

We draw attention to Note no. 54 to the consolidated financial statements which explain that, during the year,
Taraashna Financial Services Limited (i.e. “TFSL”) (amalgamating entity) was amalgamated with Satin Finserv
Limited vide Hon’ble NCLT Order dated January 31, 2023. The scheme got effective from March 01, 2023. The
Appointed Date of Scheme is April 01, 2021. By the effect of Appointed Date (i.e., April 01, 2021), the financial
numbers of SFL for the financial year ended March 31, 2022, are also restated due to amalgamation of the merged
entity i.e. TFSL with the SFL.

We further draw attention to Note No 54 to the consolidated financial statements which explains that due to the
amalgamation of the amalgamating entity with the SFL, which is registered as a Non-Banking Financial Company
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23.

24,

(NBFC), as on March 31, 2023, SFL is not fulfilling Principal Business Criteria laid down by the RBI. As per the
criteria, at least 50% of total assets of the SFL should be financial assets and at least 50% of the gross income
should be from financial activities. SFL meets the first criteria but does not meet the second criteria as on March
31,2023. However, the RBI vide letter dated July 22,2022, has granted time to SFL till March 31, 2024, for fulfilling
the said criteria.”

Fiscal 2021

We draw attention to Note No. 54 to the accompanying Statement, which describes significant uncertainties due to
the outbreak of COVID-19 pandemic. The impact of the pandemic on the operations of the Company and its
financial position as at March 31, 2021 including the measurement of expected credit losses on the loan assets are
significantly dependent on uncertain future economic conditions. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this
matter.

Fiscal 2022

We draw attention to Note No. 53 to the accompanying Statement, which describes significant uncertainties due to
the outbreak of COVID-19 pandemic. The impact of the pandemic on the operations of the Company and its
financial position as at March 31, 2022 including the measurement of expected credit losses on the loan assets are
significantly dependent on uncertain future economic conditions. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this
matter

Our Previous Statutory Auditor and our Statutory Auditor’s opinion was not modified in respect of these matters.
For further details, please see “Financial Information” on page 198.

There can be no assurance that any similar emphasis of matters will not form part of our financial statements for
the future fiscal periods, which could subject us to additional liabilities due to which our reputation and financial
condition may be adversely affected.

We may enter into related party transactions in the ordinary course of our business and may continue to do so
in future. There may be conflicts of interest associated with such transactions and there can be no assurance
that such transactions will not have an adverse effect on our results of operation and financial conditions

We have entered into related party transactions in the three preceding Fiscals and the six months ended September
30, 2023, each of which have been undertaken on an arms’ length basis and have been approved by our Audit
Committee, Board, Shareholders, or as and when required by law. We may also, from time to time, enter into related
party transactions in the future. To the extent we may extend loans or advances to related parties, provide guarantees
or security, enter into contracts envisaging delivery of services, we may face risks in relation to default by such
related parties or potential non-recovery or non-performance of contractual obligations. For further details, please
see “Related Party Transaction” on page 186.

Such related party transactions in the future or any other future transactions may potentially involve conflicts of
interest which may be detrimental to the interest of our Company and we cannot assure you that such transactions,
individually or in the aggregate, will always be in the best interests of our minority shareholders and will not have
an adverse effect on our business, financial condition, results of operations, cash flows and prospects.

Any deterioration in the performance of any pool of receivables securitized to banks and other institutions may
adversely impact our results of operations.

We securitize a portion of our receivables from our loan portfolio to banks and other financial institutions to obtain
funding and diversify our portfolio risk. Such securitization is undertaken by us on the basis of our internal estimates
of funding requirements and availability of other sources of funds, and may vary from time to time. Set forth below
are details of our book value of loans securitized and our direct assignment portfolio without any recourse with banks
and financial institutions, as of the corresponding periods, on a standalone basis:
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26.

Particulars As of March 31, As of September 30,
2021 2022 2023 2022 2023

Book value of loans securitized (% in lakhs) 7,187.99| 54,457.68| 1,30,634.82| 95,844.43| 1,42,025.10
Book value of loans securitized as a 0.91% 7.38% 17.09% 13.08% 15.54%
percentage of total assets

Direct assignment portfolio (% in lakhs) 1,35,921.00| 1,20,441.72| 2,25,770.51| 1,38,962.34| 2,29,476.89
Direct assignment portfolio as a percentage of 17.26% 16.33% 29.53% 18.96% 25.11%
total assets (%)

Any change in regulations framed by RBI or other regulators in relation to securitizations by NBFCs could have an
adverse impact on our securitization program. In the event the bank or financial institution with whom we have
securitized our receivables does not realize the receivables due under loans that have been securitized, the relevant
bank or financial institution could enforce the underlying credit enhancements provided by our Company. Should
such banks or financial institutions seek to enforce the underlying credit enhancements, it could have an adverse
effect on our results of operations.

Further, any deterioration in the performance of any batch of receivables assigned to banks could adversely affect
our credibility and hence our ability to conduct further securitizations. We may also be named as a co-plaintiff in
legal proceedings initiated by an assignee in relation to the securitized assets. While there have been no material
instances in the three preceding Fiscals, if a substantial portion of our securitized or assigned loans suffer a
deterioration in their performance, it could have an adverse effect on our financial condition and results of operations.

Negative publicity or failure to maintain our image could damage our reputation and have a material adverse
effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations.

We believe that the reputation of our brand among our customers has contributed significantly to the growth and
success of our business. Maintaining and enhancing the recognition and reputation of our products is, therefore,
critical to our business and competitiveness.

We provide loans to women, belonging to low-income groups primarily in rural areas. Our business operations are
based on the joint liability group model, wherein we rely primarily on non-traditional guarantee mechanisms. As a
result of our business model of providing financial services at the villages of our borrowers, our operating expenses,
particularly, finance, employee, travel and rent costs are quite high. High operating costs along with provisions for
higher credit cost as well as our cost of financing, may result in higher interest rates being charged to our borrowers,
in comparison to the interest rates generally charged by lenders on loans extended to banked borrowers. This, along
with our business model, therefore, continues to be the subject of evaluation, comparison and analysis. Perception of
our business and business model, including, among others, by social and political workers or disgruntled former
stakeholders, could harm our reputation.

While there have been no instances in the three preceding Fiscals and the six months ended September 30, 2023,
large negative incidents or adverse publicity could rapidly erode borrower trust and confidence in us, particularly if
such incidents attract regulatory investigations. Negative publicity can result from our own or our third-party service
providers’ actual or alleged conduct, and actions taken by government regulators in response to that conduct. Any
disagreements among members of our Board, if these become public knowledge, may lead to adverse publicity. The
dissemination of inaccurate information online could harm our business, reputation, prospects, financial condition,
and operating results, regardless of the information’s accuracy. Such unverifiable or false information regarding us
may be published online or on social media by third parties, or any other such damage to our brand or our reputation
may result in withdrawal of business by our existing customers and loss of new business from potential customers,
could increase our costs, lead to litigation or result in negative publicity that could damage our reputation and
adversely affect our business, results of operations and financial conditions.

An inability to manage our growth or our proposed expansion activities, including new financial products or
businesses, could disrupt our business and reduce our profitability.

We intend to expand our reach and operations in the states where we are currently present, both by increasing our
business transacted through existing branches/Centres (a group of 8-32 borrowers) and opening new
branches/Centres. As of September 30, 2023, we have 1,335 branches and 3.00 lakh centres.

In addition to increasing the size and scale of our operations in states where we are already present, we intend to also
focus on expanding our business operations to new geographies. For further details, see “Our Business- Strategies-
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Deepen, expand and continue to profitably grow our microfinance business through geographical diversification
and increased penetration in the states in which we operate” on page 150. Set forth below are details of our branches,
borrowers, and AUM, reflecting our recent growth:

Particulars As of the financial year ended CAGR As of the six month period
March 31 (Fiscal 2021- ended September 30

2021 2022 2023 Fiscal 2023) 2022 2023

Number of branches 1,266 1,232 1,286 0.79% 1,244 1,335

-Exclusive Microfinance 1,237 1,195 1,234 (0.12)% 1,203 1,269

Loan branches

-Exclusive Housing Finance 14 21 30 46.39% 24 37

Loan branches

-Exclusive MSME loan 15 16 22 21.11% 17 29

branches

Number of Active Customers 30.51 28.12 28.34 (3.63)% 26.81 32.14

(in lakhs)

AUM (R in crores) 8,378.57| 7,617.23| 9,115.40 4.30% 7,575.35 10,099.84

While we have not faced any issue in our growth strategy in the past, due to our comprehensive operations
methodology which includes a detailed standard operating procedure for branch selection. We cannot assure you that
our growth strategy will continue to be successful or that we will be able to continue to grow further, at the same
rate, or at all. We may need to change the composition of our AUM, which may impact our profitability, our asset-
liability maturity profile and NPA levels. Further, we may introduce products that may have lower Net Interest
Margins or profitability.

As we grow our business in newer geographies, including rural and more remote areas, we may face difficulties such
as lack of infrastructure in terms of connectivity, increased competition, different culture, regulatory and taxation
regimes, business practices, customs, behaviour and preferences, and our current experience may not be applicable
to new markets. In addition, we will need to enhance and upgrade our financial, accounting, information technology,
administrative, supervisory mechanisms, risk management and operational infrastructure and internal capabilities to
manage such growth of our business, which involves significant capital investment.

We may also face heightened security risks, and face instances of fraud and theft. For further information, see- “-
Our operations involve handling cash in high volumes through a dispersed network of branches which makes us
susceptible to operational risks including, misappropriation, embezzlement or fraud by our employees, which may
adversely affect our business, operations and ability to recruit and retain employees.” on page 23. We may not be
able to maintain our historical growth rates, the level of our NPAs or the quality of our portfolio. Further, external
factors beyond our control could also affect our ability to grow our business and loan portfolio, such as demand for
our loans, domestic economic growth, the RBI’s monetary and regulatory policies, inflation, competition and
availability of cost-effective debt capital. Our inability to expand our current operations or the sub-optimal
performance of our existing/ new branches may adversely affect our business, financial condition, results of
operations and cash flows.

We operate in a highly competitive market and face competition from the organized and unorganized sector
across as well as from state-sponsored social programs, which could adversely affect our business prospects and
financial performance.

The financial services market for our products is being served by a range of financial entities selectively or across all
products, including by MFIs, traditional National Banking institutions, captive finance affiliates of players in various
industries, NBFCs and small finance banks approved by RBI to enhance credit penetration. Many of these
competitors may have greater financial resources, may be larger in terms of business volume and may have lower
cost of funds compared to us. Many of them may also have greater geographical reach, longstanding partnerships
and may offer their borrowers multiple forms of financing with differential interest rates or higher ticket sizes that
we may not be able to provide, or have better brand recognition and larger borrower bases. In addition, we compete
with informal sources of lending for microfinance loans, including moneylenders, landlords, local shopkeepers and
traders.

As a result of this competition, while products in the MFI industry have gradually standardized, but the interest rate,

payment terms and processing fee vary from lender to lender. Our ability to compete effectively will depend, to an
extent, on our ability to raise low-cost funding in the future as well as our ability to maintain or decrease our operating
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expenses by increasing operational efficiencies and managing credit costs. There can be no assurance that we will be
able to effectively address these industry trends or compete effectively with new and existing NBFCs and other
financial intermediaries that operate in similar segments. An inability to effectively address such competition may
adversely affect our market share, goodwill, business prospects, results of operations and financial condition.

Further, the government of India has launched various schemes to revolutionize the traditional banking system and
to provide banking opportunity to the poor. For instance, the Pradhan Mantri Jan Dhan Yojna launched in 2014 is
aimed to help the poor become financially stable by encouraging them to open zero balance bank accounts. The
accountholders under this scheme are also allowed to avail an overdraft facility of X 5,000 after six months of opening
the account and are provided with insurance cover of X 30,000 subject to compliance with certain conditions of the
scheme.

Similar initiative have been undertaken by the government in past, including ‘Swabhimaan’, which enables small
and marginal farmers to obtain credit at lower rates from banks and other financial institutions and Support to
Training and Employment Programme for Women (STEP) Scheme, which is aimed at providing skill and financial
assistance that enables women to become self-employed/entrepreneurs. Due to extensive awareness and
implementation activities undertaken by the government and more economical financing products of the government,
our target clients may have better access and may prefer participation in such schemes over our financial products
which may negatively impact our business and result of operations. Further, the ability of financial institutions
participating in government schemes to provide lower cost financial assistance under these schemes as a result of
funding provided by the government may adversely affect our business, results of operations and financial condition.

Any failure or significant weakness of our internal processes or systems could cause operational errors or
incidents of fraud, which would adversely affect our business, profitability and reputation.

Our internal audit functions make an evaluation of the adequacy and effectiveness of our internal risk management,
control and governance processes. Our Company has a team of 85 internal auditors, as of September 30, 2023, on a
standalone basis, which works at the field level and functionally reports to our Chief Internal Audit Officer, and
operationally to our Chief Audit Officer, who subsequently reports to our Chairman cum Managing Director.

Our Company’s branches are broadly audited at least once every three months with the reports being sent to the
managers who have a direct responsibility for the unit/function being audited. Our Senior Management and Audit
Committee is informed of the significant audit findings on a quarterly basis. While we periodically test and update
our internal processes and systems, we are exposed to operational risks arising from the potential inadequacy or
failure of internal processes or systems and our actions may not be sufficient to ensure effective internal checks and
balances in all circumstances.

Our internal audit system and internal control procedures may not identify every instance of non-compliance or every
suspicious transaction. For instance, while our Company has formulated a code of conduct for regulating, monitoring
and reporting of trading by Designated Persons (“Code”), there have been certain instances whereby the employees
of our Company and subsidiaries have transacted in our Equity Shares, in violation of the Code. While the Company
has taken and is in the process of taking appropriate steps to address such violations, we cannot assure you that any
violation will not take place in the future, or that we will be able to take the appropriate actions, or any action at all,
to effectively address such violation. Any future violations of the Code may adversely impact our reputation.

Further, if any other internal system or process weaknesses are identified in the future, our actions may not be
sufficient to identify the root cause and correct such weakness. Owing to our volume of transactions and wide
geographic presence, there may be lapses in timely completion of internal audit as per the schedule. It is possible that
errors may repeat or compound before they are discovered and rectified. Failures or material errors in our internal
systems may lead to events such as inaccurate financial reporting, fraud and failure of critical systems and
infrastructure. For further information, see “- Our operations involve handling cash in high volumes through a
dispersed network of branches which makes us susceptible to operational risks including, misappropriation,
embezzlement or fraud by our employees, which may adversely affect our business, operations and ability to recruit
and retain employees.” on page 23.

Our insurance coverage may not be sufficient or may not adequately protect us against all material hazards, which
may adversely affect our business, results of operations, cash flows and financial condition.

Our operations are subject to various risks inherent to the finance industry, as well as fraud, theft, robbery, acts of
terrorism and other force majeure events. Our insurance policies may not provide adequate coverage in certain
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circumstances, such as credit loss, loss of profit and are subject to certain deductibles, exclusions and limits on
coverage. Set forth below are details of our insurance coverage, as of the corresponding dates:

(in X lakhs, unless otherwise specified)
Particulars As of March 31 As of September 30
2021 2022 2023 2022 2023
Insured Assets (Carrying value -added for different | 6,585.35 | 7,745.93 | 8,058.23 | 8,043.81 | 8,966.79
risks arithmetically)
Percentage of our total assets (excluding Goodwill, 52.29% 60.14% | 63.75% 65.26% | 75.11%
Building-right of use assets, Intangible assets &
financial assets)

We cannot assure you that the terms of our insurance policies will be adequate to cover any damage or loss suffered
by us or that such coverage will continue to be available on reasonable terms or will be available in sufficient amounts
to cover one or more large claims, or that the insurer will not disclaim coverage as to any future claim. While we
have not faced such an instance in the past, a successful assertion of one or more large claims against us that exceeds
our available insurance coverage or changes in our insurance policies, including premium increases or the imposition
of a larger deductible or coinsurance requirement, could adversely affect our business, financial condition, results of
operations and cash flows.

We may not be able to identify, monitor and manage risks or effectively implement our risk management policies,
which could adversely affect our business, financial condition and results of operations.

The effectiveness of our risk management is affected by the quality and timeliness of available data. We have
devoted significant resources to develop and implement our risk management policies and procedures based on
checks and balances required to manage various risks and intend to continue doing so in the future. However, there
may be human errors in assessing the right data at the right time in order to develop or modify appropriate risk
management policies and procedures. We have policies and procedures in place to measure, manage and control
the various risks to which we are exposed, which include our asset management policy, credit policy, whistle blower
and vigilance mechanism, fair practices code, grievance redressal policy, internal guidelines on corporate
governance, investment policy, risk management policy, IT policies and procedures, and KYC and anti-money
laundering policy. Our Board of Directors and various Board Committees, including the Risk Management
Committee, review our internal policies and procedures, including our risk management policies from time to time.
We also depend on our information technology systems to assist us with our risk management functions, and carry
out periodic audits on our security system to identify risk areas.

In the past, our IT audit report has noted lapses such as weakly enforced security controls. In addition, our policies
and procedures to identify, monitor and manage risks may not be fully effective. Some of our risk management
processes may not be automated and subject to human error, such as the process required to assess an applicant’s
income, expenses and other payment obligations. Some of our methods of managing risks are based on the use of
observed historical market behaviour and may not accurately predict future risk exposures, which could be
significantly greater than those indicated by the historical measures.

In addition, as we seek to expand the scope of our operations, we also face the risk of inability to develop
commensurate risk management policies and procedures. Other risk management methods depend upon an
evaluation of information regarding the markets we operate in, the borrowers we service and certain other matters,
which may not be accurate, complete, up-to-date or properly evaluated in all cases. Our earnings are dependent
upon the effectiveness of our management of changes in asset quality and risk concentrations, the accuracy of our
underwriting, evaluation models and our critical accounting estimates and the adequacy of our allowances for loan
losses. To the extent our assessments, assumptions or estimates prove inaccurate or not predictive of actual results,
we could suffer higher than anticipated losses.

Any downgrade in our Company’s credit ratings could increase our borrowing costs, affect our ability to obtain
financing, and adversely affect our business, results of operations, cash flows and financial condition.

The cost and availability of capital depends in part on our short-term and long-term credit ratings. Set forth below
are details of our Company’s credit ratings in the three preceding Fiscals:

| Instrument | Rating as of March 31
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2021 2022 2023

Long-term fund-based term- CARE A-; Stable CARE A-; Negative [ICRA A- (Negative)*
bank facilities program
Non-Convertible Debentures CARE A-; Stable, CARE A-; Negative, CARE BBBH+,; Stable,

[ICRA]JA- (Stable), [ICRA]JA- (Negative), [ICRA] A-

IND A- Positive Outlook | BWR A-/ Negative (Negative)*
Commercial paper CARE A1, [ICRA] AL CARE A1, [ICRA] Al
[ICRA] Al

Subordinate debt [ICRA]A- (Stable) CARE A- (Negative) [ICRA] A-

CARE A- (Stable) [ICRA]A- (Negative) (Negative)*, CARE

BBB+; Stable

* Our Company has obtained a credit rating of ICRA A (Stable)’ (upgraded from ICRA A- (Stable)) on December 26, 2023

As set forth above, there have been certain instances of downgrading in the past three fiscals. For instance, there
was delayed recovery and an increase in NPAs and write-offs during the COVID-19 pandemic which led to the
downgrading of our credit rating by CARE Ratings Limited from “CARE A-; negative” to “CARE BBB+ stable”
on August 26, 2022. Any further downgrade in our Company’s credit ratings in the future could also increase
borrowing costs or even result in an event of default under certain of our financing arrangements and adversely
affect our access to both domestic and international capital and debt markets, which could in turn adversely affect
our interest margins, cash flows and our business. In addition, any downgrade in our credit ratings could result in a
recall of existing facilities, increase the probability that our lenders impose additional terms and conditions to any
financing or refinancing arrangements we enter into in the future and impair our ability to raise new capital on a
competitive basis, which may adversely affect our business, results of operations, cash flows and financial
condition.

Industry information included in this Draft Prospectus has been derived from an industry report prepared by
CRISIL and exclusively commissioned and paid for by us for such purpose

Certain information regarding the industry and the market in which our Company operates, included in this Draft
Prospectus has been derived from the report titled “Report on Microfinance Industry in India” dated November,
2023 (“CRISIL Report”) prepared by CRISIL appointed and exclusively commissioned by our Company pursuant
to letter dated November 3, 2023 at an agreed fees to be paid by our Company.

The report is a paid report, and exclusively commissioned for the purposes of the Issue, and is subject to various
limitations and based upon certain assumptions, parameters and conditions that are subjective in nature. It also uses
certain methodologies for market sizing and forecasting which may or may not be accurate.

Industry sources and publications are also prepared based on information as of specific dates. Further, there is no
assurance that such information has been compiled or presented on the same basis as may be presented elsewhere.
In addition, statements from third parties that involve estimates, projections, forecasts and assumptions are subject
to change, and actual amounts may differ materially from those included in this Draft Prospectus. Due to possibly
flawed or ineffective collection methods or discrepancies between published information and market practice and
other problems, the statistics herein may be inaccurate or may not be comparable to statistics produced for other
economies and should not be unduly relied upon.

Investors should consult their own advisors and undertake an independent assessment of information in this Draft
Prospectus based on, or derived from, the CRISIL Report before making any investment decision regarding the
Issue.

We have entered into certain financial arrangements which may potentially involve conflicts of interest
pertaining to the Lead Manager on the proposed transaction being JM Financial Limited.

In the ordinary course of our business, we have entered into certain financial arrangements and borrowings with
JM Financials Credit Solutions Limited, affiliate of JM Financial Limited. The loans sanctioned to our Company
by JM Financial Credit Solutions Limited were done as part of their lending activities in the ordinary course of
business and we do not believe that there is any conflict of interest under the Securities and Exchange Board of
India (Merchant Bankers) Regulations, 1992, as amended, or any other applicable SEBI rules or regulations. Our
Board of Directors may choose to repay these loans and facilities based on commercial considerations. For further
details, see “Financial Indebtedness” on page 200.
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However, there can be no assurance that such subsisting financial arrangements will not be perceived as a current
or potential conflict of interest.

As of the date of this Draft Prospectus, our application for trademark of our name and logo remains pending.
We may be unable to adequately protect our intellectual property and may be subject to risks of infringement
claims.

As of the date of this Draft Prospectus, we have applied for registration of trademark for our new logo @N
with the Trade Marks Registry of India. We cannot assure you that such registration will be granted in a timely
manner or at all. Our applications may be challenged and we may have no recourse against parties who use our
name and logo till such time as these trademarks are registered. There can be no assurance that third parties will
not infringe upon our intellectual property, causing damage to our business prospects, reputation, and goodwill.

While we take care to ensure that we comply with the intellectual property rights of third parties, we cannot
determine with certainty whether we are infringing upon any existing third-party intellectual property rights. We
cannot assure you that we will not be involved in intellectual property disputes in the future, including disputes
relating to our pending trademark applications. Any intellectual property claims, with or without merit, could be
very time-consuming, could be expensive to settle or litigate and could divert our management’s attention and other
resources. These claims could also subject us to significant liability for damages, potentially including enhanced
statutory damages if we are found to have willfully infringed intellectual property rights. While such claims by third
parties have not been made to us historically, the occurrence of any of the foregoing would adversely affect our
business operations and financial results.

We may not be able to detect money-laundering and other illegal or improper activities fully or on a timely basis,
which could expose us to additional liability.

We are required to comply with applicable anti-money-laundering (“AML”) and anti-terrorism laws and other
regulations in India. In the ordinary course of our operations, we run the risk of failing to comply with the prescribed
KYC procedures and the consequent risk of fraud and money laundering by dishonest customers and assessment of
penalties or imposition of sanctions against us for such compliance failures despite having implemented systems
and controls designed to prevent the occurrence of these risks. Although we believe that we have adequate internal
policies, processes and controls in place to prevent and detect any AML activity and ensure KYC compliance, such
as video-based customer identification process, OTP based Aadhaar e-KYC authentication, there can be no
assurance that we will be able to fully control instances of any potential or attempted violation by other parties and
may accordingly be subject to regulatory actions including imposition of fines and other penalties by the RBI and
other relevant governmental authorities to whom we report. While we have faced instances of fraud wherein certain
erstwhile employees of our Company have fabricated false loan documents and false verification reports, we have
not faced any penal action from the regulatory authorities due to timely intimation of such incidents. However,
there can be no assurance that any action will not be taken by the regulatory authorities in the future in case of any
incidence of money laundering or fraud. If any party uses or attempts to use us for money-laundering or any other
illegal or improper purposes and such attempts are not detected or reported to the appropriate authorities in
compliance with applicable legal requirements, our reputation could suffer and could result in a material adverse
effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations.

Some of our corporate records are not traceable. Non availability of such records may result in regulatory actions
against our Company by regulatory or statutory authorities, which may have an adverse impact on our financial
condition and reputation.

We are unable to trace, basis our review of the records available with the Company and further search conducted
by practicing company secretary, certain corporate records in relation to our Company including copies of board
and shareholders resolutions for issuance of Equity Shares by our Company. These corporate records pertain to
certain allotments of Equity Shares made by our Company in the year 1994 and 1995. Further, for the purpose of
disclosures included in this Draft Prospectus, we have relied on alternative documents in relation to the aforesaid
allotments made in the year 1994 and 1995, including board resolutions for allotment of such Equity Shares, forms
filed with the Registrar of Companies in relation to aforesaid allotments and the search report dated December 6,
2023, prepared by Barkha & Co., Company Secretaries, an independent practicing company secretary.

While the liability if any is not likely to be material, we cannot assure you that the above-mentioned corporate
records will be available in the future, and that we will not be subject to any proceedings initiated by any regulatory
or statutory authority (including the RoC) in this respect. Any actions including legal proceedings if initiated by
regulatory or statutory authorities, may have an adverse effect on our financial condition or reputation.
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All of our branches are located on leased premises. The termination of any of these leases or our inability to
exercise our rights under the lease agreements may cause disruption in our operations.

All our branch offices are located on leased premises. Although we have renewed the majority of our leases in the
past, our business, financial condition, and operating results could be adversely affected if we are unable to negotiate
favourable lease renewal terms for our existing branches. Some of the lease deeds have expired in the ordinary
course of business and we are currently involved in negotiations for the renewal of these lease and license
agreements.

In case of non-renewal of our leases for our existing branches, we will be forced to procure alternative space for
our existing branches. Although we procure space that satisfies the safety, operational and financial criteria for our
branches, we cannot assure you that we will be able to identify such space at commercially reasonable terms or at
all. Failure to identify such space can adversely affect our financial condition and results of operation. Further, any
breach of the terms and conditions of these lease agreements could result in the termination of the lease agreements
and force us to establish operations at another location, which may disrupt our operations temporarily. Additionally,
we cannot assure you that all the lease agreements for our branches are adequately stamped and registered as per
the requirements of applicable laws. Unless such documents are adequately stamped or duly registered, such
documents may be rendered inadmissible as evidence in a court in India or may not be authenticated by any public
officer and the same may attract penalty as prescribed under applicable law or may impact our ability to enforce
these agreements legally, which may result in an adverse effect on the continuance of our operations and business.

We do not currently hold valid title in our Registered Office. If we are unable to identify or correct defects or
irregularities in title to the land which we own, our business and results of operations could be adversely affected

Our Registered Office is owned by Satin Intellicomm Limited, an erstwhile company that has been merged into and
with our Company. While the Registered Office has been acquired by our Company pursuant to the amalgamation,
the transfer formalities for changing the ownership are still in progress and the building is not currently held in the
name of our Company. The absence of title insurance, coupled with the difficulties in verifying title to land, may
increase our exposure to third party claims to the property.

While there has been no such instance in the past, we cannot assure you that we will acquire the title to our
Registered Office in the future, or that we will be able to continue with the uninterrupted use of these properties,
which may impair our operations and adversely affect our financial condition.

Our branches and our employees operating in remote areas are exposed to antisocial elements which may
adversely affect our business, operations and ability to recruit and retain employees.

Since our operations are spread to remote areas, our employees involved in cash collection and transportation may
be susceptible to criminal elements in such areas. While we have not faced any major challenge in the past, in the
event, barring a few incidents of theft, including recent at Faridabad and Jasidih involving an aggregate amount of
210,241.00 and X 92,350.00, respectively, an adverse incidence may happen in the future affecting our ability to
continue our operations in such areas. In addition, if we determine that certain areas pose a significantly higher risk
of crime or political strife and instability, our ability to operate in such areas may be adversely affected. We have
in the past, consciously avoided setting up operations in certain remote areas as a result of high crime rate in these
areas.

Our business is subject to seasonal volatility, which may contribute to fluctuations in our results of operations
and financial condition.

Our business operations and the MFI industry may be affected by seasonal trends in the economy. We generally
see higher borrowings and drawdowns by our borrowers during the third and fourth quarter of each Fiscal due to
increased economic activity towards the end of the Fiscal owing to the harvest season in rural areas in India. Further,
there is typically an increase in retail economic activity in India during the period from October to March, due to
several holiday periods, festivals and improved weather conditions, resulting in higher volumes of business during
this period. Any significant event such as unforeseen floods, earthquakes, political instabilities, epidemics or
economic slowdowns during this peak season would materially and adversely affect our results of operations and
growth. During these periods, we may continue to incur operating expenses, but our income from operations may
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be delayed or reduced.

We may have difficulties in managing our operating expenses structure in the case of a decline in volume of
disbursement and the size of our AUM.

In cases of significant reduction in new disbursements and any significant reduction in our business, we may not
be able to adjust our employee numbers commensurately and reduce our employee benefits expenses in a relatively
shorter period. Our employee benefits expenses derived from our Financial Statements amounted to X 33,732.52
lakhs, ¥ 39,312.43 lakhs, X 38,760.29 lakhs, X 19,365.99 lakhs and X 21,474.87 lakhs accounting for 24.44%,
28.47%, 24.86%, 27.43% and 21.53% of our total income for the Fiscals 2021, 2022 and 2023 and for the six
months ended September 30, 2022, and September 30, 2023, respectively. Other large components of our operating
expenses include rent, legal and professional charges and travelling and conveyance expenses, which may be
difficult to reduce quickly.

Further, our existing borrowers may prefer to obtain credit from our competitors over us, or we may incur additional
costs on training new employees if our skilled employees decide to leave us. It may take us a longer period of time
than is optimal in order to adjust our employee numbers or reduce the associated personnel costs, in the event of
any significant reduction in our business. Our inability to retain sufficient flexibility in our cost structure and adjust
to changing business circumstances may adversely affect our business and results of operations.

We have in this Draft Prospectus included certain non-GAAP financial measures and certain other industry
measures related to our operations and financial performance. These non-GAAP measures and industry
measures may vary from any standard methodology that is applicable across the financial services industry, and
therefore may not be comparable with financial or industry related statistical information of similar
nomenclature computed and presented by other companies.

Certain non-GAAP financial measures and certain other industry measures relating to our operations and financial
performance have been included in this Draft Prospectus. We compute and disclose such non-GAAP financial
measures and such other industry related statistical information relating to our operations and financial performance
as we consider such information to be useful measures of our business and financial performance, and because such
measures are frequently used by securities analysts, investors and others to evaluate the operational performance of
players in the Indian financial services industry, many of which provide such non-GAAP financial measures and
other industry related statistical and operational information. Such non-GAAP financial measures may be different
from financial measures and statistical information disclosed or followed by other NBFCs or MFIs. Such
supplemental financial and operational information is therefore of limited utility as an analytical tool, and investors
are cautioned against considering such information either in isolation or as a substitute for an analysis of our audited
financial statements as reported under applicable accounting standards disclosed elsewhere in this Draft Prospectus.
These non-GAAP financial measures and such other industry related statistical and other information relating to
our operations and financial performance may not be computed on the basis of any standard methodology that is
applicable across the industry and therefore may not be comparable to financial measures and industry related
statistical information of similar nomenclature that may be computed and presented by other companies. For further
details, see “Certain Conventions, Use of Financial, Industry and Market Data and Currency of Presentation”
on page 13.

The fund requirement and deployment mentioned in the Objects of the Issue have not been appraised by any
bank or financial institution.

We intend to use the net proceeds of the Issue, after meeting the expenditures of and related to the Issue, for the
purpose of our financing business including onward lending, repayment of interest and principal of existing
borrowings and for general corporate purposes. For further details, please see “Objects of the Issue” at page 73. The
fund requirement and deployment are based on internal management estimates and has not been appraised by any
bank or financial institution. The management will have significant flexibility in applying the proceeds received by
us from the Issue. Further, as per the provisions of the SEBI NCS Regulations, we are not required to appoint a
monitoring agency and therefore no monitoring agency has been appointed for the Issue.

EXTERNAL RISKS

RISKS RELATED TO INDIA

44,

We are subject to regulatory, economic, and social and political uncertainties and other factors beyond our
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control.

We are incorporated in India, and we conduct our corporate affairs and our business in India. Our equity shares are
listed on BSE and the NSE and our non-convertible debentures are listed on BSE. Consequently, our business,
operations, financial performance and the market price of our listed securities will be affected by the following
external risks, should any of them materialize:

e any exchange rate fluctuations, the imposition of currency controls and restrictions on the right to convert or
repatriate currency or export assets;

e macroeconomic factors and central bank regulation, including in relation to interest rates movements which
may in turn adversely impact our access to capital and increase our borrowing costs;

e prevailing income conditions among Indian customers and Indian corporations

e decline in India’s foreign exchange reserves which may affect liquidity in the Indian economy;

o political instability, resulting from a change in government or in economic and fiscal policies;

e changes in government policies, including taxation policies, social and civil unrest and other political, social
and economic developments in or affecting India;

o (difficulty in developing any necessary partnerships with local businesses on commercially acceptable terms
and/or on a timely basis.

The Government of India has exercised and continues to exercise significant influence over many aspects of the
Indian economy. Indian governments have generally pursued policies of economic liberalization and financial
sector reforms, including by relaxing restrictions on the private sector. Nevertheless, the role of the Indian central
and state governments in the Indian economy as producers, consumers and regulators has remained significant and
we cannot assure you that such liberalization policies will continue. A significant change in India’s policy of
economic liberalization and deregulation or any social or political uncertainties could adversely affect our business,
results of operations, cash flows and financial condition.

Natural or man-made disasters, fires, epidemics, pandemics, acts of war, terrorist attacks, civil unrest and other
events could materially and adversely affect our business.

Natural disasters (such as cyclones, drought, typhoons, flooding, storms, tsunamis, tornadoes, fires, explosions,
and/or earthquakes), epidemics, pandemics and man-made disasters, including acts of war, terrorist attacks, and
other events, many of which are beyond our control, may lead to economic instability, including in India or globally.
Developments in the ongoing conflict between Russia and Ukraine, since February 2022, has resulted in and may
continue to result in a period of sustained instability across global financial markets. The imposition of sanctions
could lead to unpredictable reactions from Russia. If any sanction risk materializes, this could induce volatility in
commodity prices, increase borrowing costs, cause outflow of capital from emerging markets and may lead to
overall slowdown in economic activity in India and have a material adverse effect on our business, cash flows,
financial condition and results of operations.

In addition, China is one of India’s major trading partners and there are rising concerns of a possible slowdown in
the Chinese economy as well as a strained relationship with India, which could have an adverse impact on the trade
relations between the two countries. The sovereign rating downgrades for Brazil and Russia (and the imposition of
sanctions on Russia) have also added to the growth risks for these markets. In response to such developments,
legislators and financial regulators in the United States and other jurisdictions, including India, implemented a
number of policy measures designed to add stability to the financial markets. However, the overall long-term effect
of these and other legislative and regulatory efforts on the global financial markets is uncertain, and they may not
have the intended stabilizing effects. Any terrorist attacks or civil unrest as well as other adverse social, economic,
and political events in India could have a negative effect on us. Any of the above factors may adversely affect our
business, results of operation and financial condition.

46. Any downgrading of India’s sovereign debt rating by an international rating agency could have a negative

impact on our business and results of operations.

Our borrowing costs and our access to the debt capital markets depend significantly on the credit ratings of India.
Moody’s affirmed India’s sovereign rating as Baa3 with a “stable” outlook, which is the lowest investment grade,
in August 2023. DBRS confirmed India’s rating as BBB “low” in May 2023. India’s sovereign ratings from S&P
and Fitch is also BBB- with a “stable” outlook. Any further adverse revisions to India’s credit ratings for domestic
and international debt by international rating agencies may adversely impact our ability to raise additional financing
and the interest rates and other commercial terms at which such financing is available, including raising any
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overseas additional financing. A downgrading of India’s credit ratings may occur, for example, upon a change of
government tax or fiscal policy, which are outside our control. Any of the above factors may adversely affect our
business, results of operation and financial condition.

India’s existing credit information infrastructure may cause increased risks of loan defaults.

All of our business is located in India. India's existing credit information infrastructure may pose problems and
difficulties in running a robust credit check on our borrowers. We may also face difficulties in the due diligence
process relating to our customers or to any security or collateral we take in relation to our loans. We may not be able
to run comprehensive searches relating to the security and there are no assurances that any searches we undertake will
be accurate or reliable. Hence, our overall credit analysis could be less robust as compared to similar transactions in
more developed economies. Any inability to undertake a comprehensive due diligence or credit check might result
in an increase in our NPAs and we may have to increase our provisions correspondingly. Any of the foregoing may
have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, results of operations and cash flows.

Changing tax laws, rules and regulations and legal uncertainties in India, including adverse application of tax
laws, may adversely affect our business and financial performance.

The regulatory and policy environment in which we operate is evolving and subject to change. Such changes,
including the few instances (which are only illustrative and not exhaustive) briefly mentioned below, may adversely
affect our business, financial condition, results of operations and prospects, to the extent that we are unable to
suitably respond to and comply with such changes in applicable law and policy:

e The notified provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, together with the rules thereunder, contain significant
changes to Indian company law, such as in the provisions related to issue of capital, disclosures in prospectus,
corporate governance norms, accounting policies, audit matters, related party transactions, introduction of a
provision allowing the initiation of class action suits in India against companies by shareholders or depositors,
insider trading and restrictions on directors and key managerial personnel from engaging in forward dealing.

e The General Anti Avoidance Rules, or GAAR, have been introduced in the Income-tax Act, 1961, or the IT
Act along with the rules in the Income Tax Rules, 1962 or the IT Rules, and have come into effect from April
1, 2017. The intent of this legislation is to prevent business arrangements set up with the intent to avoid tax
incidence under the IT Act. In the absence of any precedents on the subject, the application of these provisions
is uncertain.

e The Government of India has announced the union budget for the Fiscal 2024, pursuant to which the Finance
Bill, 2023 (“Finance Bill”) has introduced various amendments. The Finance Bill has received assent from the
President of India on March 31, 2023, and has been enacted as the Finance Act, 2023 (“Finance Act”). We
cannot predict whether any amendments made pursuant to the Finance Act would have an adverse effect on
our business, financial condition and results of operations. Unfavourable changes in or interpretations of
existing, or the promulgation of new laws, rules and regulations including foreign investment and stamp duty
laws governing our business and operations could result in us being deemed to be in contravention of such laws
and may require us to apply for additional approvals.

e The Government has recently introduced (a) the Code on Wages, 2019 (“Wages Code”); (b) the Code on Social
Security, 2020 (“Social Security Code”); (¢) the Occupational Safety, Health and Working Conditions Code,
2020; and (d) the Industrial Relations Code, 2020, which consolidate, subsume and replace numerous existing
central labour legislations. Except certain portions of the Wages Code, which have come into force pursuant
to notification by Ministry of Labour and Employment, the rules for implementation under such codes are yet
to be notified. Accordingly, we are yet to determine the impact of all or some such laws on our business and
operations which may restrict our ability to grow our business in the future.

e On September 2, 2022, the RBI issued the ‘Guidelines on Digital Lending’ following the ‘Recommendations
of the Working Group on Digital Lending — Implementation’ issued by the RBI on August 10, 2022. Our
Company is engaged in digital lending within the meaning of the Guidelines on Digital Lending. On June 8,
2023, the RBI issued the ‘Guidelines on Default Loss Guarantee’ (“DLG Guidelines™) in Digital Lending. The
DLG Guidelines is applicable to our Company. Failure to comply with the obligations in a timely manner may
lead to imposition of penalties, and/or other regulatory action being taken by the RBI against us, which may
adversely affect our business operations. Any failure to comply may adversely affect our business, results of
operations and prospects. Uncertainty in the applicability, interpretation, or implementation of any amendment
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to, or change in, governing law, regulation or policy, including by reason of an absence, or a limited body, of
administrative or judicial precedent may be time consuming as well as costly for us to resolve and may impact
the viability of our current businesses or restrict our ability to grow our businesses in the future.

e On October 19, 2023, the RBI issued the Master Direction — Reserve Bank of India (Non-Banking Financial
Company —Scale Based Regulation) Directions, 2023 replacing the earlier Non-Banking Financial Company—
Non-Systemically Important Non-Deposit taking (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016 and Non-Banking Financial
Company-Systemically Important Non-Deposit taking Company and Deposit taking Company (Reserve Bank)
Directions, 2016. The new Master Directions are applicable to our Company. Failure to comply with the
obligations in a timely manner may lead to imposition of penalties, and/or other regulatory action being taken
by the RBI against us, which may adversely affect our business operations. Any failure to comply may
adversely affect our business, results of operations and prospects. Uncertainty in the applicability,
interpretation, or implementation of any amendment to, or change in, governing law, regulation or policy,
including by reason of an absence, or a limited body, of administrative or judicial precedent may be time
consuming as well as costly for us to resolve and may impact the viability of our current businesses or restrict
our ability to grow our businesses in the future.

Further, there have been recent amendments to other laws in India, as well as new acts and regulations that have
been promulgated, including the Insider Trading Regulations and SEBI Listing Regulations. The impact of any or
all of the above changes to Indian legislation on our business cannot be fully determined at this time. Uncertainty
in the applicability, interpretation, or implementation of any amendment to governing law, regulation or policy may
impact the viability of our current business or restrict our ability to grow our business in the future. Further, if we
are affected, directly or indirectly, by the application or interpretation of any provision of such laws and regulations
or any related proceedings or are required to bear any costs in order to comply with such provisions or to defend
such proceedings, our business and financial performance may be adversely affected.

If inflation were to rise in India, we might not be able to increase the prices of our services at a proportional rate
thereby reducing our margins.

Inflation rates in India have been volatile in recent years, and such volatility may continue in the future. India has
experienced high inflation in the recent past. Increased inflation may lead to higher living costs and various
expenses for borrowers, resulting in reduced free cash flow for their loan repayments which may lead to higher
delinquencies. Continued high inflation may also lead to slow down in our business and resulting profitability and
cash flows. Increased inflation can contribute to an increase in interest rates and increased costs to our business.
High fluctuations in inflation rates may make it more difficult for us to accurately estimate or control our costs.
Any increase in inflation in India can increase our expenses, which we may not be able to adequately pass on to our
borrowers, whether entirely or in part, and may adversely affect our business and financial condition. In particular,
we might not be able to reduce our costs or entirely offset any increases in costs. In such case, our business, results
of operations, cash flows and financial condition may be adversely affected. Further, the Government has previously
initiated economic measures to combat high inflation rates, and it is unclear whether these measures will remain in
effect. There can be no assurance that Indian inflation levels will not worsen in the future.

Financial instability in other countries may cause increased volatility in Indian financial markets.

The Indian market and the Indian economy are influenced by economic and market conditions in other countries,
particularly emerging market countries in Asia. Although economic conditions are different in each country,
investors’ reactions to developments in one country can have adverse effects on the securities of companies in other
countries, including India. A loss of investor confidence in the financial systems of other emerging markets may
cause increased volatility in Indian financial markets and, indirectly, in the Indian economy in general. Any
worldwide financial instability could also have a negative impact on the Indian economy. Financial disruptions may
occur again and could harm our business and our future financial performance.

Events such as the COVID-19 pandemic, the Russia-Ukraine war, and the current Middle East crisis (which can
potentially escalate as well) have significantly affected financial markets around the world. Any other global
economic developments or the perception that any of them could occur may continue to have an adverse effect on
global economic conditions and the stability of global financial markets, and may significantly reduce global market
liquidity and restrict the ability of key market participants to operate in certain financial markets. Any of these
factors could depress economic activity and restrict our access to capital, which could have an adverse effect on our
business, financial condition, cash flows and results of operations.
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Companies operating in India are subject to a variety of taxes and surcharges.

Tax and other levies imposed by the central and state governments in India that affect our tax liability include
central and state taxes and other levies, income tax, value added tax, turnover tax, service tax, stamp duty, tax on
dividends and other special taxes and surcharges which are introduced on a temporary or permanent basis from time
to time. Moreover, the central and state tax scheme in India is extensive and subject to change from time to time.
The central or state government may in the future increase the corporate income tax it imposes. Any such future
increases or amendments may affect the overall tax efficiency of companies operating in India and may result in
significant additional taxes becoming payable. Additional tax exposure could adversely affect our business, cash
flows and results of operations.

52. A decline in India’s foreign exchange reserves may affect liquidity and interest rates in the Indian economy,

53.

which could adversely impact us.

A decline in India's foreign exchange reserves could affect the liquidity and result in higher interest rates in
the Indian economy, which could adversely affect our business, future financial performance, results of
operations and financial condition.

There may be less information available about the companies listed on the Indian securities markets compared
with information that would be available if we were listed on securities markets in certain other countries.

There may be differences between the level of regulation and monitoring of the Indian securities markets and
the activities of investors, brokers and other participants in India and that in the markets in the United States and
certain other countries. SEBI is responsible for ensuring and improving disclosure and other regulatory standards
for the Indian securities markets. SEBI has issued regulations and guidelines on disclosure requirements, insider
trading and other matters. There may, however, be less publicly available information about companies listed on
an Indian stock exchange compared with information that would be available if that company was listed on a
securities market in certain other countries. As a result, investors may have access to less information about the
business, results of operations, cash flows and financial conditions, and those of the competitors that are listed
on BSE and NSE and other stock exchanges in India on an on-going basis than you may find in the case of companies
subject to reporting requirements of other more developed countries.

Risks relating to the Issue and NCDs

54.

55.

The NCD Holders may not be able to recover, on a timely basis or at all, the full value of the outstanding amounts
and/or the interest accrued thereon in connection with the NCDs. Failure or delay in recovering the expected
value from a sale or disposition of the assets charged as security in connection with the NCDs could expose the
holders to a potential loss.

Our ability to pay interest accrued on the NCDs and/or the principal amount outstanding from time to time in
connection therewith would be subject to various factors, inter alia, including our financial condition, profitability
and the general economic conditions in India and in the global financial markets. We cannot assure you that we
would be able to repay the principal amount outstanding from time to time on the NCDs and/or the interest accrued
thereon in a timely manner or at all. Although our Company will create appropriate security in favor of the Debenture
Trustee for the NCD Holders on the assets adequate to ensure security cover of 1.10 times of the outstanding principal
and interest for the NCDs, and it will be the duty of the Debenture Trustee to monitor that the security is maintained,
however, the realisable value of the assets charged as security, when liquidated, may be lower than the outstanding
principal and/or interest accrued thereon in connection with the NCDs and shall depend on the market scenario
prevalent at the time of the enforcement of the security. A failure or delay in recovering the expected value from a
sale or disposition of the assets charged as security in connection with the NCDs could expose you to a potential
loss.

There may be no active market for the NCDs on the platform of the Stock Exchanges. As a result, the liquidity
and market prices of the NCDs may fail to develop and may accordingly be adversely affected.

There can be no assurance that an active market for the NCDs will develop. If an active market for the NCDs fails
to develop or be sustained, the liquidity and market prices of the NCDs may be adversely affected. The market price
of the NCDs would depend on various factors, inter alia, including (i) the interest rate on similar securities available
in the market and the general interest rate scenario in the country, (ii) the market price of our Equity Shares, (iii) the
market for listed debt securities, (iv) general economic conditions, and (v) our financial performance, growth
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prospects and results of operations. The aforementioned factors may adversely affect the liquidity and market price
of the NCDs, which may trade at a discount to the price at which you purchase the NCDs and/or be relatively illiquid.

There may be a delay in making refund/ unblocking of funds to Applicants.

We cannot assure you that the monies refundable to you, on account of (i) withdrawal of your Applications, (ii) our
failure to receive minimum subscription in connection with the Base Issue, (iii) withdrawal of the Issue, or (iv) failure
to obtain the final approval from the Stock Exchange for listing of the NCDs, will be refunded to you in a timely
manner. We, however, shall refund / unblock such monies, with the interest due and payable thereon as prescribed
under applicable statutory and/or regulatory provisions.

In the event of bankruptcy, liquidation or winding-up, there may not be sufficient assets remaining to pay
amounts due on the NCDs.

The NCDs will be subordinated to certain liabilities preferred by law such as the claims of the Government on
account of taxes, and certain liabilities incurred in the ordinary course of our business. In the event of bankruptcy,
liquidation or winding-up, our Company’s assets will be available to pay obligations on the NCDs only after all of
those liabilities that rank senior to these NCDs have been paid as per Section 327 of the Companies Act, 2013. In
the event of bankruptcy, liquidation or winding-up, there may not be sufficient assets remaining to pay amounts due
on the NCDs.

There is no assurance that the NCDs issued pursuant to the Issue will be listed on Stock Exchange in a timely
manner, or at all.

In accordance with Indian law and practice, permissions for listing and trading of the NCDs issued pursuant to the
Issue will not be granted until after the NCDs have been issued and allotted. Approval for listing and trading will
require all relevant documents to be submitted and carrying out of necessary procedures with the stock exchange.
There could be a failure or delay in listing the NCDs on the Stock Exchange for reasons unforeseen. If permission
to deal in and for an official quotation of the NCDs is not granted by the stock exchange, our Company will forthwith
repay, with interest, all monies received from the Applicants in accordance with prevailing law in this context, and
pursuant to this Draft Prospectus. There is no assurance that the NCDs issued pursuant to the Issue will be listed on
stock exchange in a timely manner, or at all.

You may be subject to taxes arising on the sale of the NCDs.

Sale of NCDs by any holder may give rise to tax liability, as discussed in section entitled “Statement of Possible Tax
Benefits” on page 76.

Legal investment considerations may restrict certain investment.

The investment activities of certain investors are subject to investment laws and regulations, or review or regulation
by certain authorities. Each potential investor should consult its legal advisers to determine whether and to what
extent (i) the NCDs are legal investments for it, (ii) the NCDs can be used as collateral for various types of borrowing
and (iii) other restrictions apply to its purchase or pledge of the NCDs.

Trading of the NCDs may be limited by temporary exchange closures, broker defaults, settlement delays, strikes
by brokerage firm employees and disputes.

The Indian Stock Exchanges have experienced temporary exchange closures, broker defaults, settlement delays and
strikes by brokerage firm employees. In addition, the governing bodies of the Indian Stock Exchanges have from
time to time imposed restrictions on trading in certain securities, limitations on price movements and margin
requirements. Furthermore, from time to time, disputes have occurred between listed companies and Stock
Exchanges and other regulatory bodies, which in some cases may have had a negative effect on market sentiment.

Repayment is subject to the credit risk of the Company.
Potential investors should be aware that receipt of the principal amount, (i.e., the redemption amount), interest
thereon and any other amounts that may be due in respect of the NCDs is subject to the credit risk of the Company

whereby the Investors may or may not recover all or part of the funds in case of default by the Company. Potential
investors assume the risk that the Company will not be able to satisfy their obligations under the NCDs. In the event
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that bankruptcy proceedings or composition, scheme of arrangement or similar proceedings to avert bankruptcy are
instituted by or against the Issuer, the payment of sums due on the NCDs may not be made or may be substantially
reduced or delayed.

On December 14, 2021, the RBI issued a circular titled “Prompt Corrective Action (PCA) Framework for Non-
Banking Financial Companies (NBFCs)” (“PCA Framework Circular”) to enable supervisory intervention and
implement remedial measures of NBFCs, including NBFC-NDs, on the basis of tracking certain indicators such as
CRAR, Tier | Capital Ratio and Net NPA Ratio.

The NCDs are subject to the risk of change in law.

The terms and conditions of the NCDs are based on Indian law in effect as of the date of issue of the relevant NCDs.
No assurance can be given as to the impact of any possible judicial decision or change to Indian law or administrative
practice after the date of issue of the relevant NCDs and any such change could materially and adversely impact the
value of any NCDs affected by it.

The Issuer, being a NBFC is not required to maintain a debenture redemption reserve (“DRR”)
Pursuant to a Ministry of Corporate Affairs notification dated August 16, 2019 amending Section 71 of the
Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 18 (7) of the Companies (Share Capital and Debentures) Rules, 2014, a NBFC is not

required to maintain DRR for debentures issued through a public issue. Hence, investors shall not have the benefit
of reserve funds to cover the re-payment of the principal and interest on the NCDs.
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SECTION 111 - INTRODUCTION
GENERAL INFORMATION

Our Company, Satin Creditcare Network Limited, was incorporated on October 16, 1990 in New Delhi under the
provisions of the Companies Act 1956, as amended, as a private limited company under the name ‘Satin Leasing and
Finance Private Limited’ with the Registrar of Companies, Delhi & Haryana (“RoC”). During the year 1994, our
Company was converted into a public limited company, following which our name was changed to ‘Satin Leasing and
Finance Limited’, and a fresh certificate of incorporation was issued on July 1, 1994. Pursuant to a certificate of
registration issued by RBI on December 4, 1998, our Company was registered as a Non-Banking Financial Company
(“NBFC”). Later, the name of our Company was changed to ‘Satin Creditcare Network Limited’, and a fresh certificate
of incorporation was issued on April 10, 2000 by RoC. Further, RBI also issued a certificate of registration to the
Company in the name of Satin Creditcare Network Limited on November 2, 2000 as NBFC. Further, our Company was
issued a fresh certificate of registration by the RBI on February 4, 2009, enabling it to carry on the business of an NBFC
without accepting public deposits. Subsequently, in year 2013, our Company was converted to an NBFC-Micro Finance
Institution (“NBFC-MFI”), and a fresh certificate of registration bearing registration number B-14.01394 was issued by
the RBI on November 6, 2013 under Section 45-1A of the RBI Act, 1934, to carry on the business of non-banking financial
institution without accepting public deposits.

Our Company, currently registered as an NBFC-MFI, is classified as a Middle Layer NBFC which is engaged in the
business of providing financial services.

For further details in relation to the changes in our name, registered office, constitution, and registration with the RBI,
see “History and Main Objects” on page 164.

Registration:

CIN: L65991DL1990PLC041796

LEI: 335800V8FIS7PR5S3K73

RBI registration number: B-14.01394
Permanent Account Number: AAACS0044B

Registered Office and Corporate Office

Registered Office: 5" Floor, Kundan Bhawan,
Azadpur Commercial Complex,

Azadpur, North West, Delhi-110033, India
Tel: +91 124 4715400

Corporate Office:

Plot No. 492, Udyog Vihar,

Phase-I11, Gurugram-122016, Haryana, India

Tel: +91 124 4715400

Website: www.satincreditcare.com

Email: secretarial@satincreditcare.com

For further details regarding changes to our Registered Office, see “History and Main Objects” on page 164.

Registrar of Companies, Delhi & Haryana
Registrar of Companies, 4™ Floor, IFCI Tower,
61, Nehru Place, New Delhi — 110019

Tel. No.: 011-26235707, 26235708, 26235709
E-mail: roc.delhi@mca.gov.in

Liability of the members of the Company

Limited by shares
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Chief Financial Officer

Rakesh Sachdeva

Address: Plot No. 492, Udyog Vihar,
Phase-I11, Gurugram-122016,

Haryana, India

Tel No: +91 124 4715400

Email: rakesh.sachdeva@satincreditcare.com

Company Secretary and Chief Compliance Officer

Vikas Gupta

Address: Plot No. 492,

Udyog Vihar, Phase — IlI,

Gurugram, Haryana-122016

Tel No: +91 124-4715400

Email: secretarial @satincreditcare.com

Investors may contact the Registrar to the Issue or our Company Secretary and Chief Compliance Officer in case of any
pre-Issue or post-Issue related issues such as non-receipt of Allotment Advice, demat credit of allotted NCDs, refunds,
transfers, etc. as the case may be.

Lead Manager

IJM FINANCIAL

JM Financial Limited

7% Floor, Cnergy

Appasaheb Marathe Marg,

Prabhadevi Mumbai — 400 025

Tel: +91 22 6630 3030

Fax: +91 22 6630 3330

E-mail: satin.ncd2024@jmfl.com

Investor Grievance Email: grievance.ibd@jmfl.com
Website: www.jmfl.com

Contact Person: Prachee Dhuri

Compliance Officer: Sunny Shah

SEBI Registration Number: INM000010361
CIN: L67120MH1986PLC038784

Debenture Trustee

=10

\S)
CATALYST

CIN: U72999PN1997PLC110262

Catalyst Trusteeship Limited

GDA House, Plot No. 85,

Bhusari Colony (Right), Kothrud,

Pune — 411 038, Maharashtra

Tel: 491 22 4922 0555

Fax: +91 22 4922 0505

Email: ComplianceCTL-Mumbai@ctltrustee.com
Investor Grievance Email: grievance@ctltrustee.com
Website: https://catalysttrustee.com/

Contact Person: Deesha Trivedi

Compliance Officer: Kalyani Pandey

SEBI Registration No: IND000000034

CIN: U74999PN1997PLC110262
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Catalyst Trusteeship Limited under regulation 8 of SEBI NCS Regulations, by its letter dated November 10, 2023 has
given its consent for its appointment as Debenture Trustee to the Issue (hereinafter referred to as “Trustees”). A copy of
letter from Catalyst Trusteeship Limited conveying their consent to act as Trustees for the Debenture holders and for its
name to be included in the Draft Prospectus and the Prospectus and in all the subsequent periodical communications sent
to the holders of the NCDs issued pursuant to this Issue is annexed as Annexure B.

All the rights and remedies of the Debenture Holders under the Issue shall vest in and shall be exercised by the appointed
Debenture Trustee for the Issue without having it referred to the Debenture Holders. All investors under the Issue are
deemed to have irrevocably given their authority and consent to the Debenture Trustee so appointed by our Company for
the Issue to act as their trustee and for doing such acts, deeds, matters, and things in respect of or relating to the Debenture
Holders as the Debenture Trustee may in his absolute direction deem necessary or require to be done in the interest of
Debenture Holders and signing such documents to carry out their duty in such capacity.

Any payment by our Company to the Debenture Holders/Debenture Trustee, as the case may be, shall, from the time of
making such payment, completely and irrevocably discharge our Company from any liability to the Debenture Holders
to that extent. For details on the terms of the Debenture Trust Deed, please see “Issue Related Information” on page 256.

Registrar to the Issue

A KFINTECH

ETPLRRIHCE THAMEFONMATION

Kfin Technologies Limited

(formerly known as KFin Technologies Private Limited)
Selenium Tower B, Plot No — 31 & 32,

Financial District, Nanakramguda, Serilingampally,
Hyderabad — 500 032, Telangana, India

Tel: +91 40 6716 2222

Fax: +91 40 6716 1563

Email: scnl.ipo@kfintech.com

Investor Grievance mail: einward.ris@kfintech.com
Website: www.kfintech.com

Contact Person: M. Murali Krishna

SEBI Registration Number: INR000000221

CIN: L72400TG2017PLC117649

Kfin Technologies Limited (formerly KFin Technologies Private Limited), has vide its letter dated January 12, 2024
given its consent for its appointment as Registrar to the Issue and for its name to be included in the Draft Prospectus and
the Prospectus and in all the subsequent periodical communications sent to the holders of the Debentures issued pursuant
to the Issue.

Investors may contact the Registrar to the Issue or our Company Secretary and Chief Compliance Officer in case of any
pre-Issue or post-Issue related issues such as non-receipt of Allotment Advice, demat credit of allotted NCDs, refunds,
unblocking, transfers, etc. as the case may be.

All grievances relating to the Issue may be addressed to the Registrar to the Issue, giving full details such as name,
Application Form number, address of the Applicant, Permanent Account Number, number of NCDs applied for, Series
of NCDs applied for, amount paid on application, Depository Participant name and client identification number, and the
collection centre of the Members of the Consortium where the Application was submitted and ASBA Account number
(for Bidders other than Retail Individual Investors bidding through the UPI Mechanism) in which the amount equivalent
to the Bid Amount was blocked or UPI ID in case of Retail Individual Investors bidding through the UPI mechanism.
Further, the Bidder shall enclose the Acknowledgement Slip or provide the acknowledgement number received from the
Designated Intermediaries in addition to the documents/information mentioned hereinabove.

All grievances relating to the ASBA process may be addressed to the Registrar to the Issue with a copy to either (a) the
relevant Designated Branch of the SCSB where the Application Form was submitted by the ASBA Applicant, or (b) the
concerned Member of the Syndicate and the relevant Designated Branch of the SCSB in the event of an Application
submitted by an ASBA Applicant at any of the Syndicate ASBA Centres, giving full details such as name, address of
Applicant, Application Form number, series applied for, number of NCDs applied for, amount blocked on Application.
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All grievances related to the UPI process may be addressed to the Stock Exchange, which shall be responsible for
addressing investor grievances arising from applications submitted online through the App based/ web interface platform
of stock exchange or through their Trading Members. The intermediaries shall be responsible for addressing any investor
grievances arising from the applications uploaded by them in respect of quantity, price or any other data entry or other
errors made by them.

All grievances arising out of Applications for the NCDs made through the Online Stock Exchange Mechanism or through
Trading Members of the Stock Exchange may be addressed directly to the relevant Stock Exchange.

Consortium member to the Issue

As specified in Prospectus.

Bankers to the Issue

Public Issue Account Bank, Sponsor Bank and Refund Bank
As specified in Prospectus.

Statutory Auditor

SS Kothari Mehta & Co.*

Chartered Accountants

Address: Plot No. 68, First floor, Okhla,

Phase-111, New Delhi-110020

Tel: +91 11 4670 8888

Email: delhi@sskmin.com

Website: https://sskmin.com/

Firm Registration Number: 000756N

Peer Review Number: 014441

Contact Person: Naveen Aggarwal

* The Auditor in the process of conversion from partnership firm to LLP and the name of firm has changed from “SS
Kothari Mehta & Company” to “SS Kothari Mehta & Co.”. Till the time of approval for change from partnership firm
to LLP, the changed name of the firm is “ SS Kothari Mehta & Co.

For change in statutory auditors in last three financial years and current financial year, please see ‘Other Regulatory and
Statutory Disclosures’ on page 231.

Credit Rating Agency

@ icrA

ICRA Limited

Electric Mansion, 3" Floor,
Appasaheb Marathe Marg,
Prabhadevi, Mumbai, - 400025
Maharashtra, India

Tel: +91 22 6114 3406

Fax: +91 22 2433 1390

Email: shivakumar@icraindia.com
Website: www.icra.in

Contact Person: L. Shivakumar
SEBI Registration No: IN/CRA/008/15

Credit Rating and Rationale
The NCDs proposed to be issued under the Issue have been rated [ICRA]A (Stable) for an amount of X 20,000 lakh by

ICRA Limited vide their rating letter dated December 21, 2023 and was revalidated vide letter dated January 16, 2024.
Instruments with this rating are considered to have adequate degree of safety regarding timely servicing of financial

52



obligations. Such instruments carry low credit risk. Rating given by ICRA Limited is valid as on the date of this Draft
Prospectus and shall remain valid on date of issue and allotment of NCDs and the listing of the NCDs on Stock Exchange
unless withdrawn. The rating is not a recommendation to buy, sell or hold the rated instrument and ICRA Limited does
not comment on the market price or suitability for any particular investor and investors should take their own decisions.
The rating may be subject to revision or withdrawal at any time by the assigning rating agency and each rating should be
evaluated independently of any other rating. The rating agency has a right to suspend or withdraw the rating at any time
on the basis of factors such as new information. In case of any change in credit ratings till the listing of NCDs, our
Company will inform the investors through public notices/ advertisements in all those newspapers in which pre issue
advertisement has been given. For the rating letter, rationale, revalidation letter and press release for these ratings, see
“Annexure A”.

Disclaimer Statement of ICRA Limited

ICRA ratings should not be treated as recommendation to buy, sell or hold the rated debt instruments. ICRA ratings are
subject to a process of surveillance, which may lead to revision in ratings. An ICRA rating is a symbolic indicator of
ICRA’s current opinion on the relative capability of the issuer concerned to timely service debts and obligations, with
reference to the instrument rated. Please visit our website www.icra.in or contact any ICRA office for the latest
information on ICRA ratings outstanding. All information contained herein has been obtained by ICRA from sources
believed by it to be accurate and reliable, including the rated issuer. ICRA however has not conducted any audit of the
rated issuer or of the information provided by it. While reasonable care has been taken to ensure that the information
herein is true, such information is provided ‘as is’ without any warranty of any kind, and ICRA in particular, makes no
representation or warranty, express or implied, as to the accuracy, timeliness or completeness of any such information.
Also, ICRA or any of its group companies may have provided services other than rating to the issuer rated. All information
contained herein must be construed solely as statements of opinion, and ICRA shall not be liable for any losses incurred
by users from any use of this publication or its contents.

Legal Counsel to the Issue

7N\ KHAITAN
,/ &CO ADNOCATES

Khaitan & Co

One World Centre

13"& 10% Floor, Tower 1C,
Senapati Bapat Marg,
Mumbai — 400 013
Maharashtra, India

Tel: +91 22 6636 5000

Impersonation

As a matter of abundant precaution, attention of the investors is specifically drawn to the provisions of sub-Section (1)
of Section 38 of the Companies Act, 2013, relating to punishment for fictitious applications. Section 38(1) of the
Companies Act, 2013 provides that:

“Any person who —

(a) makes or abets making of an application in a fictitious name to a company for acquiring, or subscribing for, its
securities; or

(b) makes or abets making of multiple applications to a company in different names or in different combinations of his
name or surname for acquiring or subscribing for its securities; or

(c) otherwise induces directly or indirectly a company to allot, or register any transfer of, securities to him, or to any
other person in a fictitious name,

shall be liable for action under Section 447.”

The liability prescribed under Section 447 of the Companies Act 2013 for fraud involving an amount of at least X 10 lakh
or 1.00% of the turnover of our Company, whichever is lower, includes imprisonment for a term which shall not be less
than six months extending up to 10 years (provided that where the fraud involves public interest, such term shall not be
less than three years) and fine of an amount not less than the amount involved in the fraud, extending up to three times
of such amount. In case the fraud involves (i) an amount which is less than X 10 lakh or 1.00% of the turnover of our
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Company, whichever is lower; and (ii) does not involve public interest, then such fraud is punishable with an
imprisonment for a term extending up to five years or a fine of an amount extending up to X 50 lakh or with both.

Recovery Expense Fund

Our Company has created a recovery expense fund in the manner as specified by SEBI in SEBI Debenture Trustee Master
Circular as amended from time to time and Regulation 11 of SEBI NCS Regulations with the Designated Stock Exchange
and have informed the Debenture Trustee regarding the creation of such fund. The Recovery expense fund may be utilized
by Debenture Trustee, in the event of default by our Company under the terms of the Debenture Trust Deed, and the
Applicable Laws, for taking appropriate legal action to enforce the security.

Inter-se allocation of Responsibility

The following table sets forth the responsibilities for various activities by the Lead Manager:

Sr. No. Activities

1. Due diligence of Company’s operations/ management/ business plans/ legal etc.

e Drafting of the offering document.

e Coordination with the Stock Exchange for in-principle approval

Structuring of various issuance options with relative components and formalities etc.

Co-ordination with intermediaries for their deliverables and co-ordination with lawyers for legal opinion

Drafting and approval of statutory advertisement.

Appointment of other intermediaries viz., Registrar, Debenture Trustee, Consortium/Syndicate Members,

printer, advertising agency and Public Issue Bank, Refund Bank and Sponsor Bank.

6. Coordination with the printer for designing and finalization of Issue Documents, Application Form including

memorandum containing salient features of the Issue Documents.

7. Drafting and approval of all publicity material (excluding statutory advertisement as mentioned in 4 above)

including print and online advertisement, outdoor advertisement including brochures, banners, hoardings etc.

8. Preparation of road show presentation, FAQs.

9. Marketing strategy which will cover, inter alia:

e Deciding on the quantum of the Issue material and follow-up on distribution of publicity and Issue
material including Application Forms, Issue Documents, posters, banners, etc.

e Finalise collection centres;

e Finalisation of list and allocation of institutional investors for one on one meetings.

10. Domestic institutions/banks/mutual funds marketing strategy:

e Finalize the list and division of investors for one on one meetings, institutional allocation

11. Non-institutional marketing strategy which will cover, inter alia:

e Finalize media, marketing and public relation strategy and publicity budget;

e Finalize centers for holding conferences for brokers, etc.

12. Coordination with the Stock Exchange for use of the bidding software

13. Coordination for security creation by way of execution of Debenture Trust Deed

14. Post-issue activities including:

e Co-ordination with Bankers to the Issue for management of Public Issue Account(s), Refund Account

and any other account

Coordinate with Registrar for collection of Application Forms by ASBA banks; and

Allotment resolution

Drafting and finalization of post issue stationery items like, allotment and refund advice, etc.;

Coordination for generation of ISINs;

Corporate action for dematerialized credit /delivery of securities;

Coordinating approval for listing and trading of securities; and

Redressal of investor grievances in relation to post issue activities.

g win

15.

Underwriting
This Issue is not underwritten.

Arrangers to the Issue
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There are no arrangers to the Issue.
Guarantor to the Issue

There are no guarantors to the Issue.
Minimum subscription

In terms of the SEBI NCS Regulations, for an issuer undertaking a public issue of debt securities the minimum
subscription for public issue of debt securities shall be 75% of the Base Issue Size. If our Company does not receive the
minimum subscription of 75% of Base Issue Size, prior to the Issue Closing Date the entire Application Amount shall be
unblocked in the relevant ASBA Account(s) of the Applicants within 8 Working Days from the Issue Closing Date or
such time as may be specified by SEBI. In the event, there is a delay by our Company in unblocking the aforesaid ASBA
Account within the prescribed time limit our Company will become liable to refund the Application Amount along with
interest at the rate of 15 (fifteen) percent per annum for the delayed period.

Under Section 39(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 11(2) of the Companies (Prospectus and Allotment of
Securities) Rules, 2014 if the stated minimum subscription amount is not received within the specified period, the
application money received is to be credited only to the bank account from which the subscription amount was remitted.
To the extent possible, where the required information for making such refunds is available with our Company and/or
Registrar, refunds will be made to the account prescribed. However, where our Company and/or Registrar does not have
the necessary information for making such refunds, our Company and/or Registrar will follow the guidelines prescribed
by SEBI in this regard included in the SEBI Master Circular.

Designated Intermediaries
Self-Certified Syndicate Bank

The list of banks that have been notified by SEBI to act as the SCSBs for the ASBA and UPI Mechanism process is
provided on the website of SEBI at https://www.sebi.gov.in/sebiweb/other/OtherAction.do?doRecognised=yesand
https://sebi.gov.in/sebiweb/other/OtherAction.do?doRecognisedFpi=yes&intmld=40 respectively, as updated from time
to time. For a list of branches of the SCSBs named by the respective SCSBs to receive the ASBA Forms and UPI
Mechanism through app/web interface from the Designated Intermediaries, refer to the above-mentioned links.

In relation to Bids submitted under the ASBA process to a member of the Syndicate, the list of branches of the SCSBs at
the Specified Locations named by the respective SCSBs to receive deposits of the ASBA Forms from the Members of
the Syndicate is available on the website of SEBI at
https://www.sebi.gov.in/sebiweb/other/OtherAction.do?doRecognised=yesand updated from time to time. For more
information on such branches collecting Bid cum Application Forms from the Syndicate at Specified Locations, see the
website of SEBI at https://www.sebi.gov.in/sebiweb/other/OtherAction.do?doRecognised=yes or any such other website
as may be prescribed by SEBI from time to time.

Syndicate SCSB Branches

In relation to Applications submitted to a member of the Syndicate or the Trading Members of the Stock Exchange only
in the Specified Cities (Mumbai, Chennai, Kolkata, Delhi, Ahmedabad, Rajkot, Jaipur, Bengaluru, Hyderabad, Pune,
Vadodara and Surat), the list of branches of the SCSBs at the Specified Locations named by the respective SCSBs to
receive deposits of Application Forms from the Members of the Syndicate is available on the website of the SEBI
(https://www.sebi.gov.in/sebiweb/other/OtherAction.do?doRecognised=yes) and updated from time to time or any such
other website as may be prescribed by SEBI from time to time. For more information on such branches collecting
Application Forms from the Syndicate at Specified Locations, see the website of the SEBI
(https://www.sebi.gov.in/sebiweb/other/OtherAction.do?doRecognised=yes) as updated from time to time or any such
other website as may be prescribed by SEBI from time to time.

Broker Centres/ Designated CDP Locations/ Designated RTA Locations
In accordance with the RTA Master Circular and the SEBI Master Circular, Applicants can submit the Application Forms
with the Registered Brokers at the Broker Centres, CDPs at the Designated CDP Locations or the RTAs at the Designated

RTA Locations, respective lists of which, including details such as address and telephone number, are available at the
website of the Stock Exchange at www.bseindia.com.
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The list of the Registered Brokers, RTAs and CDPs, eligible to accept Applications in the Issue, including details such
as postal address, telephone number and email address, are provided on the websites of the BSE at
http://www.bseindia.com/Markets/Publiclssues/brokercentres_new.aspx?expandable=3 for Registered Brokers and
http://www.bseindia.com/Static/Markets/Publiclssues/RtaDp.aspx?expandable=6 for RTAs and CDPs, as updated from
time to time.

The list of branches of the SCSBs at the Broker Centres, named by the respective SCSBs to receive deposits of the
Application Forms from the Registered Brokers will be available on the website of the SEBI (www.sebi.gov.in) and
updated from time to time.

Utilisation of Issue proceeds

For details on utilisation of Issue proceeds please see, “Objects of the Issue” beginning on page 73.

Issue Programme*

ISSUE OPENS ON As specified in the Prospectus

ISSUE CLOSES ON As specified in the Prospectus

PAY IN DATE Application Date. The entire Application Amount is payable on Application

DEEMED DATE OF | The date on which the NCD Public Issuance Committee approves the Allotment of the
ALLOTMENT NCDs for the Issue or such date as may be determined by the Board of Directors/ or the

NCD Public Issuance Committee thereof and notified to the Designated Stock Exchange.
The actual Allotment of NCDs may take place on a date other than the Deemed Date of
Allotment. All benefits relating to the NCDs including interest on NCDs shall be available
to the Debenture Holders from the Deemed Date of Allotment.

*This Issue shall remain open for subscription on Working Days from 10:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m. (Indian Standard Time) during the
period indicated above, except that this Issue may close on such earlier date or extended date (subject to a minimum period of three
Working Days and a maximum period of ten Working Days from the date of opening of the Issue and subject to not exceeding thirty
days from the date of filing the Prospectus with RoC) as may be decided by the Board of Directors or NCD Public Issuance Committee
of our Company, subject to compliance with Regulation 33A of the SEBI NCS Regulations. In the event of an early closure or
extension of this Issue, our Company shall ensure that notice of the same is provided to the prospective investors through an
advertisement in all the newspapers in which pre-issue advertisement for opening of this Issue has been given on or before such
earlier or initial date of Issue closure. Application Forms for this Issue will be accepted only from 10:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m. (Indian
Standard Time) On the Issue Closing Date, the Application Forms will be accepted only between 10:00 a.m. and 3:00 p.m. (Indian
Standard Time) and uploaded until 5:00 p.m. or such extended time as may be permitted by the Stock Exchange. Further, pending
mandate requests for bids placed on the last day of bidding will be validated by 5:00 p.m. (Indian Standard Time) on one Working
Day post the Issue Closing Date. For further details please see “General Information” on page 49.

Applications Forms for the Issue will be accepted only from 10:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m. (Indian Standard Time) (“Bidding Period”),
during the Issue Period as mentioned above on all days between Monday and Friday (both inclusive barring public holiday) (a) by
the Designated Intermediaries at the Bidding Centres, or (b) by the SCSBs directly at the Designated Branches of the SCSBs. On the
Issue Closing Date, Application Forms will be accepted only between 10:00 a.m. to 3:00 p.m. (Indian Standard Time) and uploaded
until 5:00 p.m. (Indian Standard Time) or such extended time as may be permitted by the Stock Exchange. It is clarified that the
Applications not uploaded on the Stock Exchange(s) Platform would be rejected. Further, pending mandate requests for bids placed
on the last day of bidding will be validated by 5:00 p.m. (Indian Standard Time) on one Working Day after the Issue Closing Date.

Due to limitation of time available for uploading the Applications on the Issue Closing Date, Applicants are advised to submit their
Application Forms one day prior to the Issue Closing Date and, no later than 3.00 p.m. (Indian Standard Time) on the Issue Closing
Date. Applicants are cautioned that in the event a large number of Applications are received on the Issue Closing Date, there may
be some Applications which are not uploaded due to lack of sufficient time to upload. Such Applications that cannot be uploaded will
not be considered for allocation under the Issue. Neither our Company, nor the Lead Manager, nor any Member of the Syndicate,
Registered Brokers at the Broker Centres, CDPs at the Designated CDP Locations or the RTAs at the Designated RTA Locations or
designated branches of SCSBs are liable for any failure in uploading the Applications due to failure in any software/ hardware
systems or otherwise. As per the SEBI Master Circular, the allotment in this Issue is required to be made on the basis of date of
upload of each application into the electronic book of the Stock Exchange. However, from the date of oversubscription and thereafter,
the allotments will be made to the applicants on proportionate basis.
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CAPITAL STRUCTURE
Details of share capital

The share capital of our Company as on December 31, 2023 is set forth below:

Share Capital ®
AUTHORISED SHARE CAPITAL
12,50,00,000 equity shares of face value of ¥ 10 each 1,25,00,00,000
7,50,00,000 preference shares of face value of ¥ 10 each 75,00,00,000
Total Authorised Share Capital 2,00,00,00,000
ISSUED CAPITAL
11,05,96,245 equity shares of face value of ¥ 10 each 1,10,59,62,450
Total Issued Capital 1,10,59,62,450
SUBSCRIBED CAPITAL
11,05,95,861 equity shares of face value of X 10 each 1,10,59,58,610
Total Subscribed Capital 1,10,59,58,610
PAID-UP SHARE CAPITAL
11,04,70,965 equity shares of face value of X 10 each 1,10,47,09,650
Total Paid-Up Share Capital 1,10,47,09,650
Securities Premium Account (< in lakhs) 1,47,219.49

Note: There will be no change in the capital structure and securities premium account due to the issue and allotment of the NCDs.

Details of change in authorised share capital of our company for the preceding three financial years and current
financial year up to December 31, 2023:

The changes in the authorised share capital for the preceding three financial years and current financial year upto
December 31, 2023 is stated as follows:

Date of Change Particulars
(Annual General Meeting/

Extraordinary General Meeting)
June 17, 2020 (Postal Ballot) The Company increased its authorised share capital from T 140,00,00,000
(Rupees Fourteen Thousand lakhs) divided into 650,00,000 (Six Hundred and
Fifty lakhs) equity shares of Z 10 (Indian Rupees Ten only) each and 750,00,000
(Seven Hundred and Fifty lakhs) preference shares of 210 (Indian Rupees Ten
only) each to X 170,00,00,000 (Rupees Seventeen Thousand lakhs) consisting
of 950,00,000 (Nine Hundred and Fifty lakhs) equity shares of ¥10 (Indian
Rupees Ten only) each and 750,00,000 (Seven Hundred Fifty lakhs) preference
shares of 210 (Indian Rupees Ten only) each by addition of 3,00,00,000 (Three
Hundred lakhs) equity shares having a face value of ¥ 10 (Rupees Ten only)
each, of the aggregate nominal value of I 30,00,00,000 (Rupees Three
Thousand lakhs), on July 17, 2020.
December 31, 2021 The Company increased its authorised share capital from X 170,00,00,000
(Rupees Seventeen Thousand lakhs) divided into 950,00,000 (Nine Hundred
and Fifty lakhs) equity shares of 210 (Indian Rupees Ten only) each and
750,00,000 (Seven Hundred and Fifty lakhs) of *10 (Indian Rupees Ten only)
each to ¥ 180,00,00,000 (Rupees Eighteen Thousand lakhs) consisting of
1050,00,000 (One Thousand and Fifty lakhs) equity shares of %10 (Indian
Rupees Ten only) each and 750,00,000 (Seven Hundred Fifty lakhs) preference
shares of 210 (Indian Rupees Ten only) each by addition of 1,00,00,000 (One
Hundred lakhs) equity shares having a face value of ¥ 10 (Rupees Ten only)
each, of the aggregate nominal value of X 10,00,00,000 (Rupees One Thousand
lakhs), on December 31, 2021.
November 27, 2023 The Company increased its authorised share capital from X 180,00,00,000
(Rupees Eighteen Thousand lakhs) divided into 1,050,00,000 (One Thousand
and Fifty lakhs) equity shares of 210 (Indian Rupees Ten only) each and
750,00,000 (Seven Hundred and Fifty lakhs) preference shares of 10 (Indian
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Date of Change
(Annual General Meeting/
Extraordinary General Meeting)

Particulars

Rupees Ten only) to X 200,00,00,000 (Rupees Twenty Thousand lakhs)
consisting of 1250,00,000 (One Thousand Two Hundred and Fifty lakhs) equity
shares of 210 (Indian Rupees Ten only) each and 750,00,000 (Seven Hundred
Fifty lakhs) preference shares of 10 (Indian Rupees Ten only) each by addition
of 2,00,00,000 (Two Hundred lakhs) equity shares having a face value of T 10
(Rupees Ten only) each, of the aggregate nominal value of X 20,00,00,000
(Rupees Two Thousand lakhs), on November 27, 2023.

Issue of Equity Shares for consideration other than cash for the preceding three financial years and current
financial year up to December 31, 2023

No equity shares of the Company have been issued for consideration other than cash.

Changes in the Equity Share capital of our Company for the preceding three financial years and current financial
year up to December 31, 2023:

Except as stated below, there has been no change in Equity Share capital of our Company in preceding three financial
years and current financial year up to December 31, 2023.

Date of No. of Face | Issue |Considerat| Nature of Cumulative
Allotment Equity |Value| Price | ion (Cash, | Allotment No. of Equity Share | Equity Share
Shares | (in%) | (in) | other than Equity Capital Premium
cash etc.) Shares (in%) R in lakhs)
September 1, | 1,99,03,887| 10 | 60.00 Cash Rights issue 7,19,42,081| 71,94,20,810| 1,05,375.71
2020*
January 25, 30,76,916| 10 | 81.25 Cash Preferential 7,50,18,997| 75,01,89,970| 1,07,568.01
2022
September 28, 41,02,564| 10 | 81.25 Cash Conversion** | 7,91,21,561| 79,12,15,610| 1,10,491.09
2022
December 29, 41,02,564| 10 | 81.25 Cash Conversion*** | 8,32,24,125| 83,22,41,250| 1,13,414.17
2022
March 16, 20,00,000f 10 | 81.25 Cash Conversion** | 8,52,24,125| 85,22,41,250| 1,14,839.17
2023
June 13, 2023 32,82,052| 10 | 81.25 Cash Conversion** | 8,85,06,177| 88,50,61,770| 1,17,177.63
July 7, 2023 29,23,076] 10 | 81.25 Cash Conversion** | 9,14,29,253| 91,42,92,530| 1,19,260.32
July 21, 2023 82,05,128| 10 | 81.25 Cash Conversion*** | 9,96,34,381| 99,63,43,810| 1,25,106.47
December 19, |1,08,36,584| 10 |230.70 Cash Qualified 11,04,70,965(1,10,47,09,650| 1,49,022.82
2023 Institutions
Placement

* The Rights Issue Committee of the Board (“Rights Committee ) pursuant to resolution passed on September 1, 2020 has allotted 1,99,82,283 Equity
Shares to existing shareholders of the Company pursuant to a rights issue for a cash consideration of I 60 per Equity Share (including premium of
Z 50 per Equity Share) of which (i) % 15 (including premium of T 12.5 per Equity Shares) was paid as application money, (ii) % 30 (including premium
of % 25 per Equity Share) was paid as first call money, and (iii) balance Z 15 (including premium of 3 12.5 per Equity Shares) was paid as second
and final call money. Further, on account of non-payment of call money by certain shareholders of the Company, 78,396 partly paid up equity
shares of the Company comprising (i) 54,366 partly paid up equity shares on account of non-payment of first call money; and (ii) 24,030 partly paid
up equity shares on account of non-payment of second and final call money, were forfeited pursuant to resolutions passed by the Rights Committee
in their meetings held on June 9, 2021 and October 5, 2021, respectively. Accordingly, paid up equity share capital of our Company was reduced
from 7,20,20,477 Equity Shares of face value of % 10 each to 7,19,42,081 Equity Shares of face value of % 10 each, on account of aforesaid forfeiture

of 78,396 partly paid-up equity shares of our Company.

** Allotment of Equity Shares pursuant to conversion of fully convertible warrants which were issued and allotted on January 25, 2022 by way of
preferential allotment to promoter & promoter group entity namely, Trishashna Holdings & Investments Private Limited
***Allotment of Equity Shares pursuant to conversion of fully convertible warrants which were issued and allotted on January 25, 2022 by way of
preferential allotment person belonging to Non Promoter category namely, Florintree Ventures LLP.
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Shareholding pattern of our Company as on December 31, 2023

Table I - Summary Statement holding of specified securities

Category of | Nos. of |No. of fully | No.of | No.of | Total nos. [Shareholdin | Number of Voting Rights held in each No. of  [Shareholdin|No. of Locked ©n |No. of Shares [No. of equity
shareholder share- paid up Partly | shares |shares held |gasa % of class of securities Shares g,asa % shares pledged or | shares held
holders equity  |paid-up |underlyin total no. of Underlying | assuming otherwise in
shares held | equity g shares Outstanding full encumbered |materialized
shares (Depositor (calculated No of Voting Rights Total |convertible | conversion | No.(a) |Asa%| No. |Asa% form
held | Receipts as per Classeg: | Class Total asa | securities of of total of total
SCRR, 1957) | Equity eg:y % of | (including |convertible Shares Shares
Shares (A+B | Warrants) securities (as held held
+C) A percentage (b)
of diluted
share
capital)
(1) (1) (111) (1V) (V) (V1) (VII) (VI (1X) (X) (XI) (XII (X1 (XIV)
A | Promoter & 6| 3,98,30,753 0 0| 3,98,30,753 36.06 | 3,98,30,753 0] 3,98,30,753| 36.06 0 36.06 [1,23,07,692 | 30.90 0 0| 3,98,30,753
Promoter Group
B | Public 28,788 | 7,01,57,266 0 0| 7,01,57,266 63.51| 7,01,57,266 0| 7,01,57,266| 63.51 0 63.51| 1,23,07,69| 17.54| NA NA| 700,13,923
2
C | Non Promoter - 1 4,82,946 0 0 4,82,946 0.44 4,82,946 0 4,82,946 0.44 0 0.44 0 0| NA NA 4,82,946
Non Public
C1 |Shares 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.00 0 0.00 0 0| NA NA 0
Underlying DRs
C2 | Shares Held By 1 4,82,946 0 0 4,82,946 0.44 4,82,946 0 4,82,946 0.44 0 0.44 0 0| NA NA 4,82,946
Employee Trust
Total 28,795 ]11,04,70,965 0 01]11,04,70,965 100.00 |11,04,70,965 011,04,70,965 | 100.00 0 100.00 2,46,15,384 | 22.28 0 01]11,03,27,622

5
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Table 11 — Statement showing shareholding pattern of the Promoter and Promoter Group

Category & Name | Nos. of | No. of fully |Partly| No.of | Total nos. |Shareholdi | Number of VVoting Rights held in each No. of Shareholding, | Number of Locked | Number of | Number of
of the shareholders | share- | paidup | paid- | shares | shares held ng % class of securities Shares asa% in shares Shares equity
holders| equity up | underlyi calculated Underlying | assuming full pledged or | shares held
shares held | equity ng as per Outstanding | conversion of otherwise in
shares| Deposito SCRR, convertible convertible encumbered | demateriali
held ry 1957 As a No of Voting Rights Total | securities |[securities(asa| No.(a) [Asa% |No.| Asa | sedform
Receipts % of Class eg: | Clas Total asa% | (including | percentage of of total | (a) | % of
(A+B+C2) X Seg: of Warrants) | diluted share Shares total
y Total capital) held(b) Shares
Voting held(b)
Rights
D) () (V) V) (V1) (VI = [(VIII) Asa (1X) X) (XD)= (VI)+ (X1 (XI111) (XIV)
(IV)+(V)+ % of (X) As a % of
(V1) (A+B+C2) (A+B+C2)
Al |Indian
(a) | Individuals / 4] 17,23,671 0 0 17,23,671 1.56| 17,23,671 0| 17,23,671 1.56 0 1.56 0 0 0 0 17,23,671
Hindu Undivided
Family
Anureet HP Singh 1 7,27,474 0 0 7,271,474 0.66 7,271,474 0 7,271,474 0.66 0 0.66 0 0 0 0 7,27,474
Harbans Singh 1 4,06,402 0 0 4,06,402 0.37 4,06,402 0 4,06,402 0.37 0 0.37 0 0 0 0 4,06,402
(Deceased)
Satvinder Singh 1 3,85,703 0 0 3,85,703 0.35| 3,85,703 0| 3,85,703 0.35 0 0.35 0 0] 0 0 3,85,703
Neeti Singh 1 2,04,092 0 0 2,04,092 0.18] 2,04,092 0| 2,04,092 0.18 0 0.18 0 0] O 0 2,04,092
HP Singh 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
(b) | Central 0 0] 0] 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Government /
State
Government(s)
(c) |Financial 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 of O 0 0
Institutions /
Banks
(d) | Any Other 2| 3,81,07,082 0 0| 3,81,07,082 34.50|3,81,07,082 0]3,81,07,082| 34.50 0 34.50(1,23,07,692 32.30 0 0| 3,81,07,082
(Specify)
Bodies Corporate 2| 3,81,07,082 0 0| 3,81,07,082 34.50(3,81,07,082 0/3,81,07,082| 34.50 0 34.50{1,23,07,692| 3230 © 0| 3,81,07,082
Trishashna 1| 3,77,84,820 0 0| 3,77,84,820 34.20(3,77,84,820 0(3,77,84,820| 34.20 0 34.20(1,23,07,692| 3257 O 0| 3,77,84,820
Holdings &
Investments Private
Limited
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Category & Name | Nos. of | No. of fully |Partly| No.of | Total nos. |Shareholdi | Number of VVoting Rights held in each No. of Shareholding, | Number of Locked | Number of | Number of
of the shareholders | share- | paidup | paid- | shares | shares held ng % class of securities Shares asa% in shares Shares equity
holders| equity up | underlyi calculated Underlying | assuming full pledged or | shares held
shares held | equity ng as per Outstanding | conversion of otherwise in
shares| Deposito SCRR, convertible convertible encumbered | demateriali
held ry 1957 As a No of Voting Rights Total | securities |[securities(asa| No.(a) [Asa% |No.| Asa | sedform
Receipts % of Classeg: [Clas| Total |asa% | (including | percentage of of total | (a) | % of
(A+B+C2) X Seg: of Warrants) | diluted share Shares total
y Total capital) held(b) Shares
Voting held(b)
Rights
Wisteria Holdings 1 3,22,262 0 0 3,22,262 0.29| 3,22,262 0| 3,22,262 0.29 0 0.29 0 of O 0 3,22,262
& Investments
Private Limited
Sub Total (A)(1) 6] 3,98,30,753 0 0/ 3,98,30,753 36.063,98,30,753 0/3,98,30,753| 36.06 0 36.06{1,23,07,692| 3090 © 0| 3,98,30,753
A2 |Foreign
() |Individuals (Non- 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 of O 0 0
Resident
Individuals /
Foreign
Individuals)
(b) |Government 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
(c) | Institutions 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
(d) |Foreign Portfolio 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Investor
(e) |Any Other 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 of O 0 0
(Specify)
Sub Total (A)(2) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0f 0 0 0
Total Shareholding 6| 3,98,30,753 0] 0| 3,98,30,753 36.063,98,30,753 0]3,98,30,753| 36.06 0 36.06(1,23,07,692 30.90 0 0| 3,98,30,753
Of Promoter And
Promoter Group
(A)= (AD)+A)2)
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Table I111- Statement showing shareholding pattern of the Public shareholder

Category & |Nos. of | No. of fully | Partly | No. of | Total nos. |Sharehold | Number of Voting Rights held in each No. of Shareholdi | Number of Locked | Number of | Number Sub-
Name of the |shareh| paidup | paid- | shares [shares held| ing % class of securities Shares ng, asa % in shares Shares of equity |categorization
shareholders | olders equity up |underly calculated Underlying | assuming pledged or | shares of shares
shares held | equity | ing as per Dutstanding full otherwise | heldin | Shareholding
shares | Deposit SCRR, convertible | conversion encumbered |dematerial [(No. of shares)
held ory 1957 As a securities of ised form under
Receipt % of No of Voting Rights Total as a| (including |convertible| No.(a) |Asa%| No. | Asa Sub-category
S (A+B+C2)| Class |Class| Total % of |Warrants) | securities of total | (a) | % of (i) | (i) | (i)
eg: X eg:y Total (asa Shares total
Voting percentage held Share
Rights of diluted (b) s held
share (b)
capital)
m (D) (1V) N | v | v = vl Asa (1X) (X) (XN)= (X1) (X11) (XIV) (XV)
(V)+(V)+ | % of (VIN+(X)
()] (A+B+C2) As a % of
(A+B+C2)

B1 Institutions (Domestic)

() |Mutual Fund 1] 17,33,853 0 0] 17,33,853 1.57| 17,33,853 0| 17,33,853 1.57 0 1.57 0 O[NA |NA 17,33853] 0] O 0
Bandhan Small 1| 17,33,853 0 0| 17,33,853 1.57| 17,33,853 0| 17,33,853 1.57 0 1.57 0 O[NA |NA 17,33,853| 0| O 0
Cap Fund

(b) |Venture Capital 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 O|NA |NA 0
Funds

(c) |Alternate 4/ 11,51,839 0 0 11,51,839 1.04| 11,51,839 0] 11,51,839 1.04 0 1.04 0 O|NA |NA 11,51,839] 0f O 0
Investment Funds

(d) |Banks 2| 27,80,179 0 0| 27,80,179 2.52| 27,80,179 0| 27,80,179 2.52 0 2.52 0 0[NA [NA 27,80,179] 0] O 0
Indusind Bank 1 21,85,425 0 0| 21,85,425 1.98| 21,85,425 0| 21,85,425 1.98 0 1.98 0 0|NA |NA 21,85,425
Limited Treasury
Dept

(e) |Insurance 2| 34,67,232 0 0| 34,67,232 3.14| 34,67,232 0| 34,67,232 3.14 0 3.14 0 O|NA |NA 34,67,232] 0] O 0
Companies
ICICI Prudential 1| 21,66,842 0 0| 21,66,842 1.96| 21,66,842 0| 21,66,842 1.96 0 1.96 0 0|NA |NA 21,66,842
Life Insurance
Company
Limited
Bajaj Allianz 1| 13,00,390 0 0| 13,00,390 1.18| 13,00,390 0| 13,00,390 1.18 0 1.18 0 O|NA |NA 13,00,390
Life Insurance
Company
Limited

(f) |Provident Funds/ 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 O[NA [NA 0
Pension Funds
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Category & |Nos. of | No. of fully | Partly | No. of | Total nos. |Sharehold | Number of Voting Rights held in each No. of Shareholdi | Number of Locked | Number of | Number Sub-
Name of the |[shareh| paidup | paid- | shares [shares held| ing % class of securities Shares ng, asa % in shares Shares of equity |categorization
shareholders | olders equity up |underly calculated Underlying | assuming pledged or | shares of shares
shares held | equity | ing as per Outstanding full otherwise held in | Shareholding
shares | Deposit SCRR, convertible | conversion encumbered |dematerial [(No. of shares)
held ory 1957 As a securities of ised form under
Receipt % of No of Voting Rights Total as a| (including |convertible| No.(a) |Asa%| No. | Asa Sub-category
S (A+B+C2)| Class |Class| Total % of |Warrants) | securities of total | (a) | % of @) | Gy | (iii)
eg: X eg:y Total (asa Shares total
Voting percentage held Share
Rights of diluted (b) s held
share (b)
capital)
(G) |Asset 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 O[NA [NA 0
Reconstruction
Companies
(h) |Sovereign 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 O[NA |NA 0
Wealth Funds
(i) [NBFCs 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 O[NA [NA 0
registered with
RBI
(i) |Other Financial 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 O[NA |NA 0
Institutions
(k) |Any Other 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 O0|NA |NA 0
(Specify)
Sub Total (B)(1) 9] 91,33,103 0 0] 91,33,103 8.27] 91,33,103 0]9,13,03,103 8.27 0 8.27 0 O0[NA [NA 91,33,103] 0] O 0
B2 |Institutions (Foreign)
(a) |Foreign Direct 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0|NA |NA 0
Investment
(b) |Foreign Venture 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0|NA |NA 0
Capital Investors
(c) |Sovereign 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0|NA |NA 0
Wealth Funds
(d) |Foreign Portfolio 35| 1,04,88,296 0 0]1,04,88,296 9.49| 1,04,88,296 0(1,04,88,296 9.49 0 9.49 0 O[NA |NA ]1,04,88,296| 0| O 0
Investors
Category |
Evli Emerging 1| 25,00,000 0 0| 25,00,000 2.26| 25,00,000 0| 25,00,000 2.26 0 2.26 0 O0|NA |NA 25,00,000
Frontier Fund
Massachusetts 1| 19,98,787 0 0| 19,98,787 1.81| 19,98,787 0| 19,98,787 1.81 0 181 0 0|NA |NA 19,98,787
Institute Of
Technology

63




Category & |Nos. of | No. of fully | Partly | No. of | Total nos. |Sharehold | Number of Voting Rights held in each No. of Shareholdi | Number of Locked | Number of | Number Sub-
Name of the |[shareh| paidup | paid- | shares [shares held| ing % class of securities Shares ng, asa % in shares Shares of equity |categorization
shareholders | olders equity up |underly calculated Underlying | assuming pledged or | shares of shares
shares held | equity | ing as per Outstanding full otherwise held in | Shareholding
shares | Deposit SCRR, convertible | conversion encumbered |dematerial [(No. of shares)
held ory 1957 As a securities of ised form under
Receipt % of No of Voting Rights Total as a| (including |convertible| No.(a) |Asa%| No. | Asa Sub-category
S (A+B+C2)| Class |Class| Total % of |Warrants) | securities of total | (a) | % of @) | Gy | (iii)
eg: X eg:y Total (asa Shares total
Voting percentage held Share
Rights of diluted (b) s held
share (b)
capital)
Nederlandse 1| 14,24,030 0 0| 14,24,030 1.29| 14,24,030 0| 14,24,030 1.29 0 1.29 0 0|NA |NA 14,24,030
Financierings-
Maatschappij
Voor
Ontwikkelingslan
den N.V. (Fmo)
Societe Generale 1] 13,88,851 0 0| 13,88,851 1.26| 13,88,851 0| 13,838,851 1.26 0 1.26 0 0|NA |NA 13,88,851
- Odi
(e) |Foreign Portfolio 1 1,00,037 0 0| 1,00,037 0.09| 1,00,037 0| 1,00,037 0.09 0 0.09 0 O[NA |NA 1,00,037] 0| O 0
Investors
Category Il
(f) |Overseas 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 O0|NA |NA 0
Depositories
(holding DRs)
(balancing
figure)
(9) |Any Other 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 O[NA |NA 0
(Specify)
Sub Total (B)(2) 36| 1,05,88,333 0 0]1,05,88,333 9.58] 1,05,88,333 0]1,05,88,333 9.58 0 9.58 0 O|[NA |NA [1,0588,333] 0] O 0
B3 |Central Government/ State Government(s)
(a) |Central 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0|NA |NA 0
Government /
President of India
(b) |State 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0|NA |NA 0
Government /
Governor
(C) |Shareholding by 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0[NA |NA 0
Companies or
Bodies Corporate
where Central /
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Category & |Nos. of | No. of fully | Partly | No. of | Total nos. |Sharehold | Number of Voting Rights held in each No. of Shareholdi | Number of Locked | Number of | Number Sub-
Name of the |[shareh| paidup | paid- | shares [shares held| ing % class of securities Shares ng, asa % in shares Shares of equity |categorization
shareholders | olders equity up |underly calculated Underlying | assuming pledged or | shares of shares
shares held | equity | ing as per Outstanding full otherwise held in | Shareholding
shares | Deposit SCRR, convertible | conversion encumbered |dematerial [(No. of shares)
held ory 1957 As a securities of ised form under
Receipt % of No of Voting Rights Total as a| (including |convertible| No.(a) |Asa%| No. | Asa Sub-category
S (A+B+C2)| Class |Class| Total % of |Warrants) | securities of total | (a) | % of @) | Gy | (iii)
eg: X eg:y Total (asa Shares total
Voting percentage held Share
Rights of diluted (b) s held
share (b)
capital)
State
Government is a
promoter
Sub Total (B)(3) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0[NA |NA 0
B4 | Non-Institutions
(a) |Associate 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0|NA |NA 0
companies /
Subsidiaries
(b) |Directors and 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0|NA [NA 0
their relatives
(excluding
Independent
Directors and
nominee
Directors)
(C) |Key Managerial 2 1,15,792 0 0| 1,15,792 0.10| 1,15,792 0| 1,15,792 0.10 0 0.10 0 0|NA |NA 1,15,792| 0| O 0
Personnel
(D) |Relatives of 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0|NA |NA 0
promoters (other
than 'immediate
relatives' of
promoters
disclosed under
'Promoter and
Promoter Group'
category)
(E) | Trusts where any 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0|NA [NA 0
person belonging
to 'Promoter and
Promoter Group'
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Category & |Nos. of | No. of fully | Partly | No. of | Total nos. |Sharehold | Number of Voting Rights held in each No. of Shareholdi | Number of Locked | Number of | Number Sub-
Name of the |[shareh| paidup | paid- | shares [shares held| ing % class of securities Shares ng, asa % in shares Shares of equity |categorization
shareholders | olders equity up |underly calculated Underlying | assuming pledged or | shares of shares
shares held | equity | ing as per Outstanding full otherwise held in | Shareholding
shares | Deposit SCRR, convertible | conversion encumbered |dematerial [(No. of shares)
held ory 1957 As a securities of ised form under
Receipt % of No of Voting Rights Total as a| (including |convertible| No.(a) |Asa%| No. | Asa Sub-category
S (A+B+C2)| Class |Class| Total % of |Warrants) | securities of total | (a) | % of @) | Gy | (iii)
eg: X eg:y Total (asa Shares total
Voting percentage held Share
Rights of diluted (b) s held
share (b)
capital)
category is
‘trustee’,
‘beneficiary’, or
‘author of the
trust"
(f) [Investor 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0|NA |NA 0
Education and
Protection Fund
(IEPF)
(9) |i. Resident 27,250 1,08,53,800 0 011,08,53,800 9.83|1,08,53,800 011,08,53,800 9.83 0 9.83 0 O0|NA |NA [,07,19,157| 0| O 0
Individual
holding
nominal share
capital up to
2 lakhs.
(h) [ii. Resident 96| 92,75,046 0 0| 92,75,046 8.40| 92,75,046 0| 92,75,046 8.40 0 8.40 0 0|NA |NA 92,75,046| 0| O 0
individual
holding
nominal share
capital in
excess of X 2
lakhs.
(i) |Non Resident 505 6,78,652 0 0| 6,78,652 0.61 6,78,652 0| 6,78,652 0.61 0 0.61 0 0[NA [NA 6,78,652 0f O 0
Indians (NRIs)
(i) |Foreign 1 3,200 0 0 3,200 0.00 3,200 0 3,200 0.00 0 0.00 0 0|NA |NA 0| 0o O 0
Nationals
(k) |Foreign 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0[NA [NA 0
Companies
(I) |Bodies Corporate 2211 1,30,08,646 0 0| 1,30,08,64 11.781,30,08,646 011,30,08,646 11.78 0 11.78 0 O(NA [NA [1,30,03,146 0f O 0
6
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Category & |Nos. of | No. of fully | Partly | No. of | Total nos. |Sharehold | Number of Voting Rights held in each No. of Shareholdi | Number of Locked | Number of | Number Sub-
Name of the |[shareh| paidup | paid- | shares [shares held| ing % class of securities Shares ng, asa % in shares Shares of equity |categorization
shareholders | olders equity up |underly calculated Underlying | assuming pledged or | shares of shares
shares held | equity | ing as per Outstanding full otherwise held in | Shareholding
shares | Deposit SCRR, convertible | conversion encumbered |dematerial [(No. of shares)
held ory 1957 As a securities of ised form under
Receipt % of No of Voting Rights Total as a| (including |convertible| No.(a) |Asa%| No. | Asa Sub-category
S (A+B+C2)| Class |Class| Total % of |Warrants) | securities of total | (a) | % of @) | Gy | (iii)
eg: X eg:y Total (asa Shares total
Voting percentage held Share
Rights of diluted (b) s held
share (b)
capital)
Rajsonia 1| 25,14,127 0 0| 25,14,127 2.28| 25,14,127 0| 25,14,127 2.28 0 2.28 0 0|NA [NA 25,14,127
Consultancy
Services Private
Limited
Bhawani Finvest 1| 22,00,000 0 0| 22,00,000 1.99| 22,00,000 0| 22,00,000 1.99 0 1.99 0 0|NA |NA 22,00,000
Pvt Ltd
Linkage 1| 21,85,627 0 0| 21,85,627 1.98| 21,85,627 0| 21,85,627 1.98 0 1.98 0 0|NA [NA 21,85,627 0 O 0
Securities Private
Limited
Trust Team 1| 11,60,914 0 0| 11,60,914 1.05| 11,60,914 0| 11,60,914 1.05 0 1.05 0 0[NA [NA 11,60,914
Investors Limited
(m)|Any Other 668 1,65,00,694 0 01,65,00,694 14.9411,65,00,694 0/1,65,00,694 14.94 0 14.94| 1,23,07,692| 7459 |NA |NA |165,00,694 0 O 0
(Specify)
Trusts 2 51,749 0 0 51,749 0.05 51,749 0 51,749 0.05 0 0.05 0 0[NA [NA 51,749 0l 0 0
Body Corp-Ltd 341 1,56,82,269 0 011,56,82,269 14.20|1,56,82,269 01,56,82,269 14.20 0 14.20| 1,23,07,692| 78.48|NA |[NA [1,56,82,269| 0| O 0
Liability
Partnership
Florintree 1| 1,23,07,692 0 01,23,07,692 11.1411,23,07,692 01,23,07,692 11.14 0 11.14) 1,23,07,692 100|NA |NA 1,23,07,692
Ventures LLP
Hindu Undivided 629 7,35,210 0 0| 7,35,210 0.67 7,35,210 0| 735210 0.67 0 0.67 0 0[NA [NA 7,35,210f 0| O 0
Family
Clearing Member 3 31,466 0 0 31,466 0.03 31,466 0 31,466 0.03 0 0.03 0 0[NA |NA 31,466| 0| O 0
Sub Total (B)(4) | 28743 5,04,35,830 0 015,04,35,830 45.66 | 50,43,5830 015,04,35,830 45.66 0 45.66| 1,23,07,692| 2440NA NA  p,02,92487| 0| O 0
Total Public 28788 7,01,57,266 0 0(7,01,57,266 63.51|7,01,57,266 0(7,01,57,266 63.51 0 63.51| 1,23,07,692| 17.54NA NA 7,00,13,923| 0| O 0
Shareholding
B=(B)(1)+(B)(2)
+(B) (3)+ (B)(4)
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Table IV — Statement showing shareholding pattern of the Non Promoter- Non Public shareholder

Category & Name of the | Nos. of | No.of |Partly| No.of [Total nos.|Shareholding| Number of Voting Rights held in No. of Shareholding, as| Number of | Number of | Number of
shareholders share | fully | paid- | shares shares |% calculated each class of securities Shares a% assuming | Lockedin Shares equity
holders| paidup | up |underlying| held as per Underlying | full conversion shares pledged or | shares held
equity | equity | Depository SCRR, 1957 Outstanding| of convertible otherwise | in demate
shares |shares| Receipts As a % of convertible | securities (as a encumbered | rialised
held held (A+B+C2) No of Voting Rights Total as | securities percentage of | No. |Asa % | No. | Asa % form
Class |Class| Total | a%of | (including | diluted share | (a) |of total | (a) | of total
eg: X |egiy (A+B+C) | Warrants) capital) Shares Shares
held(b) held(b)
D) any | av) (V) (V1) (Vil)y= | (VIIl) Asa (1X) (X) (XD= (VI+(X) (X1 (X111) (X1V)
(IV)+(V)+ % of As a % of
(VD) (A+B+C2) (A+B+C2)
1 | Custodian/DR Holder 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0l 0 0/NA |NA 0
2 | Employee Benefit Trust / 1| 4,82,946 0 0| 4,82,946 0.441 4,82,946 0| 4,82,946 0.44 0 0.44 0 0|NA |NA 4,82,946
Employee Welfare Trust
under SEBI (Share based
Employee Benefits and Sweat
Equity) Regulations, 2021
Total Non-Promoter- Non 1| 4,82,946 0 0| 4,82,946 0.44| 4,82,946 0| 4,82,946 0.44 0 0.44 0 0|NA |NA 4,82,946
Public Shareholding (C)=
©)M)+(C)(2)
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List of top 10 holders of Equity Shares of our Company as on December 31, 2023:

Sr. Name of Shareholder Total No. of shares| Total shareholding
No. Number of in demat as a % of total
Equity form number of Equity
Shares Shares
1. | Trishashna Holdings & Investments Private Limited 3,77,84,820| 3,77,84,820 34.20
2. | Florintree ventures LLP 1,23,07,692| 1,23,07,692 11.14
3. | Rajsonia Consultancy Services Private Limited 25,14,127 25,14,127 2.28
4. | EVLI Emerging Frontier Fund 25,00,000 25,00,000 2.26
5. | Bhawani Finvest Pvt Ltd 22,00,000 22,00,000 1.99
6. | Linkage Securities Private Limited 21,85,627 21,85,627 1.98
7. | Indusind Bank Limited Treasury Dept 21,85,425 21,85,425 1.98
8. | ICICI Prudential Life Insurance Company Limited 21,66,842 21,66,842 1.96
9. | Massachusetts Institute of Technology 19,98,787 19,98,787 1.81
10.| Bandhan Small Cap Fund 17,33,853 17,33,853 1.57

List of top 10 holders of non-convertible securities as on December 31, 2023 (on cumulative basis):
(% in lakh, except percentages)

Sr. Name of Holder Category of| Face Value | Principal Holding as a % of
No. Holder of Holding | Amount Total Outstanding
(R in lakhs) |Outstanding| Non-Convertible
(R in lakhs) [securities of the issuer
1 | Blueorchard Microfinance Fund FPI 15,480.00 | 15,480.00 13.91%
2 | UTI International Wealth Creator 4 FPI 12,500.00 | 12,500.00 11.23%
3 | AAVSAR.L FPI 24,101.00 | 12,289.68* 11.04%
4 | Masala Investments S.A.R.L. FPI 24,101.00 | 12,289.68* 11.04%
5 | Global Access Fund LP FPI 9,257.00 9,257.00 8.32%
6 | Nomura Capital (India) Private Limited Corporate 7,810.00 7,810.00 7.02%
7 | Japan ASEAN Women Empowerment Fund | FPI 10,000.00 | 7,000.00* 6.29%
8 | Microfinance Initiative for Asia (MIFA) | FPI 3,750.00 3,750.00 3.37%
Debt Fund
9 | Ajanta Pharma Limited Corporate 3,500.00 3,500.00 3.14%
10 | Vivriti Emerging Corporate Bond Fund AlF 3,500.00 3,500.00 3.14%
Grand Total 1,13,999.00 | 87,376.36 78.50%

*The face value of the non-convertible securities has been partly redeemed and the balance shall be redeemed at the expiry of tenure.

Statement of the aggregate number of securities of our Company and our Subsidiary purchased or sold by our
Promoters, Promoter Group, our Directors and the directors of our Promoters and/or their relatives within six months
immediately preceding the date of filing of this Draft Prospectus.

Except as disclosed below, no securities of our Company have been purchased or sold by our Promoters, promoter group,
our Directors, directors of our Promoter and/or their relatives within six months immediately preceding the date of filing
of the Draft Prospectus:

Creditcare

Network Limited
December 4, 2023 from her father
(Late Gurjit Singh Maingi) through
transmission

S. Name of Category Date of Type of Security Remarks

No. Shareholder purchase/sale | purchased/sold

1. Anureet HP Singh | Promoter | December 4, | Equity Shares Anureet HP Singh (Promoter Group)
Group 2023 received 1,326 shares of Satin

on

No securities of our subsidiaries have been purchased or sold by our Promoters, promoter group, our Directors,
directors of our Promoter and/or their relatives within six months immediately preceding the date of filing of this
Draft Prospectus.

69



Statement of Capitalization

A. Statement of capitalization (Debt to Equity Ratio) of our Company (Standalone) as on March 31, 2023, September

30, 2023 and post-issue:
(< in lakh, except Debt/Equity ratio)

Particulars Pre-Issue as at Pre-Issue as at September 30, Post Issue (as
March 31, 2023 2023 Adjusted based
on September 30,
2023 figures)**
Debt
Debt Securities & 1,44,270.33 109,911.73 129,911.73
Subordinated Liabilities
Borrowings (Other than 4,00,477.70 5,66,488.49 5,66,488.49
Debt Securities)
Total Debt (A) 5,44,748.03 6,76,400.22 6,96,400.22
Equity Share Capital 8,479.63 9,920.66 9,920.66
Other Equity 182,892.05 207,927.76 207,927.76
Total Shareholder’s funds (B) 1,91,371.68 2,17,848.42 2,17,848.42
Debt/ Equity (C= A/B)* (No. 2.85 3.10 3.20
of times)

**The debt-equity ratio post Issue in indicative on account of the assumed inflow of ¥ 20,000 lakhs from the proposed Issue. The
actual debt-equity ratio post the Issue would depend on the actual position of debt and equity on the Deemed Date of Allotment.

B. Statement of capitalization (Debt to Equity Ratio) of our Company (Consolidated) as on March 31, 2023,
September 30, 2023 and post-issue:
(% in lakh, except Debt/Equity ratio)

Particulars Pre-1ssue as at March Pre-lssue as at Post Issue (as
31, 2023 September 30, 2023 Adjusted based on
September 30, 2023
figures)**

Debt

Debt Securities & 1,46,766.48 1,11,908.86 1,31,908.86

Subordinated Liabilities

Borrowings (Other than Debt 4,44,358.26 6,16,378.08 6,16,378.08

Securities)
Total Debt (A) 5,91,124.74 7,28,286.94 7,48,286.94
Equity Share Capital 8,479.63 9,920.66 9,920.66
Other Equity 154,332.81 180,098.63 180,098.63
Total Shareholder’s funds (B) 1,62,812.44 1,90,019.29 1,90,019.29
Debt/ Equity (C= A/B)* (No. of 3.63 3.83 3.94
times)

**The debt-equity ratio post Issue in indicative on account of the assumed inflow of T 20,000 lakhs from the proposed
Issue. The actual debt-equity ratio post the Issue would depend on the actual position of debt and equity on the Deemed
Date of Allotment.

Shareholding of Directors in our Company

Except as disclosed below, none of the Directors in our Company as on December 31, 2023 hold shares of the Company:

| sr. | Name of Directors | Number of Shares | Percentage of Shareholding (in |
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No. %) (on fully diluted basis)

1. Satvinder Singh 3,85,703 0.35
(Promoter, Non-Executive Director)
2. Sanjay Kumar Bhatia 1,000 Negligible

(Independent Director)

Details of Promoter’s shareholding in our Company’s Subsidiary

As on the date of this Draft Prospectus, our Promoters are not holding any shares in our subsidiaries.
Details of Promoter’s shareholding in our Joint Venture and Associate Companies

Nil

Details of any acquisition or amalgamation in the last one year

Nil

Details of any reorganization or reconstruction in the last one year

Our Company has not made any reorganization or reconstruction in the last one year prior to the date of this Draft
Prospectus.

Details of debt securities that were issued at a premium or a discount by the Company

Other than as disclosed in the section “Financial Indebtedness” on page 200, no debt securities were issued at a premium
or a discount by the Company.

Details of shareholding of our Directors in our Subsidiaries, Associate or Joint Ventures as of date of this Draft
Prospectus

As on the date of this Draft Prospectus, the Directors are not holding any shares in subsidiary, associates or joint ventures.

Details of change in the promoter holding in our Company during the last financial year beyond 26 % (as prescribed
by RBI)

There has been no change in the promoter holding in our Company during the last financial year beyond 26%.
Employee Stock Option Scheme

Except as stated below, there are not have any outstanding employee stock option schemes.

Satin Employee Stock Option Scheme 2017 ("'Satin ESOS 2017”)

The Satin ESOS 2017 was approved for grant of options to eligible employees of our Company and/or subsidiaries,
pursuant to resolutions approved by (a) the Nomination and Remuneration Committee in its meeting held on May 26,
2017, (b) our Board in their meeting held on May 26, 2017 and (c) Shareholders of our Company pursuant to special
resolution passed in the Annual General Meeting of our Company held on July 6, 2017. The Satin ESOS 2017 is
implemented through Satin Employees Welfare Trust and is administered through the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee.

The Satin ESOS 2017 envisaged grant of options not exceeding 3,61,400 options (and will also include such number of
shares lying with Satin Employees Welfare Trust pursuant to non-exercisability of options outstanding under the
erstwhile employee stock option schemes*), convertible into one Equity Share upon exercise, which are subject to
corresponding fair and reasonable adjustment in the event of corporate actions by our Company including rights issues,
bonus issues, sub-division, consolidation of capital, declaration of dividend.

*Further, pursuant to special resolution passed by our Shareholders in their meeting held on July 6, 2017, erstwhile

stock option plans inter-alia, Satin Employee Stock Option Plan 2009, 2010 (I) and 2010 (Il) were terminated and
superseded by the Satin ESOS 2017.
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The Satin ESOS 2017 scheme is in compliance with the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee
Benefits and Sweat Equity) Regulations, 2021, as amended.

The following table sets forth details in respect of the Satin ESOS 2017:

Particulars Details (in number)
Total number of options™ 7,45,000
Total number of options granted 3,71,800
Options vested 2,50,500
Options exercised 46,650
Options lapsed/forfeited 3,25,150
Total options outstanding Nil

* In terms of Satin ESOS 2017, the maximum number of options that can be granted to any eligible employee during any one year
shall not be equal to or exceed 1% of the issued capital of the Company at the time of such grant, unless approved by shareholders.
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OBJECTS OF THE ISSUE
Issue Proceeds

Our Company has filed this Draft Prospectus for a public issue of up to 20,00,000, secured, rated, listed, redeemable non-
convertible debentures of face value of 1,000 each (“NCDs”) for an amount up to X 10,000 lakh (“Base Issue Size”)
with an option to retain oversubscription up to X 10,000 lakh (“Green Shoe Option”), for an aggregate amount of up to
Z.20,000 lakh (“Issue Size” or “Issue Limit”).

The Issue is being made pursuant to the provisions of the SEBI NCS Regulations and the Companies Act and the rules
made there under. Our Company proposes to utilize the proceeds raised through the Issue, after deducting the Issue related
expenses to the extent payable by our Company (“Net Proceeds”) towards funding the objects listed under this section.

The details of the proceeds of the Issue are summarized below:

Particulars Estimated amount (X in lakh)
Gross proceeds of the Issue As specified in the Prospectus
Less: Issue related expenses* As specified in the Prospectus
Net proceeds As specified in the Prospectus

*The above Issue related expenses are indicative and are subject to change depending on the actual level of subscription to the Issue,
the number of allottees, market conditions and other relevant factors.

Requirement of Funds and Utilization of Net Proceeds

The following table details the objects of the Issue (collectively, referred to herein as the “Objects”) and the amount
proposed to be financed from Net Proceeds:

Sr. Obijects of the Issue Percentage of amount proposed to be

No. financed from Net Proceeds

(@) [For the purpose of onward lending, financing and for repayment of At least 75%
interest and principal of existing borrowings of the Company*

(b) |General Corporate Purposes** Maximum up to 25%
Total 100%

*Our Company will not utilise the proceeds of this Issue towards payment of prepayment penalty, if any

**The Net Proceeds will be first utilized towards the Objects mentioned above. The balance is proposed to be utilized for general
corporate purposes, subject to such utilization not exceeding 25% of the amount raised in the Issue, in compliance with the SEBI
NCS Regulations.

The main objects clause of the Memorandum of Association of the Company permits the Company to undertake its
existing activities as well as the activities for which the funds are being raised through the Issue.

Issue related expenses break-up

The expenses for this Issue include, inter alia, lead management fees and selling commission to the Lead Manager,
Consortium Member and intermediaries as provided for in the SEBI Master Circular, fees payable to debenture trustees,
the Registrar to the Issue, SCSBs’ commission/ fees, printing and distribution expenses, legal fees, advertisement
expenses, listing fees and any other expense directly related to the Issue. The Issue expenses and listing fees will be paid
by our Company.

The estimated breakdown of the total expenses for this Issue and the timeline for such payment for this Issue shall be as
specified in the Prospectus.

Purpose for which there is a requirement of funds
As stated in this section.
Funding Plan

Our Company confirms that for the purpose of this Issue, funding plan will not be applicable.
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Summary of the project appraisal report

Our Company confirms that for the purpose of this Issue, summary of the project appraisal report will not be applicable.
Schedule of implementation of the project

Our Company confirms that for the purpose of this Issue, schedule of implementation of the project will not be applicable.
Monitoring of utilization of funds

There is no requirement for appointment of a monitoring agency in terms of the SEBI NCS Regulations. The Audit
Committee of our Company shall monitor the utilisation of the proceeds of the Issue. Our Company will disclose in our
Company’s financial statements for the relevant financial year commencing from Fiscal 2024, the utilisation of the
proceeds of the Issue under a separate head along with details, if any, in relation to all such proceeds of the Issue that
have not been utilised thereby also indicating investments, if any, of such unutilized proceeds of the Issue. Our Company
shall utilize the proceeds of the Issue only upon receipt of minimum subscription, i.e., 75% of Base Issue Size relating to
the Issue, the execution of the documents for creation of security and the Debenture Trust Deed and receipt of final listing
and trading approval from the Stock Exchange. Our Company, within forty-five days from the end of every quarter or
such other period as per applicable law, submit to the stock exchange, a statement indicating the utilization of issue
proceeds of non-convertible securities, which shall be continued to be given till such time the issue proceeds have been
fully utilised or the purpose for which these proceeds were raised has been achieved.

Interim use of proceeds

Our Management, in accordance with the policies formulated by it from time to time,will have the flexibility in deploying
the proceeds received from the Issue. Pending utilization of the proceeds out of the Issue for the purposes described
above, our Company intends to temporarily invest funds in high quality interest/ non- interest bearing liquid instruments
including money market mutual funds, deposits with banks, current account of banks or temporarily deploy the funds in
investment grade interest bearing securities as may be approved by our Board of Directors or a committee thereof. Such
investment would be in accordance with the investment policies approved by the Board of Directors or any committee
thereof from time to time.

Other Confirmations

In accordance with the SEBI NCS Regulations, our Company will not utilize the proceeds of the Issue for providing loans
to or acquisition of shares of any person or company who is a part of the Promoter Group or Group Companies.

Proceeds from the Issue shall not be utilised towards full or part consideration for the purchase or any other acquisition,
inter alia by way of a lease, of any immovable property. No part of the proceeds from the Issue will be paid by us as
consideration to our Promoters, the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel, or companies promoted by our Promoters
except in ordinary course of business.

No part of the proceeds from the Issue will be utilized for buying, trading or otherwise dealing in equity shares of any
listed company. Further our Company undertakes that Issue proceeds from NCDs allotted to banks shall not be used for
any purpose, which may be in contravention of the RBI guidelines including those relating to classification as capital
market exposure or any other sectors that are prohibited under the RBI Regulations.

Our Company confirms that it will not use the proceeds from the Issue or any part of the proceeds, directly or indirectly,
for the purchase of any business or in the purchase of an interest in any business and by reason of that purchase or
anything done in consequence thereof, or in connection therewith our Company shall become entitled to an interest in
either the capital or profit or losses or both in such business exceeding 50% thereof, the purchase or acquisition of any
immovable property (direct or indirect) for which advances have been paid to third parties or acquisition of securities of
any other body corporate.

The fund requirement as above is based on our current business plan and is subject to change in light of variations in
external circumstances or costs, or in our financial condition, business or strategy. Our management, in response to the
competitive and dynamic nature of the industry, will have the discretion to revise its business plan from time to time and
consequently our funding requirements and deployment of funds may also change.
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There is no contribution being made or intended to be made by the Directors as part of the Issue or separately in
furtherance of the Objects of the Issue.

General Corporate Purposes

Our Company intends to deploy up to 25% of the amount raised and allotted in the Issue for general corporate purposes,
including but not restricted to routine capital expenditure, renovations, strategic initiatives, meeting any expenditure in
relation to our Company as well as meeting exigencies which our Company may face in the ordinary course of business,
or any other purposes as may be approved by our Board of Directors or duly authorized committee thereof.

Variation in terms of contract or objects in this Draft Prospectus

Our Company shall not, in terms of Section 27 of the Companies Act, 2013, at any time, vary the terms of the objects for
which this Draft Prospectus is issued, except as may be prescribed under the applicable laws and specifically under
Section 27 of the Companies Act, 2013. Further, in accordance with the SEBI Listing Regulations, in case of any material
deviation in the use of proceeds as compared to the objects of the issue, the same shall be indicated in the format as
specified by SEBI from time to time.

Benefit / interest accruing to Promoters/Directors out of the object of the Issue

Neither our Promoters nor the Directors of our Company are interested in the Objects of this Issue.
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STATEMENT OF POSSIBLE TAX BENEFITS

STATEMENT OF POSSIBLE TAX BENEFITS AVAILABLE TO THE DEBENTURE HOLDER(S) UNDER
THE APPLICABLE LAWS IN INDIA

Date: 24 January 2024
To,

The Board of Directors

Satin Creditcare Network Limited
Plot No. 492, Udyog Vihar,

Phase — I11, Gurugram,

Haryana — 122 016, India

Dear Ma’am/Sir,

Sub:  Proposed public issue by Satin Creditcare Network Limited (“Company” or “Issuer”) of secured, rated, listed,
redeemable, non-convertible debentures of face value of ¥ 1,000 each (“NCDs”) for an amount aggregating
up to T 200 crores (the “Issue”).

This certificate is issued in accordance with the terms of our engagement letter dated November 8, 2023.

The accompanying Statement of Possible Tax Benefits prepared by the management of the Company, discusses the tax
provisions applicable to the Potential Debenture holders (“Investors”) subscribing in the Public Issue of NCDs of Satin
Creditcare Network Limited in Annexure A (hereinafter referred to as “Statement of Possible Tax Benefits” /
“Statement”), under the Income-tax Act, 1961 (read with Income Tax Rules, circulars, notifications) as amended by the
Finance Act, 2023 (hereinafter referred to as the “IT Act”) in connection with the proposed Issue.

Management’s Responsibility

The preparation of this Statement as of the date of our certificate which is to be included in the Draft Prospectus and
Prospectus (the “Offering Documents”) is the responsibility of the management of the Company.

This responsibility includes designing, implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation and
presentation of the Statement, and applying an appropriate basis of preparation; and making estimates that are reasonable
in the circumstances. The management is also responsible for identifying and ensuring that the Company complies with
the laws and regulations applicable to its activities.

Our Responsibility

Our work has been carried out in accordance with Standards on Auditing, the ‘Guidance Note on Reports or Certificates
for Special Purposes (Revised 2016)’ and other applicable authoritative pronouncements issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (the “ICAI”™).

Pursuant to the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible Securities) Regulations,
2021, as amended (the “SEBI NCS Regulations”) and the Companies Act 2013 (“Act”), it is our responsibility to
examine whether the Statement prepared by the Company, in all material respects, reflects the current position of possible
tax benefits available to the debenture holders of the Company. For this purpose, we have read the Statement as given in
Annexure | and evaluated with reference to the provisions of the IT Act to confirm that statements made are correct in
all material respect.

We draw attention to the fact that the Statement includes certain inherent limitations that can influence the reliability of
the information. The benefits discussed in the enclosed Annexure | are not exhaustive. Several of these benefits are
dependent on the Investors fulfilling the conditions prescribed under the relevant tax laws. Therefore, the ability of
Investors to derive the tax benefits is dependent on fulfilling such conditions.

The Statement is only intended to provide general information and is neither designed nor intended to be a substitute for

the professional tax advice. In view of the individual nature of the tax consequences and the changing tax laws, each
investor is advised to consult their own tax consultant with respect to specific tax implications arising out of their
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participation. Neither are we suggesting nor advising the investor to invest money based on this Statement.
We do not express any opinion or provide any assurance as to whether:

i)  debenture holders of the Company will continue to obtain the benefits as per the Statement in future;

i)  the conditions prescribed for availing the benefits as per the Statement have been/would be met with; or
iii) the revenue authorities/ courts will concur with the views expressed herein.

The contents of the enclosed Statement are based on information, explanations and representations obtained from the
Company and on the basis of our understanding of the business activities and operations of the Company. We have relied
upon the information and documents of the Company being true, correct and complete and have not audited or tested
them. Our view, under no circumstances, is to be considered as an audit opinion under any regulation or law. No assurance
is given that the revenue authorities/ courts will concur with the views expressed herein.

Our views are based on existing provisions of law and its interpretation, which are subject to change from time to time.
We do not assume any responsibility to update the views consequent to such changes.

In our opinion, the Statement of Possible Tax Benefits prepared by the Company as set out in Annexure - | materially
covers all tax benefits available to Debenture Holders as at the date of our report, in accordance with provisions of the IT
Act as amended.

Restriction on Use

We hereby consent to inclusion of the extracts of this certificate in the Offering Documents and/or any other document
in relation to the Issue, and for the submission of this certificate as may be necessary, to any regulatory / statutory
authority including SEBI and the Registrar of Companies, Delhi, BSE Limited, any other authority as may be required
and/or for the records to be maintained by the lead manager appointed in connection with the Issue (the “Lead Manager”)
and in accordance with applicable law, and for the purpose of any defense the Lead Managers may wish to advance in
any claim or proceeding in connection with the contents of the Offer Documents. Accordingly, this certificate is not to
be used, referred to or distributed for any other purpose without our prior and written consent. Accordingly, we do not
accept or assume any liability or any duty of care for any other purpose or to any other person to whom this certificate is
shown or into whose hands it may come without our prior consent in writing. Any subsequent amendment / modification
to provisions of the applicable laws may have an impact on the views contained in our statement. While reasonable care
has been taken in the preparation of this certificate, we accept no responsibility for any errors or omissions therein or for
any loss sustained by any person who relies on it.

This certificate may be relied on by Lead Manager, namely JM Financial Limited, their affiliates and legal counsel in
relation to the Issue.

Sincerely,
For S S Kothari Mehta & Co.

Chartered Accountants
FRN: 000756N

Naveen Aggarwal
Partner
Membership No. 094380

Place: New Delhi
Date: January 24, 2024

UDIN: 24094380BKBEVM3106
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Annexure |

STATEMENT OF POSSIBLE TAX BENEFITS AVAILABLE TO THE DEBENTURE HOLDERS OF SATIN
CREDITCARE NETWORK LIMITED

Annexure to the certificate having UDIN No. 24094380BKBEVM3106 dated 24 January 2024

The information provided below sets out the possible tax benefits available to the Debenture Holders, of secured, rated,
listed, redeemable non-convertible debentures (“NCDs”) of Satin Creditcare Network Limited, under the Income-tax Act,
1961 ("the IT Act”) presently in force in India. The following overview is not exhaustive or comprehensive and is not
intended to be a substitute for professional advice and is only intended to provide general information on the applicable
provisions of the IT Act. Several of these benefits are dependent on the Debenture Holders fulfilling the conditions
prescribed under the relevant provisions of the IT Act. Hence, the ability of Debenture Holders to derive the tax benefits
is dependent upon fulfilling such conditions, which, based on business imperatives a subscriber faces, may or may not
choose to fulfill.

Subscribers are advised to consult their own tax consultant with respect to the tax implications of an investment in the
NCDs, particularly in view of the fact that certain recently enacted legislation may not have a direct legal precedent or
may have a different interpretation on the benefits, which an investor can avail. Neither we are suggesting nor advising
the investor to invest money based on this Statement.

POSSIBLE TAX BENEFITS AVAILABLE TO THE DEBENTURE HOLDERS UNDER THE IT ACT
PRESENTLY IN FORCE IN INDIA ON INVESTMENT IN THE NCDs.

1. The basis of charge of income-tax in India would depend upon the residential status of the debenture holder during
the financial year (“previous year”). The previous year means the period of 12 months commencing from April 1.

2. If the debenture holder is an Indian tax resident, he is liable to income-tax in India on his global income, subject to
certain tax exemptions/deductions, which are provided under the IT Act.

3. A debenture holder, who is treated as a non-resident for the IT Act purposes, is generally subject to tax in India only
on his India-sourced income (i.e., income which accrues or arises or deemed to accrue or arise in India) and income
received by such persons in India. Since the NCDs would be issued by an Indian company, any income in respect of
the NCDs and/or gains arising to the non-resident debenture holder on transfer would generally be regarded as India-
sourced income and would accordingly be taxable in India under the IT Act.

4. In case of non-resident debenture holders, the tax rates and the consequent taxation, mentioned in this part shall be
further subject to any benefits available under the Double Taxation Avoidance Agreement (“DTAA” or “tax treaty”),
if any, between India and the country of residence of the non-resident, subject to satisfying the relevant conditions
including but not limited to:

« conditions (if any) present in the said DTAA read with the relevant provisions of the Multilateral Instrument
(“MLI”) as ratified by India with the respective country of which the said debenture holder is a tax resident; ¢
non-applicability of General Anti-Avoidance Rule (“GAAR”); and

+ providing and maintaining necessary information and documents as prescribed under the IT Act read with
applicable rules, circulars and/or notifications.

5. All references to NCDs hereinafter refer to secured, rated, listed, redeemable, non-convertible debentures issued by
the Company, unless stated otherwise.

6. Taxability under various heads of income
The returns received by the investors from the NCDs in the form of interest and/or gains or loss on sale/ transfer of
the NCD, may be characterized under the following broad heads of income for the purposes of taxation under the IT
Act:

*  Profits and gains from business or profession (“PGBP”);

*  Income from capital gains (“CG”); and
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*  Income from other sources (“IFOS”)

If the NCDs are held as ‘Stock-in-trade’, interest income as well as gain or loss on its transfer will be taxable under the
head PGBP, whereas, if the NCD are held as ‘Investments’, then the interest income will be taxable under the head IFOS
and any gain or loss on its transfer will be assessed to tax under the head CG.

For determining the appropriate head of income (as mentioned above) vis-a-vis the interest income or gains earned on/
from the NCD, it is pertinent to analyze whether the NCDs are held as ‘Investments’ i.e., capital asset or as ‘Stock- in-
trade’. The conclusion can vary based on the facts of each investor’s case (taking into account factors such as the volume
of purchases and sales, ratio between purchases and sales, the period of holding, whether the intention is to earn a profit
from sale or to earn interest etc.).

The Central Board of Direct Taxes (“CBDT”) has clarified in Circular No. 6/2016 dated February 29, 2016 that income
arising from transfer of listed shares and securities, which are held for more than 12 months would be taxed as “Capital
Gains” unless the Assessee itself treats these as its stock-in-trade and income arising from transfer thereof as its business
income. However, this stand, once taken for a particular previous year, shall remain applicable to the other previous years
also.

Further, as per section 2(14) of the IT Act, ‘capital asset’ includes, inter alia, securities held by a Foreign Institutional
Investor (“FII”’) [now known as Foreign Portfolio Investor] which has invested in such securities in accordance with the
regulations made under Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (“SEBI”). Accordingly, such securities, held
by an FII, will be characterized as ‘capital asset” and classification as ‘Stock-in- trade’ shall not apply.

The investors may obtain specific advice from their tax advisors regarding the tax treatment of their investments.
7. Taxation of interest and gain/loss on transfer of NCDs

A. RESIDENT DEBENTURE HOLDERS:

1. INRESPECT OF INTEREST ON NCDS

Interest on NCDs received by the NCD holders would be subject to income tax at the normal rates of tax in accordance
with and subject to the provisions of the IT Act (Refer point 1.1 and 1.2 below). Interest will be assessed to income
tax on an accrual basis or receipt basis depending on the method of accounting regularly employed by the debenture
holder under section 145 of the IT Act.

1.1. TAXABLE UNDER THE HEAD PGBP

As discussed above, depending on the particular facts of each case, the NCDs may, in certain cases, be regarded to be
in the nature of ‘Stock-in-trade’ and, accordingly, the interest on NCDs should be considered to be in the nature of
business income and hence, chargeable to tax under the head PGBP.

1.2. TAXABLE UNDER THE HEAD IFOS

»  Where the NCDs are held as investments by the debenture holders, then the interest income would be taxable
under the head IFOS.

«  Section 57(i) grants deduction of any reasonable sum paid by way of commission or remuneration paid to a
banker or any other person for the purpose of realizing dividend or interest on securities on behalf of the
Assessee. Further, under clause (iii) of section 57, deduction is allowable for any other expenditure (not
being in the nature of capital expenditure) laid out or expended wholly and exclusively for the purpose of
making or earning the income.

»  Debentures received as gift without consideration or inadequate consideration As per section 56(2)(x) of the
IT Act, except in cases which are specifically exempted under this clause (such as gift received from relative
as defined under the section), where the debentures are received without consideration where the aggregate
market value of all gifts received exceeds Rs. 50,000 the aggregate market value of the debentures shall be
taxable as income in the hands of the recipient.

Similarly, if debentures are received for a consideration, which is less than the fair market value by an amount
exceeding fifty thousand rupees, the aggregate fair market value as exceed such consideration shall be taxable
as income in the hands of recipient.
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There is no gift tax for the Donor of the Debentures.

2.

2.1.

2.2.

2.3.

24.

IN RESPECT OF WITHHOLDING TAXES

Interest on NCDs received by its holder would be subject to deduction of tax at source (“TDS”) at the rate of
10% at the time of credit or payment, whichever is earlier as per the provisions of section 193 of the IT Act.

Prior to Finance Act 2023, section 193 provided for no TDS in case of any interest payable on any security
issued by a company, where such security was in dematerialized form and listed on a recognized stock exchange
in India. However, the said relaxation has been omitted by Finance Act 2023 with effect from April 1, 2023.
Accordingly, TDS at the rate of 10% would now be deductible on listed NCDs.

Section 193 further provides for non-deduction of tax at source in certain cases. Section 193 inter alia provides
for no TDS where the aggregate amount of interest paid or likely to be paid during the financial year to an
individual or Hindu Undivided Family (“HUF”), being a resident, does not exceed 35,000 and such interest is
paid by an account payee cheque.

(a) No deduction of tax is required in case of person other than company or a firm if self-declaration in Form
no. 15Gis furnished as per section 197A(1A) of the IT Act.

2.4. (b) No deduction of tax is required in case of resident individual having age of sixty years or more if self-

2.5.

2.6.

2.7.

2.8.

declaration in Form no. 15H is furnished as per section 197A 1C of the Act.

Further, as per section 196, no deduction of tax shall be made by any person from any sums payable to-
(i) the Government, or

(ii) the Reserve Bank of India, or

(iii) a corporation established by or under a Central Act which is, under any law for the time being in force,
exempt from income-tax on its income, or
(iv) a Mutual Fund specified under clause (23D) of section 10

Further, section 197A(1E) of the IT Act provides that no deduction of tax shall be made from any payment to
any person for, or on behalf of, the New Pension System Trust referred to in clause (44) of section 10 of the IT
Act.

Section 206AA of the IT Act provides for a higher withholding rate in case of any person, who being entitled to
receive any sum/ income on which TDS is deductible under Chapter XVIIB (“Deductee”), fails to furnish his
Permanent Account Number (“PAN”) to the person responsible for deducting such TDS. The withholding tax
rates in case of such person shall be higher of the following:

(i) atthe rate specified in the relevant provision of the IT Act; or
(if) at the rate or rates in force; or
(iii) at the rate of 20%.

Section 206AB of the IT Act provides for a higher withholding rate in case of any person (other than (a) a non-
resident who does not have a permanent establishment in India or (b) a person who is not required to furnish the
return of income for the assessment year relevant to the concerned previous year and is notified by the Central
Government in the Official Gazette in this behalf) who has not filed the return of income for assessment year
relevant to the previous year immediately preceding the financial year in which tax is required to be deducted,
for which the time limit for furnishing the return of income under sub-section (1) of section 139 has expired and
the aggregate of tax deducted at source and tax collected at source in his case is rupees fifty thousand or more
in the said previous year. The withholding tax rates in case of such person shall be higher of the following:

(i) attwice the rate specified in the relevant provision of the IT Act; or
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(if) at twice the rate or rates in force; or
(iii) at the rate of 5%.

Further, where the provisions of section 206AA of the IT Act are applicable to such person, tax shall be deducted at
higher of the rates provided in section 206AB and in section 206AA of the IT Act.

3. IN RESPECT OF CAPITAL GAINS ARISING FROM TRANSFER OF NCDS

3.1. Asdiscussed above, based on the particular facts of each case, the NCD may, in certain cases, be regarded to be
held as ‘Investments’ in which case the gains or loss from the transfer of such NCD should be chargeable to tax
under the head CG.

3.2. As per section 2(29AA) and section 2(42A) of the IT Act, a capital asset shall be treated as a long- term capital
asset (“LTCA”), if the same is held for more than 36 months immediately preceding the date of its transfer.
However, in case of a listed security, the same shall be treated as a LTCA, if it is held for more than 12 months
immediately preceding the date of its transfer.

3.3. Asper section 112 of the IT Act, Long Term Capital Gain (“LTCG”) arising on transfer of the NCDs would be
subject to tax at the rate of 20% (plus applicable surcharge and education cess). However, the amount of such
tax shall be limited to 10% (plus applicable surcharge and education cess) without indexation, in case of listed
NCDs.

3.4. As per the fourth proviso to section 48 of the IT Act, the benefit of indexation on the cost of acquisition of a
LTCA under second proviso of section 48 of the IT Act, is not available in case of bonds and debenture, except
capital indexed bonds and sovereign gold bonds.

3.5. Short Term Capital Gains (“STCG”) arising from transfer of the NCDs would be taxable as per the normal slab
rates (Plus, applicable surcharge and education cess), subject to applicability of concessional tax regime.

3.6. Further, no deduction under Chapter VI-A would be allowed in computing LTCG subject to tax under section
112 of the IT Act. Also, the capital gains will be computed by deducting expenditure incurred in connection
with such transfer and cost of acquisition of the NCDs from the sale consideration accrued to the respective
NCD holder.

3.7. Under section 54F of the IT Act and subject to the conditions and to the extent provided therein, LTCG arising
in the hands of the NCD holder, being an Individual or Hindu Undivided Family, on transfer of the NCDs would
be exempt from tax, if the net consideration from such transfer is utilized, for purchase within a period of 1 year
before or 2 years after the date on which the transfer took place, or for construction within a period of 3 years
after the date of such transfer, of one residential house in India (“new asset”).

However, the said exemption shall not be available, if the debenture holder:

a)  Owns more than one residential house, other than the new asset, on the date of transfer of the NCDs; or

b)  Purchases any residential house, other than the new asset, within a period of 1 year after the date of transfer of
the NCDs; or

¢) Constructs any residential house, other than the new asset, within a period of 3 years after the date of transfer of
the NCDs; and

d)  The income from such residential house, other than the one residential house owned on the date of transfer of
the NCDs is chargeable under the head ‘Income from house property’.

Where the cost of new assets exceeds Rs. 10 crores, the amount in excess of Rs. 10 crores shall not be taken into
consideration for the purpose of section 54F of the IT Act i.e. the maximum deduction permissible under section 54F
of the IT Act is restricted to Rs. 10 crores.

Further, if the new asset is transferred within a period of three years from the date of its purchase or construction, the
amount of capital gains for which the exemption was availed earlier would be taxed as LTCG in the year in which
such residential house is transferred.

3.8. As per the seventh proviso to section 48 of the IT Act, no deduction of amount paid on account of STT will be
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3.9.

4,

4.1.

4.2.

4.3.

5.

5.1.

5.2.

5.3.

54.

allowed in computing the income chargeable to tax as Capital Gains.

A new section 50AA of the IT Act has been inserted by Finance Act 2023 for computation of capital gains in
case of inter alia Market Linked Debentures (“MLDs”) so as to tax the income from the same as short term
capital gains irrespective of their period of holding.

IN RESPECT OF BUSINESS INCOME ARISING FROM TRANSFER OF NCDS

As discussed above, depending on the particular facts of each case, the NCDs may, in certain cases, be regarded
to be in the nature of ‘Stock-in-trade’ and, accordingly, the gains from the transfer of such NCD should be
considered to be in the nature of business income and hence, chargeable to tax under the head PGBP.

In such a scenario, the gains from the business of investing in the NCD may be chargeable to tax on a ‘net’ basis
(i.e.net of allowable deductions for expenses/allowances under Chapter 1V — Part D of the IT Act).

In terms of section 36(1)(xv) of the IT Act, the STT paid by the investor in respect of the taxable securities
transactions entered into in the course of his business would be eligible for deduction from the amount of income
chargeable under the head PGBP, if the income arising from taxable securities’ transaction is included in such
income.

IN RESPECT OF SET OFF AND CARRY FORWARD OF THE LOSSES

As per section 70 of the IT Act, Short Term Capital Loss (“STCL”) computed for the given year is allowed to
be set off against STCG as well as LTCG computed for the said year. The balance loss, which is not set off, is
allowed to be carried forward for subsequent eight assessment years, for being set off against subsequent years’
STCG as well as LTCG, in terms of section 74 of the IT Act.

Long Term Capital Loss computed for a given year is allowed to be set off only against the LTCG, in terms of
section 70 of the IT Act. The balance loss, which is not set off, is allowed to be carried forward for subsequent
eight assessment years for being set off only against subsequent years’ LTCG, in terms of section 74 of the IT
Act.

As per section 70 of the IT Act, business loss from one source (other than loss on speculation business) for a
given year is allowed to be set off against business income from another source. Further, as per section 71 of the
IT Act, business loss (other than loss on speculation business) for a given year is allowed to be set-off against
income from other heads (except Salaries).

Balance business loss (other than loss on speculation business), which is not set-off is allowed to be carried

forward for subsequent eight assessment years for being set off only against subsequent years’ income computed
under the head PGBP, as per section 72 of the IT Act.

6. In case, where total income of any individual, HUF, Association of Person (“AOP”), Body of Individuals (“BOI”),

Artificial Juridical Person (“AJP”) includes any income inter alia by way of capital gains under sections 111A,
112 and 112A, the rate of surcharge on the amount of income- tax computed in respect of such income shall not

exceed 15%. The applicable rates of surcharge are tabulated hereunder:

Total Income

Income other than dividend
income and capital gains
covered under section

Dividend income and
capital gains covered
under section 111A, 112

111A, 112 and 112A and 112A
Upto %50 lakh Nil Nil
Income exceeds %X 50 lakhs but does not 10% 10%
exceed X1 crore
Income exceeds X1 crore but does not exceed 15% 15%
%2 crore
Income exceeds 22 crore but does not exceed 25% 15%
5 crores
Income exceeds 35 crores 37%# 15%

#In case of any individual, HUF, AOP (other than a co-operative society), BOI, Artificial Juridical Person, Finance Act, 2023

has made section 115BAC as the default tax regime w.e.f. AY 2024-25. Under this regime the highest rate of surcharge is
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restricted to 25%. There is an option to opt out of section 115BAC, in which case, the highest rate of surcharge rate shall be
37%.
## Highest rate of surcharge in the case of AOP consisting of only companies as its members is 15%.

B. NON-RESIDENT DEBENTURE HOLDERS OTHER THAN FOREIGN INSTITUTIONAL INVESTOR (“FII”):

1.

IN RESPECT OF INTEREST ON NCDS

Interest on NCDs received by the NCD holders would be subject to income tax at the normal rates of tax in
accordance with and subject to the provisions of the IT Act. Interest will be assessed to income tax on accrual basis
or receipt basis depending on the method of accounting regularly employed by the debenture holder under section

145

11

1.2.

of the IT Act.
TAXABLE UNDER THE HEAD PGBP

As discussed above, depending on the particular facts of each case, the NCDs may, in certain cases, be regarded
to be in the nature of ‘Stock-in-trade’ and, accordingly, the interest on NCDs should be considered to be in the
nature of business income and hence, chargeable to tax under the head PGBP.

TAXABLE UNDER THE HEAD IFOS

*  Where the NCDs are held as investments by the debenture holders, then the interest income would be taxable
under the head IFOS.

» Section 57(i) grants deduction of any reasonable sum paid by way of commission or remuneration paid to a
banker or any other person for the purpose of realizing dividend or interest on securities on behalf of the
Assessee. Further, under clause (iii) of section 57, deduction is allowable for any other expenditure (not
being in the nature of capital expenditure) laid out or expended wholly and exclusively for the purpose of
making or earning the income.

« Debentures received as gift without consideration or inadequate consideration As per section 56(2)(x) of the
IT Act, except in cases which are specifically exempted under this clause (such as gift received from relative
as defined under the section), where the debentures are received without consideration where the aggregate
market value of all gifts received exceeds Rs. 50,000 the aggregate market value of the debentures shall be
taxable as income in the hands of the recipient. Similarly, if debentures are received for a consideration
which is less than the fair market value by an amount exceeding fifty thousand rupees, the aggregate fair
market value as exceed such consideration shall be taxable as income in the hands of receipent.

IN RESPECT OF WITHHOLDING TAXES

2.1.

2.2.

2.3.

Interest on the NCDs received by its holder would be subject to withholding tax at source at the time of credit
or payment, whichever is earlier as per the provisions of section 195 of the IT Act. The applicable income-tax
rate for deduction of tax at source has been provided in Part Il of First Schedule to Finance Act, 2023.

However, no/lower income-tax shall be deducted if the holder of the NCDs obtains a certificate under sections
195(3) or 197(1) of the IT Act from the Assessing Officer for no deduction of tax at source or lower deduction
at source and that certificate is furnished to the Company before the prescribed date of closure of books of
account of the Company for payment of debenture interest.

The Company would be under an obligation to deduct tax at source under section 195 at applicable rates in
force. As per section 206AA of the IT Act, in the absence of PAN of the debenture holder, tax would be
deductible at higher of, the rate specified under the Act or the rates in force or 20%. The provisions of section
206AA of the IT Act will, however not apply if the non-resident debenture holder provides to the payer the
following details as listed in Rule 37BC:

a) name, e-mail id, contact number;

b) address in the country or specified territory outside India of which the debenture holder is a resident;

c) Tax Residency Certificate and Form 10F filed electronically;
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3.

d) Tax Identification Number/ Unique Identification Number of the debenture holder.

2.4. Section 206AB provides for a higher withholding rate in case of any person (other than (a) a non-resident who

does not have a permanent establishment in India or (b) a person who is not required to furnish the return of
income for the assessment year relevant to the concerned previous year and is notified by the Central
Government in the Official Gazette in this behalf) who has not filed the return of income for assessment year
relevant to the previous year immediately preceding the financial year in which tax is required to be deducted,
for which the time limit for furnishing the return of income under sub-section (1) of section 139 has expired
and the aggregate of tax deducted at source and tax collected at source in his case is rupees fifty thousand or
more in the said previous year. The withholding tax rates in case of such person shall be higher of the following:

a) at twice the rate specified in the relevant provision of the IT Act; or
b) at twice the rate or rates in force; or
c) at the rate of 5%.

Further, where the provisions of section 206AA of the IT Act are applicable to such person, tax shall be deducted

at higher of the rates provided in section 206 AB and in section 206AA of the IT Act.

IN RESPECT OF CAPITAL GAINS FROM TRANSFER OF NCDS

3.1.

3.2.

3.3.

As discussed above, based on the particular facts of each case, the NCD may, in certain cases, be regarded to
be held as ‘Investments’ in which case the gains or loss from the transfer of such NCD should be chargeable
to tax under the head CG.

As per section 2(29AA) and section 2(42A) of the IT Act, a capital asset shall be treated as a long-term capital
asset (LTCA), if the same is held for more than 36 months immediately preceding the date of its transfer.
However, in case of a listed security, the same shall be treated as a LTCA, if it is held for more than 12 months
immediately preceding the date of its transfer.

Under the first proviso to Section 48 of the IT Act, in case of a non -resident investor, while computing the
capital gains arising from transfer of the NCDs acquired in convertible foreign exchange (as per exchange
control regulations), protection is provided from fluctuations in the value of rupee in terms of foreign currency
in which the original investment was made. The capital gains/loss in such a case is computed by converting the
cost of acquisition, sale consideration and expenditure incurred wholly and exclusively in connection with such
transfer into the same foreign currency which was utilized for the purchase of the NCDs.

3.4. As per section 112 of the IT Act, Long Term Capital Gain (LTCG) arising on transfer of the NCDs would be

3.5.

3.6.

3.7.

3.8.

subject to tax at the rate of 20% (plus applicable surcharge and education cess). However, the amount of such
tax shall be limited to 10% (plus applicable surcharge and education cess) without indexation, at the option of
the debenture holder if the NCDs are listed.

As per the fourth proviso to section 48 of the IT Act, the benefit of indexation on the cost of acquisition of a
LTCA under second proviso of section 48 of the IT Act, is not available in case of bonds and debenture, except
capital indexed bonds and sovereign gold bonds.

Short Term Capital Gains (STCG) arising from transfer of the NCDs would be taxable as per the slab rates
provided under Finance Act, 2023 (plus applicable surcharge and education cess), subject to applicability of
concessional tax regime.

Further, no deduction under Chapter VI-A would be allowed in computing LTCG subject to tax under section
112 of the IT Act. Also, the capital gains will be computed by deducting expenditure incurred in connection
with such transfer and cost of acquisition of the NCDs from the sale consideration accrued to the respective
NCD holder.

Under section 54F of the IT Act and subject to the conditions and to the extent provided therein, LTCG arising

in the hands of the debenture holder, being an Individual or Hindu Undivided Family, on transfer of the
debentures would be exempt from tax, if the net consideration from such transfer is utilized, for purchase within
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3.9.

3.10.

a period of 1 year before or 2 years after the date on which the transfer took place, or for construction within a
period of 3 years after the date of such transfer, of one residential house in India (new asset).

However, the said exemption shall not be available, if the debenture holder:

a) Owns more than one residential house, other than the new asset, on the date of transfer of the NCDs; or

b) Purchases any residential house, other than the new asset, within a period of 1 year after the date of transfer
of the NCDs; or

c) Constructs any residential house, other than the new asset, within a period of 3 years after the date of
transfer of the NCDs; and

d) The income from such residential house, other than the one residential house owned on the date of transfer
of the NCDs is chargeable under the head ‘Income from house property’.

e) Where the cost of new asset exceeds Rs. 10 crores, the amount exceeding Rs. 10 crores shall not be taken
into consideration for the purpose of section 54F of the IT Act i.e., the maximum deduction permissible
under section 54F is restricted to Rs. 10 crores. Further, if the new asset is transferred within a period of
three years from the date of its purchase or construction, the amount of capital gains for which the
exemption was availed earlier would be taxed as LTCG in the year in which such residential house is
transferred.

As per the seventh proviso to section 48 of the IT Act, no deduction of amount paid on account of STT will be
allowed in computing the income chargeable to tax as Capital Gains.

A new section 50AA of the IT Act has been inserted by Finance Act 2023 for computation of capital gains in
case of inter alia Market Linked Debentures (MLDs) so as to tax the income from the same as short term capital
gains irrespective of their period of holding. The NCDs under consideration are not MLDs and thus, the said
section would not be applicable.

IN RESPECT OF BUSINESS INCOME FROM TRANSFER OF NCDS

41

4.2.

As discussed above, depending on the particular facts of each case, the NCDs may, in certain cases, be regarded
to be in the nature of ‘Stock-in-trade’ and, accordingly, the gains from the transfer of such NCD should be
considered to be in the nature of business income and hence, chargeable to tax under the head PGBP.

In such a scenario, the gains from the business of investing in the NCD may be chargeable to tax on a ‘net’ basis
(i.e.net of allowable deductions for expenses/allowances under Chapter IV — Part D of the IT Act).

In terms of section 36(1)(xv) of the IT Act, the STT paid by the investor in respect of the taxable securities
transactions entered into in the course of his business would be eligible for deduction from the amount of income
chargeable under the head PGBP, if the income arising from taxable securities transaction is included in such
income.

IN RESPECT OF SET OFF AND CARRY FORWARD OF LOSSES

5.1.

5.2.

5.3.

5.4.

As per section 70 of the IT Act, Short Term Capital Loss computed for the given year is allowed to be set off
against STCG as well as LTCG computed for the said year. The balance loss, which is not set off, is allowed
to be carried forward for subsequent eight assessment years, for being set off against subsequent years’ STCG
as well as LTCG, in terms of section 74 of the IT Act.

Long Term Capital Loss computed for a given year is allowed to be set off only against the LTCG, in terms of
section 70 of the IT Act. The balance loss, which is not set off, is allowed to be carried forward for subsequent
eight assessment years for being set off only against subsequent years’ LTCG, in terms of section 74 of the IT
Act.

As per section 70 of the IT Act, business loss from one source (other than loss on speculation business) for a
given year is allowed to be set off against business income from another source. Further, as per section 71 of
the IT Act, business loss (other than loss on speculation business) for a given year is allowed to be set-off
against income from other heads (except Salaries).

Balance business loss (other than loss on speculation business), which is not set-off is allowed to be carried
forward for subsequent eight assessment years for being set off only against subsequent years’ income
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6.

computed under the head PGBP income, as per section 72 of the IT Act.

Where the NCDs have been subscribed in convertible foreign exchange, Non-Resident Indians ("NRI"), i.e., an
individual being a citizen of India or person of Indian origin who is not a resident, have the option of being governed
by the provisions of Chapter XIIA of the IT Act, which inter alia entitles them to the following benefits:

Q) Under section 115E of the IT Act, interest on NCDs shall be taxable in the hands of NRI at the rate of 20%
(plus applicable surcharge and health & education cess) and the LTCG arising to the NRI shall be taxable at
the rate of 10 % (plus applicable surcharge and health & education cess). While computing the LTCG, the
benefit of indexation of cost and deductions under chapter VIA would not be available.

(if)  Under section 115F of the IT Act, LTCG arising to an NRI from the transfer of the debentures subscribed to
in convertible foreign exchange shall be exempt from income-tax, if the net consideration is reinvested in
specified assets or in any saving certificates referred to in section 10(4B) of the IT Act, within six months of
the date of transfer. If only part of the net consideration is so reinvested, the exemption shall be proportionately
reduced. The amount so exempted shall be chargeable to tax subsequently, if the specified assets or saving
certificate are transferred or converted into money within three years from the date of their acquisition.

(iii)  Under section 115G of the IT Act, it shall not be necessary for an NRI to furnish his return of income under
section 139(1) of the IT Act if his total income chargeable under the IT Act consists of only investment income
or LTCG or both; and tax deductible at source has been deducted thereon as per the provisions of Chapter
XVII-B of the IT Act.

(iv)  In accordance with the provisions of Section 115H of the IT Act, where an NRI becomes assessable as a
resident in India, he may furnish a declaration in writing to the Assessing Officer along with his return of
income for that year under Section 139 of the IT Act to the effect that the provisions of Chapter XI11-A of the
IT Act shall continue to apply to him in relation to such investment income derived from the specified assets
(which includes debentures issued by an Indian company which is not a private company) for that year and
subsequent assessment years until such assets are transferred or converted into money.

(v)  Asper provisions of Section 115-1 of the IT Act, an NRI may elect not to be governed by provisions of Chapter
XI1I-A and compute his total income as per other provisions of the IT Act.

MINIMUM ALTERNATE TAX (“MAT”)

The provisions of section 115JB of the IT Act do not apply to a foreign company if it is a resident of a country with
which India has entered into a DTAA under section 90/90A of the IT Act and the Assessee does not have a Permanent
Establishment in India or such company is a resident of a country with which India does not have such agreement
and the Assessee is not required to seek registration under any law for the time being in force, relating to companies.
Further, section 115JB of the IT Act expressly provides that the amount of income from (i) capital gains arising on
transactions in securities; or (ii) interest, dividend, royalty or fees for technical services chargeable to tax at the rates
specified in Chapter XII, accruing or arising to a foreign company shall not be liable to MAT if such income is
credited to the profit and loss account and the income-tax payable in accordance with the other provisions of the IT
Act, is less than the rate specified in section 115JB of the Act. The expenditures, if any, debited to the profit and loss
account, corresponding to such income (which is to be excluded from the computation of book profit under section
115JB of the IT Act) shall also be added back to the book profit for the purpose of computation of section 115JB of
the IT Act.

In case, where total income of any individual, HUF, AOP, BOI, Artificial Juridical Person includes any income inter
alia by way of capital gains under sections 111A,112 and 112A, the rate of surcharge on the amount of income-tax
computed in respect of such income shall not exceed 15%. The applicable rates of surcharge are tabulated hereunder:

Total Income Income other than dividend Dividend income and
income and capital gains covered | capital gains covered
under section 111A, 112 and under section 111A,
112A 112 and 112A
Upto %50 lakh Nil Nil
Income exceeds T 50 lakhs but does not exceed 10% 10%
X1 crore
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Income exceeds 1 crore but does not exceed 15% 15%
%2 crore

Income exceeds %2 crore but does not exceed 25% 15%
%5 crores
Income exceeds %5 crores 37%# 15%

# In case of any individual, HUF, AOP (other than a co-operative society), BOI, Artificial Juridical Person, Finance Act, 2023
has made section 115BAC as the default tax regime w.e.f. AY 2024-25. Under this regime the highest rate of surcharge is
restricted to 25%. There is an option to opt out of section 115BAC, in which case, the surcharge rate of 37% would be
applicable.

## Highest rate of surcharge in the case of AOP consisting of only companies as its members is 15%.

As per section 90(2) of the IT Act, the provisions of the IT Act would prevail over the provisions of the DTAA
entered between India and the country of residence of the non-resident, if any, to the extent they are more beneficial
to the non-resident. Thus, a non-resident can opt to be governed by the provisions of the IT Act or the applicable tax
treaty (read with ML, if applicable), whichever is more beneficial. The tax treaty and MLI provide for various anti-
abuse provisions (viz. beneficial ownership, Limitation on Benefit, Principal Purpose Test, etc.) which have to be
examined for claiming tax treaty benefit. In order to avail tax treaty benefit, the non-resident will also have to furnish
a Tax Residency Certificate of his being a resident in a country outside India, along with Form No. 10F as prescribed
under section 90(5) of the IT Act. Further, vide Notification No. 03/2022 dated 16 July 2022, the Directorate of
Income Tax (Systems) has added Form 10F to the prescribed list of forms to be furnished electronically.

C. NON-RESIDENT DEBENTURE HOLDERS - Flls:

1.

IN RESPECT OF INTEREST ON NCDS

1.1. Section 115AD (1) provides for taxation of income of inter alia FIIs/FPIs from securities or capital gains arising
from their transfer. The rate of income-tax prescribed for income in respect of securities inter alia debentures
is 20% (plus applicable surcharge and education cess).

1.2. The computation of income has to be in accordance with section 115AD and other applicable provisions of the
IT Act. FII/FPI debenture holders may avail tax treaty benefit (if any), subject to satisfaction of certain
conditions.

IN RESPECT OF CAPITAL GAINS FROM TRANSFER OF NCDS

2.1. As per section 2(29AA) and section 2(42A) of the IT Act, a capital asset shall be treated as a long-term capital
asset (LTCA), if the same is held for more than 36 months immediately preceding the date of its transfer.
However, in case of a listed security, the same shall be treated as a LTCA, if it is held for more than 12 months
immediately preceding the date of its transfer.

2.2. Capital gains taxable under section 115AD of the IT Act would be computed without giving effect to the first
and second proviso to section 48. In other words, adjustment in respect of foreign exchange fluctuation and
benefit of indexation would not be allowed while computing the Capital Gains. The rate of income-tax
prescribed under the said section on capital gains income is as under:

(i) Short Term Capital Gains (other than gains covered under section 111A of the IT Act) — 30%
(if) Long Term Capital Gains —10%

2.3. Further, no deduction under Chapter VI-A would be allowed in computing LTCG subject to tax under section
115AD of the IT Act. Also, the capital gains will be computed by deducting expenditure incurred in connection
with such transfer and cost of acquisition of the NCDs from the sale consideration accrued to the respective
NCD holder.

2.4. As per the seventh proviso to section 48 of the IT Act, no deduction of amount paid on account of STT will be
allowed in computing the income chargeable to tax as Capital Gains.

2.5. A new section 50AA of the IT Act has been inserted by Finance Act 2023 for computation of capital gains in
case of inter alia Market Linked Debentures (MLDs) so as to tax the income from the same as short term capital
gains irrespective of their period of holding. The NCDs under consideration are not MLDs and thus, the said
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3.

section would not be applicable.
IN RESPECT OF WITHHOLDING TAXES

3.1. Interest on NCDs received by its holder would be subject to withholding tax at source at the time of credit or
payment, whichever is earlier as per the provisions of section 196D of the IT Act. The applicable income-tax
rate would be 20% (plus applicable surcharge and education cess) as provided under section 196D of the IT
Act, subject to treaty benefit entitlement.

3.2. In the absence of PAN of the debenture holder, tax would be deductible at higher of, rate specified under the
IT Act or the rates in force or 20% as per section 206AA of the IT Act. The provisions of section 206AA will,
however not apply if the non-resident debenture holder provides to the payer the following details as listed in
Rule 37BC:

(i) name, e-mail id, contact number;

(i) address in the country or specified territory outside India of which the debenture holder is a resident;
(iii) Tax Residency Certificate and form 10F to be filed electronically;

(iv) Tax Identification Number/ Unique Identification Number of the debenture holder.

3.3. Section 206AB of the IT Act provides for a higher withholding rate in case of any person (other than (a) a
nonresident who does not have a permanent establishment in India or (b) a person who is not required to furnish
the return of income for the assessment year relevant to the concerned previous year and is notified by the
Central Government in the Official Gazette in this behalf) who has not filed the return of income for assessment
year relevant to the previous year immediately preceding the financial year in which tax is required to be
deducted, for which the time limit for furnishing the return of income under sub-section (1) of section 139 of
the IT Act has expired and the aggregate of tax deducted at source and tax collected at source in his case is
rupees fifty thousand or more in the said previous year. The withholding tax rates in case of such person shall
be higher of the following:

(i) attwice the rate specified in the relevant provision of the IT Act; or
(if) at twice the rate or rates in force; or
(iii) at the rate of 5%.

Further, where the provisions of section 206 AA of the IT Act are applicable to such person, tax shall be deducted
at higher of the rates provided in section 206AB and in section 206 AA of the IT Act.

3.4. As per section 196D (2) of the IT Act, tax is not required to be deducted at source from any income, by way of
Capital Gains arising to a FIl from the transfer of securities referred to in section 115AD of the IT Act.

IN RESPECT OF SET OFF AND CARRY FORWARD OF LOSSES

4.1. As per section 70 of the IT Act, Short Term Capital Loss computed for the given year is allowed to be set off
against STCG as well as LTCG computed for the said year. The balance loss, which is not set off, is allowed
to be carried forward for subsequent eight assessment years, for being set off against subsequent years’ STCG
as well as LTCG, in terms of section 74 of the IT Act.

4.2. Long Term Capital Loss computed for a given year is allowed to be set off only against the LTCG, in terms of
section 70 of the IT Act. The balance loss, which is not set off, is allowed to be carried forward for subsequent
eight assessment years for being set off only against subsequent years’ LTCG, in terms of section 74 of the IT
Act.

MINIMUM ALTERNATE TAX

The provisions of section 115JB of the IT Act do not apply to a foreign company if it is a resident of a country with
which India has entered into a DTAA under section 90/90A of the IT Act and the Assessee does not have a Permanent
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Establishment in India or such company is a resident of a country with which India does not have such agreement
and the Assessee is not required to seek registration under any law for the time being in force, relating to companies.
Further, section 115JB of the IT Act expressly provides that the amount of income from (i) capital gains arising on
transactions in securities; or (ii) interest, dividend, royalty or fees for technical services chargeable to tax at the rates
specified in Chapter XII, accruing or arising to a foreign company shall not be liable to MAT if such income is
credited to the profit and loss account and the income-tax payable in accordance with the other provisions of the
Income-tax Act, is less than the rate specified in section 115JB of the IT Act. The expenditures, if any, debited to
the profit and loss account, corresponding to such income (which is to be excluded from the computation of book
profit) shall also be added back to the book profit for the purpose of computation of MAT under section 115JB of
the IT Act.

6. In case, where total income of any individual, AOP, BOI, Artificial Juridical Person includes any income inter alia
by way of capital gains referred under section 115AD(1)(b), the rate of surcharge on the amount of income-tax
computed in respect of such income shall not exceed 15%. The applicable rates of surcharge are tabulated hereunder:

Total Income Income other than dividend Dividend income and
income and capital gains capital gains covered
covered under section 111A, 112 | Under section 111A, 112
and 112A and 112A
Upto %50 lakh Nil Nil
Income exceeds % 50 lakhs but does not exceed 10% 10%
X1 crore
Income exceeds X1 crore but does not exceed 32 15% 15%
crore
Income exceeds X2 crore but does not exceed I5 25% 15%
crores
Income exceeds %5 crores 37%* 15%

#In case of any individual, HUF, AOP (other than a co-operative society), BOI, Artificial Juridical Person, Finance Act, 2023 has
made section 115BAC as the default tax regime w.e.f. AY 2024-25. Under this regime the highest rate of surcharge is restricted to
25%. There is an option to opt out of section 115BAC, in which case, the surcharge rate of 37% would be applicable. In case of
FlIs/FPls, the applicability of section 115BAC needs to be evaluated.

## Highest rate of surcharge in the case of AOP consisting of only companies as its members is 15%.

7.

(i)

As per section 90(2) of the IT Act, the provisions of the IT Act would prevail over the provisions of the DTAA
entered between India and the country of residence of the non-resident, if any, to the extent they are more beneficial
to the non-resident. Thus, a non-resident can opt to be governed by the provisions of the IT Act or the applicable tax
treaty (read with ML, if applicable), whichever is more beneficial. The treaty and MLI provide for various anti-
abuse provisions (viz. beneficial ownership, Limitation on Benefit, Principal Purpose Test, etc.) which have to be
examined for claiming treaty benefit. In order to avail treaty benefit, the non-resident will also have to furnish a Tax
Residency Certificate of his being a resident in a country outside India, along with Form No. 10F as prescribed under
section 90(5) of the IT Act. Further, vide Notification No. 03/2022 dated 16 July 2022, the Directorate of Income
Tax (Systems) has added Form 10F to the prescribed list of forms to be furnished electronically.

SPECIFIED FUNDS DEFINED UNDER SECTION 10(4D)(C) OF THE IT ACT

W.e.f. FY 2020-21, the provisions of section 115AD of the IT Act are extended to a ‘specified fund’ defined under

clause (c) of the Explanation to clause (4D) of section 10. ‘Specified fund’ is defined to mean

(a) a fund established or incorporated in India in the form of a trust or a company or a limited liability partnership
or a body corporate, —

(i) which has been granted a certificate of registration as a Category Il Alternative Investment Fund and is
regulated under the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Alternative Investment Fund) Regulations,
2012 made under the SEBI Act, 1992 or regulated under the IFSC (Fund Management) Regulations, 2022
made under the IFSC Authority Act, 2019;

(it) which is located in any International Financial Services Centre; and

(iii) of which all the units are held by non-residents other than unit held by a sponsor or manager;

(b) an investment division of an offshore banking unit, which has been—
(i) granted a certificate of registration as a Category | FPI under the SEBI (FPI), Regulations, 2019 made under
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the SEBI Act, 1992 which has commenced its operations on or before the 31st day of March, 2024; and
(if) fulfils such conditions including maintenance of separate accounts for its investment division, as may be
prescribed.

(iii) The rate of income-tax prescribed under section 115AD(1) on various streams of income is as under:

(i) Income in respect of securities inter alia debentures — 10%

(ii) Short Term Capital Gains covered under section 111A — 15%

(iii) Other Short Term Capital Gains — 30%

(iv) Long Term Capital Gains — 10%

The computation of income has to be in accordance with section 115AD and other applicable provisions of the IT
Act.

Further, sub-section (1B) of section 115AD of the IT Act states that notwithstanding anything contained in section
115AD(1), in case of investment division of an offshore banking unit, the provisions of this section shall apply to
the extent of income that is attributable to the investment division of such banking units.

The provisions of section 115AD of the IT Act shall apply only to the extent of income that is attributable to units
held by non- resident (not being a permanent establishment of a non-resident in India) calculated in the prescribed
manner.

Further, as per section 115JEE of the IT Act, the provisions of Alternate Minimum Tax shall not apply to such
specified funds.

Section 196D(1A) of the IT Act provides for deduction of tax on any income in respect of securities referred to in
section 115AD(1)(a) at the rate of 10% (plus applicable surcharge and education cess). Provided that no deduction
shall be made in respect of an income exempt under section 10(4D) of the IT Act. In the absence of PAN, TDS rate
would be increased to 20% as per section 206 AA of the IT Act.

E. Investment Funds —. Category | or Category Il Alternative Investment Fund (“AlF”):

1.

Under section 10(23FBA) of the IT Act, any income of an Investment Fund, other than the income chargeable
under the head “Profits and gains of business or profession” would be exempt from income tax. For this purpose,
an “Investment Fund” means any fund established or incorporated in India in the form of a trust or a company or
a limited liability partnership or a body corporate which has been granted a certificate of registration as Category
| or Category Il Alternative Investment Fund and is regulated under the Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Alternate Investment Fund) Regulations, 2012 or regulated under the IFSC (Fund Management) Regulations, 2022
made under the IFSC Authority Act, 2019.

As per section 115UB(1) of the IT Act, any income accruing/arising/received by a person from his investment in
Investment Fund would be taxable in the hands of the person making an investment in the same manner as if it
were the income accruing/arising/received by such person had the investments been made directly in the venture
capital undertaking.

In case, the Fund incurs any losses, only the business losses would be eligible to be carried forward and set-off by
the Fund at the Fund level. The prescribed conditions laid down under the IT Act for carry forward and set off of
losses should be applicable to the Fund in this regard.

Losses other than business loss shall be allowed to be carried forward and set-off by the Unit holders while
computing the total tax liability, provided that the units of the Fund are held for a period of more than 12 months.
Further, such loss cannot be carried forward at Fund level even if the loss is not passed onto the Investors on
account of non - fulfilment of condition of holding the units for at least 12 months. The eligible period for carry
forward of losses would depend on the nature of loss.

Section 115UB of the IT Act further provides that:

(i) Income paid or credited by Fund shall be deemed to be of the same nature and in the same proportion in the
hands of the Investors as it had been received by or had accrued or arisen to Fund.

(ii) Income accruing or arising to, or received by, Fund, during a particular financial year, if not paid or credited
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to the Investors shall be deemed to be credited to the account of the Investors on the last day of the financial
year in the same proportion in which such Investors would have been entitled to receive the income, had it
been paid in the same financial year.

5. As per section 10(23FBB) read with section 115UB of the IT Act, any business income, accruing or arising to or
received by Investors of the Fund, shall be exempt in the hands of the Investors and taxed in the hands of the Fund
at the rates specified in the Finance Act of the relevant year where the Investment Fund is a company or a firm and
at maximum marginal rate in any other case.

Income received by Fund which is exempt in its hand under section 10(23FBA) would not be subjected to any
withholding tax by virtue of section 197A(1F) read with Notification N0.51/2015/SO1703(E) dated June 25, 2015.

6. Further, as per section 194LBB of the IT Act, where any income, other than that proportion of income which is of
the same nature as income referred to in section 10(23FBB) of the IT Act, is payable to a unit holder in respect of
units of an Investment Fund, the person responsible for making the payment shall, at the time of credit of such
income to the account of payee or at the time of payment thereof in cash or by issue of a cheque or draft or by any
other mode, whichever is earlier, deduct income-tax thereon:

(i) at the rate of 10% where the payee is a resident; and
(ii) at the rates in force where the payee is a non-resident.
F. Mutual Funds:

Under section 10(23D) of the IT Act, any income of mutual funds registered under SEBI or Regulations made
thereunder or mutual funds set up by public sector banks or public financial institutions or mutual funds authorized
by the Reserve Bank of India and subject to the conditions specified therein, is exempt from tax subject to such
conditions as the Central Government may by notification in the Official Gazette, specify in this behalf.

G. Provident Fund and Pension Fund, etc.:

Under section 10(25) of the IT Act, following incomes are exempt:

(M interest on securities which are held by, or are the property of, any provident fund to which the Provident
Funds Act, 1925 (19 of 1925), applies, and any capital gains of the fund arising from the sale, exchange or
transfer of such securities;

(i) any income received by the trustees on behalf of a recognised provident fund;

(iii) any income received by the trustees on behalf of an approved superannuation fund.;

(iv) any income received by the trustees on behalf of an approved gratuity fund,;

(V) any income received—

(@) by the Board of Trustees constituted under the Coal Mines Provident Funds and Miscellaneous
Provisions Act, 1948 (46 of 1948), on behalf of the Deposit-linked Insurance Fund established under
section 3Gof that Act; or

(b) by the Board of Trustees constituted under the Employees' Provident Funds and Miscellaneous
Provisions Act, 1952 (19 of 1952), on behalf of the Deposit-linked Insurance Fund established under
section 6C of that Act;

H. Withholding taxes on Purchase of Goods
As per section 194Q of the IT Act, any sum payable by a buyer for purchase of goods of the value exceeding Rs. 50
Lakhs shall be liable to withhold tax at the rate of 0.1 percent. Buyer means a person whose total sales, turnover or
gross receipts from the business carried on by him exceeds Rs. 10 crores in the financial year immediately preceding
the financial year in which the purchase is carried out. Further, TDS shall not be applicable where: -

(i) Tax is deductible under any of the provisions of the IT Act; or

(if) Tax is collectible under the provisions of section 206C of the IT Act other than a transaction to which section
206C(1H) of the IT Act applies.

The CBDT has issued Circular No 13 of 2021 dated June 30, 2021 laying down guidelines under section 194Q of the IT
Act. It inter alia provides that TDS under section 194Q of the IT Act shall not apply to transaction in securities and
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commodities which are traded through recognized stock exchanges or cleared and settled by the recognized clearing
corporation (including exchanges or corporation located in IFSC).

Given that the Circular does not provide clarity in respect of shares/ securities traded off-market, it is advisable that the
subscribers obtain specific advice from their tax advisors regarding applicability of these provisions.

Further, the CBDT has also inter alia clarified that the section 194Q of the IT Act shall not apply to a non - resident
buyer, whose purchase of goods from a seller, resident in India, is not effectively connected with the permanent
establishment of such non-resident in India.

For this purpose, ‘permanent establishment’ shall mean to include a fixed place of business through which the business
of the enterprise is wholly or partly carried on.

|. General Anti Avoidance Rules (“GAAR”)

The General Anti Avoidance Rules (“GAAR”) were introduced in the IT Act by the Finance Act, 2012. The Finance Act,
2015 made the provisions of GAAR applicable prospectively from 1 April 2017. Further, income accruing, arising,
deemed to accrue or arise or received or deemed to be received by any person from transfer of investments made up to
31 March 2017 would be protected from the applicability of GAAR.

J.  Documents required in cases of lower/ non-deduction of TDS due to exemption available
Tax will be deducted at source at reduced rate, or no tax will be deducted at source in the following cases:

a.  When the Assessing Officer issues a certificate on an application by a Debenture Holder on satisfaction that the total
income of the Debenture holder justifies no/lower deduction of tax at source as per the provisions of Section 197(1)
of the IT Act; and that a valid certificate is filed with the Company before the prescribed date of closure of books for
payment of debenture interest;

b. When the resident Debenture Holder with Permanent Account Number (‘PAN’) (not being a company or a firm)
submits a declaration as per the provisions of section 197A(1A) of the IT Act in the prescribed Form 15G verified
in the prescribed manner to the effect that the tax on his estimated total income of the financial year in which such
income is to be included in computing his total income will be NIL. However, as per section 197A(1B) of the IT
Act, provisions of section 197A(1) and 197A(1A) of the IT Act shall not apply if the aggregate of the amounts of
incomes referred under said sub-sections, gets credited or paid or likely to be credited or paid during the financial
year in which such income is to be included exceeds the maximum amount which is not chargeable to income tax;

c. Senior citizens, who are 60 or more years of age at any time during the financial year, enjoy the special privilege to
submit a self-declaration in the prescribed Form 15H for non-deduction of tax at source in accordance with the
provisions of section 197A(1C) of the Act even if the aggregate income credited or paid or likely to be credited or
paid exceeds the maximum amount not chargeable to tax, provided that the tax due on the estimated total income of
the year concerned will be NIL; and

d. Inall other situations, tax would be deducted at source as per prevailing provisions of the IT Act. Please find below
the class of resident investors and respective documents that would be required for granting TDS exemption, unless
specified otherwise hereinabove:

Sl Class of Investors Relevant Section which grants | Documents to be taken on record
No. TDS exemption from Investors

1. | Any person other than | Claiming non-deduction or lower | Declaration in form No0.15G with

company or firm deduction of tax at source under | PAN / Certificate issued under

section 193 of the IT Act, section 197(1) of the IT Act has to

be filed with the Company.
2. | Individuals having age of Declaration in form No.15H with
60 years or more PAN / Certificate issued under

section 197(1) of the IT Act has to
be filed with the Company

3. | Non-residents- (Other For Non-deduction or lower | A certificate under section 197 of
than deduction of tax at source u/s 195 | the IT Act from the Indian Assessing
Flls/FPIs) of the IT Act Officer for nil / lower deduction of
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Sl Class of Investors Relevant Section which grants | Documents to be taken on record
No. TDS exemption from Investors
tax at source by making an
application in the prescribed form
(i.e. Form No.13.)
4, | Life insurance Corporation | Clause vi of Proviso to Section Copy of Registration certificate
of India 193
5. | General Insurance | Clause vii of Proviso to Section | Copy of Registration certificate
Corporation  of  India, | 193 Copy of shareholding pattern
companies formed under
section 16(1) of General
Insurance Business Act,
1972 and company in
which  GIC has full
beneficial interest (100%
shareholding)
6. | Any Insurer (like SBI Life | Clause viii of Proviso to Section | Copy of Registration certificate
Insurance,  Max  Life | 193 issued by IRDA
Insurance etc.)
7. | Mutual Funds Section 196(iv) read with Section | Copy of Registration certificate
10(23D) issued by SEBI / RBI and
notification issued by Central
Government
8. | Government, RBI and | Section 196(i), (ii) and (iii) In case of Corporation, Declaration
corporation established that their income is exempt from tax
under Central Act whose with applicable provisions
income is exempt from tax
9. | Recognized Provident | Section 10(25) and 10(25A) and | Copy  of  Registration  and
Funds, Recognized | CBDT Circular - 18/2017 Recognition certificate issued by
Gratuity Funds, Approved relevant statutory authorities and
Superannuation Funds, income-tax authorities and
Employees’ State Insurance Declaration from the funds that their
Fund etc. income is exempt u/s 10(25) and
10(25A)
10. | New Pension System Trust | Section 10(44) read with Section | Relevant Registration certificate
196(iii) and CBDT Circular - | issued to NPS Trust under section
18/2017 Indian Trusts Act, 1882
11. | Other entities like Local Section 10(20), etc. read with Declaration that they fall within the
authority, Regimental CBDT Circular - 18/2017 relevant income-tax section and
Funds, IRDA etc. eligible for income-tax exemption
on their income
12. | Alternative Investment Section 197A(1F) Copy of Registration certificate
Funds (Category | and issued by SEBI
1))

Note 1 — Tax rates

Individuals and Hindu Undivided Families:

The FA, 2023 has amended section 115BAC of the IT Act by, inter alia, inserting sub-section (1A) thereto to provide
that the tax regime provided under section 115BAC of the IT Act shall be the default tax regime applicable in case of an
individual, HUF, AOP (other than a co-operative society), body of individual or artificial juridical, beginning with the
financial year 2023-24, except where the assessee specifically opts to be governed by the erstwhile regime.

In such cases, the following shall be the rate of tax applicable:

Slab
Total income up to INR 3,00,000 Nil
More than INR 3,00,000 but up to INR 6,00,000 5 per cent of excess over INR 3,00,000
More than INR 6,00,000 but up to INR 9,00,000 10 per cent of excess over INR 6,00,000 + INR 15,000

Tax Rate
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More than INR 9,00,000 but up to INR 12,00,000 15 per cent of excess over INR 9,00,000 + INR 45,000
More than INR 12,00,000 but up to INR 15,00,000 20 per cent of excess over INR 12,00,000 + INR 90,000
More than INR 15,00,000 30 per cent of excess over INR 15,00,000 + INR 1,50,000

In computing the income-tax under the new regime, only few deductions like standard deduction available to salaried
taxpayers, etc., shall be allowed. Whereas most of the deductions/exemptions such as section 80C, 80D, etc. would need
to be foregone.

A resident individual (whose total income does not exceed Rs 7,00,000) whose income is chargeable to tax under sub-
section (1A) of section 115BAC can avail rebate under section 87A, of the IT Act. It is deductible from income tax before
calculating health and education cess. The amount of rebate available would be 100 per cent of income-tax chargeable
on his total income or Rs 25,000, whichever is less. Further, where the total income exceeds Rs 7,00,000, the assessee
shall be entitled for deduction of an amount equal to the amount by which the income-tax payable on the total income
exceeds the amount by which the total income exceeds Rs 7,00,000.

Where the assessee as stated above, specifically opts to be governed by the erstwhile regime, the income earned by
assessee should be liable to tax as per the applicable slab rates (plus applicable surcharge and health and education cess)
based on the taxable income of such assessee. The slab rates applicable to such investors (other than resident individuals
aged 60 years or more) are as follows:

Income Tax Rate*
Up to INR 2,50,000# NIL
Exceeding INR 2,550,000 up to INR |5 per cent of the amount by which the total income exceeds INR
5,00,000@ 2,50,000
Exceeding INR 5,00,000 up to INR 10,00,000 | 20 per cent of the amount by which the total income exceeds INR
5,00,000 plus INR 12,500%
Exceeding INR 10,00,000 30 per cent of the amount by which the total income exceeds INR
10,00,000 plus INR 112,500%
@A resident individual (whose total income does not exceed Rs 500,000) can avail rebate under section 87A. It is deductible from
income tax before calculating health and education cess. The amount of rebate available would be 100 per cent of income tax
chargeable on his total income or Rs 12,500, whichever is less.

* Plus surcharge if applicable and a health and education cess (‘cess’) of 4 per cent on the amount of tax plus surcharge, if
applicable). # for resident senior citizens of sixty years of age and above but below eighty years of age, Rs 250,000 has to be read as
Rs 300,000 and for resident senior citizens of eighty years of age and above (“super senior citizen”’) Rs 250,000’ has to be read as Rs
500,000.

$Similarly, for resident senior citizens of sixty years of age and above but below eighty years of age, Rs 12,500 has to be read as Rs
10,000 and Rs 112,500 has to be read as Rs 110,000. And for super senior citizen Rs 12,500 has to be read as Nil and Rs 112,500 has
to be read as Rs 100,000.

1. PARTNERSHIP FIRMS & LLP’S:

The tax rates applicable would be 30 per cent (plus surcharge if applicable — Refer Note 2 and a health and education
cess of 4 per cent on the amount of tax plus surcharge, if applicable).

2. DOMESTIC COMPANIES:

Type of Domestic company Base normal tax rate on Base MAT
income (other than income Rate
chargeable at special
rates)

Domestic companies having turnover or gross receipts of- upto Rs 400 25 per cent | 15 per cent
CrinFY 2020-21 (For AY 2023-24) and in FY 2021-22 (For AY 2024-
25)
Domestic manufacturing company set-up and registered on or after 1 25 per cent | 15 per cent
March 2016 subject to fulfilment of prescribed conditions (Section
115BA)
Any domestic company (even if an existing company or engaged in 22 per cent Not
non-manufacturing business) has an option to avail beneficial rate, applicable
subject to fulfilment of prescribed conditions (Section 115BAA)
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Domestic manufacturing company set-up and registered on or after 1 15 per cent Not
October 2019 and commences manufacturing upto 31 March 2024, has applicable
an option to avail beneficial rate, subject to fulfilment of prescribed

conditions (Section 115BAB)

Domestic companies not falling under any of the above Category 30 per cent | 15 per cent

Note 2: Surcharge (as applicable to the tax charged on income)

Non-corporate assessees (other than firm, co-operative societies and Flls):

Particulars

Rate of Surcharge

Where total income (including dividend income and income under
the provisions of section 111A, section 112A and section 112 of the
IT Act) does not exceed Rs 50 lacs

Nil

Where total income (including dividend income and income under
the provisions of section 111A, section 112A and section 112 of the
IT Act) exceeds Rs 50 lacs but does not exceed Rs 1 crore

10 per cent on total tax

Where total income (including dividend income and income under
the provisions of section 111A section 112A and section 112 of the
IT Act) exceeds Rs 1 crore but does not exceed Rs 2 crore

15 per cent on total tax

Where total income (excluding dividend income and income under
the provisions of section 111A, section 112A and 112 of the IT Act)
does not exceed Rs 2 crore but total income (including dividend
income and income under the provisions of section 111A, section
112A and 112 of the IT Act) exceeds Rs 2 crore

15 per cent on total tax The Finance Act, 2022
from FY 2022-23 has capped the surcharge rates
for long term gains chargeable to tax under
section 112 of the IT Act.

Where total income (excluding dividend income and income under
the provisions of section 111A, section 112A and section 112 of the
IT Act) exceeds Rs 2 crore

25 per cent on tax on income excluding dividend
income and income under the provisions of
section 111A, section 112A and section 112 of
the IT Act. In case the assessee opts out of Sec
115BAC then the rate of surcharge applicable is
37 percent. - 15 per cent on tax on dividend
income and income under the provisions of
section 111A section 112A and section 112 of
the IT Act.

The Finance Act, 2022 from FY 2022-23 has
capped the surcharge rates for long term gains
chargeable to tax under section 112 of the IT Act
as well.

Note: The Finance Act, 2022 from FY 2022-23 has capped the surcharge rates for long-term gains chargeable to tax

under section 112 of the IT Act as well.

As per the FA, 2023, the maximum surcharge rate in case of capital gains chargeable to tax under section 112 of the IT
Act, in case of an assessee being an individual, HUF, AOP (not being a co-operative society), BOI or artificial juridical

person is also capped to 15%.

3. Flls (NON - CORPORATE):

Particulars

Rate of Surcharge

Where total income (including dividend income or income | Nil
of the nature referred to in section 115AD(1)(b) of the IT

Act) does not exceed Rs 50 lacs

Where total income (including dividend income or income
of the nature referred to in section 115AD(1)(b) of the IT
Act) exceeds Rs 50 lacs but does not exceed Rs 1 crore

10 per cent on total tax

Where total income (including dividend income or income
of the nature referred to in section 115AD(1)(b) of the IT
Act) exceeds Rs 1 crore but does not exceed Rs 2 crore

15 per cent on total tax

Where total income (excluding dividend income or income
of the nature referred to in section 115AD(1)(b) of the IT

15 per cent on total tax
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Act) does not exceed Rs 2 crore but total income (including
dividend income or income of the nature referred to in
section 115AD(1)(b) of the IT Act) exceeds Rs 2 crore
Where total income (excluding dividend income or income | - 25 per cent on tax on income excluding dividend
of the nature referred to in section 115AD(1)(b) of the IT | income or income of the nature referred to in section
Act) exceeds Rs 2 crore 115AD(1)(b) of the IT Act. In case the assessee opts out
of Sec 115BAC then the rate of surcharge applicable is
37 percent. - 15 per cent on tax on dividend income or
income of the nature referred to in section 115AD(1)(b)
of the IT Act

4. FOR ASSESSES OTHER THAN THOSE COVERED ABOVE:

Particulars Rate of surcharge applicable
Non-corporate taxpayers and cooperative societies | Nil where total income does not exceed Rs 1 crore
From FY 2022-23 7 per cent where total income exceeds Rs 1
crore but does not exceed Rs 10 crore
From FY 2022-23 12 per cent where total income exceeds Rs 10

crore
Non-corporate taxpayers being firms Nil where total income does not exceed Rs 1 crore
12 per cent where total income exceeds Rs 1 Crore
Domestic companies (other than companies Nil where total income does not exceed Rs 1 crore
availing benefit under section 115BAA and 7 per cent where total income exceeds Rs 1 crore but does not
section 115BAB of the IT Act) exceed Rs 10 crore
12 per cent where total income exceeds Rs 10 crore
Domestic companies availing benefit under 10 per cent (irrespective of total income)
section 115BAA and section 115BAB of the IT
Act
Foreign Companies (including corporate FlIs) Nil where total income does not exceed Rs 1 crore

2 per cent where total income exceeds Rs 1 crore but does not
exceed Rs 10 crore
5 per cent where total income exceeds Rs 10 crore

A health and education cess of 4 per cent is payable on the total amount of tax plus surcharge.

Notes:

* The above statement sets out the provisions of law in a summary manner only and is not a complete analysis or listing of all potential
tax consequences of the purchase, ownership and disposal of NCD.

* The above statement covers only certain relevant direct tax law benefits and does not cover benefit under any other law.

* The above statement of possible tax benefits is as per the current direct tax laws (read along with the amendments made by the FA,
2023) relevant for the AY 2024-25 corresponding to the FY 2023-24.

* This statement is intended only to provide general information to the investors and is neither designed nor intended to be a substitute
for professional tax advice. In view of the individual nature of tax consequences, each investor is advised to consult his/her own tax
advisor with respect to specific tax consequences of his/her investment in the NCD of the Company.

« In respect of non-residents, the tax rates and consequent taxation mentioned above will be further subject to any benefits available
under the relevant DTAA, if any, between India and the country in which the nonresident has fiscal domicile.

* No assurance is given that the revenue authorities/courts will concur with the views expressed herein. Our views are based on the
existing provisions of law and its interpretation, which are subject to changes from time to time. We do not assume responsibility to
update the views consequent to such changes.

NOTES FORMING PART OF STATEMENT OF TAX BENEFITS

1. The above Statement sets out the provisions of law in a summary manner only and is not a complete analysis or
listing of all potential tax consequences of the purchase, ownership and disposal of debenture/bonds.

2. The above statement covers only certain relevant benefits under the IT Act and does not cover benefits under any
other law.

3. The above statement of possible tax benefits is as per the current direct tax laws relevant for the Assessment Year
2024-2025 (Financial year 2023-24) and taking into account the amendments made by the Finance Act, 2023.

4. This statement is intended only to provide general information to Debenture Holders and is neither designed nor
intended to be a substitute for professional tax advice. In view of the individual nature of tax consequences, each
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debenture Holder is advised to consult his/her/its own tax advisor with respect to specific consequences of his/her/its
holding in the debentures of the Company.

5. Several of the above tax benefits are dependent on the debenture holders fulfilling the conditions prescribed under
the relevant tax laws and subject to Chapter X and Chapter XA of the IT Act.

6. The stated benefits will be available only to the sole/ first named holder in case the debenture is held by joint holders.

7. In respect of non-residents, the tax rates and consequent taxation mentioned above will be further subject to any
benefits available under the relevant tax treaty, if any, between India and the country in which the non-resident has
fiscal domicile.

8. Inrespect of non-residents, taxes paid in India could be claimed as a credit in accordance with the provisions of the
relevant tax treaty and applicable domestic tax law.

No assurance is given that the revenue authorities/ courts will concur with the views expressed herein. Our views are
based on the existing provisions of law and its interpretation, which are subject to changes from time to time. We do not
assume responsibility to update the views consequent to such changes. We shall not be liable to any claims, liabilities or
expenses relating to this assignment except to the extent of fees relating to this assignment, as finally judicially determined
to have resulted primarily from bad faith or intentional misconduct. We will not be liable to any other person in respect
of this statement.
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SECTION IV - ABOUT OUR COMPANY
INDUSTRY OVERVIEW

Unless otherwise indicated, the industry and market data contained in this section is derived from the report titled
“Report on Microfinance Industry in India” dated November 2023 prepared by CRISIL Limited, and which has been
exclusively commissioned by our Company in connection with the Issue (“CRISIL Report”). The data may have been
re-classified by us for the purposes of presentation. Industry sources and publications are also prepared based on
information as of specific dates and may no longer be current or reflect current trends. Industry sources and publications
may also base their information on estimates, projections, forecasts, and assumptions that may prove to be incorrect.
Accordingly, investors must rely on their independent examination of, and should not place undue reliance on, or base
their investment decision solely on this information. The recipient should not construe any of the contents in this report
as advice relating to business, financial, legal, taxation or investment matters and are advised to consult their own
business, financial, legal, taxation, and other advisors concerning the transaction. While preparing its report, CRISIL
Limited has also sourced information from publicly available sources, including our Company’s financial information
available publicly. However, financial information relating to our Company presented in other sections of this Draft
Prospectus has been prepared in accordance with Ind AS and restated in accordance with the SEBI ICDR Regulations.
Accordingly, the financial information of our Company in this section is not comparable with Ind AS financial
information presented elsewhere in this Draft Prospectus.

A copy of the CRISIL Report is available on the website of our Company at www.satincreditcare.com. Also see “Certain
Conventions, Use of Financial, Industry and Market Data and Currency of Presentation ”, “Industry Overview” and
“Risk Factors — Industry information included in this Draft Prospectus has been derived from an industry report
prepared by CRISIL and exclusively commissioned and paid for by us for such purpose” on pages 13, 98 and 39,
respectively.

OVERVIEW OF MACROECONOMIC SCENARIO IN INDIA
India to remain one of the fastest growing economies amid global slowdowns

India has shown a fair degree of resilience to the four Cs affecting the global economy — COVID-19, conflict
(geopolitical), climate change, and central bank actions — Despite global slowdown, tightening of monetary conditions,
and high inflation, India recorded a higher economic growth rate compared to many peer economies owing to its relatively
strong local consumption, limited reliance on global demand, and continued resilience macro tailwinds. The growth
pattern though, highlights two key features- faster recovery and resilience. Fired by the superlative performance of
agriculture and continued resilience of construction and services, gross domestic product (GDP) growth in the fourth
quarter of fiscal 2023 was revised to 6.1% from 5.1% estimated earlier. That lifted the growth number for fiscal 2023 to
7.2%. However, nominal GDP growth of India tapered to 10.4% year-on-year during Q4 FY23, from 11.4% year-on-
year in Q3 FY23, due to the price-effect (GDP deflator slowed to 4.1% from 6.6%). India is expected to remain the fastest
growing economy in the world, with GDP growth projected at 6.0% in fiscal 2024 as per CRISIL MI&A. Multiple risks
remain to the growth outlook including sluggish exports and lagged impact of rate hikes on the economy.

India’s economy to grow at 6.0% in fiscal 2024
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Over the past three fiscals, Indian economy has outperformed its global counterparts by witnessing a faster growth. Going
forward as well, IMF projects that Indian economy will remain strong and would continue to be one of the fastest growing
economies.

India is among the fastest-growing major economies (GDP growth, % year-on-year)
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years, P: Projected

Source: IMF (World Economic Outlook — October 2023 update), CRISIL MI&A

Macroeconomic outlook for Fiscal 2024

Macro variables FY23 FY24P Rationale for outlook

GDP (y-0-y) |7.2% | 6.0% |Slowing global growth is likely to weaken India’s exports in Fiscal 2024. Domestic
demand could also come under pressure as Reserve Bank of India (RBI) rate hikes
are transmitted to consumers. Despite the lower forecast, India continuous to grow
at highest rate in world.

Consumer price | 6.7% | 5.5% |Lower commodity prices, base effect, and cooling off domestic demand is likely to

index (CPI) help in moderating inflation in Fiscal 2024.

inflation (y-o0-y)
10-year 7.4% | 7.0% |A moderate increase in gross market borrowings is budgeted for Fiscal 2024. This,

Government coupled with lower inflation, is likely to moderate yields in Fiscal 2024.

security yield

(Fiscal end)

CAD (Current |-2.0% | -1.8% |Lower commodity prices, especially in energy space and support from healthy
account services exports is expected to lead to moderation of trade deficit in Fiscal 2024
balance)/ GDP
(%)
Rs/$ (March | 82.3 | 83.0 |While a lower current account deficit (CAD) will support the rupee, challenging
average) external financing conditions will continue to exert pressure in the next Fiscal.
However, the overall impact on the rupee is expected to remain below the levels
indicated by current forward premiums for the year.

Note: P — Projected
Source: Reserve Bank of India (RBI), National Statistics Office (NSO), CRISIL MI&A

OVERALL CREDIT SCENARIO IN INDIA

Systemic credit to grow at 10%-12% CAGR between 2023-2025
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Corporate credit determines the growth in overall credit as it accounts for nearly two-third of systemic credit. The
slowdown in economic activity, coupled with heightened risk aversion among lenders, tightened the overall credit growth
to approximately 6.6% in Fiscal 2020. In Fiscal 2021, credit grew by ~6.4% supported by disbursements to MSMEs
under the Emergency Credit Line Guarantee Scheme (ECLGS) and an uptick in economic activity post the COVID-19
lockdown. In Fiscal 2022, the systemic credit growth picked up steam despite the second wave of COVID-19 hurting
economic growth in the first quarter of the Fiscal. The systemic credit grew at 9% from the previous year to reach
approximately Rs. 165 trillion. The growth was mainly driven by the budgetary push towards investments, pick-up in
private investment, and business activity also slowly humming back to pre-COVID-19 levels. In Fiscal 2023, Systemic
credit showed strong growth on back of pent-up retail demand from sectors like housing and auto. Credit demand also
grew due to strong credit demand from NBFCs and trade segment. CRISIL MI&A projects systemic credit to grow at
10-12% CAGR between Fiscals 2023 and 2025.

Systemic credit to grow by 10-12% between fiscal 2023 & fiscal 2025
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Source: RBI, Company Reports, CRISIL MI&A

While systemic credit in India grew at a tepid rate of 9.8% CAGR annually between Fiscals 2018 and Fiscal 2023,
systemic retail credit grew at a much faster rate of 14.3% CAGR during the same period. Retail credit growth in Fiscal
2020 was around approximately 16.3% which came down to approximately 9.5% in Fiscal 2021. However, post-
pandemic, retail credit growth revived back to reach approximately 11.3% in Fiscal 2022. CRISIL MI&A estimates retail
credit to have grown at ~19-20% year on year in Fiscal 2023. CRISIL MI&A thus expects retail credit growth to continue
in the long term with banks and NBFCs’ continued focus on the segment.

Retail segment is estimated to account for 32% of Retail credit growth to continue a strong footing in

overall systemic credit as of Fiscal 2023 Fiscal 2024
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Note: P = Projected
Source: RBI, CRISIL MI&A

Credit penetration in India
Impact of digitization on retail credit

Digital lending products such as instant loans or online personal loans have completely revolutionised retail credit due to
great convenience that it offers to the customers. Lenders are increasingly using their web platforms and creating apps to
register, score, approve and disburse loans to their customers. For lenders, digitization has enabled them to make informed
decision making through business insight generation and data visualization. Moreover, it has improved lead generation
for lenders with faster onboarding of customers, comprehensive loan servicing, and fraud detection. For customers, it has
become easier to gather information about different lenders with the help of digitization and compare them. Further,
online loan application has made it convenient for borrowers to fill loan applications from remote locations, calculate
EMIs, check for eligibility of loan amount and provide all documents digitally which enhances customer experience
throughout the process and help them make an informed decision.

Impact of digitization on various asset classes
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Source: CRISIL MI&A

Digitization has played key role across value chain for different retail loan products. Customer acquisition, onboarding
and credit assessment processes have been influenced by digitization, particularly for unsecured consumer loans,
microfinance, MSME loans and mortgage loans. Online documentation has made it highly convenient for customers for
availing unsecured consumer loans. MFIs have reported faster disbursements owing to digitization; however, collections
were not affected much as MFI collections are largely cash-based. Due to digitization, retail credit has risen rapidly over
the last five fiscals and their share in the overall banking credit mix have been expanding. Going forward, retail credit is
expected to continue its strong growth led by digitization and increased credit demand.

Current scenario and key developments
Rural India — Under penetration and untapped market presents a huge opportunity for growth for financiers

Credit to metropolitan areas has decreased over the past few years with its share decreasing from 66% as of March 31,
2018, to 62% as of June 30, 2023. Between the same period, credit share has witnessed a marginal rise in rural and urban
areas. For semi-urban areas, credit share has gone up from 12% as of March 31, 2018, to 13% as of June 30, 2023.

As of March 31, 2023, rural areas, which accounted for 47% of GDP, received just 8% of the overall banking credit,
which shows the vast market opportunity for banks and NBFCs to lend in these areas. With increasing focus of
government towards financial inclusion, rising financial awareness, increasing smartphone and internet penetration,
CRISIL MI&A expects delivery of credit services in rural area to increase. Further, usage of alternative data to underwrite
customers will also help the financiers to assess customers and cater to the informal sections of the society in these
regions.
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Share of rural and semi-urban credit has increased marginally between March 31, 2018, and June 30, 2023
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New to credit (NTC) customer - High credit gap in the segment

One of the most compelling reasons for financial institutions, especially NBFCs, to target the NTC market is the
enormous credit gap that exists in India. Millions of individuals, especially in rural and semi-urban areas, remain excluded
from the formal credit system. This credit gap results from a lack of access to traditional banking services, limited credit
history, and various other socio-economic factors.

e Emerging Middle Class: As India's middle class continues to grow, many people who were previously unbanked
are now entering the formal economy. Financial institutions can cater to their financial needs, including personal
loans, small business loans, and more.

¢ Digital Transformation: The proliferation of smartphones and digital infrastructure has made it easier for financial

institutions to assess the creditworthiness of NTC customers using alternative data sources.
Within financial institutions, non-banking financial institutions (NBFCs) are relatively better placed owing to their
faster decision making, specialized/ customised product offerings and robust credit underwriting process. Within
NBFCs, large NBFCs have several advantages that make them well-placed to tap into the NTC market. Some of the
ways in which their size and resources provide a competitive edge are:

e Financial Strength: Large NBFCs typically have more significant financial resources and capital compared to
smaller entities. This financial strength enables them to offer a wide range of financial products and services to NTC
customers and support their growth initiatives.

e Technological Infrastructure: They can invest in advanced technological infrastructure, allowing them to provide
digital services and streamline the customer onboarding and loan approval processes, which are critical for serving
NTC customers efficiently.

e Data Analytics and Risk Assessment: Over the years large NBFCs have developed data analytics and risk
assessment models, which are essential for evaluating the creditworthiness of NTC customers who may not have a
conventional credit history. These models can utilize alternative data sources for more accurate risk assessment.

e Wide Geographic Reach: Large NBFCs often have a broad network of branches and customer touchpoints across
different regions. This extensive presence facilitates outreach to NTC customers, especially in rural and semi-urban
areas.

e Brand Recognition: Recognizable and established brands tend to instil trust in customers. Large NBFCs often enjoy
a higher level of brand recognition, which can be advantageous when reaching out to NTC customers, many of whom
may be unfamiliar with financial institutions.

e Diverse Product Portfolio: Their diverse product portfolio enables large NBFCs to cater to the specific needs and
preferences of NTC customers. They can offer various loan types, such as personal loans, small business loans, and
consumer finance, tailored to different customer segments.

Indigenous advantages to lift economic growth rate in longer term
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Growing population - An asset to the economy

As per the report published (in July 2020) by the National Population Commission, Ministry of Health and Family
Welfare, India’s population in 2011 was 121 crores, comprising ~24.6 crore households. The decadal growth rate during
2001-2011 stood at 17%. This is estimated to have fallen to 12% during 2011-2021 and is likely to decline further to 9%
during 2021-2031. However, with the country’s population in 2030 estimated at 147 crores, India will continue to be a
major opportunity market from a demand perspective.

India’s population growth trajectory (billion)

121 1.28 1.35 139 1.41 1.47

0.85 18

0.36 0-55
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Note: P — Projected, E — Estimates
Source: Census of India 2011, Ministry of Health and Family Welfare, CRISIL MI&A

Favourable demographics
India has one of the world’s largest youth populations, with a median age of 28 years. About 90% of Indians are below
60 years of age. It is estimated that 64% of this population is aged between 15 and 59 years. CRISIL MI&A expects that

the large share of working population, coupled with rapid urbanisation and rising affluence, will propel growth in the
economy.

India’s demographic division (share of different age groups in population)
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61% 63% 64% 65% 65%
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m(0-14 years 15-59 years 60+ years
Note: P — Projected, E — Estimates
Source: Census of India 2011, Ministry of Health and Family Welfare, CRISIL MI&A

Urbanisation on the rise

Urbanisation is a key growth driver for India, supporting faster infrastructure development, job creation, development of
modern consumer services, and the city’s ability to mobilise savings. The share of urban population in total population
has been rising consistently and is expected to reach 35% by 2023 from 31% in 2011, spurring demand. Urban
consumption in India has shown signs of improvement, and given the country’s favourable demographics, coupled with
rising disposable incomes, the trend is likely to continue and help domestic economic growth.
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Urbanisation population as a percentage of total population in India

= 32%
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Note: P — Projected, E — Estimates
Source: Census of India 2011, Ministry of Health and Family Welfare, CRISIL MI&A

Household savings decreasing yet higher than world average

According to the World Bank, the savings rate, or the proportion of gross domestic savings (GDS) in India’s GDP has
trended downward in the past decade. India’s GDS peaked at 34.4% of the GDP in fiscal 2007 and dipped to 32.8% in
fiscal 2008. This was largely on account of a sharp slowdown in public savings, with the government resorting to fiscal
stimulus to address the external shock from the Global Financial Crisis. However, India’s domestic savings is still higher
at 28.96% at the end of 2022, compared with the world average of 28.2% at the end of 2021.

India’s domestic savings (in % of GDP) higher than the world average
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Structural reforms that will drive future growth of Indian economy

While India has a structural advantage on account of its young workforce, improving consumption pattern and increasing
urbanisation, the nation’s long-term growth is expected to be supported by the following government initiatives:

e Focus on infrastructure investments rather than boosting consumption to enhance the productive capacity of the
economy.

e The Production Linked Incentive (PLI) scheme which aims to boost local manufacturing by providing volume-linked
incentives to manufacturers in specified sectors.

e Policies aimed at greater formalisation of the economy that will accelerate per capita income growth.

e Adoption of digital technology

e The announcement of the National Infrastructure Pipeline to provide better infrastructure for all sectors, enhance
ease of living of citizens and make growth more inclusive.

e The National Monetisation Policy of operating public infrastructure assets acts as a key means for sustainable
infrastructure financing.

e Inclusion of a larger share of population under health insurance as part of the Ayushman Bharat scheme Initiatives
launched by the Indian government to promote financial inclusion such as the Pradhan Mantri Jan Dhan Yojana
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(PMJDY), Pradhan Mantri Jeevan Jyoti Bima Yojana (PMJJBY) and the Pradhan Mantri Suraksha Bima Yojana
(PMSBY)

Structural growth drivers of the Indian credit market
Financial Inclusion on a fast path in India

Overall literacy in India is at 77.7% as per the results of recent National Sample Survey Office survey conducted from
July 2017 to June 2018 which is still below the world literacy rate of 86.5%. However, according to the National Financial
Literacy and Inclusion Survey (“NCFE-FLIS”) 2019, only 27% of Indian population is financially literate indicating huge
gap and potential for financial services industry. The survey defines financial literacy as combination of awareness,
knowledge, skill, attitude and behaviour necessary to make sound financial decisions and ultimately achieve individual
financial wellbeing. According to the World Bank’s Global Findex Database 2021, the global average of adult population
with an account opened with a bank, financial institution or mobile money provider, was approximately 76% in calendar
year 2021. India’s financial inclusion has improved significantly over calendar years 2014 to 2021 as adult population
with bank accounts increased from 53% to 78% (Source: Global Findex Database) due to the Indian government’s
concentrated efforts to promote financial inclusion and the proliferation of supporting institutions.

Adult population with a bank account (%6): India vis-a-vis other countries
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Source: World Bank - The Global Findex Database 2021, CRISIL MI&A

The two key initiatives launched by the Government of India to promote financial inclusion are the Pradhan Mantri Jan
Dhan Yojana (“PMJDY”) and Pradhan Mantri Jeevan Jyoti Bima Yojana (“PMJJBY”). Under the PMIDY, the
Government of India’s aim is to ensure that every household in India has a bank account which they can access from
anywhere and avail of all financial services such as savings and deposit accounts, remittances, credit and insurance
affordably. PMJJBY is a one-year life insurance scheme that offers a life cover of X 0.2 million at a premium of ¥ 330
per annum per member, which can be renewed every year. The Government of India has also launched the Pradhan
Mantri Suraksha Bima Yojana (“PMSBY?), an accident insurance policy that offers an accidental death and full disability
cover of % 0.2 million at a premium of % 12 annually. As per the Government of India, more than 100 million people have
registered for these two social security schemes.

Digitisation to support economic growth and financial services
Technology is expected to play a pivotal role in taking the financial sector to the next level of growth, by helping to
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surmount challenges stemming from India’s vast geography, which makes physical footprints in smaller locations
commercially unviable. Technology is conducive for India, considering its demographic structure where the median age
is less than 30 years. The young population is tech savvy and at ease with using it to conduct the entire gamut of financial
transactions. With increasing smartphone penetration and faster data speeds, consumers are now encouraging digitisation
as they find it more convenient. Digitisation is expected to help improve efficiency and optimise cost. Players with better
mobile and digital platforms are expected to draw more customers and emerge as winners in the long term.

OVERVIEW OF NBFC IN INDIA
NBFC credit to grow faster than systemic credit between Fiscals 2023 and 2025

Over the past decade, banking credit growth lagged systemic credit growth for several years as NBFCs grew at a much
faster pace. However, the NBFCs suffered a blow after IL&FS defaulted in September 2018. NBFCs not having the
advantage of size, rating and/or parentage had to grapple with a liquidity crisis and as raising funding became difficult.
Initially, post the IL&FS crisis, banks were expected to fill the space left out by NBFCs.

In the fourth quarter of Fiscal 2020 and the first quarter of Fiscal 2021, with the outbreak COVID-19 pandemic,
challenges had intensified for both banks and NBFCs. NBFCs were hit harder in terms of demand, and they also turned
cautious as they lend to borrowers with relatively weaker credit profile. In the second half of Fiscal 2021, the Indian
economy showed signs of improvement, the effect of which was seen in the credit growth.

In Fiscal 2022, the second wave of the COVID-19 pandemic led to weak demand for credit in the first quarter of the year.
However, the pace of credit recovered, with overall credit growing by 9% and retail credit increasing by 11.3% year-on-
year as of March 2022. With the effect of COVID-19 waning, vaccination coverage progressively improving, the situation
and growth improved further.

In Fiscal 2023, pace of credit further improved and is at par with pre-COVID level. Overall credit grew by estimated
13.3% and systemic retail credit grew by 19.2%. CRISIL MI&A projects NBFC credit to grow at 12%-14% between
Fiscal 2023 and Fiscal 2025. The credit growth will be driven by the retail vertical, including housing, auto, and
microfinance segments. Rapid revival in the economy is expected to drive consumer demand in Fiscal 2024, leading to
healthy growth NBFCs. Moreover, organic consolidation is underway with larger NBFCs gaining share. Further, growth
of the non-banking industry will be driven mainly by NBFCs with strong parentage who have funding advantage over
other NBFCs.

NBFC credit to grow at CAGR 12-14% between Share of NBFC Credit in Systemic Credit remained at

fiscals 2023 and 2025 18% in fiscal 2023
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NBFCs have shown remarkable resilience and gained importance in the financial sector ecosystem, growing from less

than X 2 trillion AUM at the turn of the century to % 34 trillion at the end of Fiscal 2023. CRISIL MI&A expects NBFC
credit to grow at 12-14% CAGR between fiscal 2023 and fiscal 2025. Their share in the overall credit pie has increased
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from 12% in Fiscal 2008 to 18% in Fiscal 2023 and projected to be remained stable in fiscal 2024. CRISIL MI&A
believes that NBFCs will remain a force to reckon within the Indian credit landscape, given their inherent strength of
providing last-mile funding and catering to customer segments that are not catered by Banks.

Growth of NBFCs reflects the customer value proposition offered by them

Shorter turnaround
time

Strong origination skills

Leveraging
technology to
reimagine the

lending process

Source: CRISIL MI&A
Retail segment to support NBFCs overall credit growth

Reflecting the growing importance of NBFCs in the financial services landscape and their ability to offer differentiated
solutions to meet the requirement of target customers, the market share of NBFCs in overall systemic credit has increased
from approximately 16% in Fiscal 2017 to approximately 18% in Fiscal 2023.

After a moderation in growth post pandemic, NBFCs are back on track with an estimated credit growth of 12-13% during
fiscal 2023. Going ahead CRISIL MI&A expects the growth trend to continue with credit growth at 13-14% during fiscal
2024. The industry will continue to witness the emergence of newer NBFCs catering to specific customer segments. The
COVID-19 pandemic and consequent acceleration in both adoption of technology and change in consumer habits as well
as increasing availability of data for credit decision-making has made it possible to build an NBFC lending business
without investing large sums to have brick-and-mortar presence on the ground. Overall, between Fiscal 2023 to Fiscal
2025, CRISIL MI&A forecasts NBFC credit to grow at a CAGR of 12%-14%. Further, retail credit given out by NBFCs
is forecast to grow at a pace of 13%-15% CAGR over the same time.

NBFCs retail credit is expected to grow at 13% - 15% CAGR in the next two years
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MSME loans, education loans & other smaller segments
Source: Company reports, RBI, CRISIL MI&A

Share of retail credit in total NBFC credit to continue to grow
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Source: Company reports, CRISIL MI&A

NBFCs have a reasonable market share across segments

NBFCs have consistently gained or maintained market share across most asset classes over the last few years. Though,
in certain segments such as housing finance to prime customers, they have lost market share to banks due to the decline
in market interest rates. In the gold loans market, NBFCs slightly lost market share in Fiscal 2022 due to increasing focus
of banks (both public and private) towards gold loans as well as RBI permitting banks to offer gold loans at a higher
loan-to-value amidst the COVID-19 pandemic. Nevertheless, NBFCs continue to have a healthy market share across
other segments.

NBFCs have been able to compete with banks mainly on account of their strong origination skills, extensive reach, better
customer service, faster processing, fewer documentation requirements, digitalisation of customer on-boarding process,
customised product offerings, local knowledge, and differentiated credit appraisal methodology. Furthermore, by catering
to under banked, lower income and mass market customers who are unserved or underserved by banks, NBFCs have
enhanced financial inclusion and expanded the market for formal financial services. The rapid evolution of fintechs over
the last few years has added another dimension to the market served by NBFCs and has fuelled rapid growth across the
landscape.

Market share of NBFCs in overall credit across select asset classes
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Constituents of NBFC industry in India

The Indian financial system includes banks and non-banking financial companies (NBFCs). Though the banking system
dominates financial services, NBFCs have grown in importance by carving a niche for themselves by catering to
customers in underbanked regions or those who would not be catered to by traditional financial institutions, due to
absence of credit history or lack of proper collateral records.
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Classification of NBFCs

NBFCs are classified based on liabilities into two broad categories: a) deposit-taking; and b) non-deposit-taking. Deposit-
taking NBFCs are subject to requirements of capital adequacy, liquid assets maintenance, exposure norms, etc. Further,
in 2015, non-deposit-taking NBFCs with an asset size of X 5 billion and above were labelled as ‘systemically important
non-deposit taking NBFCs’ (“NBFC—-ND-SI”) and separate prudential regulations were made applicable to them.

Classification of NBFCs based on liabilities
Non-Banking Financial companies (9,356)
CIC: 53, ICC: 9,137, MFI: 100, Others: 66

| |1
J I | ]
Asset Reconstruction Housing Finance
NBFCs-D (26) NBFCs-ND (9,307) Companies (27) Companies* (74)
NBFCs-ND-SI (508)

B \BFCs-ND (8,799)

Note: (*) HFC which has more than 100 crores AUM as of March 2023. Figures in brackets represent the number of entities registered
with RBI as of September 2023, CIC: Core Investment Company, ICC: Investment and Credit Company, Others include account
aggregator, peer to peer lending, infrastructure debt fund, infrastructure finance company etc.

Source: RBI, CRISIL MI&A

Scale based approach proposed for NBFCs

In January 2021, the RBI had proposed a tighter regulatory framework for NBFCs by creating a four-tier structure with
a progressive increase in regulation intensity in a discussion paper titled ‘Revised Regulatory Framework for NBFCs - A
Scale-based Approach’. Based on the inputs received, in October 2021, the RBI put in place a revised regulatory
framework for NBFCs, which is in effect from October 2022.

As per the RBI’s Scale-Based Regulation for NBFCs framework, the regulatory and supervisory framework of NBFCs
should be based on a four-layered structure depending on their size, activity, and perceived riskiness: base, middle, upper,
and top layers. NBFCs in the lower layer will be known as NBFC-Base Layer (NBFC-BL) and those in the middle layer
will be known as NBFC-Middle Layer (NBFC-ML). NBFCs in the upper layer will be known as NBFC-Upper Layer
(NBFC-UL) and will invite a new regulatory superstructure. There is also a top layer, which should ideally be empty.

. NBFCs judged to be extreme in supervisory
+ Supposed to remain empty TOP risk perception would be pushed to Top; there
except in exceptional will be enhanced and more intensive
circumstances LAYER supervisory engagement with these NBFCs
Small set of NBFCs which are significant
: I?Jp JtOZI\SJBS'E)CCso:ngased on UPPER from the point of view of systemic risk
o - . LAYER spill overs and are therefore required to
parameters be subjected to tighter regulations
Shall consist of all non-deposit
* gl?ag :Toage a:?t‘?l"t MIDDLE taking NBFCs having asset size
- entities > Rs. 1,000 cr. and all deposit
LAYER taking NBFCs.

+ May have BASE Consist of NBFCs
about 9,000 having asset size < Rs.
cos LAYER 1,000 cr

Source: RBI, CRISIL MI&A
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The RBI has taken a balanced view, and instead of going for a one-size-fits-all approach, it has opted for differential
regulations based on the size and systemic importance of an NBFC. Furthermore, the importance of NBFCs in providing
credit to underserved customers has been recognised. The RBI has not proposed imposition of CRR and SLR on NBFCs,
which would come as a relief to NBFCs.

The proposed 9% common equity tier 1 ratio should not be difficult to manage as majority of NBFCs remain well
capitalised. Caps on leverage levels would impact NBFCs in the mortgage business if limits are proposed in line with
other asset classes. Differential standard asset provisioning will have a negative impact on NBFCs that have high
exposure to sensitive sectors, such as commercial real estate (for example, CRE at a rate of 1.00% and CRE-RH at a rate
of 0.75%; current norm for NBFCs is 0.4%). Cap of X 0.01 billion on IPO financing per individual would hurt NBFCs
operating in this space. Following this regulatory change, some NBFCs falling in the NBFC-UL category may consider
conversion into universal banks. Overall, we believe the scale-based approach will translate into greater regulatory
oversight and better governance practices, which will structurally strengthen the sector.

The Reserve Bank of India (RBI) has identified 15 non-banking finance companies (NBFCs) for inclusion in the Upper
Layer (NBFC-UL) under Scale Based Regulations (SBR) for non-bank lenders. These chosen NBFCs encompass a range
of categories, including deposit-taking housing finance companies (HFC), non-deposit-taking HFC, deposit-taking
NBFC-ICC (Investment and Credit Company), Non-deposit-taking NBFC-ICC, and core investment companies.

RBI tightens provisioning norms on Standard assets for NBFC Upper Layer

On June 6th, 2022, the RBI released a circular aligning provisioning for standard assets by NBFCs in the upper layer as
per RBIs scale-based regulations with that prevalent with the banks, which would be effective from October 1, 2022. The
impact of the norms is unlikely to be material as most large NBFCs already maintain Stage 1 and Stage 2 provisioning,
which is comfortably higher than the required levels. The below table shows the provisioning that NBFC-ULs are
required to maintain in respect of standard assets for the funded amount outstanding:

Provisioning norms for standard assets

Category of Assets Rate of Provision
Individual housing loans and Small and Micro Enterprises 0.25%
2.00%, which will decrease to 0.40% after 1 year
Housing loans extended at teaser rates from the date on which the rates are reset at higher

rates (if account remains standard)

Advances to Commercial Real Estate — Residential Housing (CRE -

75%
RH) sector 0.15%

Advances to Commercial Real Estate (other than CRE -RH) sector 1.00%

As stipulated in the applicable prudential norms for

Restructured Advances . . _
restructuring of advances

All other loans and advances not included above, including loans to

0/
Medium Enterprises 0.40%

Note: NBFC-UL includes non-banking financial companies and housing finance companies
Source: RBI, CRISIL MI&A

RBI issues Master Direction on Scale Based Regulation of NBFCs, 2023

The RBI published the Master Direction on Scale Based regulation (SBR) of NBFCs to bring an end to the basic
categorization of systemically important and non-systemically important NBFCs, while the classification based on
acceptance of public deposits and specialisation continues to be in force. In addition, considering the systemic importance,
the SBR Master Directions has enhanced the corporate governance in middle layer and upper layer NBFCs. For instance,
NBFCs that are part of a common Group or are floated by a common set of promoters shall not be viewed on a standalone
basis. The total assets of all the NBFCs in a Group shall be consolidated to determine the threshold for their classification
in the Middle Layer.
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MICROFINANCE LOANS
Industry has surged at 20% CAGR between fiscal 2018 and May 2023

The industry’s AUM outstanding clocked 20% compound annual growth rate (CAGR) between March 2017 and May
2023 to reach Rs 5,508 billion. The microfinance industry’s joint liability group (JLG) portfolio has recorded a healthy
growth in the past few years.

In fiscal 2021, the industry was adversely affected by the onset of the Covid-19 pandemic. While disbursements came to
a standstill and the industry portfolio outstanding dropped in the first quarter of the year, they picked up subsequently
and reached pre-Covid levels in the third and fourth quarters. In fiscal 2022, the second wave led to another slowdown,
although not as severe as in the previous fiscal. On-year, the industry portfolio outstanding grew 15%. In fiscal 2023, the
overall microfinance industry portfolio outstanding grew 36% on-year to Rs 5,473 billion. A significant portion of the
on-year growth of the overall microfinance industry can be attributed to the expansion of the NBFC-MFI sector and
exponential growth in SHG lending which witnessed on-year growth of 71% in fiscal 2023. As of May 2023, Overall
industry portfolio outstanding reached Rs 5,508 billion. Going forward, the overall microfinance industry is expected to
see strong growth on back of government’s continued focus on strengthening the rural financial ecosystem, strong credit
demand, and higher ticket sized loans disbursed by microfinance lenders.

GLP clocked 20% CAGR between March 2018 and May 2023

(In Rs. billion)

6,000 5,508

CAGR: 20%

5,000
4,017

4,000 3,400 3,486
3,000 2,750

2,154
2,000
1,000

FY18 FY19 FY20 FY21 FY22 FY23 May-23

Note: Data includes data for Banks lending through SHG and joint liability group (JLG), SFBs, NBFC-MFIs, other NBFCs and non-
profit MFls.

Source: MFIN, CRISIL MI&A
Industry resilient despite major setbacks and changing landscape

The microfinance industry has been growing despite facing various headwinds in the past decade, such as the national
farm loan waivers (2008), the Andhra Pradesh crisis (2010), Andhra Pradesh farm loan waiver (2014), demonetization
(2016), and more state-specific farm loan waivers (2017 and 2018). The microfinance industry in India suffered a
downturn in the year 2010 when adverse financial conditions in certain states in India, particularly in the state of Andhra
Pradesh and debt related suicides by farmers led to adverse publicity for the microfinance sector in India. Some players
had to undertake corporate debt restructuring and found it difficult to sustain their business. While the demonetization of
Rs 500 and Rs 1,000 denomination banknotes in November 2016 hurt the industry, the impact was not as deep as the
Andhra Pradesh crisis and was limited to certain districts. Portfolio at risk (PAR) data as of September 2018 indicates
the industry recovered strongly from the aftermath of the demonetization. Furthermore, collections since September 2017
remained healthy. The liquidity crisis in 2018, however, had a ripple effect on microfinance lending as smaller NBFC-
MFIs with capital constraints and lenders relying on NBFCs for funding slowed down disbursements.

NBFC-MFIs faced initial hiccups at the start of fiscal 2021 due to the pandemic on account of uncertainty over collections
and aversion by lenders to extend further funding to them. However, the situation improved gradually and most NBFC-
MFls, with the exception of a few, were able to improve the liquidity buffers during the course of the year by raising
funds and after getting support from various government schemes. While the resurgence of Covid-19 led to a fresh bout
of uncertainty with respect to collections in the first quarter of fiscal 2022, the impact was not as pronounced as in the
early part of the previous fiscal. The industry gradually rebounded in fiscal 2022 on account of increased disbursements.
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Further, with revised MFI guidelines announced by the RBI in March 2022 that increased the total household income
threshold for collateral-free loans coupled with higher consumption demand and lower slippages fueled growth in fiscal
2023. In February 2023 Telangana High Court ordered that RBI-regulated NBFCs operating as MFIs should not be
governed by state laws, Only the central bank has power to regulate these entities. A similar Supreme Court ruling last
year reaffirmed that state moneylending acts will not apply to NBFCs that are under the regulation of the RBI, addressing
industry dual regulation issues.

NBFC MFIs has shown resilience over the past decade
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Note: Data includes numbers for banks’ lending through JLGs, SFBs, NBFC-MFIs, other NBFCs and non-profit MFIs. It excludes
data for banks’ lending through SHGs. The amounts are as at of the send of the financial year;, GLP refers to Gross loan portfolio.
Source: MFIN, CRISIL MI&A

Over the years, MFIs have proven their resilience to high-impact events. They have played an important role in promoting
inclusive growth by providing credit to borrowers at the bottom of the economic pyramid. Despite catering to a vulnerable
audience, the MFIs have historically proven their ability to recover effectively from crisis situations within a few months
(for instance, demonetization) and have been able to maintain profitability over a cycle. Amid the pandemic, the MFIs
bolstered their capital position by raising fresh equity. Their ability to raise capital, even in such uncertain times, can be
attributed to the latent growth potential of the sector, capability of the industry to wade through periods of crises by taking
proactive steps, social impact of MFI lending, and healthy profitability over business cycles. Furthermore, MFI lending
is closely regulated by the RBI. Over the years, the central bank has come up with various regulations to enable long-
term sustainable growth in the sector and reduce systemic risks.

SFB license for eight MFIs (2015)

The RBI awarded in-principal SFB licenses to 10 applicants on September 16, 2015, of which eight were MFIs. All the
MFI applicants received final approval from the RBI to start operations. These SFBs cumulatively accounted for ~11%
of the total AUM of the industry as of the end of fiscal 2023.The share of SFBs in microfinance industry has been reducing
over the past years from 13% in fiscal 2018 to 11% in fiscal 2023 and the NBFC-MFIs have gained market share from
23% in fiscal 2018 to 26% in fiscal 2023 owing to increasing reach in newer geographies and deepening penetration in
existing regions. Going forward, CRISIL MI&A expects NBFC MFIs to grow at a faster rate than the overall MFI industry
and increase its share in further to ~28% by end of fiscal 2026.
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NBFC MFIs account for 26% of the AUM as of May 2023
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Demonetization (2016)

On November 8, 2016, the central government announced the demonetization of Rs 500 and Rs 1,000 notes, effectively
removing in value terms ~86% of the currency from circulation. The move shook the MFI industry. The replacement of
the demonetized currencies with new Rs 500 notes and Rs 2,000 notes was sluggish. As a consequence, the portfolio
outstanding of the MFI industry suddenly slumped. Disbursements were the worst hit as they declined 29% in the second
half compared with a 60% growth in the first half of the year.

The demonetization affected the asset quality of the MFIs, as PAR>90 days for the industry jumped to 10.47% as of
March 2017 compared with 7.66% as of March 2016. Among various states, asset quality worsened especially in Uttar
Pradesh, Maharashtra, Karnataka, and Madhya Pradesh. However, in these states as well, the deterioration in asset quality
was largely on account of the poor performance of a few districts.

Farm loan waivers in fiscals 2017 and 2018

Uttar Pradesh, Maharashtra, Karnataka, and Punjab had announced farm loan waivers with varying coverage. This
affected the collections initially. However, efforts by MFIs to educate borrowers about the applicability of the scheme
have led to a gradual pick-up in loan collection. Even the government and industry associations helped the MFIs by
making announcements through media to create awareness among the borrowers.

It led to a slowdown in lending, was mostly due to lower repayments caused by a disturbance in the repayment cycle in
the above-mentioned states. However, the impact on the NBFC-MFIs was less as compared with banks due to being in
regular touch with the customers.

Impact of floods in Kerala and Odisha (2018-20)

In 2018, severe floods hit southern India, with Kerala being one of the worst affected areas. This affected the state’s
microfinance industry adversely. The credit quality of most of the borrowers deteriorated due to the loss of income-
generating businesses caused by the floods. In May 2019 and May 2020, Odisha witnessed its worst cyclones, Fani and
Amphan. These impacted West Bengal and Odisha severely and resulted in a near-term spike in the PAR portfolio of the
NBFC-MFIs and small finance banks (SFBs).
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NBFC liquidity crisis

The liquidity crisis plaguing NBFCs in India had a minor ripple effect on micro-lenders. Lenders who relied on NBFCs
for funding slowed down disbursement and started looking at different avenues to raise money. However, the impact of
the crisis was not that profound since large NBFC-MFIs had a diversified funding mix and were able to leverage this to
their advantage. The outstanding borrowings of the NBFC-MFIs logged a 24% CAGR between Q3FY21 and Q1FY24.

Funding trend of NBFC-MFIs (outstanding borrowing)

(in. Rs.
1,000

CAGR: 24% 931
794

800 707 695 732

629
595 558 609

600 541
400
200

0
Q3FY21 Q4FY21 QI1FY22 Q2FY22 Q3FY22 Q4FY22 QI1FY23 Q2FY23 Q3FY23 Q4FY23 Q1FY24

Note: Data includes only NBFC-MFIs
Source: MFIN, CRISIL MI&A

Impact of Covid-19 pandemic

The protracted nationwide lockdown to contain the spread of Covid-19 affected the income-generation ability and the
savings of MFI borrowers. Typically, these borrowers have weaker credit profiles. About 50-60% of the micro loans
were under moratorium as of August 2020. Also, because of the nationwide lockdown, and several state-imposed
lockdowns thereafter, the normal operations of MFIs — loan origination and collections — were a challenge, especially
during the first few months after the onset of the pandemic. This had an adverse impact on the MFIs since their operations
are field-intensive, involving personal interactions, such as home visits and physical collection of cash.

Prior to the lockdown, many MFIs had managed to shore up their liquidity by March-end in fiscal 2020. They had already
done a majority of their collection before the lockdown. In fact, collection efficiency was largely intact — at 98-99%.
The MFIs also drew down bank loans for the purpose of on-lending in the last week of March, which is typically a period
marked by high business activity. However, planned disbursements did not happen on account of the lockdown.
Disbursements reached the pre-Covid level in the third and fourth quarters of fiscal 2021 led by rural and semi-urban
areas since the impact of the pandemic was relatively lower there.

Key government steps that supported MFIs during the Covid-19 crisis

e Reducing the debt servicing burden through a moratorium period: The RBI initially permitted lending
institutions to allow a moratorium of three months on repayment of instalments for term loans outstanding as on
March 1, 2020, and defer interest payments due on working capital facilities outstanding. The moratorium was
further extended by another three months until August 31. However, the banks were instructed to provide 10%
additional provisioning for availing of this benefit, which could be later adjusted against the provisioning
requirements for actual slippages. These measures were intended to boost confidence in the economy and provide
relief to the borrowers.

e Refinance support from RBI: In April 2020, the RBI announced refinancing support of Rs 250 billion to the
National Bank for Agriculture and Rural Development (NABARD), which provides support to NBFC-MFIs, rural
regional banks and co-operative banks.

e Loan interest subvention scheme: Under this scheme, the government provided 2% interest subvention to loans

given under the Mudra-Shishu scheme. These loans of up to Rs 50,000 ticket size are primarily given by the NBFC-
MFlIs to low-income groups.
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PSL status for SFB lending to NBFC-MFIs: On May 5, 2021, the RBI announced that fresh lending by the SFBs
to the NBFC-MFIs with asset size less than Rs 5 billion for on-lending to individual borrowers will be classified
under priority sector lending (PSL). This encouraged the flow of credit to smaller MFIs, which were facing relatively
bigger funding-access challenges. The facility to the SFBs was made available up to March 31, 2022.

SLTRO: The RBI announced a special long-term repo operation (SLTRO) programme to the tune of Rs 100 billion
for the SFBs to soften the impact of the second wave of Covid-19. The first auction took place on May 17, 2021. It
continued in subsequent months until the amount was fully utilized. The amount borrowed from this scheme was to
be utilized to lend to small business units and other unorganized sectors.

Credit Guarantee Scheme: On June 28, 2021, the Minister of Finance announced the Credit Guarantee Scheme
through the MFIs for the first 2.5 million customers for a maximum tenure of three years. Three-fourths of the
guarantee was provided to scheduled commercial banks for a ticket size up to Rs 1.25 lakh to new or existing NBFC-
MFIs. This addressed the severe cash flow distress the second wave inflicted on individuals and small businesses.

Adoption of technology in microfinance industry

The microfinance industry in India has witnessed a significant transformation with the advent of digital technology.
Many players in the industry have adopted digital initiatives to enhance their operations and reach out to more
customers. Some of the digital initiatives taken by players in the MFI industry include mobile-based applications,
digitalization of loan process, use of Aadhaar-based authentication, cashless transactions and digital financial
education.

The MFIs have also partnered with fintech companies to enhance their digital capabilities and provide better services
to customers. The fintech companies offer solutions such as digital payments, credit scoring and loan management
systems that the MFIs can leverage to improve their operational efficiency and expand their reach.

Cashless disbursements and collections have become increasingly popular in the microfinance industry in India, as
they promote transparency, reduce cash handling costs and improve customer experience.

Trend in cashless disbursement

99% 99%  99%
98% 98% 98% 98% 98% 98% 98% 98%
97% 97%

97% 97% 97%

96%

Q4FY1o NN

Q1FY23
Q3Fy23 I
Q4FY23 .

Q1FY20 N
Q2ry20
Q3FY20 N
Q4Fy20 N
Q1Fy21 N
Q2ry21 N
Q3Fy21 N
Q4Fy21 N
Q1Fy22 N
Q2ry22 [N
Q3FY22
Q4Fy22 NN
Q2ry23

Source: MFIN report, CRISIL MI&A

Trend in cashless collections
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NBFC-MFlIs’ disbursements grew 63% in fiscal 2023

In fiscal 2021, the disbursement witnessed a slack on account of the nationwide lockdown imposed to contain the
pandemic, which brought the economic activities to a grinding halt in the first half. In the second half, with activities
resuming, the credit outflow picked up. Further, the first quarter of fiscal 2022 saw the impact of the second wave of the
pandemic leading to localized lockdowns. The growth rebounded in the second half and pace continued during fiscal
2023 with aggregated disbursement rising to Rs 1,212 billion (63% on-year growth).

The growth was supported by rural economic revival, improved collection efficiency, implementation of the RBI’s new
regulatory framework, increased penetration and bigger average ticket size of disbursement.

Disbursements have reached to the pre-Covid levels

450 (in Rs billions) 415
400

350
300
250
200
150
100
50
0

282 304

189 182

Q3FY20 N

Q4FY20 NN 3
QaFy21 I
QaFy2> N
Q4Fy22 NN
QiFY2s NN 3
QzFy2s NN
QeFy2: NN S
Q4Fy23 N
Q1FY24 NN

Q2FY21 M X

QaFy21 NN
QoFv22 I &

Q1FY21 | @
Q1FY22 I 3

Note: Data includes NBFC MFI players
Source: MFIN, CRISIL MI&A

Rising penetration to support continued growth of the industry

With economic revival and unmet demand in rural regions, CRISIL MI&A expects the overall MFI portfolio size to grow
at CAGR of 16-20% between fiscals 2023 and 2026. CRISIL MI&A expects MFI industry to log 23-25% CAGR between
fiscals 2023 and 2026. Key drivers for the superior growth outlook include increasing penetration into the hinterland and
expansion into newer states, faster growth in the rural segment, increase in average ticket size and higher usage of support
systems such as credit bureaus. The presence of self-regulatory organisations, such as MFIN and Sa-Dhan, is also
expected to support the sustainable growth of the industry going forward.

Moreover, household credit is a huge untapped market for the MFI players. The country has seen household credit
penetration via MFI loans rising, but it is still on the lower side.

Key enablers for the microfinance industry growth

o Digitisation is expected to bring down costs, improve collection efficiency and profitability for the MFIs. CRISIL
MI&A expects the lower cost of servicing customers, better productivity and lower credit costs through the use of
technology will help the MFIs improve their profitability.

e The MFIs have built a large distribution network in the urban and rural India. Now, these MFIs are leveraging this
network to distribute financial and non-financial products, including insurance and product financing of other
institutions to members at a cost lower than competition.

o New regulations will help further deepen the penetration of microcredit in the country. With enhancement of the

household income threshold, the MFIs are expected to reach many more households. The regulations are also
expected to create a level playing field, which will increase the competition, in turn, benefiting the end customer.
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Overall MFI Industry to grow at 16-20% CAGR over fiscal 2023-26
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NBFC MFI Industry to grow at a faster rate than overall MFI Industry
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The portfolio outstanding of the NBFC-MFIs grew at a healthy CAGR of 23% between fiscals 2018 and 2023 to Rs 1,383
billion. NBFCs and NBFC-MFIs registered highest growth at 49% and 38% respectively in fiscal 2023. This was NBFC-
MFIs highest growth in last four fiscals. Going ahead, CRISIL MI&A expects the NBFC-MFIs to continue to outplace
other MFI lenders amid improving asset quality and continued traction in economic activity. Complementing the
tailwinds will be rising profitability supported by higher net interest margins. The confluence of these factors augurs well
for the credit profiles of NBFC MFI, allowing them to grow faster. The NBFC-MFIs are expected to gain market share
in the medium term with a healthy double-digit CAGR of 23-25% between fiscals 2023 and 2026.

NBFC-MFIs witnessed high growth over fiscal 2022 and fiscal 2023

YoY growth
60% 54%
49%
50% |
0,
40% | 34% 38%
30%
30% 1 23% 25% 22%
17% 20%
20% | °
10% 12% 9% 11% 9%
10% | 0
0% — —
FY20 Fy21 FY22 FY23
0% -5%
-9%

-20% -
uNBFC-MFIs mBanks mSFB = NBFC mOthers

117



Note: Data includes data for Banks, SFBs, NBFC-MFIs, other NBFCs and non-profit MFIs. In FY20, Bharat Financial (BFIL) was
included in NBFC-MFIs and in fiscal 2020 Bharat Financial is included in banks.
Source: MFIN, CRISIL MI&A

Players tapping newer states and districts to widen client base

CRISIL MI&A finds a significant jump in the number of MFIs operating in Uttar Pradesh, Rajasthan and Gujarat in
recent years. The total number of branches in these states has significantly increased in fiscal 2023 compared to fiscal
2022, leading to a jump in their portfolio outstanding. The availability of borrower credit related data from credit
information companies has also ensured that MFIs have access to more data on borrowers, helping them make informed
lending decisions.

Total branches of MFls in each state/UT
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Source: MFIN, CRISIL MI&A

In the past few years, many MFIs have opened branches in untapped districts, thus increasing their penetration. In states
where the presence of MFIs and banks is strong, ticket size has increased as well. CRISIL MI&A expects penetration to
deepen going forward, which will further drive growth. Madhya Pradesh, Bihar and Tamil Nadu are states with large
unserved populations and hence, provide an opportunity for existing players to improve their penetration and market
share.

Rural segment to drive MFI Business

CRISIL MI&A expects the rural segment to drive MFIs’ business, with burgeoning demand expected from this segment.
With fewer branches and outlets in rural and semi-urban areas as compared with urban areas, the rural market (comprising
of rural and semi-urban) in India is still under-penetrated, thereby opening up a huge opportunity for savings and loan
products. CRISIL MI&A believes that establishing a good rapport with rural customers leads to longer and more loyal
customer relationship, which can be further leveraged to cross-sell other products.

With the government’s focus on financial inclusion and increasing number of financial institutions opening up branches
in the unbanked areas, CRISIL MI&A has seen that demand for loan is higher in rural areas. As of Fiscal 2022, the rural
pie had accounted for 75% of the overall disbursement. Additionally, in terms of GLP, rural regions accounted for 75%
of the overall portfolio of NBFC-MFIs, other NBFCs, and non-profit MFIs.
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Disbursement and number of borrowers in rural areas (as of Fiscal 2022)

Rural 852 5% 1019 5% 75%
Urban 281 25% 332 25% 25%
Note: Values taken as per Bharat Microfinance Report 2022.
Source: Sa-Dhan, CRISIL MI&A

With higher focus on rural areas, over the past few fiscals, NBFC-MFIs have been able to maintain better asset quality
in rural areas compared to that in urban areas. Such a trend in asset quality forms a strong base for NBFC-MFlIs to
penetrate more into rural areas.

Average ticket size to continue to expand in the coming years
The average ticket size of NBFC MFIs has risen in the fiscal 2023 to Rs 43,024 from Rs 38,647 in fiscal 2022, translating
into a growth of 11% on year. CRISIL MI&A expects the trend to continue in the medium term with NBFC-MFIs

continue to growth at a healthy pace outpacing banks and gaining market share.

Average ticket size of NBFC-MFI players lower compared to other player groups
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Source: MFIN, CRISIL MI&A
Growth drivers
Furthering financial inclusion provides huge potential for growth for MFIs

Given the sheer size of India’s population and considering that a large section still lacks access to formal banking services,
driving financial inclusion has always been a priority for the government. The banking system and 'priority sector' lending
have been the most explored channels to bring majority of the population under the ambit of formal credit institutions.
India is on the threshold of a high-growth trajectory; hence, financial inclusion is imperative for sustaining equitable
growth.

Financial inclusion is a comprehensive exercise that constitutes several products and services, such as provision of bank
accounts, insurance facilities, payment and remittance mechanisms, financial counselling, and, most crucially, affordable
credit. The government undertook several initiatives, which were orchestrated by NABARD and executed through
entities, such as regional rural banks, cooperatives and commercial banks. During the late 1970s, these lending institutions
achieved significant reach, and increasing number of individuals did avail of credit facilities. However, major
delinquencies in repayment severely impaired the financial health of the entities. Furthermore, despite the rapid expansion
in the scale of the institutions, several households continued to face difficulties in accessing credit facilities.

Within the large suite of products and services under financial inclusion, MFIs have a major role to play in the provision
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of credit. The sheer size of the market (in terms of financially excluded households) and the ability of MFIs to provide
credit to this segment at affordable rates would create heathy growth opportunities for MFIs in future.

Over the years, the industry has also proactively made investments towards expanding the usage of technology and
creating adequate risk monitoring systems by sharing portfolio data with credit bureaus. The usage of technology has
helped MFIs improve efficiency, reduce cash usage, and provide better services to customers. The usage of analytics for
portfolio monitoring and credit appraisal has helped the industry take corrective action as required.

From an investor perspective too, MFI is perceived as an attractive asset class due to the availability of PSL benefit, the
number of touchpoints that MFIs have deep into the hinterland, and the social impact they create.

Key success factors
Ability to attract funds/raise capital and maintain healthy capital position

The microfinance industry has seen rapid growth over the past few years owing to small ticket sizes and doorstep
disbursement. Despite this, a large portion of the market remains underpenetrated, making it necessary for MFIs to raise
funds at regular intervals to sustain growth. This remains a challenge for several MFIs owing to perceived risk of the
borrower segment, their susceptibility to socio-political issues, and volatility in asset quality. The ability of MFIs to raise
funding from diverse sources and maintain a capital position much higher than the prescribed regulatory minimum is
vital for long-term sustainability.

Geographically diversified portfolio helps MFIs mitigate risks

A large, well-diversified portfolio in different geographies enables players to mitigate risks associated with a concentrated
portfolio. Apart from this, a wider scale of operation helps them reduce operating expenses as a percentage of outstanding
loans. Rural areas are still under-penetrated in India; hence, players operating in/focused on these areas are likely to see
faster growth in their portfolios.

Ability to control asset quality and ageing of NPAs

The vulnerability of MFI portfolios to local issues and events that impact the repayment ability of borrower households
makes it critical for them to have a strong hold on asset quality and regularly engage with borrowers to control the ageing
of NPAs. MFls, thus, need to put in place methods and use analytics to understand and predict the quality of the portfolio,
and minimize the frequency and size of asset quality-related risks.

Promoters who have seen several business cycles

A promoter has a crucial role in the success of a business. A promoter with a strong and vast experience in the same field
of business is essential for the success of the company. The experience and domain knowledge of a promoter and top
management officials becomes more decisive and critical, especially in the case of handling a crisis because of either
internal or external factors. The growth of a company during a normal scenario also depends largely on the decision-
taking ability of the promoter, and his/her understanding of the industry, market, and competition.

Gradual development of other support systems
Role of MFIN and Sa-Dhan

MFIN was recognised as a self-regulatory organisation (SRO) for NBFC-MFIs in India in June 2014. As an SRO, MFIN
has been authorised by the RBI to exercise control and regulation on its behalf, to ensure compliance with regulatory
instructions and industry code of conduct. With this, MFIN became the first network to attain such recognition not only
in India, but also in Asia.

In September 2017, MFIN released its mutually agreed code of conduct (MACC). As part of this code, an institution will
not lend to a borrower who has already availed of loans from three microcredit lenders. While existing RBI regulations
were only applicable to NBFC-MFIs, MACC brought other lenders within the ambit of this guidance. This does not
include SHGs, though.

MFIN’s role as an SRO also includes research and training responsibilities, and submission of MFI financials to the
RBI. MFIN’s current membership consists of over 50 NBFC—MFlIs in the country.
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Sa-Dhan is the second association in the business of microfinance to be given SRO status by the central bank. It has the
mandate to engage with policymakers and regulators to provide a favourable policy environment for the promotion and
growth of microfinance and financial inclusion in India. Its responsibility includes surveillance of the microfinance sector
and submission of its annual report to the RBI. It is also entrusted with having a grievance and dispute redressal
mechanism for clients of NBFC-MFIs, ensuring borrower protection and monitoring compliance of NBFC-MFIs with
the regulatory framework put in place by the RBI.

Post demonetization, MFIN and Sa-Dhan took a proactive role in spreading awareness on MFIs and their operations in
various parts of the country, particularly in the event of a socio-political disturbance, where timely intervention with local
and state authorities and awareness workshops helped dissipate disturbances before they scaled up.

MUDRA

In Union Budget 2015-16, the government proposed the formation of a Micro Units Development & Refinance Agency
Ltd (MUDRA) to facilitate financial inclusion of non-corporate small business sector through refinance and development
support. A majority of this sector does not have access to formal sources of finance. MUDRA will be responsible for
refinancing and developing the micro-enterprises sector, by providing support to financial institutions that lend to small
and micro business entities. MUDRA offers low cost funding to MFIs, which, in turn, helps MFIs to fund their borrowers.

NABARD refinancing MFIs to encourage lending in rural areas

NABARD is a key facilitator of microfinance initiatives in the country, with a focus on rural areas. It assists eligible
NBFC-MFIs and SFBs by providing them with long-term refinance support. In April 2020, the RBI allocated Rs 250
billion to NABARD for refinancing to cooperative banks, RRBs and MFIs to support financial institutions in the current
challenging situation because of the pandemic.

SIDBI

SIDBI was set up in April 1990 with a purpose to facilitate and strengthen credit flows to MSMEs and address both
financial and developmental gaps in the MSME ecosystem. SIDBI, through its various schemes, provides liquidity
support to the MSME sector by extending loans to NBFCs, MFIs and Banks at lower cost in order to maintain the credit
flow. In April 2000, SIDBI also launched a National Microfinance Support Program (NMFSP) in collaboration with
Department of International Development, UK (DFID) to bring in best microfinance practices in India and extended the
collaboration with International Fund for Agriculture Development, Rome (IFAD) in April 2002 for on-lending support
to MFls

Digitisation to bring down costs, improve collection efficiency and profitability for MFIs

Digitisation has influenced almost all aspects of the financial services industry. However, it is far more critical to the
MFI industry as lower operating cost can result in higher financial inclusion and increased benefits for customers. The
use of technology has helped MFIs grow at a fast pace, improve efficiency, reduce cash usage and turnaround time,
develop new products, provide better services to customers, and use analytics for portfolio monitoring and credit
appraisal. According to the MFIN report, about 42 out of 49 NBFC-MFIs have reported 100% of their disbursement
through cashless mode in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2023.

CRISIL MI&A expects that the lower cost of servicing customers, better productivity, and lower credit costs through the
use of technology will help MFIs improve their profitability.

Credit risk mitigation by credit bureaus

Credit bureaus such as Equifax and CRIF Highmark collect data from several MFIs and build a comprehensive database
that captures the credit history of borrowers. These databases are updated weekly. The presence of credit bureaus ensures
that MFIs have access to more data on their borrowers, helping them make informed lending decisions over the long run.
Regulations

Microfinance sector in India governed by RBI guidelines

MFIs were operating largely unregulated till 2010, when the Andhra Pradesh (AP) Ordinance came into effect.
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Subsequently, in 2011, the RBI released guidelines that defined NBFC-MFIs, and provided an operating and regulatory
framework for MFIs in India.

RBI guidelines issued in December 2011

In November 2010, the RBI set up a sub-committee under the chairmanship of Mr Y H Malegam to address issues
concerning the domestic microfinance industry. This was in light of heightened perceived risk towards the sector, after
the AP ordinance was enacted. Based on the committee's recommendations, the NBFC-MFI directions issued by the RBI
came into effect in December 2011.

The guidelines defined an NBFC-MFI as a non-deposit-taking NBFC with parameters given below:

NBFC-MFI - Regulation guidelines

Parameter Provision

Minimum net owned S

funds (NOF) Rs 50 million

Qualifying assets*** Not less than 85% of its net assets** in the nature of qualifying assets
Multiple lending Not more than two MFIs should lend to the same borrower

Capital adequacy ratio consisting of tier | and tier 11 capital, which will not be less than 15%

of its aggregate risk weighted assets

Not less than higher value among the following:

a) 1% of outstanding loan portfolio, or

b) 50% of aggregate loan instalments that are overdue for over 90 days and less than 180
days, or

c) 100% of aggregate loan instalments that are overdue for 180 days or more

Margin cap imposed at 10% for large MFIs (loan portfolios exceeding Rs 1 billion) and 12%

for small MFIs (loan portfolios below Rs 1 billion)

With effect from April 1, 2014, interest rate charged to borrowers:

a) Cost of funds plus 10% for large MFIs (size of Rs 1 billion and above) and cost of funds
plus 12% for the others (size less than Rs 1 billion), or

Interest rate charged b) Average base rate (as advised by RBI) of the five largest commercial banks by assets
multiplied by 2.75

Maximum variance between minimum and maximum interest rates for individual loans

capped at 4%

Processing charge Not more than 1% of total loan amount

* For NBFC-MFIs registered in the north-eastern region of the country, minimum NOF requirement shall stand at Rs 20 million.

** Net assets are defined as total assets other than cash and bank balances and money market instruments.

*** Refer to the table for ‘qualifying asset’

Capital adequacy

Aggregate loan
provision

Pricing of credit

Qualifying asset

Parameter Provision

Total indebtedness of borrower should | Rs 125,000

not exceed

Household annual income Rural — less than Rs 125,000
Urban and semi-urban — less than Rs 200,000

Loan ticket size 1st cycle — Rs 75,000; subsequent cycles — Rs 125,000

Collateral None

Loan for income generation Not less than 50% of total loans given

Interval for repayment of loans Weekly, fortnightly or monthly instalments at the choice of the borrower

Tenure of loan Not less than two years for loan amount exceeding Rs 30,000 with
prepayment without penalty

Potential harmonisation of regulations for MFI lending

In February 2021, the RBI outlined the need to harmonise regulations governing the MFI lending industry and proposed
a revamped framework. A potential harmonisation of regulations for MFI lending will positively impact NBFC-MFlIs as
banks and SFBs will also be governed by the same regulations, hence eliminating the competitive edge they currently
enjoy. The key proposals include (i) a common definition of microfinance loans for all regulated entities, (ii) a Board-
approved policy for household income assessment, (iii) capping the outflow on account of repayment of loan obligations
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of a household to 50% of the household income, (iv) greater flexibility of repayment frequency for all microfinance loans,
(v) no pre-payment penalty or requirement of collateral, (vi) introduction of a standard simplified fact sheet on pricing of
microfinance loans for better transparency, (vii) alignment of pricing guidelines for NBFC-MFIs with guidelines for
NBFCs, and (viii) withdrawal of guidelines currently applicable to only NBFC-MFIs, including withdrawal of the two-
lender norm for lending by NBFC-MPFIs and withdrawal of all pricing-related instructions applicable to NBFC-MFIs.

The new regulatory regime ensures a level playing field and benefits NBFC-MFIs

In its master directions on microfinance loans released in March 2022, the RBI has done away with the interest rate cap
applicable on loans given by NBFC-MFIs. Entities providing microfinance loans will have to put in place a Board-
approved policy for the pricing of loans. The policy should include the interest rate model, the range of spread of each
component for various categories of borrowers, and the interest rate ceiling and all other charges on MFI loans.

With microfinance loans provided by NBFC-MFIs and banks/SFBs now being subject to the same rules unlike the earlier
regime, the RBI has ensured a level playing field for both NBFC-MFIs and banks/SFBs.

The increase in annual household income cap for microfinance borrowers (to Rs 3,00,000 in both urban and rural areas),
removal of the two-lender norm for lending by NBFC-MFIs, and providing NBFC-MFIs greater flexibility to offer non-
MFI loans (MFI loans should account for 75% of total assets for NBFC-MFlIs, as per the new regulations) will increase
market opportunities and enable NBFC-MFlIs to achieve a more balanced portfolio.

On the flip side, the increase in annual household income threshold could increase the maximum permissible indebtedness
limit of borrowers from Rs 1,25,000. While limit of 50% of total household incomes on the loan repayment obligation
will act as a safeguard against excessive leveraging, the increased permissible debt limit and possibility of divergences
in household income assessment criteria across lenders still pose risks. Proper data infrastructure would be required to
analyse and estimate household income, especially in rural areas.

Following RBI’s revised regulations for MFI loans effective October 1, 2022, some MFIs have increased interest rates
for borrowers by 150-200 bps, especially for customers with untested credit behaviour.

CRISIL MI&A expects the rates to slowly stabilize as MFIs begin to adapt to the new regime and put in place processes
to assess household income, leverage and risk capture based on the new guidelines. Competitive forces would prevent a
substantial spurt in rates for MFI customers, especially those with a good repayment track record and credit behaviour.

The key changes in the regulatory framework and their potential impact on NBFC-MFIs are captured below:

Earlier regulations New regulations (effective April 1, 2022)
(N0 For banks and
regulation For NBFC-MFIs SEBs For all regulated entities*

Margin cap at 10% for No pricing cap. Underwriting of loans to be done on
large  MFIs (loan risk-based analysis, and a risk premium to be
portfolios > Rs charged based on the borrower.

Loan pricing 1 billion) No restrictions for
12% for small MFIs banks and SEBs A Board-approved policy for pricing of loans to be
(loan portfolios < Rs put in place. The policy should include the interest
1 billion) rate model, the range of spread of each component

Processing fees Not more than 1% of for var_iqus categories of borrowers, and the interest
the gross loan amount rate ceiling and all other charges on MFI loans.

The minimum requirement of microfinance loans
has been revised to 75% of an NBFC-MFI’s total
assets.

The maximum limit on microfinance loans for
NBFCs other than NBFC-MFIs has been revised to
25% of the total assets from 10% previously.

Have to meet the
Qualifying criteria | 85% loans unsecured |target set for priority
sector loans

Rural  areas: Rs Annual household income: Up to Rs 300,000 for
Household income 125,000 per annum No restrictions for |urban aswell as rural areas. (Higher than the amount
Urban areas: Rs|banks and SFBs stated in the consultation paper issued in June 2021
200,000 per annum — up to Rs 125,000 for rural areas and Rs 200,000
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Area of
regulation

Earlier regulations

For NBFC-MFIs

For banks and

New regulations (effective April 1, 2022)

For all regulated entities*

Ticket size of loans

Rs 75,000 in the first
cycle and Rs 125,000

Tenure of loans

in the subsequent
cycles

Not less than 24
months  for  loan

amounts in excess of
Rs 30,000

SFBs

for urban and semi-urban areas)
Board-approved policy for the assessment of
household income.

As per the revised regulation cap/restrictions for
ticket size and tenure has been removed.

Lending to the

same borrower

Not more than two
lenders allowed per
borrower

More than two banks
can lend to the same
borrower

Overall borrower
indebtedness

Should not exceed Rs
125,000

No restrictions for
banks and SFBs

Limit on maximum loan repayment obligation of a
household towards all loans: 50% of monthly
household income.

*Regulated entities include all commercial banks (including SFBs, local area banks and regional rural banks), excluding payments
banks; all primary (urban) co-operative banks, state co-operative banks and district central co-operative banks; and all NBFCs
(including MFIs and housing finance companies); Source: RBI, CRISIL MI&A

RBI increased risk weights for unsecured lending

Usually, in case of consumer credit exposure of NBFCs, loan exposures generally attract a risk weight of 100% and on a
review, RBI decided that the consumer credit exposure of NBFCs (outstanding as well as new) categorised as retail loans,
excluding housing loans, educational loans, vehicle loans, loans against gold jewellery and microfinance/SHG loans,
shall attract a risk weight of 125%. CRISIL expects that this will result into higher capital requirements for the lenders
and an increase in lending rate for the borrowers.

NBFC-MFIs to grow faster than SFBs

Loans in the microfinance sector are provided by banks, SFBs, NBFC-MFIs, other NBFCs, and non-profit organisations.
Banks provide loans under the SHG model. However, they also disburse microfinance loans directly or through BCs to
meet their priority-sector lending targets. Banks (under the Self Help group and Joint Liability group programmes)
account for 57% of the MFI loans outstanding as of May 2023, followed by NBFC-MFIs who have a 26% market share.
SFB and NBFC market share stood at 11% and 6% respectively as on May 2023.

Key participants in the MFI lending business are:
e Banks-SHGs, which refers to banks who provide microcredit under the SGH programme

e Banks (direct and indirect through BCs) includes portfolios for direct and indirect lending (through BCs) by banks;
private banks are key constituents

o NBFC-MFIs includes MFIs exclusively focused on the microfinance business, and accordingly registered as NBFC-
MFIs with the RBI.

e SFBs: This category includes 10 players (AU, Capital, ESAF, Equitas, Fincare, Jana, North East, Suryoday, Ujjivan,
and Utkarsh), of which 8 were formerly NBFC-MFlIs, and have now converted into SFBs

e NBFCs include Fullerton, L&T Finance, and Reliance Commercial Finance Ltd, each of which has a microcredit
lending business, in addition to other lending businesses

o Non-profit MFIs refers to MFIs registered as not-for-profit organisation, such as Cashpor, which is now converted
to NBFC

After commencement of operations, SFBs that were previously NBFC-MFIs started expanding in other asset classes,
such as affordable housing, SMEs and vehicle finance, to create a balance between secured and unsecured assets, while
diversifying their product offering. This strategy of diversification may result in other assets growing more in comparison
to the microfinance portfolios of SFBs.
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Hence, CRISIL MI&A expects NBFC-MFIs to grow at a much faster rate of 19-20% between fiscal 2023 and 2026 vis-
v-a-vis SFBs which are expected to grow at slower rate, on account of increasing focus of SFBs towards other product
suite beyond the MFI loan portfolio.

Player Group-wise Market Share

FY20 - Rs. 3,400 billion May 2023 — Rs. 5,508 billion

it Non-profit
NBFC MFls, 1%

7%

SFB, 12% SFB, 11%

NBFC-MFIs,

229% NBFC-MFls,
(o]

26%

Note: Data includes data for banks SHG, bank JLG, SFBs, NBFC-MFIs, other NBFCs and non-profit MFIs.
Source: MFIN, CRISIL MI&A, Industry

Growth is strong across players; small size players have reported fastest growth over fiscal 2018-23

100%
95%
90%
85%
80%
75%
FY18 FY19 FY20 FY21 FY22 CAGR (FY18-
23)

M large HMedium B Small

Note: Data includes 49 NBFC MFI players, Players are classified based on Gross Loan Portfolio (GLP), Large players have
GLP>Rs.20,000 million, Medium players have GLP between Rs. 5,000 million and Rs. 20,000 million, Small players have GLP upto
Rs 5,000 million; Source: MFIN, CRISIL MI&A

Comparison of different participants in microfinance lending business

Scheduled commercial banks SFBs MFIs
Priority sector lending
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' Scheduled commercial banks

Targeted
lending
sectors

to

40% for priority sector
lending of their adjusted net

bank credit (ANBC) or|e
equivalent off-balance-sheet | o

exposure
higher)
18% of ANBC to agriculture
7.5% of ANBC to micro-
enterprises

12% of ANBC to weaker
sections

(whichever is

SFBs
75% for priority sector lending
of their ANBC
18% of ANBC to agriculture
7.5% of ANBC to micro-
enterprises
12% of ANBC to weaker
sections
At least 50% of loan portfolio
should constitute loans and
advances of up to 2.5 million

MFls
e 75% of loans should
qualifying microfinance assets
e Income generation loans > 50%
of total loans

be

Prudential nor

ms

Capital e Minimum Tier 1 capital: 7% |e Minimum Tier 1 capital: 7.5% | e Tier 1 capital > Tier 2 capital

adequacy e Minimum capital adequacy|e Minimum capital adequacy|e Minimum capital adequacy ratio:

framework ratio: 9% ratio: 15% 15%

Margincap |e No margin cap No margin cap e No margin cap

CRR/SLR |e Maintenance of CRR/SLR Maintenance of CRR/SLR |e No such requirement
mandatory mandatory

Leverage e Minimum leverage ratio of |e Minimum leverage ratio of 4% | e No such requirement

ratio 4%

Liquidity e Mandatory requirement to Minimum liquidity coverage |e No such requirement

coverage maintain liquidity coverage| ratio of 100% by January 1,

ratio/ net| ratio 2021

stable funding
ratio (NSFR)

NSFR will be applicable to
SFBs on par with scheduled

commercial banks as and
when finalised
Funding
Deposits e Primarily rely on deposits|e Primarily rely on deposits for |e Cannot accept deposits
for funding requirements funding requirements
Deposit ramp-up will take
time
Bank loans/|e Access to broader array of |e Access to broader array of|e Diversified funding sources,
market market borrowings market borrowings including bank loans, short- and
funding No access to bank loans long-term market borrowings;
funding from NABARD,
MUDRA loans, etc
Products
Products e Full spectrum of banking,|e Can offer savings and|e Can act as a business
offered savings, investment and investment products apart| correspondent to another bank

insurance products

from credit products/loans
Can act as corporate agent to
offer insurance products
Cannot act as business
correspondent to other banks

and offer savings, deposits, credit
and investment products

e Can act as a corporate agent to
offer insurance products

Source: RBI, CRISIL MI&A

Though the above regulations related to MFIs seem to be less relaxed than others, they provide an opportunity to MFIs
to maintain a singular focus on the customers they cater to and the products they offer. The processes and systems can be
built more efficiently and customised to the requirements of the customers, and deeper local understanding can be
developed to handle nuances of different geographical areas. Another major advantage is the institution can be more
flexible and react and adjust to various events faster. Also, being under the purview of the RBI provides a separate identity
to the institutions, and policy measures related to this segment gets due focus.

MFIs also focusing on third-party products to provide customer centric services

The MFIs have built a large distribution network across urban and rural India. They are now leveraging this network to
distribute the financial and non-financial products of other institutions to their members. Their networks allow such
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distributors access to a segment of the market which many others do not otherwise have access to. While MFIs continue
to focus on their core business of providing microcredit services, they seek to diversify into other businesses by scaling
up certain pilot projects involving fee-based services and secured/unsecured individual lending. Such diversification also
helps MFIs retain existing customers who want to also start small and medium enterprises (SMESs) on their own, have
business needs (retail business loans or 2-wheeler loans), or want a better lifestyle (home improvement loans, two-
wheeler loans etc.). The objective is to increase member loyalty and also provide economic benefits to members and their
families. The product diversification enables MFIs to add stability to their asset base in case of event risks.

Individual micro-lending

Individual micro-lending by NBFC-MFIs (including SFBs) is aimed at two segments of customers. Firstly, it allows
MFIs to graduate existing good and loyal customers to higher ticket individual loans (> 1.25L RBI Cap). Secondly, it
helps them tap new markets and improve outreach by serving the underserved customer segment with better margins in
overall lending. Many MFIs have already started targeting such customers with specific needs, for their various ventures.
Since, as per an RBI directive, individual lending cannot be more than 15% of the overall portfolio, this portfolio currently
varies from 10-15% of total outstanding loans for most MFIs. Maximum variance permitted for individual loans between
the minimum and maximum interest rate cannot exceed 4%. Average interest paid on borrowings and charged by MFI is
to be calculated on average monthly balances of outstanding borrowings and loan portfolios, respectively.

Product financing

Microfinance companies lend for both consumption as well as productive purposes. In 2011, RBI regulations stipulated
a minimum of 70% of MFI loans were to be deployed for income-generating activities. This was because lending towards
non-income generating activities could result in people remaining trapped in a debt cycle.

Agriculture and trading are the major sub-sectors where income-generation loans are deployed. Non-income generation
loans are used for consumption, housing, education, mobile, water and sanitation, health etc. Microfinance lenders
provide these loans by cross-selling to the existing microfinance borrowers.

Products Indicative list of players offering
Solar Arohan Financial, Satin Creditcare, Muthoot Microfin
Water and Sanitation | Arohan Financial, CreditAccess Grameen, Ujjivan SFB, Satin Creditcare, Muthoot Microfin
Home Appliances Arohan Financial, CreditAccess Grameen, Ujjivan SFB, Satin Creditcare
Cycle and Personal Arohan Financial, Ujjivan SFB, Satin Credit Care
Mobile loans Arohan Financial, Ujjivan SFB, Satin Creditcare, Muthoot Microfin
Home Improvement Utkarsh SFB, CreditAccess Grameen, Asirvad Microfinance, Annapurna Financial, Ujjivan
loans SFB

Source: Company reports, Company websites, CRISIL MI&A

The 70% floor towards income-generation loans was changed in 2015. As per an RBI regulation in April 2015, a part
(i.e., maximum of 50%) of the aggregate amount of loans may be extended for other purposes such as housing repairs,
education, medical and other emergencies. However, the aggregate amount of loans given to a borrower for income
generation should constitute at least 50% of the total loans from the NBFC-MFI. As per the latest RBI (Regulatory
Framework for Microfinance Loans) Directions 2022, a minimum of 50% of aggregate amount were to be deployed for
income-generation activities.

As per Bharat Microfinance report 2022, the proportion of income generating loans to consumption loans is 96% to 4%
in fiscal 2022. CRISIL MI&A expects that the share of income generation loans will remain in majority going forward.

Share of Income Generation Loans and consumption Loans
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Note: The data for the industry given above is estimated using the data available for MFIs as per Bharat Microfinance Report 2022
Source: Bharat Microfinance Report 2022, CRISIL MI&A

State-wise Analysis

Top 10 states contribute about 83% of MFI loans

About 83% of the AUM is concentrated in the top 10 states with Bihar (14%), Tamil Nadu (13%), and Uttar Pradesh
(10%) recording the highest shares as of May 2023. In top states Bihar reported fastest disbursement growth of 17% in
first quarter of fiscal 2024, it is followed by Uttar Pradesh 14%. Punjab asset quality (PAR>90) is the weakest 5.5%, it
is followed by West Bengal (4.0%) and Haryana (3.9%).

State-wise distribution of MFI loans portfolio o/s (as of May 2023)

Bihar, 14%
Others, 17%

Kerala, 4%
Tamil Nadu, 13%

Orissa, 6%
Uttar Pradesh,

Madya Pradesh, 6%

Karnataka
, 9%

Maharashtra, 8%

Note: Data includes data for Banks, SFBs, NBFC-MFIs, other NBFCs and non-profit MFIs.
Source: MFIN, CRISIL MI&A

State-wise distribution of MFI loans disbursement

Bihar 11,791 19,233 63%
Tamil Nadu 9,578 13776 44%
Uttar Pradesh 7,531 14,194 88%
Karnataka 8,570 12,330 44%
Madya Pradesh 6,324 9,309 47%
Maharashtra 6,205 8,821 42%
Orissa 7,232 12,914 79%
West Bengal 5,757 9,518 65%
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| Rajasthan | 4,264 | 6,205 46%

Source: MFIN, CRISIL MI&A
Underpenetrated states to drive growth for MFI in the coming years
CRISIL MI&A expects growth in the MFI portfolio to come from states that have a relatively lower penetration. Thus,

CRISIL MI&A expects underpenetrated states like Uttar Pradesh, Andhra Pradesh and Telangana to drive future growth
along with some of the moderately penetrated states, such as Rajasthan, Maharashtra, Madhya Pradesh and Gujarat.

1%
Saemi & Himachal Pradesh
4
- ' Uttarakhand
28% v
rafyens Punjab * Jharkhand
¢ 31% »
29% A
29% &
: 20%
Ro Uttar Pradesh Pl ‘
7%
22% 35% ' <
Gujarat Madhya Pradesh 33% Manipur
A
West Bengal
4
53%
Trpura

Source: MFIN, CRISIL MI&A

Note: 1) Andhra Pradesh (AP) has not been considered for analysis due to many write-offs after the AP crisis and as some large
players are not present in the state, 2) Penetration has been computed by dividing no. of MFI clients (December 2020) by estimated
number of households in 2020, 3)Pan-India penetration has been determined based on the analysis of 19 states.

Borrowing Mix

Banks have traditionally been the key lenders to NBFC-MFIs. Smaller players would resort to portfolio sell-outs to
channel growth. However, in fiscal 2021, funds raised by NBFC-MFIs through non-convertible debenture (NCD)
issuances increased substantially, mainly due to targeted long-term repo operations (TLTRO) announced by the RBI.
NBFC-MFIs also raised funds through the partial credit guarantee scheme under which the RBI extended a special
liquidity facility to NABARD, SIDBI and National Housing Bank to the tune of Rs 25,000 crore, Rs 15,000 crore and
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Rs 10,000 crore, respectively, to be further lent to sectors such as construction and small and medium NBFC-MFIs. After
an increase in term loans from banks by 600 bps in fiscal 2022, the borrowings remained range bound in fiscal 2023.

The share of term loans is expected to increase with a decline in NCD borrowings on account of hardening of interest
rates due to a 250-bps hike in repo rates in fiscal 2023. The RBI has continued to pause interest rate hikes since February
2023 and is monitoring the impact of rate transmission on the economy. In addition, MFIs have been regularly raising
equity over the years, indicating stable investor confidence.

Borrowing mix of NBFC-MFIs
100.0%
80.0%
60.0%
40.0%

20.0%

0.0%
FY18 FY19 FY20 Fy21 FY22 FY23 Q1FY24

B Debentures HBanks & FIs B Commercial Papers Other borrowing
Note: Data is based on sample set of NBFC MFIs accounting for 95% of the GLP as of Q1FY24, Other borrowing include sub-debt

and external borrowings
Source: MFIN, CRISIL MI&A

Borrowing mix of NBFC-MFIs across different bucket size
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Source: MFIN, CRISIL MI&A
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In Q1FY24, ~80% of the debt funding for large MFIs was from Banks and other financial institutions. Medium and small
MFIs were also able to source 81% and 78% debt funding from banks and other financial institutions respectively.

Asset quality

In fiscal 2021, the asset quality deteriorated sharply, reflecting the adverse impact of Covid-19 on the industry. The asset
quality of NBFC-MFIs started deteriorating from third quarter of fiscal 2021 and PAR>90 shot up above 8.4% in March
2021. This could be attributed to slippages from the restructured book for various MFI players. The situation improved
for NBFCs and NBFC MFIs, which witnessed a sharp improvement in fiscal 2023. At end of Q1 Fiscal 2024, the PAR>90
for NBFC MFlIs stood at 6.2% from 8.4% at end of Fiscal 2021.

Player groupwise asset quality (PAR>90 days)

Player Group FY 2021 FY 2022 FY 2023 QI1FY24
Banks 8.1% 13.2% 13.2% 11.3%
NBFC MFIs 8.4% 8.3% 7.7% 6.2%
NBFCs (excluding NBFC MFIs) 8.4% 4.1% 2.4% 3.7%
Small Finance Banks 8.8% 11.4% 10.3% 10.1%

Source: MFIN, CRISIL MI&A
Reduction in credit cost to boost profitability of MFIs in the medium term

In fiscals 2021 and 2022, the cost of borrowing remained relatively stable despite the pandemic. However, with an
increase in the repo rate in fiscal 2023, the cost of borrowing is estimated to have increased for MFIs. The increase is
likely to be offset by steeper lending rates, thereby cushioning net interest margins (NIMs). Further, enhanced flexibility
to set lending rates is one of the drivers supporting a revival in MFIs’ profitability this fiscal, led by RBI’s removal of
the interest margin cap on lending rates under its new regulatory framework for microfinanciers.

Over fiscals 2021 and 2022, annual credit costs of the industry shot up to 3-5% because of pandemic-related provisioning.
However, most MFIs increased provisioning levels to fortify their balance sheets against asset quality risks. CRISIL
MI&A estimates credit costs decreased last fiscal because of lower provisions and an improvement in repayment levels
of borrowers.

A majority of borrowers in the microfinance sector receive loans from NBFC-MFIs at fixed interest rates due to the short
duration of these loans. Any changes in the repo rate are quickly reflected in the interest rates charged to borrowers.
However, it is important to note that these revised interest rates apply only to new borrowers, as existing borrowers
continue to operate under the previous rate structure. While an increase in the repo rate will lead to higher yields for
NBFC-MFIs, we anticipate that NIMs of these institutions will generally remain range bound. CRISIL MI&A predicts a
gradual decrease in credit costs throughout fiscal 2024 to support the overall profitability of the microfinance industry.

In this context, the new framework introduced by the RBI is favourable for MFIs. This framework includes higher income
eligibility thresholds for borrowers and provides greater flexibility in loan pricing for MFls.

Profitability (return on assets) of MFIs to improve this fiscal

ROA tree FY19 FY20 FY21 FY22 FY23 FY24P
Interest income 18.2% 17.2% 15.7% 15.9% 17.3% 18.7%
Interest expense 8.5% 7.7% 7.4% 7.1% 7.3% 8.0%
Net Interest Income 9.7% 9.6% 8.3% 8.8% 10.0% 10.7%
Other income 2.1% 2.0% 1.2% 1.3% 2.3% 1.6%
Operating costs 5.5% 5.1% 4.4% 4.9% 5.4% 4.9%
Credit cost 0.7% 1.5% 4.6% 3.5% 3.3% 2.8%
Tax 1.6% 1.5% 0.3% 0.6% 1.0% 1.1%
RoA 4.0% 3.5% 0.2% 1.1% 2.6% 3.5%

Note: P: projected; All above ratios are calculated on average assets.

Source: CRISIL MI&A

OVERALL MORTGAGE LOANS

Housing Loans
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Housing is regarded as the engine of economic growth and can give a big push to the economy through its forward and
backward linkages with more than 250 ancillary industries. The sector has strong inter-industry linkages and investments
in housing can have multiplier effects on generation of income and employment in the country. Recognising the
importance of housing as a basic human need, the government has announced multiple schemes to continue their focus
on housing in the country.

Estimated shortage and requirement of ~100 million houses in 2022

The housing shortage in India has only increased since the estimates at the time of the Twelfth Five-year plan. As per the
report of RBI-appointed Committee on the Development of housing finance securitisation market (September 2019), the
housing shortage in India is estimated to increase to 100 million units by 2022. The majority of the household shortage
is for Lower income group (L1G) and Economic weaker section (EWS) with a small proportion of shortage (5-7%) of the
shortage coming from middle income group or above. Total incremental housing loans demand, if this entire shortage is
to be addressed, is estimated to be in the region of Rs 50 trillion to Rs 60 trillion, as per the Committee report. In
comparison, the overall housing loans outstanding (excluding PMAY loans) as of March 2023 is around Rs 31.1 trillion.

This indicates the immense latent potential of the market; in case a concrete action is taken for addressing the shortage
of houses in the country.
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Source: RBI, Planning Commission, CRISIL MI&A

Opportunity for financiers well established in Housing segment
As per the report of RBI-appointed Committee on the Development of housing finance securitisation market (September
2019), the total value of units to fulfil the entire shortage is estimated at Rs. 149 trillion, out of which Rs. 58 trillion is

estimated to be the aggregate loan demand for housing.

Estimates for aggregate demand for Housing

EWS 45 0.75 34 40% 40% 5
LIG 50 1.5 75 50% 80% 30
MIG & above 5 8 40 65% 85% 22
Total 100 149 58

Source: RBI Committee Discussion (Sept 2019), CRISIL MI&A
Housing Finance to log a CAGR of 13-15% in the long term between fiscal 2023 and 2026

The Indian Housing Finance market clocked a healthy ~12% CAGR (growth in loan outstanding) over fiscals 2020-2023
on account of rise in disposable incomes, healthy demand, and greater number of players entering the segment. Over the
past two fiscals, the housing finance segment has seen favorable affordability on account of stable property rates and
improved annual income of individual borrowers. The Overall housing finance segment credit outstanding was ~Rs. 28.9
trillion as of March 2023. The provision of housing loans through a registered housing finance entity provides certain
competitive advantages, including increased leverage due to lower capital adequacy norms applicable to such entity, as
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well as lower risk weightage applicable to housing finance loans.

Overall Housing Loans Outstanding projected to grow at 13-15% over fiscal 2023-2026

(in Rs trillions)

45.0 42.45% 42-44
GR: 13
40.0 CA
" ~1 20/0
: 24.0

25.0 20.4 21.9
20.0
15.0
10.0

5.0

FY20 FY21 FY22 FY23 FY26P

Note: P- Projected; Source: CRISIL MI&A

In fiscal 2021, credit growth slowed owing to outbreak of the Covid-19 pandemic, which impacted the low- and middle-
income groups. However, there was a faster-than-envisaged revival in the second half of fiscal 2021 on the back of the
RBI, the Centre and state governments providing impetus to the segment with tax sops, lower stamp duty and favourable
interest rates. The growth in the housing sector continued in fiscal 2022, with middle income groups opting for homes in
tier 11 and 111 cities. Also, the customers shifted their preference towards large homes on account of work from home
policies.

In fiscal 2023, the RBI started increasing repo rates owing to concerns over increasing inflation and its impact on the
macro economy amid geopolitical issues. Despite the aggressive rate hikes during the fiscal, credit growth remained
intact, with healthy growth by both banks and HFCs/NBFCs. In the past, demand for home loans rose due to higher
demand from tier 1l and Il cities, rising disposable incomes and government steps, such as interest rate subvention
schemes and fiscal incentives. In fiscal 2024, the credit growth momentum is expected to continue for HFCs/NBFCs,
with affordable HFCs getting back on track, and expected to post robust growth. CRISIL MI&A expects overall housing
portfolio of HFCs/NBFCs to grow by 12-14% in fiscal 2024 driven by demand from top cities, growth in capital values
and incremental construction under PMAY.

Loan Against Property

Loan Against Property (LAP) is availed by mortgaging a property (residential or commercial) with the lender. LAP is a
secured loan, as it provides collateral to the financier in the form of the property. Its interest rate is lower than personal
or business loans. It could be used for either business or personal purposes. It can be availed by both salaried and self-
employed individuals. For all these reasons, LAP has become popular among borrowers in recent years. The financiers
offering housing loans, also provide LAP loans primarily due to synergies between the two products, higher yields offered
by LAP, while continuing to cater to similar customer profile, collateral requirement and ticket size.

Key factors that contributed to high LAP growth are:

e Quick turnaround time, lower interest rate, lesser documentation: LAP loans are disbursed in about half the
time taken for a secured MSME loan. It is also offered at a lower interest rate than unsecured MSME loans, personal
and business loans. LAPs require less documentation than other secured SME products, leading to fewer hassles for
customers.

e Greater transparency in the system: Demonetization, GST, and the government’s strong push for digitization have
led to higher transparency in the system. This will keep pushing up loan amount eligibility of borrowers.
Formalization will also help many new borrowers come under the ambit of formal lending channels.

¢ Rising penetration of formal channels: Increase in penetration and availability of formal lending channels outside
the top 10 cities will eat into the market share of unorganized moneylenders.

e Higher comfort for lenders: Lenders are comfortable disbursing LAP loans, as it offers favorable risk-return
characteristics, compared with MSMEs and unsecured loans. They also offer higher recovery in case of default
(supported by the Securitization and Reconstruction of Financial Assets and Enforcement of Securities Interest Act
(SARFAESI), 2002) and better asset quality, which is partly offset by lower yields.
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Overall LAP portfolio to grow at 16-18% CAGR between fiscal 2023 and fiscal 2026
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The overall Loan against property segment has grown at a CAGR of 14.2% from fiscal 2020 to fiscal 2023. The market
size has expanded from Rs 5.0 trillion as of fiscal 2020 to Rs. 7.5 trillion as of fiscal 2023. The growth in this segment is
attributed to increasing financial penetration and an increase in the number of players in the targeted market. In fiscal
2021 and 2022, the overall LAP portfolio witnessed a slower growth of 7.9% & 5.5%. respectively. This was primarily
due to slowdown in the economic activity and pandemic induced lockdown imposed by the government. However in
fiscal 2023, the overall LAP portfolio grew by 30.7% year-on-year on account of improved economic conditions and
normalization of business activities. Going forward, CRISIL MI&A expects overall LAP portfolio to grow at 16-18%
CAGR between fiscal 2023 and fiscal 2026 aided by increasing lender focus and penetration of such loans, enhanced
availability of data increasing lender comfort while underwriting such loans, enhanced use of technology, newer players
entering the segment, and continued government support.

MSME LOANS
Overall MSME lending has grown at a CAGR of 10% in the past decade

CRISIL MI&A estimates the total size of MSME lending market across ticket sizes and various player groups (banks,
NBFCs, small finance banks, and other formal lenders) to be around X 24 trillion as of March 2023. This market size
includes loans taken by MSMEs across various constitution types (sole proprietorships, partnership firms, private and
public limited companies, and co-operatives) and the ticket size spectrum, and includes loans extended in the name of
the firm/entity/company as well as the individuals in case of micro enterprises or entrepreneurs. CRISIL MI&A estimates
loans to MSMEs to have grown at a CAGR of 10% during Fiscal 2012 to Fiscal 2023, which is similar to the nominal
GDP growth in this period. This can be attributed to various events during this time span that has impacted MSMEs —
demonetisation of high-value currency loans in November 2016, the implementation of GST subsequently, the economic
slowdown in Fiscal 2020 followed by the COVID-19 pandemic. In Fiscal 2023, with recovery in economic activity,
MSME lending is estimated to have grown at a 13% growth rate year-on-year. In addition, in Fiscal 2024, CRISIL MI&A
projects the MSME overall industry growth to be at 13% - 15% owing to budgetary push and rise in entrepreneurship in
India.

MSME credit outstanding estimated at X 24 trillion as of March 2023
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COVID-19 pandemic led to a heavy impact in the MSME industry in Fiscal 2021 which was also seen in the first quarter
of Fiscal 2022. ECLGS schemes aimed to reduce the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic on the MSME sector. The first
half of Fiscal 2022 was also impacted by the second wave leading to lower disbursements to these MSMEs. This led to
the extension of the ECLGS scheme which cushioned the impact of COVID-19 pandemic. ECLGS scheme led by revival
of economic activities, strong exports and domestic growth prompted MSME lending to grow at 13% in Fiscal 2022.

NBFCs have managed to carve out a strong presence in MSME loans due to their focus on serving the needs of the
customer segment, faster turnaround time, customer service provided and expansion in geographic reach. Over the years,
the MSME portfolio of NBFCs have grown at a faster rate than the overall MSME portfolio at a systemic level. Going
forward CRISIL MI&A expects the competitive positioning of NBFCs to remain strong, given their strong target
customer and product focus.

Growth drivers
High credit gap in the MSME segment

Less than 15% of approximately 70 million odd MSMEs have access to formal credit in any manner as of March 2022.
High-risk perception and the prohibitive cost of delivering services physically have constrained traditional institutions’
ability to provide credit to underserved or unserved MSMEs and self-employed individuals historically. As a result, they
resort to credit from informal sources. This untapped market offers huge growth potential for financial institutions. As
stated earlier, the credit gap was estimated at around X 58.4 trillion as of 2017 (Source: IFC report named Financing
India’s MSME:s released in November 2018, CRISIL MI&A) and is estimated to have widened further to around % 92
trillion as of Fiscal 2023.

Credit Gap estimated at T 92 trillion as of Fiscal 2023
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Note: Overall formal MSME credit given above includes all kinds of secured and unsecured loans given to MSMEs across ticket sizes
by organised lenders.
Source: MSME Ministry Annual report for FY21, IFC report on Financing India’s MSMEs dated November 2018, CRISIL MI&A
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PEER COMPARISON

In this chapter, CRISIL MI&A has analysed the operational performance and key financial indicators of various large
and medium NBFC-MFI (non-banking finance company-microfinance institution) players in terms of assets under
management (AUM).

Our Company is the seventh largest NBFC-MFI in India in terms of AUM as of June 2023 amongst the peers set

Our Company has maintained its position amongst the top ten leading NBFC MFI with a market share of 5.86% as of
June 2023. Credit Access Grameen leads the pack with market share of 15.34% as of June 2023.

Comparison of key players in the MFI industry

» Market As of As of As of As of As of As of
AUM (Rs billion) share# March March March March | March 31, June 30,
31,2019 31,2020 31,2021 31,2022 2023 2023
CreditAccess Grameen Ltd 15.34% 71.59 98.96 113.41 137.32 210.31 218.14
IIFL Samasta Finance Ltd 7.78% 22.86 34.00 47.96 64.84 105.52 110.72
Asirvad Microfinance Ltd 7.13% 38.41 55.03 59.85 70.20 100.41 101.41
Fusion Micro Finance Ltd 6.83% 26.41 36.57 46.38 66.54 92.96 97.12
Muthoot Microfin Ltd 6.47% 43.54 49.32 49.77 65.67 92.08 NA
Annapurna Finance Pvt Ltd 6.32% 30.18 40.09 48.08 65.49 88.14 89.96
Satin Creditcare Network Ltd 5.86% 63.74 72.66 72.75 64.09 79.29 83.67
Spandana Sphoorty Financial Ltd 5.88% 43.72 68.29 81.39 61.51 79.80 83.33
Svatantra Microfin Pvt Ltd 5.41% 12.32 26.02 35.64 54.47 74.99 76.94
Belstar Microfinance Ltd 4.93% 18.41 23.59 32.99 43.65 61.92 70.08
Namra Microfinance Ltd 1.27% 4.84 6.21 6.41 10.22 16.14 18.00

Note: (1) *: AUM for NBFC-MFI players comprises largely of MFI loans and some non-MFI loans allowed as per extant regulations
and based on each company’s strategy, (2) #: Market share is based on June 2023 AUM of NBFC-MFIs; NBFC MFIs are arranged
in order of June 2023 AUM

(3) M: Market Share calculated based on March 2023 AUM, (4) NA — Not available.

Source: MFIN, Company reports, CRISIL MI&A

Our Company has the third highest year on year growth in Disbursement in Fiscal 2023

Our Company (83.33%) has the third highest year on year growth in Disbursement in Fiscal 2023. Spandana Sphoorty
(142.65%) and Asirvad Microfinance (126.43%) has higher growth in Disbursement in Fiscal 2023.

Comparison of key players in the MFI industry

Disbursement | FY19 FY20 FY21 FY22 FY23 Q1FY24 Growth Growth Growth Growth Growth
(Rs billion) y-0-y y-0-y | y-0-y y-0-y y-0-y

FY20 FY21  FY22 FY23 QI1FY24

CreditAccess 82.21]103.89| 96.41|128.33|185.39 47.71| 26.37%)| -7.20%| 33.11% | 44.46% | 122.32%
Grameen Ltd
IFL Samasta| 24.18| 30.79| 36.95| 57.10(102.09 23.80| 27.33%| 20.01% | 54.53% | 78.79% | 64.14%
Finance Ltd
Asirvad 42.85| 47.80| 36.20| 85.57|193.76 48.30| 11.55%|-24.27%[136.38% [126.43% | 40.69%
Microfinance
Ltd

Fusion Micro| 28.21| 35.73| 36.76| 60.58| 83.75 22.13| 26.68%| 2.88%| 64.80% | 38.25%| 13.60%
Finance Ltd

Muthoot 4558 | 40.66| 25.81| 46.69| 81.04 NA| -10.79% |-36.52% | 80.90% | 73.57% NA
Microfin Ltd

Annapurna 40.09| 40.13| 30.86| 53.23| 77.14 17.90 0.10%|-23.10% | 72.49% | 44.92%| 42.40%
Finance Pvt Ltd

Spandana 49.69| 80.04| 64.26| 31.42| 76.24 15.99| 61.08%|-19.72% |-51.10% [142.65% | 31.07%
Sphoorty
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Financial Ltd

Satin 62.52| 80.45| 43.94| 40.31| 73.90 19.80| 28.68% |-45.38% | -8.26% | 83.33% | 27.41%
Creditcare
Network L td
Svatantra 11.32| 24.86| 24.14| 47.30| 62.86 16.70| 119.56% | -2.91%| 95.94% | 32.90%| 29.86%
Microfin Pvt Ltd
Belstar 17.97| 26.19| 24.35| 35.46| 57.95 20.46| 45.75%| -7.03% | 45.63% | 63.42% | 84.32%
Microfinance
Ltd

Namra 5.89| 6.53| 4.17| 8.22| 14.85 453| 10.87%|-36.14% | 97.12% | 80.66% | 42.90%
Microfinance
Ltd

Source: MFIN, company reports, CRISIL MI&A

Our Company has the third highest Clients per Branch & Clients per Employee at end of Q1Fiscal 2024

Our Company has the third-best servicing capability with its clients per branch at 2,548, only behind Fusion Microfinance
(3,513) and Belstar Microfinance (2,988). In terms of clients per employee, Our Company stood third amongst the peer
set in Q1Fiscal 2024. Our Company also has the sixth highest number of loans disbursed per loan officer in Q1Fiscal
2024. Asirvad Microfinance & CreditAccess Grameen have a higher no. of loans disbursed per loan officer In Q1Fiscal
2024,

Reach and efficiency No of No.of  No of Clients  Clients | Clients No of loans No. of loans
parameters (Q1FY?24) employees loan branches per per per  disbursed disbursed
officers employee branch loan per loan @ (in lakhs)
officer  officer
CreditAccess Grameen Ltd 17,391 |12,043| 1,826 254 2,422 367 103 12.42
IIFL Samasta Finance Ltd 12,774 7,591 1,352 195 1,842 328 72 5.47
Asirvad Microfinance Ltd 16,021 8,127 1,738 218 2,011 430 114 9.30
Fusion Micro Finance Ltd 10,385 | 6,541 1,033 349 3,513 555 80 5.22
Muthoot Microfin Ltd NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA
Annapurna Finance Pvt Ltd 10,844 | 7,537 1,237 232 2,034 334 45 341
Spandana Sphoorty Financial Ltd| 10,671 8,214 1,245 214 1,832 278 47 3.84
Satin Creditcare Network Ltd 9,330 6,263 1,096 299 2,548 446 72 4.52
Svatantra Microfin Pvt Ltd 7,400 4518 954 309 2,400 507 85 3.84
Belstar Microfinance Ltd 8,421 4721 781 277 2,988 494 87 4.09
Namra Microfinance Ltd 2,469 1,845 274 240 2,164 321 54 1.00
Source: MFIN, Company reports, CRISIL MI&A
Reach and efficiency No of No.of | Noof | Clients Clients Clients No of loans No. of loans
parameters (FY23) employees | loan |branches| per per per loan disbursed per disbursed
officers employee branch officer  loan officer | (in lakhs)
CreditAccess Grameen Ltd 16,759 15,712 | 1,786 254 2,388 271 311 48.83
IIFL Samasta Finance Ltd 12,213 6,214 1,267 193 1,858 379 382 23.72
Asirvad Microfinance Ltd 15,874 8,736 1,684 210 1,983 382 450 39.28
Fusion Micro Finance Ltd 9,625 6,269 1,019 365 3,452 561 352 22.09
Muthoot Microfin Ltd 10,227 6,274 1,172 271 2,366 442 340 21.34
Annapurna Finance Pvt Ltd 10,356 6,501 1,183 241 2,106 383 231 15.00
Spandana Sphoorty Financial 9,674 7,503 1,153 220 1,844 283 220 16.48
Ltd
Satin Creditcare Network| 9,222 6,125 1,078 278 2,374 418 285 17.48
Ltd
Svatantra Microfin Pvt Ltd 7,272 4,685 804 306 2,770 475 351 16.43
Belstar Microfinance Ltd 8,022 4,533 767 262 2,742 464 297 13.46
Namra Microfinance Ltd 2,227 1,632 274 247 2,004 336 199 3.25

Source: MFIN, company reports, CRISIL MI&A

Our Company & Asirvad Microfinance have the largest presence across 24 states as of Q1Fiscal 2024
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Amongst the peer set, Our Company & Asirvad Microfinance are most diversified with presence across 24 states.

Geographical presence of select players in the MFI Industry

No. of states

FY19

FY20

FY21

FY22

FY23

Q1FY24

CreditAccess Grameen Ltd 14 14 14 14 15 15
IIFL Samasta Finance Ltd 17 17 17 17 19 21
Asirvad Microfinance Ltd 23 23 23 23 23 24
Fusion Micro Finance Ltd 18 18 18 18 20 20
Muthoot Microfin Ltd 16 16 16 16 18 NA
Annapurna Finance Pvt Ltd 18 18 18 20 20 20
Spandana Sphoorty Financial Ltd 18 18 18 18 18 18
Satin Creditcare Network Ltd 23 23 23 23 24 24
Svatantra Microfin Pvt Ltd 17 17 19 19 19 19
Belstar Microfinance Ltd 18 18 18 18 18 18
Namra Microfinance Ltd 6 6 7 8 8 8

Notes: NA — Not available.

Source: MFIN, company reports, CRISIL MI&A

Comparison of key players in the MFI space based on geographical concentration of portfolio
Asirvad Microfinance has the lowest concentration of top 3 states in terms of AUM at 38%, followed by Spandana
Sphoorty (42%) and our Company (48%) as of June 2023. Our Company is therefore, the third most diversified NBFC
MFI across top 3 states amongst the peer set.

Q1 Fiscal 2024

Share of rural

Share of top states by AUM

portfolio Top States Top 3 states Top 5 states
CreditAccess Grameen Ltd 85%" 33%* 74%* 85%*
IIFL Samasta Finance Ltd NA NA 50%" NA
Asirvad Microfinance Ltd 88% 14% 38% 55%
Fusion Micro Finance Ltd 94% 23% 53%* 70%
Muthoot Microfin Ltd NA 28%* 56%* NA
Annapurna Finance Pvt Ltd 83%* ™M 20%* 51% NA
Spandana Sphoorty Financial Ltd 87%* 16% 42% 63%
Satin Creditcare Network Ltd 771%™ 27% 48% NA
Svatantra Microfin Pvt Ltd NA 21% NA 69%
Belstar Microfinance Ltd 83%* "M 49%* 62%* NA
Namra Microfinance Ltd 88%# 28% 67% 89%

Notes: Share of Top states for Namra Microfinance is for Armaan Financial, the parent company of Namra Microfinance
NA — Not available, * Data as of Fiscal 2023, » Data as of December 2022, M Share of rural clients is a percentage of
total clients, ** Share of top 6 districts, # Share of rural branches as % of total branches.

Source: MFIN, company reports, CRISIL MI&A

CreditAccess Grameen has the lowest cost to income ratio as of June 2023 among the peer set

CreditAccess Grameen’s cost to income ratio stood at 31.08% which was the lowest as of June 2023 as compared to its
peers. Our Company has the third best cost to income ratio of 37.30% at end of Fiscal 2023, after Namra Microfinance
30.00%) and Credit Access Grameen (35.57%).

Cost to income ratio ~ FY20 FY21 FY22 | FY23 QI1FY24
CreditAccess Grameen Ltd 35.26% 34.54% 41.65% 45.60% 35.57% 31.08%
IIFL Samasta Finance Ltd 60.04% 49.81% 62.59% 52.59% 86.04% 61.76%
Asirvad Microfinance Ltd 41.31% 33.88% 46.66% 49.65% 48.26% 40.91%
Fusion Micro Finance Ltd 63.21% 50.84% 44.26% 44.26% 38.44% 36.26%
Muthoot Microfin Ltd 42.16% 49.36% 64.61% 65.02% 51.39% 48.21%
Annapurna Finance Pvt Ltd 62.15% 62.00% 58.50% 63.07% 55.10% 49.49%
Spandana Sphoorty Financial Ltd 24.94% 20.89% 21.96% 39.55% 45.44% 43.71%
Satin Creditcare Network Ltd 51.27% 51.27% 59.47% 64.92% 37.30% 46.39%
Svatantra Microfin Pvt Ltd 71.46% 103.69% 59.08% 47.63% 37.41% 37.99%
Belstar Microfinance Ltd 44.22% 50.97% 56.77% 52.91% 45.94% 40.28%
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| Namra Microfinance Ltd | 48.44% | 43.26% | 4455% | 42.93% | 30.00% | NA
Source: Company reports, CRISIL MI&A

Namra Microfinance reported the highest Return on Equity (ROE) among the peer set as of fiscal 2023.

ROE
PRy FY19 FY20 Fy2l | FY22 FY23 QIFY24
CreditAccess Grameen Ltd 13.61% 13.01% 4.52% 10.09% 18.26% 26.24%
IIFL Samasta Finance Ltd 28.06% 27.67% 11.50% 6.14% 11.04% NA
Asirvad Microfinance Ltd 18.85% 25.52% 1.54% 1.31% 17.09% 26.93%
Fusion Micro Finance Ltd 11.24% 7.63% 3.60% 1.68% 21.16% 20.21%
Muthoot Microfin Ltd 31.23% 2.03% 0.79% 4.26% 11.06% 22.82%
Annapurna Finance Pvt Ltd 14.48% 11.98% 0.24% 2.21% 3.27% 21.17%
Spandana Sphoorty Financial Ltd 16.37% 14.98% 4.84% 1.62% 0.41% NA
Satin Creditcare Network Ltd 16.93% 15.35% -0.92% 2.60% 15.02% 17.50%*
Svatantra Microfin Pvt Ltd 11.35% 11.41% 5.94% 6.50% 12.86% 27.03%
Belstar Microfinance Ltd 27.69% 22.03% 8.98% 6.46% 13.35% 18.49%
Namra Microfinance Ltd 19.97% 22.13% 4.07% 13.05% 27.56% NA

Note: (*) As reported by the company; RoE annualized for Q1FY24
Source: Company reports, CRISIL MI&A

Our Company reported the 37 highest Return on Assets (RoA) among the peer set in fiscal 2023

Our Company’s RoA stood at 3.52%, which is the third highest amongst the select peer set at end of Fiscal 2023. Namra
Microfinance reported the highest RoA of 5.01% amongst the peer set.

Pl ROA

ayers FY19 | FY20 FY21 FY22 FY23  QIlFY24
CreditAccess Grameen Ltd 4.37% 3.64% 1.22% 2.78% 4.51% 6.21%
IIFL Samasta Finance Ltd 3.99% 4.67% 1.88% 0.94% 1.68% NA
Asirvad Microfinance Ltd 3.56% 4.63% 0.27% 0.22% 2.63% 4.45%
Fusion Micro Finance Ltd 1.83% 1.77% 0.87% 0.33% 4.65% 4.99%
Muthoot Microfin Ltd 6.61% 0.48% 0.17% 0.97% 2.32% 4.37%
Annapurna Finance Pvt Ltd 2.30% 2.01% 0.03% 0.27% 0.42% 2.95%
Spandana Sphoorty Financial Ltd 6.30% 6.21% 1.80% 0.61% 0.15% NA
Satin Creditcare Network Ltd 2.91% 2.26% -0.18% 0.53% 3.52% 4.30%*
Svatantra Microfin Pvt Ltd 1.76% 1.49% 0.85% 0.98% 1.95% 4.21%
Belstar Microfinance Ltd 4.27% 4.33% 1.56% 1.12% 2.41% 3.28%
Namra Microfinance Ltd 2.90% 3.79% 0.69% 2.14% 5.01% NA

Note: (*) As reported by the company; RoA annualized for Q1FY24
Source: Company reports, CRISIL MI&A

Satin Creditcare had the sixth lowest Gross Non-performing Asset (GNPA) ratio amongst the peer sets as of
QlFY24

GNPA NNPA
As of As of As of As of As of
FY21 FY?22 FY21 FY22 FY23

As of
Q1FY24

CreditAccess | 0.61% | 1.57% | 4.38% | 3.12% | 1.21% | 0.89% | 0.17% | 0.37% | 1.37% | 0.94% | 0.35% | 0.27%
Grameen Ltd

IIFL Samasta | NA | 2.80% | 1.80% | 3.07% | 2.12% | 2.11% NA | 0.00% | 0.00% | 0.00% | 0.00% NA
Finance Ltd

Asirvad 0.48% | 1.60% | 2.50% | 1.67% | 2.81% | 2.89% | 0.00% | 0.00% | 0.00% | 0.32% | 1.15% | 1.29%
Microfinance

Ltd

Fusion Micro | 1.55% | 1.12% | 5.50% | 5.70% | 3.46% | 3.20% | 0.56% | 0.39% | 2.20% | 1.60% | 0.87% | 0.78%
Finance Ltd

Muthoot NA | 8.10% | 7.86% | 6.26% | 2.97% | 2.75% NA | 4.05% | 2.15% | 1.55% | 0.60% | 0.51%
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Microfin Ltd

Finance Pvt
Ltd

Annapurna NA

1.36%

7.36%

9.80%

3.84%

9.77% | NA | 0.84% | 2.79% | 2.63% | 1.35% | 3.59%

Sphoorty
Financial Ltd

Spandana NA

0.36%

5.76%

17.70%

2.07%

1.49% | NA | 0.07% | 3.26% | 11.80% | 0.63% | 0.45%

Creditcare
Network
Ltd

Satin NA

1.57%

8.40%

8.01%

3.28%

249% | NA | 0.37% | 4.75% | 2.47% | 1.50% | 1.14%

Microfin Pvt
Ltd

Svatantra NA

1.29%

2.13%

3.38%

5.00%

3.50% | NA | 0.68% | 1.13% | 1.51% | 1.94% NA

Microfinance
Ltd

Belstar NA

1.03%

2.72%

6.75%

2.42%

1.63% | NA | 0.42% | 0.59% | 1.48% | 0.66% | 0.23%

Microfinance
Ltd

Namra NA

0.94%

4.10%

4.44%

2.79%

2.40% | NA | 0.06% | 0.60% | 0.59% | 0.05% | 0.00%

Source: Company reports, CRISIL MI&A

Our Company had capital adequacy ratio of 24.95% as of June 2023, well above the statutory requirement of 15%

NBFC-MFlIs Debt to equity ratio (x Capital adequacy ratio (%)

Asof | Asof | Asof Asof Asof Asof Asof Asof As of Asof Asof Asof

FY19 FY20 | FY21 FY22 FY 23 QlFY24 FY19 FY20 FY21 FY22
CreditAccess 199 | 293 | 242 | 266 | 3.19 3.07 |35.26%)| 23.60% | 31.75% | 26.54% (23.60% | 24.45%
Grameen Ltd
IFL Samasta| 5.85 | 3.81 | 549 | 5.26 | 5.50 NA [20.51%| 25.80% | 18.60% | 17.83% |17.14%| NA
Finance Ltd
Asirvad 425 | 433 | 438 | 519 | 5.46 4.40 |31.82%)| 25.37% | 23.33% | 20.81% [19.66%|23.12%
Microfinance Ltd
Fusion Micro| 4.68 | 248 | 356 | 432 | 2.92 2.94 (26.92%| 35.82% | 27.26% | 21.94% |27.94%)| 28.26%
Finance Ltd
Muthoot Microfin| 2.77 | 3.22 | 3.39 | 299 | 3.99 3.95 |33.05%)| 29.09% | 22.55% | 28.75% (21.87%| 20.45%
Ltd
Annapurna 444 | 510 | 640 | 7.83 | 5.83 5.93 |25.23%| 26.74% | 27.71% | 29.78% |24.66%| 29.82%
Finance Pvt Ltd
Spandana 156 | 1.16 | 1.91 | 1.20 | 1.95 NA |42.46%| 47.44% | 39.20% | 50.74% |36.87%| 38.02%
Sphoorty
Financial Ltd
Satin Creditcare| 4.55 | 3.72 | 404 | 3.40 | 2.85 NA |31.19%| 30.45% | 25.28% | 27.84% |26.62%| 24.95%
Network Ltd
Svatantra Microfin| 6.21 | 6.57 | 536 | 553 | 5.45 NA [18.68%| 20.55% | 21.88% | 25.65% |22.32%| 21.85%
Pvt Ltd
Belstar 3.96 | 381 | 516 | 4.16 | 4.42 4.31 |25.88%)| 25.67% | 22.24% | 24.06% (21.97%| 22.34%
Microfinance Ltd
Namra 573 | 465 | 472 | 501 | 3.97 NA [18.57%| 21.11% | 20.32% | 18.78% |25.62%| 26.32%
Microfinance Ltd

Source: Company reports, CRISIL MI&A

Experience of leadership team

Players

Date of incorporation

Proportion of

1 *
Mo @ ITEg e independent directors

CreditAccess Grameen Ltd 1991 8 50%
IIFL Samasta Finance Ltd 1995 6 67%
Asirvad Microfinance Ltd 2007 13 62%
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Proportion of

Date of incorporation No of directors* : .
independent directors
Fusion Micro Finance Ltd 1994 6 50%
Muthoot Microfin Ltd 1992 10 50%
Annapurna Finance Pvt Ltd 1986 14 21%
Spandana Sphoorty Financial Ltd 2003 10 50%
Satin Creditcare Network Ltd 1990 7 71%
Svatantra Microfin Pvt Ltd 2012 6 33%
Belstar Microfinance Ltd 1988 11 36%
Namra Microfinance Ltd 2013 4 25%

*Basis public disclosures as on October 2023
Source: Company reports, CRISIL MI&A

Promoter vs Non-promoter shareholding of NBFC-MFI players

As of September 2023 Promoter Shareholding (%) Non Promoter Shareholding (%0)
CreditAccess Grameen Ltd 67% 33%
IIFL Samasta Finance Ltd* 100% 0%
Asirvad Microfinance Ltd* 99% 1%
Fusion Micro Finance Ltd 68% 32%
Muthoot Microfin Ltd* 85% 15%
Annapurna Finance Pvt Ltd* 87% 13%
Spandana Sphoorty Financial Ltd 63% 37%
Satin Creditcare Network Ltd 40% 60%
Svatantra Microfin Pvt Ltd* 82% 18%
Belstar Microfinance Ltd* 13% 87%
Namra Microfinance Ltd* 100% 0%

Note: (*) As of Fiscal 2023; Source: CRISIL MI&A
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OUR BUSINESS

Some of the information in this section, including information with respect to our business, plans and strategies, contains
forward-looking statements that involve risks, assumptions, estimates and uncertainties. This section should be read in
conjunction with the sections “Forward Looking Statements”, “Risk Factors”, and “Financial Statements” on pages
16, 18, and 198, respectively for a discussion of certain factors that may affect our business, financial conditions, or
results of operations. Our actual results may differ materially from those expressed in or implied by these forward-
looking statements.

Unless otherwise indicated, industry and market related data used in this section has been derived from the report titled
“Report on Microfinance Industry in India”, November 2023 (the “CRISIL Report”), prepared by CRISIL Limited,
which has been exclusively commissioned and paid for by our Company pursuant to a request letter dated November 3,
2023, in connection with the Issue. See “Risk Factors — Industry information included in this Draft Prospectus has been
derived from an industry report prepared by CRISIL and exclusively commissioned and paid for by us for such purpose”
on page 39.

We publish our financial statements in Indian Rupees. Our fiscal year commences on April 1 and ends on March 31 of
the subsequent year, and references to a particular Fiscal are for the 12 months ended March 31 of that year. Unless
otherwise indicated or the context otherwise requires, the financial information corresponding to (i) Fiscal 2021, Fiscal
2022 and Fiscal 2023 has been derived from the Audited Consolidated Financial Statements and (ii) the six months
period ending September 30, 2023 has been derived from Unaudited Interim Condensed Consolidated Financial
Statements. Financial information for the six months ended September 30, 2022, and September 30, 2023 is not
annualized and not indicative of full year results, and is not comparable with annual financial statements presented in
this Draft Prospectus. For further information, see “Financial Information” on page 198.

Unless otherwise indicated or the context otherwise requires, in this section, data has been provided on a consolidated
basis and referencesto “we”, “us” and “our” are to the Company together with its subsidiaries, on a consolidated basis.

Overview

We are a financial services group with diversified product portfolio and geographical presence focused on providing a
comprehensive range of products and services to the financially unserved and under-served community. As of September
30, 2023, we have 32.14 lakhs active customers and 33.35 lakhs loan accounts, who are served by our 1,335 branches
situated in 412 districts and 96,000 villages across 24 Indian states and union territories.

Over the years, we have rapidly scaled our operations while maintaining our asset quality. Our AUM was 10,099.84
crores as of September 30, 2023. Further, our Company is amongst the top 10 leading NBFC-MFIs in India, in terms of
AUM, with a market share of 5.86% as of June 30, 2023, on a standalone basis. (Source: CRISIL Report). In terms of
disbursements, we experienced a significant year-on-year growth of 66.55%, for the financial year ended March 31, 2023,
and recorded our highest ever disbursement of X 8,087.06 crores for the financial year ended March 31, 2023.
Additionally, for the six-month period ended September 30, 2023, we recorded a disbursement of X 4,524.52 crores, as
compared to X 3,418.07 crores recorded for the six month period ended September 30, 2022.

Our Company started its operations in 1990 as a provider of low-ticket finance. It registered as an NBFC with the RBI in
1998 and was converted into an NBFC-MFI in November 2013. It currently has two wholly owned subsidiaries: Satin
Housing Finance Limited (“SHFL”) which provides affordable housing finance loans to salaried individuals, self-
employed professionals, individuals belonging to the middle and low-income groups who reside in the outskirts of tier-
Il and below cities and Satin Finserv Limited (“SFL”") which offers secured retail MSME/SME loans. Our Company also
had a subsidiary, Taraashna Financial Services Limited (“TFSL”), which was involved in business correspondent
operations, which has now merged into SFL. For further details on the product-wise AUM, see “Key Operational and
Financial Parameters” on page 153.

Our microfinance business is primarily based on the Joint Liability Group (“JLG”) model of providing collateral free,
microcredit facilities to economically active women in both rural and semi-urban areas, who otherwise have limited
access to mainstream financial credit products. We also offer loans to MSMEs, housing finance loans, product loans for
financing purchase of solar lamps and consumer durables and loans for development of water connection and sanitation
facilities.

Set forth are the details of our key offerings:
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i. MFI Portfolio

Our MFI portfolio comprises of the below-mentioned individual loan offerings. As of September 30, 2023, loans
offered under the MFI portfolio accounted for 88.28% of our total AUM while in the six months ended September
30, 2023, disbursements in this offering accounted for 93.11% of our total disbursements by value.

Income Generation Loan (IGL): We provide collateral-free IGL loans (Prarambh) to economically active women
in both rural and semi-urban areas for several purposes related to agricultural, transportation and trading related
business operations.

Long Term Loan (LTL): Long-term loans (Vriddhi) are provided to existing customers after the successful
completion of the IGL loan cycle, to enable long-term wealth generation.

Product Financing: These are customized cross-selling loans offered on the main loans availed by customers to
assist local communities in several parts of the country to gain access to clean energy, better transportation as well
as consumer durables such as televisions, refrigerators, mobile phones and washing machines.

WASH Loan: We provide WASH loans to enable customers to avail affordable credit so as to secure the basic
necessities of life, like sanitation and hygiene. These loans facilitate multiple purposes like setting up water pumps,
bore wells and toilet construction/improvement.

ii. Non-MFI Portfolio

Our Non-MFI portfolio is primarily divided into loans to MSMEs and Housing Finance Loans.

Housing Finance: We provide affordable housing finance loans to salaried individuals, self-employed professionals,
individuals belonging to the middle and low-income groups who reside in the outskirts of tier-11 and below cities to
own, construct, purchase, extend, repair, or upgrade houses through our subsidiary SHFL. As of September 30, 2023,
home loans accounted for 5.62% of our total AUM while in the six months ended September 30, 2023, dishursements
in this offering accounted for 3.23% of our total disbursements by value.

Loans to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Loan (MSMESs): We provide loans to micro, small and medium
enterprises (MSMEs). Our aim is to assist existing MFI customers for higher level of fund requirements by providing
finance for their working capital requirements and facilitating their business expansions through our subsidiaries
SFL and SHFL and thereby leveraging synergy of the Group. As of September 30, 2023, loans to MSMESs accounted
for 6.10% of our total AUM while in the six months ended September 30, 2023, disbursements in this offering
accounted for 3.66% of our total disbursements by value.

Initially, at the time of commencement of our JLG operations, our Company’s branches were primarily located in the
North Indian states and it has now grown to become the most diversified MFI, amongst its peer set with operations in 24
states and union territories as of June 30, 2023 (Source: CRISIL Report), including Uttar Pradesh, Bihar, Madhya Pradesh,
Punjab, Uttarakhand, Rajasthan, Haryana, Maharashtra, Delhi NCR, Jharkhand, Chhattisgarh, Tamil Nadu, Gujarat, West
Bengal, Orissa, Karnataka, Tripura, Jammu and Kashmir, Pondicherry, Himachal Pradesh, Sikkim, Meghalaya,
Arunachal Pradesh and Assam. Further, in terms of overall AUM concentration as well, our top four states contribute to
54.34% of our AUM; the next six states contribute to 29.07% of our AUM; and the remaining states and union territories
contribute to 16.59% of our AUM as of September 30, 2023, which indicates our concerted efforts towards reducing
regional concentration. Our operations are also well-diversified at the district level. Around 96.40% of the districts, where
we had branches as of September 30, 2023, individually represent less than 1.00% of our AUM.

We have a large and diversified network of 83 institutional lenders comprising a range of banks, NBFCs, domestic
financial institutions and overseas funds, on a standalone basis. We continue to meet our borrowing requirements through
term loans, non-convertible debentures, sub-debt and ECBs. The diversification of the sources of funds has allowed us
to strengthen our liquidity position. Our Average Cost of Borrowings, as a percentage of the total borrowings, in Fiscal
2021, 2022, 2023 and the six months ended September 30, 2022, and September 30, 2023 was 10.19%, 10.87%, 10.34%,
5.44% and 5.48% respectively. In order to further reduce our borrowing costs, we have also securitized and assigned
through bilateral transactions a certain portion of the receivables from our loan portfolio to banks and other institutions.

Despite the cyclical changes in the economy as well as the industry in which we operate, we have been able to grow our
business and we believe that we have gained a comprehensive understanding of the markets and the industry. We
implemented strategic changes during demonetization such as strengthening our management team, diversifying the
business of our Company out of unsecured MFI portfolio by incorporating subsidiaries in housing and MSME finance,
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changing centre meeting to bi-weekly and process re-engineering which enabled us to optimise our operations. During
the COVID-19 pandemic, we invested in technology and implemented several additional measures such as an integrated
payment gateway on our official websites and QR codes on our loan cards which enabled easier collection of EMIs and
loan repayments from customers who had relocated temporarily for business purposes.

We have implemented digitization across our operational value chain, from customer onboarding to loan disbursement
and collection and delivered paperless transactions through our loan management system (“LMS”), which is compliant
with the 1ISO 27001:2013 standard. 100% of our disbursements are through the cashless mode and 92.38% of our branches
have implemented paperless operations through the electronic verification of our customers’ credentials. For the six-
month period ended September 30, 2023, 29.47% of our repayments were collected through cashless mode (including
cash collected and dropped by our field employee at the retail outlets of our service and technical partners). Further, we
have also created an in-house customer service application which enables the availability of the customer’s repayment
schedule on a real-time basis and facilitates quick and efficient repayment through UPI and RuPay.

We have also constantly striven to implement environmental, social and governance factors in our business operations
and were recently assigned “AA” ESG rating by ESG Risk Assessments & Insights Limited We offer customized loans
to facilitate customers’ access to safe water and sanitation facilities and clean energy loans like solar and bicycle loans.
Through our customised product offerings, we have empowered 9,23,716 households with clean energy and contributed
to a reduction of 44,528 tons of carbon dioxide emissions as of November 30, 2023. Our Company has been conferred
with the “Best Innovative Financial Accessibility Model” award for its WASH loans at the ISC-FICCI Sanitation Awards.

We have an experienced management team, led by HP Singh, our Company’s Promoter and Chairman cum Managing
Director, who has over three decades of experience in the financial services sector. We believe that the vision and
leadership of our management team has contributed to our growth in the past and will drive our strategic growth in the
future.

Our Competitive Strengths
Widespread and diversified geographical presence

Our Company has become the most diversified MFI, amongst its peer set, as of June 30, 2023, with operations in 24
states and union territories (Source: CRISIL Report).

Our lending business was initially focused on individual lending in urban areas, however, starting May 2008, we have
gradually added rural clients to our client base through our JLG Model inspired by the “Grameen Model”. We now have
a significant rural network with 1,335 branches and 85 regional offices situated in 412 districts and 96,000 villages across
24 Indian states and union territories and 75.89% of our AUM coming from rural areas as of September 30, 2023.

Further, in keeping with our efforts to expand our footprint, we have also focused on mitigating a key risk in the
microfinance business- regional concentration. From about 40.92% of our total AUM being concentrated in Uttar Pradesh
as of March 31, 2016, only 26.56% of our AUM was derived from the state, as of September 30, 2023, indicating our
concerted efforts towards geographical diversification while simultaneously growing our business and loan portfolio over
the years.

Set forth below is a break-down of our AUM reflecting our presence in our key States and Union Territories, and our
concerted efforts made towards geographical diversification in the seven-year period from March 31, 2016, to September
30, 2023.

(in X crores, except percentages)

Particulars Percentage of Total AUM (%) AUM as of

As of March 31, 2016 | As of September 30, 2023 | September 30, 2023
Top four states 71.47 54.34 5,488.34
Uttar Pradesh 40.92 26.56 2,682.19
Bihar 17.74 13.84 1,398.42
West Bengal 0.12 7.48 754.98
Punjab 12.69 6.46 652.75
Next six states 21.74 29.07 2,935.90
Madhya Pradesh 15.52 6.43 649.64
Rajasthan 2.35 5.66 572.57
Delhi & NCR 1.99 4.66 470.38
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Particulars Percentage of Total AUM (%) AUM as of

As of March 31, 2016 | As of September 30, 2023 | September 30, 2023
Orrisa 0.00 4,50 454.06
Assam 0.00 4.35 439.83
Haryana 1.88 3.46 349.42
Other States/ Union Territories 6.79 16.59 1,675.60
Jharkhand 0.72 3.29 332.00
Tamil Nadu 0.00 3.08 311.00
Guijarat 0.51 2.61 263.25
Maharashtra 1.58 2.37 240.18
Chhattisgarh 0.55 1.54 155.08
Uttarakhand 3.25 1.46 147.69
Karnataka 0.00 1.34 135.19
Tripura 0.00 0.63 64.03
Jammu & Kashmir 0.11 0.07 7.09
Arunachal Pradesh 0.00 0.06 5.73
Himachal Pradesh 0.05 0.06 5.58
Meghalaya 0.00 0.04 3.76
Pondicherry 0.00 0.04 3.74
Sikkim 0.00 0.01 1.28
Chandigarh 0.02 0.00 0.00
Total 100.00 100.00 10,099.84

We have, in the seven-year period from March 31, 2016 to September 30, 2023, increased our exposure to newer states,
reducing exposure to traditional regions and have entered new geographies which has led to our overall AUM
concentration being well-diversified as evidenced by the fact that:

e our top four states contribute to 54.34% of our AUM, as of September 30, 2023;
e the next six states contribute to 29.07 % of our AUM, as of September 30, 2023; and
e the remaining states and union territories contribute to 16.59% of our AUM, as of September 30, 2023.

Our operations are also well-diversified at the district level. Around 96.40% of the districts, where we had branches as
of September 30, 2023, individually represent less than 1.00% of our AUM. Among districts, our top 50 districts
contribute to 43.71%, our top 100 districts contribute to 62.35%, our top 175 districts contribute to 79.62% and our top
200 districts contribute to 83.78% of our AUM as of September 30, 2023.

This demonstrates the fact that we have expanded our operations to establish a national presence. We believe our
extensive geographic presence puts us in a vantage position to lend across the country while insulating us against risks
arising from regional, economic, political, cultural or environmental adversities.

Comprehensive understanding of the industry leading to sustainable growth in our operations

Our Company was incorporated in 1990 as Satin Leasing and Finance Private Limited with the objective of providing
low-ticket finance. It registered as an NBFC with the RBI in 1998 and was converted into an NBFC-MFI in November
2013. At present our entire microfinance operations are conducted through the JLG Model. During the 33 years of
operations, our Company has experienced various business cycles.

The microfinance industry in India suffered a downturn in the year 2010 when adverse financial conditions in certain
states in India, particularly in the state of Andhra Pradesh and debt related suicides by farmers led to adverse publicity
for the microfinance sector in India (Source: CRISIL Report). While the demonetization of X 500 and X 1,000
denomination banknotes in November 2016 hurt the industry, the impact was not as deep as the Andhra Pradesh crisis
and was limited to certain districts (Source: CRISIL Report). Portfolio at risk (PAR) data as of September 2018 indicates
the industry recovered strongly from the aftermath of the demonetization (Source: CRISIL Report).

Despite the cyclical changes in the economy as well as the industry in which we operate, we have been able to grow our

business and we believe that we have gained a comprehensive understanding of the markets and the industry which has
helped us develop sound customer relationships. We implemented strategic changes during demonetization such as

145



strengthening our management team, diversifying out of unsecured MFI portfolio by incorporating subsidiaries in
housing and MSME finance, changing centre meeting to bi-weekly and process re-engineering which enabled us to
optimise our operations.

Further, we created our in-house centralised loan management system which led to same-day disbursement of loans,
availability of data on a real-time basis, enhanced productivity and improved monitoring and control. During the COVID-
19 pandemic, we invested in our technology and created an in-house customer service application which enables the
availability of the customer’s repayment schedule on a real-time basis and facilitates quick and efficient repayment
through UPI and RuPay. We also launched UPI 2.0 autopay and implemented contactless repayment through leading
payment apps. An integrated payment getaway was introduced on our official websites along with QR codes on our loan
cards which enabled easier collection of EMIs and loan repayments from clients who had relocated temporarily for
business purposes.

Our Company disbursed loans to 48.50% first cycle customers out of its total customers during the six-month period
ended September 30, 2023. Further, at the time of disbursement, about 30.82% of the customers, had our Company as
the only lender.

We continue to build client confidence through our operation’s methodology which includes compulsory group training
for clients (“CGT”) to ensure basic level of financial literacy and understanding of our programs and group recognition
tests (“GRT”) to check awareness levels of the clients and to confirm that the clients understand our rules and regulations.
Our persistent focus is to refine our services for our clients by ethical and transparent business activities. Our Company
was recently felicitated with the best ‘On-Boarding Programme of the Year Award’ at the Learning and Development
Summit and Awards 2022 organized by UBS Forums and acknowledged for ‘Impactful Contribution in the Economy’ at
the 4" Elets BFSI Game Changer Summit.

Customer-centric business model resulting in high customer retention

We consider our customers to be the most significant stakeholders at the core of our operations. As of September 30,
2023, we had served 32.14 lakh active customers. We believe that our customer-centric business model allows us to retain
a high proportion of our existing customers and to attract new customers. During the past three financial years, our focus
has been on retaining our existing borrowers, whilst consciously adding new borrowers with a deep rural focus. We follow
a multi-pronged approach to customer engagement, which comprises the following key elements:

e Product offerings across the entire customer life-cycle - We offer a diverse product suite that caters across the life
cycle of our customers and enhances their productivity and income generating potential. We provide microcredit loans
without collateral to underserved women in rural and semi-urban areas with limited access to traditional financial
service providers. We also endeavour to cater to customers who have completed more than two loan cycles with the
Company and have bigger credit requirements by offering affordable housing and retail MSME loans through our
subsidiaries. We, therefore, believe that we provide loans that are relevant for the critical needs of our customers
throughout their lifespan, which helps in generating loyalty amongst our existing customers and in attracting new
customers. Our dedicated business intelligence unit further enables us to improve our product offerings, by closely
watching the competition and communicating and monitoring tailored business plans & strategies for on-field
implementation.

o Simplified borrower centric processes- Our business is focused on financial inclusion, along with ease of doing
business with us. To cater to our MFI borrower base, which primarily comprises women from rural areas, we focus
on providing simple and standardized products, which are outside the traditional channels of finance, that borrowers
can easily familiarize themselves with. Further, to enable clear lines of communication, and to provide timely
interventions, we provide doorstep services. Our branch offices are well-connected with the rural areas and are
located at a radius of 35-50 kms from the villages of our target customers. Our Community Service Officers (CSOs)
are also regularly in touch with our borrowers including being present at meetings of the JLGs and are able to address
concerns that are raised at the meetings. As of September 30, 2023, we have 8,863 loan officers, which includes our
trainee CSOs and quality officers.

e Focus on customer engagement — we follow a predominantly bi-weekly collection model, which enables a high
degree of customer engagement. We believe that the high customer engagement achieved via the frequency of our
collections and weekly or fortnightly meetings, and interactions with our customers is an important factor in ensuring
customer repayment and keeping our credit costs at optimal levels.

e Sparsh: Customer support and timely grievance resolution — In line with our customer-centric approach, we have
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enhanced our customer support capabilities. We have established a dedicated grievance redressal mechanism to
ensure timely resolution and comprehensive assistance for any customer queries or concerns. This dedicated support
system reinforces our commitment to delivering excellent customer service at every touchpoint. If a complaint
requires further attention, it is escalated to the Sparsh Single Point of Contact (SPOC) at our Company’s corporate
office.

Sound operational performance and liquidity

We believe we have demonstrated sound operational performance over the past three fiscals. In Fiscal 2023, our Company
stood third in terms of year-on-year growth and posted a strong disbursement growth of 83.33%, on a standalone basis,
among the MFI Peer Group, (Source: CRISIL Report) with a disbursement of ¥ 4,031.30 crores and % 7,390.11 crores in
Fiscal 2022 and Fiscal 2023, respectively. Additionally, it had the third highest return on assets and the third highest
return on assets among the MFI Peer Group, (Source: CRISIL Report) at 3.52%.

Further, on a consolidated basis, we had an AUM of X 10,099.84 crores, as of September 30, 2023, which was a substantial
year-on-year growth of 33.32% as compared to our AUM of X 7,575.36 crores as of September 30, 2022. This increase
in AUM was driven by an increase in ticket size and new customer addition.

Further, in terms of disbursements, we experienced a significant year-on-year growth of 66.55%, for the year ended
March 31, 2023, and recorded our highest ever disbursement of < 8,087.06 crores. Additionally, for the six-month period
ended September 30, 2023, we recorded a disbursement of X 4,524.52 crores, as compared to X 3,418.07 crores recorded
for the six-month period ended September 30, 2022, which was a year-on-year growth of 32.37%. The average monthly
disbursement run rate, during the six-month period ended September 30, 2023, was X 754.09 crores.

Certain details regarding our year-on-year trends in AUM and disbursement are set forth below (X in crores):

Asset Under Management Trends (Y-0-Y) Disbursement Trends (Y-o-Y)

1 300.00

FY21 FY22 FY23 H1FY23  H1FY24 FY21 FY22 FY23 H1FY23 H1FY24

W Standalone M Subsidiaries m Standalone B Subsidiaries

In addition, we closely monitor liquidity in the market and maintain sufficient liquidity to conservatively manage liquidity
risk. As of September 30, 2023, our cash and cash equivalents, other bank balance and investment in government
securities amounted to X 1,39,373.99 lakhs, which we believe reflects our sound liquidity position. As a part of our
Liquidity Risk Framework, we monitor and implement our liquidity risk management policy, strategies and practices
which include, liquidity coverage ratio (“LCR”), stress testing, contingency funding plan, maturity profiling, liquidity
risk measurement — stock approach, currency risk, interest rate risk and liquidity risk monitoring tools. As a result, our
Company maintained an LCR, as of September 30, 2023, of 109.67%, on a standalone basis, which was higher than the
RBI’s stipulated norm of 60%.

Our Company’s CRAR as of September 30, 2023, September 30, 2022, and March 31, 2023, 2022 and 2021 was 25.73%,

24.06%, 26.62%, 27.84% and 25.28%, respectively, on a standalone basis, which is higher than the regulatory
requirement. Our Company’s Tier I Capital as of September 30, 2023, September 30, 2022, March 31, 2023, 2022 and
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2021 was 25.41%, 21.28%, 25.34%, 23.25% and 19.73%, respectively, on a standalone basis.

We have a prudent approach to asset liability management (“ALM?”), with a strategy of raising long-term borrowings
and maintaining a judicious mix of borrowings amongst banks, ECBs and other sources of borrowings which has led to
a positive asset-liability mismatch. For further details, please see “Risk Factor - We face asset-liability mismatches which
could affect our liquidity and consequently may adversely affect our operations, profitability and/ or cash flows”

We also have robust capitalisation with our book value per share being ¥190.72 per share on a consolidated basis as of
September 30, 2023. Further, the Company has raised funds by way of a qualified institutional placement of equity shares
of face value X 10 each aggregating up to % 25,000 lakhs in the month of December 2023.

Further, ICRA has upgraded our credit rating to ICRA A (Stable) from ICRA A- (Stable) on December 26, 2023 for our
long term bank loans and a rating of ‘ICRA A1 (Stable)’ for our short-term borrowings which emphasizes our Company’s
financial resilience and enables it to borrow at competitive costs. For further details on the credit ratings obtained by our
Company in the three preceding Fiscals, please see- “Credit Ratings and Gradings” on page 162.

Diverse funding sources with substantial promoter shareholding

Our business requires substantial capital, and we meet our funding requirements through a diverse set of sources which
includes both equity and debt funding. Our debt funding is primarily through loans from banks and financial institutions,
non-convertible debentures and ECBs. We also enter into transactions with financial institutions and banks for
securitization and assignment of our receivables, from time to time.

We have a large and diversified network of 83 institutional lenders, on a standalone basis, comprising a range of public
banks, private banks, NBFCs, domestic financial institutions and overseas funds.

This diversification of our sources of funds has contributed to our overall reduction in the cost of borrowings and has
allowed us to strengthen our liquidity position.

The product and lender-wise liability profile as of September 30, 2023, is set forth below:

1.06%

B Term Loan & PTC
NCD
Direct Assignment
ECB

m Commercial Paper

W Banks
NBFC
Domestic Financial Institution

Overseas Fund

We have raised about T 20,000.00 crores of debt in the last 3.5 years with over X 1,018.00 crores undrawn sanction as of
September 30, 2023. We experienced a significant 93.00% year-on-year growth in funds raised during the six-month
period ended September 30, 2023, with nine new lenders being added.
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Our capital requirements are also met through equity funding from various investors. Our Company has successfully
raised T 34,500.00 lakhs since August 2020. Our Promoter and members of our Promoter Group are also committed to
the growth of our Company, they hold approximately 39.98% of the paid-up equity share capital of our Company.

Stringent customer selection and risk management framework leading to improvement in asset quality

We follow stringent customer selection and risk management policies, which have resulted in healthy asset quality and
lower credit costs. Risk is an integral part of our business, and sound risk management is critical to the success of our
organization. As a financial intermediary, we are exposed to risks that are particular to our lending and the environment
within which we operate. We have identified and implemented comprehensive policies and procedures to assess, monitor
and manage risk such as systematic risk-based branch opening/geography selection framework which enables us to
identify potential optimal areas of operation. The risk management process is continuously improved and adapted to the
changing risk scenario and the agility of the risk management process is monitored and reviewed for its appropriateness
in the changing risk landscape. The process of continuous evaluation of risks includes taking stock of the risk landscape
on an event-driven basis.

We have stringent underwriting guidelines which includes real-time credit bureau checks through integration with credit
information companies, detailed household assessment and a policy of not disbursing further loans to overdue customers.

We have been using Centralized Shared Services Center (CSS), an outsourced process unit which helps us in verification
of loan applications and KYC documents by verifying the authenticity of the customers being disbursed, to be more
vigilant in authentic on-boarding of customers. The broad parameters for selection include:

e  Customer’s income levels;

e Customer’s household’s engagement in some form of economic activity which ensures regular and assured income;
e  Possession of the required RBI approved KYC documents;

e  Willingness to follow the rules and regulations of the Company.

We have real-time review mechanisms which includes daily reviews on collections, supervisory visits and a dedicated
team in the field to review, track & monitor the process adherence & compliance to all regulatory guidelines. Our data
analytics platform provides the repayment pattern of our customers for further analysis along with grading on a real-time
basis of our customers and branch officers. We also have an efficient delinquency management with dedicated teams to
address delinquency, rigorous follow-ups and a centralized tele-calling unit.

Our effective risk management framework is reflected in our improved asset quality. Our Company’s Gross NPA Ratio
was 8.40%, 8.01%, 3.28%, 3.92% and 2.38% as of March 31, 2021, March 31, 2022, March 31, 2023, September 30,
2022, September 30, 2023, respectively on a standalone basis. Our Company has also made adequate provisions of
12,420.35 lakhs, amounting to 1.89% of its On-book Portfolio on a standalone basis which is above the regulatory
requirement of ¥ 10,800.00 lakhs prescribed by the Reserve Bank of India. Set forth below are certain additional details
regarding our Company’s asset quality in the corresponding periods on a standalone basis:

(% in lakhs except percentage)

Particulars As at March 31, As at September 30,
2021 2022 2023 2022 2023
Tier | Capital 1,20,713.88 | 1,20,476.73 | 1,22,559.70 | 1,02,016.66 | 1,48,056.96
Tier 11 Capital 33,984.75 23,787.96 6,233.76 13,407.14 1,874.00
Total Capital 1,54,698.63 | 1,44,264.69 | 1,28,793.46 | 1,15423.80 | 1,49,930.97
Total Risk Weighted Assets 6,11,907.18 | 5,18,283.11 | 4,83,749.80 | 4,79,637.76 | 5,82,775.81
Capital Adequacy Ratio / Capital to Risk Weighted Assets Ratio
CRAR - Tier | capital (%) 19.73% 23.25% 25.34% 21.27% 25.41%
CRAR - Tier Il capital (%) 5.55% 4.59% 1.28% 2.79% 0.32%
CRAR (%) 25.28% 27.84% 26.62% 24.06% 25.73%

Through the persistent effort of our field agents and our dedicated collections team, our Company was able to collect 2
2800.00 lakhs against write-offs as of September 30, 2023. Our Company’s gross cumulative collection efficiency stood
at 99.08% for the period ended September 30, 2023, on a standalone basis. Further, our Company received an initial
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disbursement amounting to ¥1077.00 lakhs under Category III of the Assam Micro Finance Incentive and Relief Scheme
2021 (AMFIRS). Launched in August 2021, this initiative, in collaboration with the Government of Assam, aims to
provide financial support to microfinance borrowers in Assam. Category Il of AMFIRS targets borrowers whose
accounts have been classified as Non-Performing Assets (NPAs). Specifically, it focuses on NPA borrowers with an
outstanding principal amount of up to 325,000 as of March 31, 2021, who were not covered by Categories | and Il of the
scheme.

Strategies

Deepen, expand and continue to profitably grow our microfinance business through geographical diversification and
increased penetration in the states in which we operate

The overall microfinance industry is expected to see strong growth on back of government’s continued focus on
strengthening the rural financial ecosystem, strong credit demand, and higher ticket sized loans disbursed by microfinance
lenders (Source: CRISIL Report). The MFI industry is expected to record a CAGR of 16-20% CAGR between fiscals
2023 and 2026. Within the sector, NBFC-MFIs have been growing aggressively at a CAGR of 23% between fiscals 2013
and 2023 and are projected to grow at a CAGR of 23-25% between fiscals 2023 and 2026 (Source: CRISIL Report).

The Reserve Bank of India (Regulatory Framework for Microfinance Loans) Directions, 2022 has also provided certain
regulatory updates such as higher household income eligibility for microfinance loans which places us in a good position
to leverage our existing expansive operations and scale up further in a sustainable manner. Further, we believe that there
is a significant potential for growth in our key states of operation. For instance, in the three-month period ended June 30,
2023, Bihar reported fastest disbursement growth of 17.00%, followed by Uttar Pradesh at 14.00% (Source: CRISIL
Report). Further, our primary strategy is to continue to leverage our experience and presence in these underpenetrated
markets, where there is substantial need, demand and opportunity for microfinance. We, therefore, intend to expand our
reach and operations in the states where we are currently present, both by increasing business transacted through existing
branches, and by establishing new branches.

We also seek to strategically manage our expansion to broad base our operations in order to mitigate a key risk in the
microfinance business-regional concentration. We have, in the last few years, pursuant to various strategic measures,
managed to reduce our concentration in regions which were traditionally our key areas of operations by further expansion
of our operations in other states in which we have existing operations and by entering into new states where we did not
previously have any business. Our operations in Uttar Pradesh contributed to 40.92% of our AUM as on March 31, 2016,
which reduced to 26.56% as on September 30, 2023. Our focus is also on ensuring diversification at the district level to
ensure enhanced customer reach and operational leverage. As of September 30, 2023, 96.40% of our districts contribute
to less than 1.00% of our total AUM.

In addition to increasing the size and scale of our operations in states where we are already present, we intend to also
focus on expanding our business operations to new geographies. We have, in fiscal 2016 to fiscal 2023, started operations
in nine new states and union territories- Tamil Nadu, Karnataka, Tripura, Arunachal Pradesh, Meghalaya, Sikkim, Assam,
Pondicherry and Orissa. We seek to continue to foray into new markets, by leveraging our experience as well as hiring
personnel who understand the characteristics of local markets in order to address specific needs of the clients in such new
markets.

Our primary objective is to have diversified presence across geographies in India with significant growth opportunities
for microfinance, which we believe will allow us to maintain stable and sustainable growth of our business and mitigate
political and state-specific risks. In addition, our focused expansion in regions with limited availability of financial
services will enhance financial inclusion and have a positive social impact, thereby creating goodwill for our Company,
which we believe will further our growth.

Improve the quality of our asset portfolio

We are focused on maintaining a high level of asset quality. Our risk management processes, coupled with our ability to
evaluate risk, have helped us reduce NPAs. Our Company’s Gross NPA Ratio was 8.40%, 8.01%, 3.28%, 3.92% and
2.38% as of March 31, 2021, March 31, 2022, March 31, 2023, September 30, 2022, September 30, 2023, respectively

on a standalone basis and Net NPA Ratio was 3.28%, 2.38%, 1.50%, 1.82% and 0.92% as of March 31, 2021, March 31,
2022, March 31, 2023, September 30, 2022, September 30, 2023, respectively on a standalone basis.

We intend to continue to focus on reducing our impaired assets with the objective of reducing our NPA levels, while
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improving the quality of our assets. We believe that effective risk management is essential to our growth, strategic
planning and long-term sustainable development.

Diversify our product offerings and leverage distribution reach to cross-sell new products

We continue to diversify our geographic concentration as well as product portfolio and introduce new products, aimed at
addressing specific financial needs of our clients. We believe that our diverse product portfolio provides us with cross
selling opportunities by enhancing the productivity and income generating potential of our clients, allowing us to leverage
our rural outreach and capitalize on our Company’s existing network and customer base and grow our business with no
incremental cost of customer acquisition enabling the income to directly add up to the bottom line. Set forth are the details
of our entity-wise and product-wise AUM for each of the corresponding periods:

(< in crores)

Particulars As at March 31, As at September 30
2021 [ 2022 | 2023 2022 | 2023
Entity-wise AUM
SCNL 7,274.60 6,409.34 7,928.53 6,417.38 8,893.96
SHFL 225.54 317.95 505.28 362.40 567.42
SFL/erstwhile TFSL 878.43 889.95 681.6 795.57 638.45
Product-wise AUM
MFI Lending 7,712.06 6,780.48 7,992.19 6,609.74 8,916.22
MSME 440.97 518.80 617.94 603.22 616.20
Housing Finance 225.54 317.95 505.28 362.40 567.42

In fiscal 2016, with the benefit of our branch and distribution reach in various rural and semi-urban areas and pursuant
to market research conducted by us to identify specific financing needs of our clients, we piloted product loans for
financing purchase of solar lamps and loans for financing for water connection and sanitation facilities in certain states.
We also added loans to MSME to our product portfolio in fiscal 2017. Typically, the ticket size of such loans offered to
retail MSMEs majorly range from % 100,000 to X 1,500,000 and are for a tenure ranging from 24 to 60 months, with
collections occurring on a monthly basis. We offer loans to MSMEs from 29 branches located in 10 states, as on
September 30, 2023. Further, in April 2017 our Company incorporated a wholly owned housing finance subsidiary (Satin
Housing Finance Limited or “SHFL”) for providing affordable housing loans to its customers.

We intend to leverage our operational network and large customer base across India to offer our housing finance loans
to existing customers. The provision of housing loans through a registered housing finance entity provides certain
competitive advantages, including increased leverage due to lower capital adequacy norms applicable to such entity, as
well as lower risk weightage applicable to housing finance loans (Source: CRISIL Report). It is also our endeavour to
leverage our outreach in microfinance to offer affordable retail MSME loans to clients who have completed more than
two loan cycles with us and have bigger credit requirements through our subsidiary, Satin Finserv Limited.

Continue to diversify our source of funds and widen our lender base to scale our borrowing requirements while
lowering costs

We have been able to access debt financing and reduce our Average Cost of Borrowings over the years due to
diversification of our borrowings and enhancement of the scale of our business. Our Average Cost of Borrowings, as a
percentage of our total borrowings, in Fiscal 2021, 2022, 2023 and the six months ended September 30, 2022, and
September 30, 2023, was 10.19%, 10.87%, 10.34%, 5.44% and 5.48% respectively.

We intend to continue to diversify our funding sources, identify new sources and pools of capital with the aim of further
optimizing our borrowing costs and expanding our Net Interest Margin. Further, we intend to expand and diversify our
lender base. We are focused on our asset and liability management to ensure that we continue to have a positive asset-
liability position. As of September 30, 2023, our mix of source of funds included 63.87% from Banks, 15.81% from
overseas funds, 8.66% from domestic financial institutions and 11.66% from NBFCs.

While continuing to pursue borrowings from these sources, we will also explore issuance of different categories of bonds,
enter into co-lending opportunities, issue commercial papers and undertake other funding opportunities in order to
broaden the depth of our offerings. A private sector bank (“Bank™), pursuant to its letter dated December 12, 2023,
sanctioned co-lending arrangement with our Company for a sanction limit of Rs 50 crores. This co-lending arrangement
is subject to execution of a master agreement, in accordance with guidelines issued by the RBI on Co-Lending by Banks
and NBFCs to Priority Sector dated November 5, 2020, as amended, from time to time. We also intend to leverage on
our loan portfolio in order to enter into direct assignment transactions with banks.
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We intend to continue to evaluate opportunities to securitize or assign loans to financial institutions, which we expect
would enable us to optimize our cost of funds, liquidity requirements and capital management. We believe with increased
net worth, including from internal accruals, we would be in a position to widen our borrowing mix, lender base and raise
debt at increasingly competitive terms going forward.

Focus on optimizing operating costs and improving operational efficiencies through digital innovation and improved
employee productivity

Optimizing our operating expenses is critical in determining our ability to offer loan products at reasonable rates to our
customers and our profitability. Our penetration in India’s rural markets through a comprehensive branch-based
expansion strategy has helped us to achieve low operating expense ratios, contributing to economies of scale. Further,
given our high customer retention rates, we expect to derive scale and cost benefits as there is no incremental sourcing
cost for existing customers, and they are eligible to borrow higher loan amounts from us since they have progressed to
higher loan cycles, and they have been our customers for a number of years. Set forth below are certain financial
parameters of our Company, on a standalone basis, in relation to our operating expenses, for each of the corresponding
periods:

(in %)
Particulars As at March 31, As at September 30,
2021 2022 2023 2022 2023
Gross Yield ® 17.57 18.44 19.66 9.92 10.81
Financial Cost Ratio @ 8.52 8.86 8.04 4.45 4.40
Net Interest Margin © 9.10 9.58 11.62 5.47 6.40
Loan Loss Ratio ¥ 3.96 2.51 5.53 5.22 0.48
RoA®) (0.18) 0.53 3.52 1.56 2.26
RoE © (0.92) 2.60 15.02 6.85 9.25
Cost to Income Ratio ) 57.74 64.76 53.78* 64.35" 45.56

Notes:

# Adjusted Cost to Income Ratio excluding one-time income of ¥ 35,215.77 lakhs for Fiscal 2023 and ¥ 35,101.76 lakhs for six-month

period ended September 30, 2022.

@ Gross Yield represents the ratio of total Income in the relevant period to the Average AUM (average of opening and closing AUM
of the relevant period); Gross Yield (including one time income of ¥ 35,215.77 lakhs on account of revaluation gain on investment
in subsidiaries) for FY23 is 24.57%

@ Financial Cost Ratio represents the ratio of Financial Cost in the relevant period to the Average AUM (average of opening and
closing AUM of the relevant period)

@ Net Interest Margin represents the difference between the Gross Yield and the Financial Cost Ratio

@) Loan Loss Ratio represents the ratio of credit cost (including provision made under FLDG arrangement) to the Average AUM
(average of opening and closing AUM of the relevant period)

®)  RoA represents ratio of PAT to the Average Total Assets (average of opening and closing Total Assets as per balance sheet of the
relevant period)

®  ROE represents ratio of PAT to the average Net worth (average of opening and closing Net worth as per balance sheet of the
relevant period

(M Cost to Income Ratio represents Operating Expense divided by Net Interest Income

We continue to invest in our technology platform and technology-enabled operating procedures to increase operational
and management efficiencies and ensure customer credit quality. Towards this end, we have undertaken various enhanced
technological initiatives such as digitization of customer KYC and consent, visibility of customer’s credit history,
biometric authentication, SMS based customer notifications, real-time integration with credit agencies, event-based
mapping of geographical locations, centralized repository of information and integration of employee management and
HR system. Additionally, in order to minimize operational risks, we are moving towards cashless collections.

We are also focused on increasing employee productivity and efficiencies.

We address employees’ growth through training programmes online and at our branches. We have formulated our training
brochures and other material internally and update these periodically based on the growth and requirements of our
business. We also offer several schemes for personnel value enhancement and skill development through higher education
courses, degrees and diplomas, which are offered to employees at various levels based on their academic and professional
background. Some training courses are mandatory and need to be completed in order to be allocated certain
responsibilities. Employees are also encouraged to undertake refresher courses. We believe these will allow for better
control over the key resources of our Company as we expand our operations.
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Key Operational and Financial Parameters

A summary of our key operational and financial parameters as at and for the half year ended September 30, 2022 and

September 30 2023, and the last three completed Fiscals on a standalone basis are as follows:

activities

(% in lakhs)
Particulars For half year ended September 30 Fiscal
2022 2023 2021 2022 2023
BALANCE SHEET
Assets
Property, Plant and Equipment 7,889.15 8,362.35 8,749.33 7,919.23 8,328.99
(including Capital Work in
Progress)
Financial Assets 7,14,502.56 896,251.97 | 770,729.89 | 718,359.88 | 749,527.89
Non-financial Assets excluding 10,566.22 9,404.67 7,972.20 11,261.39 6,682.77
property, plant and equipment
Total Assets 7,32,957.93 914,018.99 | 787,451.42 | 737,540.50 | 764,539.65
Liabilities
Financial Liabilities
-Derivative financial instruments - - - - -
-Trade Payables 263.83 66.37 792.62 1,049.81 198.23
-Other payables 1,897.95 1,966.50 1,658.58 1,543.56 1,149.80
-Debt Securities 1,02,828.96 81,922.60 | 170,507.14 | 118,743.75 | 109,144.08
-Borrowings (other than Debt 379,912.73 565,141.59 | 380,983.43 | 382,003.33 | 399,241.33
Securities)
-Subordinated liabilities 37,341.86 27,989.13 50,412.79 45,034.73 | 35,126.25
-Lease liabilities 423.96 1,346.90 659.72 500.93 1,236.37
-Other financial liabilities 34,110.99 9,958.61 30,432.44 26,409.64 | 25,542.79
Non-Financial Liabilities
-Current tax liabilities (net) - - 893.52 100.06 -
-Provisions 724.98 798.63 1,316.16 775.84 703.85
-Deferred tax liabilities (net) - 6,238.24 - - 245.64
-Other non-financial liabilities 748.11 742.00 689.79 754.02 579.63
Equity (Equity Share Capital and 1,74,704.56 217,848.42 | 149,105.23 | 160,624.83 | 191,371.68
Other Equity)
Total Liabilities and Equity 7,32,957.93 914,018.99 | 787,451.42 | 737,540.50 | 764,539.65
PROFIT AND LOSS
Revenue from operations 98,686.56 90,876.45 | 127,102.90 | 126,170.15 | 176,105.30
Other Income 17.33 36.04 204.62 23.34 49.18
Total Income 98,703.89 90,912.49 | 127,307.52 | 126,193.49 | 176,154.48
Total Expense 84,592.97 65,590.72 | 128,283.80 | 120,257.46 | 142,054.44
Profit/(loss) after tax for the year 11,480.20 18,918.00 | (1,355.49) 4,022.51 | 26,432.92
Other Comprehensive income 99.51 (1,222.50) | (3,473.87) | (2,921.73) | (1,904.81)
Total Comprehensive Income 11,579.71 17,695.50 | (4,829.36) 1,100.78 | 24,528.11
Earnings per equity share (Basic) 15.29 20.61 (2.19) 5.76 33.79
&)
Earnings per equity share (Diluted) 14.31 20.61 (2.19) 5.29 32.30
)
Cash Flow
Net cash from / used in (-) operating (10,705.82) (94,732.10) | (88,256.96) 46,516.18 | (73,647.59)




(< in lakhs)

Particulars For half year ended September 30 Fiscal
2022 2023 2021 2022 2023

Net cash from / used in (-) investing (9,367.27) (14,378.84) 21,131.56 | (5,461.27) | (11,135.30)
activities
Net cash from / used in (-)financing (41,095.66) 138,390.90 71,265.16 | (56,651.49) | 20,636.02
activities
Net increase / decrease (-) in cash (61,168.75) 29,279.96 4,139.76 | (15,596.58) | (64,146.87)
and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents as per 24,313.28 50,615.12 | 101,078.61 85,482.03 | 21,335.16
Cash Flow Statement as at end of
Half Year
Additional Information
Net worth* 1,74,704.56 217,848.42 | 149,105.23 | 160,624.83 | 191,371.68
Cash and cash equivalents 60,096.37 50,615.12 | 112,068.58 | 104,900.58 | 21,335.16
Loans 4,94,147.17 661,190.58 | 551,496.23 | 489,739.76 | 568,421.19
Loans (Principal Amount) 4,99,560.27 658,809.57 | 565,965.19 | 514,501.66 | 564,996.16
Total Debts to Total Assets** 0.72 0.75 0.77 0.75 0.72
Interest Income 55,771.76 79,275.97 | 111,686.08 | 117,010.74 | 116,008.44
Interest Expense 28,531.91 37,042.47 61,760.83 60,160.39 | 57,602.47
Impairment on Financial 33,506.94 4,438.62 27,521.24 17,542.43 | 40,229.51
Instruments
Bad Debts to Loans*** 9.55% 0.73% 2.51% 2.41% 10.46%
% Stage 3 Loans on Loans 3.92% 2.38% 8.40% 8.01% 3.28%
(Principal Amount)
% Net Stage 3 Loans on Loans 1.82% 0.92% 3.28% 2.38% 1.50%
(Principal Amount)
Tier | Capital Adequacy Ratio (%) 21.27% 25.41% 19.73% 23.25% 25.34%
Tier Il Capital Adequacy Ratio (%) 2.79% 0.32% 5.55% 4.59% 1.28%

* Net worth: Equity Share Capital + Other Equity.

“Total debts to total assets is calculated as sum of Debt securities, borrowings (other than debt securities), Subordinated liabilities,
Lease liabilities, Interest accrued on Debt Securities, Interest accrued on borrowings other than debt securities and interest accrued

on subordinated liabilities divided by total assets.
Bad Debt means loans written off (net of recovery)

*kk

A summary of our key operational and financial parameters as at and for the half year ended September 30, 2022 and
September 30, 2023, and the last three completed Fiscals on a consolidated basis is as follows:

(< in lakhs)
Particulars For half year ended September 30 Fiscal
2022 2023 2021 2022 2023
BALANCE SHEET
Assets
Property, Plant and Equipment 8,243.92 8,916.56 9,116.67 8,300.07 8,681.88
(including Capital Work in Progress)
Financial Assets 7,06,745.75 908,916.72 | 782,975.33 | 740,264.97 | 755,581.21
Non-financial Assets excluding 24,545.81 17,217.12| 12,379.07| 16,962.02| 20,693.72
property, plant and equipment
Total Assets 7,39,535.48 935,050.40 | 804,471.07 | 765,527.06 | 784,956.81
Liabilities
Financial Liabilities
-Derivative financial instruments - - - - -
-Trade Payables 485.91 245.68 1,141.67 1,278.48 507.87
-Other payables 2,157.00 2,342.94 2,221.90 1,692.21 1,551.65
-Debt Securities 1,03,327.50 81,922.60 | 171,003.09 | 119,241.39 | 109,643.58
-Borrowings (other than Debt 4,10,100.86 6,14,675.40 | 3,93,824.31 | 4,07,351.30 | 4,42,948.04
Securities)
-Subordinated liabilities 39,338.08 29,986.26 | 52,407.85| 47,030.53| 37,122.90
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( in lakhs)

Particulars For half year ended September 30 Fiscal
2022 2023 2021 2022 2023

-Lease liabilities 611.10 1,702.68 877.73 728.66 1,410.22
-Other financial liabilities 36,090.84 11,797.31| 31,776.33| 28,001.28 | 27,071.94
Non-Financial Liabilities
-Current tax liabilities (net) - - 87.90 - -
-Provisions 977.99 1,045.77 1,642.85 982.33 934.35
-Deferred tax liabilities (net)
-Other non-financial liabilities 939.13 1,312.47 870.98 1,035.54 953.82
Equity (Equity Share Capital and Other 1,45,507.07 190,019.29 | 148,616.46 | 158,185.34 | 162,812.44
Equity)
Non-controlling interest - - - - -
Total Liabilities and Equity 7,39,535.48 935,050.40 | 804,471.07 | 765,527.06 | 784,956.81
PROFIT AND LOSS
Revenue from operations 70,443.99 99,510.59 | 137,569.57 | 137,679.98 | 155,729.04
Other Income 152.90 225.58 448.11 409.40 173.29
Total Income 70,596.89 99,736.17 | 138,017.68 | 138,089.38 | 155,902.33
Total Expense 30,371.49 73,673.23 | 138,993.07 | 134,671.52 | 155,378.26
Profit/(loss) after tax for the year (15,250.04) 19,464.96 | (1,398.22) 2,069.89 481.31
Other Comprehensive income 78.04 (1,032.60) | (3,492.17) | (2,915.31) | (2,066.67)
Total Comprehensive Income (15,172.00) 18,432.36 | (4,890.39) (845.42) | (1,585.36)
Earnings per equity share (Basic) () (20.31) 21.20 (2.26) 2.96 0.62
Earnings per equity share (Diluted) (%) (20.31) 21.20 (2.26) 2.72 0.59
Cash Flow
Net cash from / used in(-) operating (17,238.04) (105,982.72) | (94,489.81) | 33,616.57 | (95,634.09)
activities
Net cash from / used in(-) investing (7,463.18) (7,934.69) | 22,565.98 | (5,079.77)| (7,289.83)
activities
Net cash from / used in (-)financing (36,315.59) 143,692.59 | 73,431.58 | (44,242.09) | 38,986.79
activities
Net increase/decrease(-) in cash and (61,016.81) 29,775.18 1,507.75 | (15,705.29) | (63,937.13)
cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents as per Cash 28,690.95 55,545.81 | 105,413.05| 89,707.76 | 25,770.63
Flow Statement as at end of Year
Additional Information
Net worth” 1,45,507.07 190,019.29 | 148,616.46 | 158,185.34 | 162,812.44
Cash and cash equivalents 64,474.59 55,545.81 | 116,403.35 | 109,126.48 | 25,770.63
Loans 5,41,967.62 736,090.80 | 581,115.60 | 530,842.27 | 632,885.67
Loans (Principal Amount) 5,51,833.90 735,667.36 | 600,053.67 | 560,365.73 | 633,703.24
Total Debts to Total Assets™ 0.76 0.78 0.78 0.76 0.76
Interest Income 59,697.82 85,352.62 | 116,716.44 | 122,773.49 | 124,896.84
Interest Expense 30,371.49 40,216.83 | 63,786.71| 62,590.71| 61,673.10
Impairment on Financial Instruments 33,747.25 4,657.46| 27,902.65| 18,073.66| 40,808.22
Bad Debts to Loans*** 8.73% 0.67% 2.42% 2.24% 9.45%

* Net worth: Equity Share Capital + Other Equity.
“*Total debts to total assets is calculated as sum of Debt securities, Borrowings (other than debt securities), Subordinated liabilities,
Lease liabilities, Interest accrued on Debt Securities, Interest accrued on borrowings other than debt securities and interest accrued
on subordinated liabilities divided by total assets.

ek,

Bad Debt means loans written off (net of recovery)
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Organisational Structure

As on the date of this Draft Prospectus, our Company has two wholly-owned subsidiaries, viz., Satin Housing Finance
Limited and Satin Finserv Limited. Our organization structure is set forth below:

Satin Creditcare Network
Limited

Satin Housing Finance Limited Satin Finserv Limited™

* Pursuant to the scheme of arrangement for amalgamation under sections 230 to 232 of the Companies Act and other relevant
provisions made thereunder, Taraashna Financial Services Limited has been amalgamated with and into Satin Finserv Limited (the
“Scheme”). The Hon ble National Company Law Tribunal, Chandigarh Bench, vide its order dated January 31, 2023, has approved
the scheme of amalgamation and the necessary form has been filed to the Registrar of Companies on March 1, 2023 which is
considered as effective date.

Our Business Operations

We started our business operations in the year 1990 by providing low-ticket finance. Our Company registered as an
NBFC with the RBI in 1998, commenced JLG operations in May 2008 and was converted into an NBFC-MFI in
November 2013. After more than three decades of experience, we have emerged as a diversified financial services group
catering to rural India through microfinance, housing and MSME. We intend to be a one stop financial service provider
for our customers.

We provide collateral free, micro-credit facilities to economically active women in both rural and semi-urban areas, who
otherwise have limited access to mainstream financial credit products, and this forms the premise of our JLG model.

While we have traditionally provided microfinance loans under the JLG model, we also offer individual MSME loans,
through our subsidiary, Satin Finserv Limited, for customers who have completed two or more loan cycles with us and
fulfil certain other eligibility criteria linked primarily to their credit history with us, income, and business position, are
more entrepreneurial, and have graduated from the JLG model.

Further, we also provide affordable home loans and loans to MSMEs. In addition, we act as a business correspondent for
a national bank. As a part of our business correspondent services, we are responsible for identifying potential customers,
mobilising them into JLGs, collecting and verifying all necessary documentation from the customers in accordance with
the standards prescribed by the bank, disbursement of loan amounts to the customers, recovering the amount disbursed
on behalf of the bank and ensuring appropriate use of the loans.

Business Model

Our business is primarily based on the JLG model. We believe that the JLG model is advantageous to both us and our
customers. It enables purpose driven lending aimed at income generation and enhanced value creation. Through this
model, our customers, who typically do not have collateral to take up loans, are able to gain access to credit. Delivering
financial services through groups also benefits us, as it allows us to have better operational control and efficiency, lower
transaction costs and increase the number of customers.

Further, we believe that the JLG Model, which is based on social collaterals, ensures credit discipline through mutual
support within the group. The JLG Model encourages individual borrowers to be prudent in conducting their financial
affairs and be prompt in repaying their loans. Failure by an individual borrower to make timely loan repayments may
affect the ability of other members in the group to borrow from us in the future; therefore, the group typically uses peer
support to encourage the delinquent borrower to make timely payments, or will often make a repayment on behalf of the
defaulting borrower, effectively providing an informal joint guarantee on the borrower’s loan.

Major Events and Milestones

The diagram below sets forth some of the major events in the history of our Company:

156



Reached 4.88 lakh Active
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Our Branch Network

As on September 30, 2023, we had presence in 24 states (Arunachal Pradesh, Assam, Himachal Pradesh, Jammu Kashmir,
Karnataka, Maharashtra, Madhya Pradesh, Meghalaya, Tamil Nadu, Odisha, Punjab, Chhattisgarh, Delhi, Bihar,
Jharkhand, Haryana, Gujarat, Rajasthan, Sikkim, Tripura, Uttar Pradesh, Uttarakhand and West Bengal) and one union

territory (Pondicherry) in Ind